DOCUMENT RESUME |
ED 290 88¢€ CE 049 550

TITLE A Prospectus of Working Women's Concerns. Hearings
before the Subcommittee on Employmen{ Opportunities
of the Committee on Education and Labor. House of
Representatives, One Hundredth Congress, First
Session (July 21-22, 1987).

INSTITUTION Congress of the U.5., Wasiiington, D.C. House
Committee on Education and Labor.

PUB DATE 87

NOTE 263p.; Serial No. 100-43.

AVAILABLE FRM Superintendent of Documents, Congressional Sales
Office, U.S. Government Printing Office, Washington,

DC 20402.

PUB TYPE Legal/Legislative/Regulatory Materials (090) --
Viewpoints (120)

EDRS PRICE MF01/PCll Plus Postage.

DESCRIPTORS Day Care; *Employed Women; *Equal Opportunities

(Jobs); *Federal Legislation; Hearings;
Nontraditional Cccupations; Poverty; *Salary Wage
Differentials; *Sex Discrimination; *Sex Fairness

ABSTRACT

This document contains congressional hearings to
raise a variaty of issues and problems pertaining to women in the
workplace. It focuses on legislation that might alleviate any adverse
conditions that might exist, especially H.R. 2577, the Economic
Equity Act of 1987. Issues include barriers in pay equity, wider
opportunities for women and integrating the male-dominated fields,
underemployment, child care, and the femininization of poverty.
Testimony includes statements and prepared statements of
representatives in Congress and individuvals representing the U.S.
Commission on Civil Rights; Children's Defense Fund; KRBK-TV,
Sacramentc¢ - Bureau of National Affairs, Inc.; Women's Bureau, U.S.
Department of Labor; American Association of Retired Persons:
Brandeis University; Kings County, Brooklyn, New York; National
Institute for Women of Color; Wider Opportunities for Women, Inc.;
Subcommittee on Employment Opportunities; McClendon News Service;
Pension Rights Center; Women and Poverty Project; and United Food and
Commercial Workers International Union. (YLB)

khkkhhhkhkhhhkhhhhdhhhhhhkhhdhdhhdhbhhhbdhhhhhhhhkhkhkhhkhkhhknkhkhkhkhhkkhhkkdhkkkkhktdd

* Reproductions supplied by EDRS are the best that can be made *

* from the original document. *
khkhkhkhkkhkhkhkhkhhhkhkhkhkhhkhkhkhkhhkhhkhkkhhhkrhhhhkhhhdhhhhkhhkhhkhihhhhkhhhkkrhkhhhkdhkkkkhkhk®




E D290886

A PROSPECTUS OF WORKING WOMEN'S CGNCERNS

] {3“ 79-107 WASHINGTON : 1987
(\) )

HEARINGS

BEFORE THE

SCBCOMMITTEE ON EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES

OF THE

COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION AND LABOR
HOUSE OF 2EPRESENTATIVES

ONE HUNDREDTH CONGRESS
FIRST SESSION

HEARINGS HELD IN WASHINGTON, DC, JULY 21 AND 22, 1987

Serial No. 100-43

Printed for the use of the Committee on Education and Labor

T OF EDUCATION
MIER':search and Impeovement

TION
URCES INFORMA
jucmomncgsgn e

ed a8
s bDoen reproduc
9 "“: \?:: "";7:'.""3 person of organization
reces
1iginating st orove
v} ::or changes have been made to MpF
reproduction qualty

tedinthisdocu"
lc‘emewm otticial

U.8. DEPART!

s 8!
of view of opinIon

* :‘:::300 not necossanty
OERI position oF pohicy

U.S. GOVERNMENT PRINTING OFFICE

For sale by the Superintendent of 6ocumenu, Congressiona! Sales Office
U.8. Government Printing Office, Wuhgtgcrmﬁ O
2 COPY AVAILABLE.

R s 3




AruiToxt rovi

M
Lo,

COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION AND LABOR
AUGUS1US F. HAWKINS, California, Chairman

WILLIAM D. FORD, Michigan
JOSEPH M. GAYDOS, Pennsylvania
WILLIAM (BILL) CLAY, Missouri
MARIO BIAGGI, New York

AUSTIN J. MURPHY, Pennsylvania
DALE E. KILDEE, Michigan

PAT WILLIAMS, Montana
MATTHEW G. MARTINEZ, California
MAJOR R. OWENS, New York
CHARLES A. HAYES, Illinois

CARL C. PERKINS, Kentucky
THOMAS C. SAWYER, Ohio
STEPHEN J. SOLARZ, New Ycrk
ROBERT E. WISE, Jr., West Virginia
TIMOTHY J. PENNY, Minnesota
BILL RICHARDSON, New Mexico
TOMMY F. ROBINSON, Arkansas
PETER J. VISCLGSKY, Indiana
CHESTER G. ATKINS, Massachusetts
JAMES JONTZ, Indiana

JAMES M. JEFFORDS, Vermont
WILLIAM F. GOODLING, Pennsylvania
E. THOMAS COLEMAN, Missouri
THOMAS E. PETR!, Wisconsin
MARGE ROUKEMA, New Jersey
STEVE GUNDERSON, Wisconsin
STEVE BARTLEITT, Texas
THOMAS J. TAUKE, lowa
RICHARD K. ARMEY, Texas
HARRIS W. FAWELL, Iilinois
PAUL B. HENRY, Michigan

FRED GRANDY, lowa

CASS BALLENGER, North Carolina

SuBCOMMITTEE ON EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES
MATTHEW G. MARTINEZ, California, Chairman

PAT WILLIAMS, Montana

CHARLES A. HAYES, Iilinois

MAJOR R. OWENS, New York

CHESTER G. ATKINS, Massachusetts

JAMES JONTZ, Indiana

AUGUSTUS F. HAWKINS, California
(Ex Officio)

JIAVA Y800 Tedk

i o -« Ls e ws § m g et

STEVE GUNDERSON, Wisconsin

PAUL B. HENRY, Michigan

FRED GRANDY, lowa

JAMES M. JEFFORDS, Vermont
(Ex Officio)

(1

e

R

Ay
.
e

Pl

[y
L e,
sV

e

—c?

L




CONTENTS Page

Hearings held in Washington, DC:

July 21, 1987 1

FULY 22, 1987 cooooeeeevasereeseseseenee st e s emseee s seeeeeseeeeeee e sesessseesmen oo 129
Statement of:

Berri, Mary Frances, Commissioner, U.S. Commission on Civil Rights........ 69

Blank, Helen, Director of Child Care, Children’s Defense Fund ............... 205

Cr(a:%, Christine, news director and co-anchor, KRBK-TV, Sacramento, 25

Crim, Sarah K., staff, special projects division, the Bureau of National
Affairs, Inc.; accompanied by: Patricia Logan, staff editor, occupaiional
safety and health reporter........coeecceeccrnmnesmsssesseess seesenne 80

Deﬂ‘;‘gﬁ’ Shirley M., director of the Women’s Bureau, U.S. Department of

T

14

Engelter, George, member, national legislative committee, American sis.
sociation of Retired Persons 221
Handler, Dr. Evelyn, president, Brandeis University, Waltham, MA ._......... 150

Holtzman, Elizabeth, district attorney, Kings Cour{;y, Brooklyn, NY..
(o

Lee, Irene, on behalf of the National Institute for Women of Color........... 180
Mz‘irano, Cynthia, executive director, Wider Opportunities for Women, 0
1, et srns e o et paemu brs s snna s e R e e e e e e e e neemen et et e s secee 101
Martinez, Hon. Matthew, chairman, Subcommittee on Employment Op-
g T 1
McClendon, Sarah, director and Washington correspondent, McClenden
INBWS SEIVICR ...ouvuiirrsecmsecsussner s sssscsmssesesssssemsssesseseeeseseeemmssssssesssms e es oo esses oo 42
Moss, Anne, director, women’s pension project, Pension Rights Center ....... 246
Oa(J)c}x:_r, Hon. Mary Ross, a Representative in Congress from the State of 55
io
Pearce, Diana, director, Women and Poverty Project 230
Schroeder, Hon. Patricia, a Representative in Congress from the State of
L0 LT L 2
Snowe, Hon. Olympia, a Representative in Congress from the State of
Maine . 130
Wynn, William H., international president, United Food and Commercial
orkers International Union; accompanied by: Pat Scurcelli, vice presi-
dent and director of women’s affairs 90
Prepared statements:
Berry, Mary Frances, Commissioner, U.S. Commission on Civil Rights....... 74
Blgr(): » Helen, director, Child Care, Children’s Defense Fund, Washington, 209
Crgg, Christine, news director and co-anchor, KRBK-TV, Sacramento, 58
Crim, Sarah, staff editor, the Bureau of National Affairs, Inc ... 83
s Delrglbig, Shirley M., director of the Women's Bureau, U.S. Department of 18

T
Engelter, George, AARP board of directors, American Association of Re-
tired Persons 224

Gunderson, Hon. Steve, a Representative in Congress from the State of

e Wisconsin 143
Handler, Evelyn E., president, Brandeis University, Waltham, MA 154
Holtzman, Elizabeth, district attorney of Kings County, NY....ccoevvue w178
Lee, Irene, on behalf of National Institute for Women of COlOr......w v 183

Maranc, Cynthia, executive director, Wider Opr.ortunities for Women, Inc 105
McClendon, Sarah, McClendon NewWs Service ..o..oeomemsooseeosonsssoosomes oo 47
Moss, Anne, director, women’s pension project, Pension Rights Center ... 248

dib




v

Prepared statements—Continued
Oa(l)cﬁ_r, Hon. Mary Rose, a Representative in Congress from the State of 60
io
Pearce, Diana M,, director, Women and Poverty Project 236
Schroeder, Hon. Patricia, a Representative in Congress from the State of
Colorado 5
-Snowe, Hon. Olympia, a Representativv n Congress from the State of
Maine 134
Wynn, William 1., international pres sent, United Food and Commercial
Lette orkers International Union 93 ¢
rs:

Smail, Annette Klang, Novato, CA, letter to Congresswoman Barbara
Boxer, dated July 20, 1987 to be inserted in Congressional Record .......... 258




A PROSPECTUS OF WORKING WOMEN’S
CONCERNS

TUESDAY, JULY 21, 1987

HoUSE oF REPRESENTATIVES,
SUBCOMMITTEE ON EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES,
CoMMITTEE ON EDUCATION AND LABOR,
Washington, DC.

The subcommittee met, pursuant to notice, at 9:30 a.m., in room
2175, Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Matthew G. Martinez
(chairman of the subcommittez) presiding.

Members present: Representatives Martinez, Williams, Eayes,
Owens, Jontz, Hawkins, and Gunderson.

Staff present: Eric Jensen, Valerie White, Tammy Harris, Shir-
ley Wilcher, Mark Poroden, Jeff Fox, and Mary Gardner.

STATEMENT OF HON. MATTHEW MARTINEZ, CHAIRMAN,
SUBCOMMITTEE ON EMPLOYMEN'T OPPORTUNITIES

Mr. MARTINEZ. As somebody said this morning, I would be late to
my own funeral. I don’t know if that is necessarily true, but at
least let me apologize to my colieague, Pat Schroeder.

We are going to be joined in a few minutes by Congressman
Hayes. So I will just go ahead and start the hearing, and get my
morning and get my statement out of the way.

Let me welcome you all today to this hearing, the first of a two-
day hearing. The Subcommittee on Employment Opportunities,
which I am the chairman of, has called this hearing to raise a vari-
ety of issues and problems pertaining to women in the workplace.

We are here to discuss legislation which might alleviate any ad-
verse conditions that might exist.

There is one bill that we will focus on throughout the hearing,
H.R. 2577, T believe appropriately called the Economic Equity Act
of 1987. This bill is an omnibus bill that combines about 13 other
¢ bills and was introduced last month by our first witness toda: , the
Honorable Pat Schroeder, possible candidate for the presidency,
and our colleague the Honorable Olympia Snowe, who will be our
first witness at tomorrow’s hearing.

There will be three panels each day. The first panel today will
discuss women in the work force, the broad xierspective; the second
will discuss barriers in pay equity; and the last will discuss wider
opportunilies for women and integrating the male dominated fields
of endeavor.

Before beginning, let me share with you a few of my own
thoughts.
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I believe today that we must recognize that women are key play-
ers in the labor market and are key players in our destiny. We
sheuld realize that there are less and less women staying at home
being wives and mothers and that there are less and less rocking
chair grandmothers.

The work force is changing, and more women are becoming a
part of it. It is only right that we change our traditional thinking
where it hasn’t been changed already and make the workplace a
more equitable place for women to work. The sooner we do this,
the sooner we all reap the benefit of it.

The promises of the Constitution which say equslity for all will
not be completely realized until all discriminatory practices, espe-
cially for gender, as well as race, creed and color, are eliminated
from the workplace. Women should have the same opportunities
and same benefits as everyone else.

With that, I would like to turn to our first witness, the Honora-
ble Pat Schroeder.

STATEMENT OF HON. PATRICIA SCHRT ¢DER, A REPRESENTA-
TIVE IN CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF COLORADO

Mrs. ScunroepeRr. Thank you, very much, Mr. Chairman. I really
am delighted that you are doing these hearings.

As the Co-Chair of the Congressional Caucus for Women'’s Issues,
we couldn’t be more pleased that you are putting this front and
center. And we thank you for your long, strong stand on all of
these. I think it shows that you have incredible foresight in your
willingness to focus on a lot of the problems and concerns facing
today’s working women.

You are right, in this year we introduced the Economic Equity
Act, and this is the third time that we have done that. This bill
this year is made up of 17 different pieces of legislation. For the
past six years that we have done this, what we have tried to do is
find and show that the Equal Rights Amendment really is an eco-
nomic issue and not a lifestyle issue. These are all pieces of legisla-
tion that you really wouldn’t have to deal with if you had had
equal rignts for women.

The Equity Act has encouraged greater awareness, I think, of the
continuing inequities women face in the arenas of pensions, social
security, business credit, pay, health care, and this one is especially
focusing on the issues of work and family because they have
hecome 80 critical.

Unfortunately, our country keeps pretending like it is 1890 and

not 1990. So I am glad you have figured out what century it is and
are trying to deal with the real world. But the revolutionary demo-
graphic changes have meant that if the average American family
wants to play with the American dream of home, car, college, both
have to work outside the home. So both are getting two full time
jobs. That is very difficult and stressful to deal with.
. So a very interesting thing has happened. Women’s issues have
become working family issues. If you look at what the NOW
agenda was in the late sixties, it has now become the mainstream
?geqlda of almost every group out there concerned about the
amily.
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This is economics. Women work for economic reasons. They don’t
work because they are tired of bon-bons and watching soap operas.
They work because they need the money. They are the breadwin-
ners also. No longer are breadwinners gender defined.

So what we do this time is, we look at many of the institutions
and the policies that govern the workplace that have not been
changed to meet this demographic revolution. The caucus has been
working on flexitime bills, on job sharing, on pension reform, equal
business credit for women so that they can start their own busi-
nesses when they want to, and it deals with the dual responsibil-
ities that women face.

Almost two-thirds of the new entrants into the work force be-
tween now and-the year 2000 are predicted to be women. So the
next generation also is going to be involved in this very precarious
balancing act between career, family and marriage.

I have been around this country a lot in the last month, and I
am just amazed about how we are talking about why in the world
do we still not have comparable or equal pay, why don’t we have
job guaranteed leaves from work for pregnancy or for child rearing,
why don’t we have day care? Everybody understcnds this is a ne-
cessity except for the government. There are no part time or flexi-
time options that are really very real for people because so often
what happens if you work part time or flexible time, you lose all
your benefits. We have so many people now working without any
medical coverage, and a lot of them are women with children, that
needs to be addressed to.

So our Equity Act talks about pay equity one more time. We
keep passing it in the House, and it goes into that dark hole known
as the Senate. Let’s hope this time we can get it out of there. We
have in there improved working conditions for part time workers,
and basically that means offering them health care insurance. You
offer them the same percentage of health care insurance, only you
can pro rata it in accordance with what you offer the full time, but
you don’t shut them out. We deal with pension and social security
reform, and improved access and quality of dependent care for the
children.

The caucus has also been interested in the Family and Medical
Leave Act because that is another part that deals with all the dif-
ferent struggles that fumilies have. It is unbelievable that if you
get ill, you can be fired for being ill in America. This would give
you six months to reclaim your health and your job.

It is incredible when you look at the fact that every single family
issue, America is in the worst shape compared to other industrial-
ized nations. Whether you look at divorce rates, adolescent preg-
n}zlancy, anything that you want to talk about, we are in terrible
shape. .

The family is our foundation. We know that getting families off
to a good start is terribly important, that bonding in the early days
of life is terribly important. Yet, you can lose your job for having a
baby and not allowing the boading to take place.

So all these things are really crazy. When you look at other in-
dustrialized nations, they dealt with them a long time ago and
can't belicve that we are just catching up.

'8




So I thank you for having these hearings, and I guess the bottom
line, the two things that I think tell you the most about how
women feel is, they feel they ate paying equal taxes, afid so there-
fore.they ought to get equal treatment by this Government. Now, if
the Government wants to come and give us a 50 percent cut be-
cause they are not going to give us equal treatment on our taxes,
then we might talk. But they never make that offer. They want us
to pay equal taxes and accept unequal treatment. Women are
saying no more. We ought to be entitled to the same kind of protec-
tion that everybody else is.

I think the other statistic that tells me how important these
hearings are, Congressman Martinez, they are so important be-
cause now in America a young woman in school is five times more
likely to end up ‘being the sole support of her family than a young
man. Now that is the world turned upside down. And I think that
does say she needs equal education opportunities, credit opportuni-
ties, pay opportunities, and the whole bit. Because it is really not
just her well being, it is her family’s well being and children’s well

ing.

So the Economic Equity Act and the Family and Medical Leave
Act are very important family issues and women’s issues. I hope
we catch up with the rest of the industrialized world in this histor-
ic 100th Congress. Even though it appears we are never going to
get women in the Constitution in its 200th anniversary, maybe we
can do something about working families in the 100th Congress
this year. I thank you for holding the hearings.

[Prepared statement of Hon. Pat Schroeder follows:]




PREPARED STATEMENT OF HON. PATRICIA SCHROEDER, A REPRESENTATIVE IN CONGRESS
FroM THE STATE OF COLORADO

As the Co-Chair of the Congressional Caucus for Women's Issues, I
am pleased to be here today to open these Oversight Hearings. I
look forward to reviewing the information and discussions
generated by this very distinguished list of witnesses who, over
the next two days, will be addressing a broad range of issues
affecting women today. I would like to thank Rep. Martinez for
holding these hearings, and for having the foresight to highlight
the concerns and problems facing today's working women. I am
especially grateful that the Subcommittee will be taking a look
at the 1987 Economic Equity Act sponsored by The Congressional
Caucus for Women's Issues.

The Equity Act is an omnibus bill comprised of seventeen pieces
of legislation that together seek to bring greater equality to
the lives of American women. For the past six years, the Equity
Act has succeeded in articulating a women's legislative agenda.
Most importantly, The Equity Act has encouraged a greater
awareness of the continuing inequities women face in the area of
pensions, social security, business credit, pay, and health care.

Tris year's Equity Act builds on our past efforts by introducing
legislation that will mezke a critical difference in women's
lives. Bat this year's Equity Act differs from those in the past
in one important respect: this year the issues of work and
family define the shape of the bill.

There are two primary factors that contribute to the Equity Act's
new direction: first, the revolutionary demographic changes that
have transformed the shape and character of the labor force; and
second, the outdated employment policies that do not meet the

needs of today's diverse work force where women make up almost

half of all workers, and the increasing majority of these women
are mothers.

ERIC e
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What the 1987 Economic Equity Act recognizes is that in today's
world working women's issues are the samz as working family
issues.

America has become a socliety in which everyone is expected to
work’ =~ including women with young children. In the 1960s and

. 708 a paid job became an important symbol of self-worth and
personal independence. In the 1980s, work continues to be the
way most adults identify themselves; for most of us, work is the
central organizing principle of our lives. But the truth is that
most women work for economic reasons. Millions of families
depend on women's earnings.

Unfortunately, many of society's institutions and policies are
out of sync with today's reality and were designed during an era
when it was thought that men were the breaawinners and women the
homemakers,

Tiie Economic Equity Act seeks to resolve this conflict by giving
voice to a much needed thoroughgoing reform of the institutions
and policies that govern the workplace. The Caucus has long
worked toward such achieving policies such as flexitime, job
sharing, pension reform, and equal business credit, but now it
does so with the added knowledge and goal of finding new
solutions to the ever widening gap between home and family
responsibilities.

The Equity Act reflects the dual responsibilities women face in
today's world, and offers new policies that accommodate the
combination of work and family 1ife, not only for women -but for
the whole family as well. Almost two-thirds of the new entrants
into the work force between now and the year 2000 will be women,
and 61 percent of all women of working age are expected to have
Jobs by the year 2000. The balance between work and family will
remain a precarious balancing act that needs our attention now
before the problems erupt into a full fledged crises.

I have been around the country a lot in the last month, and the
demands for comparable pay, job guaranteed leaves fr..a work for
pregnancy and child rearing, as well as adequate, affordable day
care, and part-time and flexitime options are the same from Mew
Hampshire to California. The Congressional Caucus for Women's
Issues through the Economic Equity Act has given these very real
concerns a platform: the Equity Act includos legislation
advocating pay equity, improved workine couditions for part-time
workers, pension and social security reform, and improved access
and quality of dependent care for children and the elderly.

The Caucus has also kzen sensitive to a special concern of mine:
The Family and Medical Leave Act. This bill builds ar important
bridge between work and family by enabling a family to carry on
its inportant care giving responsibilities without risking losing
their jobs to do so. The bill calls for employers to grant
employees up to 18 weeks of unpaid Jjob-protected family leave in

11.1
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a two year period to care for a sick child or parent, or to care
for a newborn or newly adopted child. The bill also extends a
Job protected leave to workers who become seriously ill and
cannot work, including women recuperating from childbirth,

Today you will hear from some that government isn't necessarily
the best vehicle for changing old, out-dated employment
practices. I don't agree. It's time for the Government to have
& positive role in helping families do what they do best: provide
care for their children and parents. The continued health of
today's family depends on forward lcoking employment policies.
Congress has a critical role to play in closing the gap betwaen
the needs of a new diverse work force and antiquated employment
practices that disadvantage women and jeopardize the healch of
their families.

The Economic Equity Act, like the Family and Medical Leave Act,
is as much a family issue as a woman's issue. I hope you will
keep this in mind as you explore the special concerns of worxing
wom;né Only then, will we be able to achieve real equity in the
wor, orce.
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Mr. MarTiNgz. Thank you, Pat.

Let me-start off by touching on something you just said about
catching up. You knew, I grew up thinking, and I still believe, that
America is the greatest country in the world. But there was a little
naivety in my thinking that I believed that we do everything better
than anyhody else.

But like you, in recently traveling around the country and trav-
eling abroad to some other countries. I see things that they are
doing that are so much more equitable, especially in regard to
their working people.

Japan has an interesting plan where people at whatever job they
enter are entering into it almost as a career with that company.
And that company is going to make sure that they provide those
medical benefits and those maternity benefits and everything else
that we are still arguing ahout.

So sometimes I get a little discouraged that we are really not as
great as sometimes we like to believe we are, and we are really not
as advanced as we sometimes like to believe we are. Rather than
just thinking it, we ought to practice it.

Let me touch on one thing which 1 have heard a lot of lately. In
fact, 1 have had special interest groups lobby me about it. That is,
parental leave, where we try to do something to provide a more
conducive family unit where the father as well as the mother gets
to understand and realize responsibility to the newborn child.

It seems to be that the big uproar is that all of a sudden we will
bankrupt all these companies, and especially the small companies.
Would you respond to that a little bit?

Mrs. ScHrOEDER. I would be more than happy to. You know,
wh2n we have pediatricians telling us they can’t te.l which kids
will get in trouble, but they can tell which ones won’t, we ov.ht to
listen. And when they tell us how very important that early bond-
ing i, we ought to listen; that a baby and its parents don’t bond in
the delivery room saying, hi, mom, hi, dad, you can go back to
work now, glad to be here, see you for dinner. It doesn’t work that

way.

'l¥he bonding is very essential, and you are laying a foundation
for an entire future of this family and this cnild and everyone else.
Yet, ir this country, except in California and a few other progres-
sive states like yours, people can be fired for staying hoiae with
their children. The only criteria we have is if the woman can get
up and walk and her health is all right, then she is to come bac': to
work. Nothing about the emotional health or the bonding or any of
that is taken into account.

At the same time, we don’t provide day care for infants any-
where. And I don’t think infant day care is really very good even if
you do provide it. It is very costly and so forth.

But what you were doing is, at a time when it is so important to
try and support a family and get a good foundation going, we are
absolutely tearing them apart emotionally by forcing them to leave
the baby before they are ready, by causing the woman or the man
to be angry that theK have to do that, maybe blame their other

artner because of the economic situation bei:g such that they
ave to do that and so forth. So you are just adding more stress
and tension at a very fragile time.

L4

IToxt Provided by ERI




I think all of us when we had children realized that is a very,
very emotional time when all sorts of things are in flux and chang-
ing.
If you cannot have the time to at least get that sorted out and
the bonding goes on and everybody is firmly based, we are going to
ray very dearly for that in this country.

ery other industrialized country except South Africa and the
United States did this in the thirties and forties. Thank goodness,
your state did it, and the Supreme Court upheld it. But a lot of
other states haven’t, and that is one of the things I think we
should certainly move on.

We throw more rhetoric at families out of this city than I have
ever seen. That is all we do for them. We throw rhetoric at them.

Mr. MarTINEZ. One of the things that we have been talking
about ever since I got here some five years ago is day care.

Mrs. ScHROEDER. Absolutely.

Mr. MarTINEzZ. And the need to provide day care for mothers,
single mothers especially, who are trying to get off welfare. We are
still arguing that in the bill we are trying to pass out of the full
committee, on welfare reform.

Here again, it always goes back to the cost, what it is going to
cost. You touched on it. It is going to cost us more in the long run
than it is if we take care of it now and provide these opportunities
now.

But let’s go back to the other parental leave. Still, what is the
counter argument to this big worry that it is going to bankrupt
companies?

Mrs. ScaroEpEz. Well, on day care, first of all, the Federal Gov-
erument for all its talk is contributing half as much on day care as
%lt lwa.s; in 1981. There are many more people who need day care

elp.

Companies that say that they are going to be bankrupt by pro-
viding day care, I just don’t understand at all. I think you will find
that many who have done it Lave found that it is a fringe benefit
that has really paid off phenomenally because people then stay
there and they don’t move around to other companies as much, and
they don’t lose what they had in training and everything else. So,
they found it to be a very good investment.

I think one of the challenges we have to do is show companies
there are a lot of ways to do day care. Normally when you talk to a
company about it, the’y think, oh, my goodness, I am going to have
to build something, it’s insurance, it’s all this expense, and on and
on and on. There are all sorts of other creative ways to do day care
that is not quite that costly that innovative employers have found.

I think we are going to have to spend a lot of time pointing that
out, because that is what happens. I think they just panic and
thing, oh, it’s insurance, it's regulations, it’s building, it’s money,
and please don’t do that to us.

Mr. MarTiNez. What about the other philosophy that I have
heard expressed that, most people if they really wanted to, get to
work, and they point to so many people tha . do do it. I have In my
own family a great example of their philosophy that family riem-
bers should provide day care if these people need to get out and
work and if these people really wanted to get out and work. I have
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five married children. They and their spouses are both working,
and they all have children. Fortunately they have someone in the
family to be able to carc for the children.

But I know 80 many women who don’t have that situation. This
is a very prevalent situation where they don’t have some family
member. & they have to depend on somebody outside the immedi-
ate family for that day care.

How do we convince these people that not every situation is the
perfect family situation they envision in their minds?

Mrs. ScHROEDER. [ think that is the hardest part. We keep view-
ing the American family as the Norman Rockweill painting, you
know, absolute perfection. That’s not what it looks like. So we have
to legislate on reality and not nostalgia, and point out to people
that this is a very transient country. People move. Lots of people
don’t even have a family member anywhere within a thousand
mile radius of their home.

So to come up with those kinds of solutions, they are really not
solutions for a lot of peofple who also need jobs. So you need to pro-
vide a menu, and a lot of different things that can be selected from.

One of the things we keep focusing on is allowing day care to be
deductible under your income tax. For heaven’s sakes, it’s a cost of
doing business. We will allow peorie to deduct three martini
lunches, but not day care. What kind of standard is that?

So that is a lot of what we are trying to focus on in the caucus is
showing that, while we say we are child oriented, we aren’t at all.
You do a whole lot better off in our economy if you raise thorough-
bred dogs or horses. You cun write off everything. If you have chil-
dren, no. You are out there, and everybody gives 14 reasons for
why your problems aren’t their problems.

I don’t think that is really very good for this country. It has been
a lot of what has led us to where we are.

Mr. MarTiNEZ. Thank you, Pat.

Mr. Williams.

Mr. WiLriams. Thenk you, Mr. Chairman.

I just want to c... ~2ud our friend Pat Schroeder for her leader-
ship on what is p:- * the coming major American issue; that is,
an issue that surrods.. a fairly recent phenomenon, the evolution
of the American work force.

It has been a silent, almost unnoticed evolution. The gentlelady
from Colorado is the congressional leader in trying to bring to the
attention of the Congress and the American people the fact that
this evolution requires different publ‘: responses at both the Feder-
al, State; local and private level, than have heretofore been made.

Those responses will include eventually in this country changes
in leave policies, in wages, day care policies, the American tax
structure, American pension policies, worker safety issues, and I
am sure other things that we haven’t yet thought about.

Those changes are coming in America. America will achieve
those changes, hopefully sooner rather than later. If the gentlelady
frem Colorado has her way, it will be sooner. And I join her in
those efforts and thank her for being here today.

Mrs. ScHROEDER. Thank you very much. I think you were the one
that said this should be our moon shot legislation. I think you are
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ai)gll;et. I think it is trying to bring us up to where we are supposed

Mr. MARTINEZ. Thank you, Mr. Williams.

Mr. Gunderson?

Mr. GUNDERSON. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Thank you, Pat, for f'our testimony. I just quickly reviewed it
here. 1 would like to look at this from a different perspective.
When we discuss women’s issues and women in the employment
force, we tend to deal with them from a rather broad macro per-
spective.

I happen to come from rural America where we have a major
tramsition occurring economically, and where I would say that we
?ave an even greater transition occurring with women in the work
orce.

Can you, both for the record and from my perspective, try to
translate how the Economic Equity Act would impact upon rural
America and rural women in particular? _

Mrs. ScHROEDER. Absolutely. In our very first Economic Equity
act that we put out, we did a lot to recognize how far behind the
laws were for rural women. At that point what was happening was
under the Federal inheritance laws, if a man predeceased the
woman and they were on a ma and pa farm, ma usually had to sell
the farm to pay the taxes, which was crazy. We treated it as
though it was a windfall to her, that one more time, she had just
been sitting around watching soap operas while he worked, and
this is a windfall.

I mean, that is absolutely phony. Anyone who understands rural
America knows that both the man and the woman have worked
very hard. So we got the inheritance laws changed. That was one of
our great successes. We did that in our first Economic Equity Act.

Now what we have got, it is even harder for the man and the
wife to make money on the farm. So very often the wife also has
another job. She is in a unique position where she almost has three
full time jobs, a mother and wife, and a farmer’s wife which means
that you are really one of the hired hands too—everybody is out
doing whatever you have to do—and often has another job in town.

So the pension discrimination, social security discrimination, all
of those things impact on her as they do other women in the work-
place. So she falls under that generafcategory.

But the first thing we hit was the inheritance, and I think that
ghat one, I am very proud to say, we were successful in getting

one.

Mr. GUNDERSON. One of the things you might want to take with
you to Iowa and check out as you are traveling around is the ques-
tion of how you deal with displacement of farmers, and particular-
ly farm women. In any accounting of employment statistics, if you
are lucky, the male displaced farmer will be counted in unemploy-
ment statistics. I think I can almost guarantee you that in Iowa or
anyplace else, the female spouse is never counted in terms of being
displaced or being unemployed as a result of that farm going out of
business.

Mrs. ScHROEDER. And should be.

Mr. GunpersoN. This problem of undercounting directly and
very significantly affects the ability to bring job training funds into
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rural America. It is one of the things that we have been trying to
work on in this Committee.

Another important area that I and my women’s advisory group
back home have been wrestling with since 1980 unsuccessfully is,
how do we provide day care in rural America in a setti.rﬁ that is
both of high quality and financially affordable to give rural women
any chance of making chat transition from homemaker to profes-
sional. Any thoughts on that?

Mrs. ScHrOEDER. Well, it is very difficult. I suppose the best
thing that you can possibly do, if the person is working in a town—
I mean, if she is working at home, then you have a real problem. I
mean, if it is more a cottage industry type of thing, because it be-
comes very costly if you have somebody transported to the house.
But if she is wori.ing in a town, you do have churches and schools.

One of our px;frams has been to see how we can utilize already
&lallalicly, certified, in place facilities for community day care.

ether employers contribute or how you do it with a sliding
scale, depending on how much income you are making, or what,
that is one way we can use the facilities that are there in rural
America in the towns where the jobs are, rather than building
more I mean, you are not going to be able to build more.

Mr. GunpERrsON. I agree with that, and I agree with what you
suggested regarding the use of the schools, churches and other ex-
isting facilities. However, while it is nice in theory, the reality is
that in rural America there are not even the resources to keep that
as a viable option.

Mrs. ScHROEDER. One of the things that we did at the Federal
Government the last time with help from people on this committee
was a latchkey day care bill which gave communities a small grant
to try and do their public facilities, to use that. Then once they had
them cranked up, it was a pay as you go type of thing. ybodi/
who had income at a certain level had to pay at a certain level,
and then if they didn’t there was some kind of a subsidy. But it
was very de minimis. It was Congressman Sala Burton.

Mr. GuNDERsON. Did latchkey pass the Senato?

Mrs. ScHroEDER. We finally fgot funding for it, yes. Sala Burton
got about $10 million worth of funding. It was very de minimis, but
we got a toe in the door. I think that is a very important beginning
anoci1 siomething we can start to build on because it was a good
model.

Mr. GuNDERSON. Thank you.

Mr. MarTINEZ. Thank you, Mr. Gunderson.

Just allow me to take a minute to respond to that. California has
latchkey pretty well going now. In my own community it has
worked -through the Board of Education. The Board of Education
are doing a great job with this. This is really making a big differ-
ence.

I went to a recent latchkey installation of officers. They have
their little group, and they raise funds. Actually, it wasn’t the in-
stallation, it was a fundraiser for it, to get additional funds to sup-
plement what they are getting from the Government. I think it
was funded in California for several million dollars, and it was suf-
ficient that it has done a great job. It was just seed money really,
because now community groups are coming forward.
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That’s what happens a lot of times when you have a good pro-
gram, because everybody recognizes the value of a program like
that. Last week when we were debating the welfare reform bill
here in the full committee, there were people that were ridiculing
the idea of 14 year olds going to a day care center. You know, that
is very short-sighted thinking. The fact is, they wor’t be goininto
day care centers, but they will be going to the equivalent of. And
even more than that, they are going to more than the equivalent of
because they are act in these programs getting tutoring,
whether it is in athletice that they want to try out for or programs
for furtherirg their education in school. The teachers are volun-
teenntg their time because this is such a vital program in the com-
munity.

I can’t say enough for it. It really has been tremendous as I have
seen it in my communities. I think that that dpiece of legislation
was a brainstorm. I don’t see why it can’t be done on a more na-
tional scale. It is simply because so many people aren’t aware of
the program. I am still surprised how many members of this com-
mittee that were not aware of that latchkey program.

Mrs. ScHROEDER. It is very good.

Mr. MarTiNEz. I would ﬁe to turn to our chairman. Good morn-
ing, I;‘Ir Chairman. Mr. Hawkins, would you like to ask any ques-
tions?

Mr. HAwkins. I look forward to the hearings. I don’t want to
take up any time, Mr. Chairman. I wish to commend you on takin
the leadership. As I look at the list of witnesses you have sched-
uled, you certainly have done an excellent job, I think, in selecting
individuals that I think can contribute very much to this sub_Lect.

The subject matter obviously is a very vital part of the work of
the full committee, and we certainly appreciate the efforts that you
are putting forth in connection with it.

e congratulate our distinguished colleague, Congresswoman
Schroeder, for being the lead off witness, and we commend her.
Certainly it will be a tough job for this committee to keep up with
various 1deas and initiatives that she has planned.

Thank you very much.

Mrs. SCHROEDER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. You have been very
patient with us.

Mr. MARTINEZ. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Hayes.

Mr. Haves. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I too, like my chairman, don’t care to usurp any time unneces-
sarily. I know that my colleague, Mrs. Schroeder, is quite capable
of dealing with the subject at hand today, a prospectus of working
women and their concerns. Her track record makes her imminent.
ly qualified.

If:m wanted to say, I am a little bit groggy. Yesterday I was on
a whirlwind tour in the State of Connecticut, in Bridgeport, to help
add to the numbers, at least by one, of women here in the Con-
gress.

Mrs. ScHROEDER. The e is room for you in Heaven, sir.

Mr. Haves. We tried to get curselves in a position where at least
we can increase the black representation of women by 100 percent.

Mrs. SCHROEDER. That’s great.
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Mr. Havzs. She has a good chance if we can come through.
Today is the day.

Mrs. ScHrRoEDER. Well, we will keep our fingers crossed.

Mr. Haves. All right.

Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

Mrs. ScHROEDER. Thank you, Mr. Hayes.

Mr. MARTINEZ. Thank you, Mr. Hayes.

Just because he said that, I am going to ask the first question I
was supposed to ask, and then I had a second thought about it. I
was supposed to ask you what your platform would be if you were
elected to the presidency. I had changed the word “if’—what do
you mean, if—to “when” she is. But I know that that would take
considerable time. So we all, I think, that have worked with you
here in Congress know what your platform would be, and it
wouldn’t be a single issue. It would be a multiple issue.

Mrs. SCHROEDER. Absolutely.

Mr. MarTINEZ. So if you should decide, God’s speed. Thank you.

Mrs. ScHROEDER. Thank you very much.

Mr. MarTINEZ. Let me introduce our first panel then. It consists
of Ms. Shirley Dennis, Director, Women’s Bureau, Department of
Labor; Ms. Christine Craft, News Director and Co-Anchor of
KRBK-TV, Sacramento, California. I spent some time in that town,
a very short time. I am noted to have a record of some kind in that
I served the shortest time in the State legislature of anyone who
went on to be elected to a higher office. One newspaper put it,
here’s a guy that is trying to go from a small town mayor to Con-
gress in less than two years. And I pointed out to them, there are
people that have come to Congress that have never served in any
political office At least I had eight years of local service too. But at
any rate, I enjoyed Sacramento while I was there. So welcome. My
staff director, that's her home town, Sacramento, California. She
spent about 16 years working in the State legislature there.

Let me also introduce Ms. Sarah McClendon, Director and Wash-
ington Correspondent, McClendon News Service.

We may be joined a little later by Congresswoman Mary Rose
Oakar, who is very interested in these issues also. But let us start
with Ms. Dennis.

STATEMENT £F SHIRLEY M. DENNIS, DIRECTOR OF THE
WOMEN’S BUREAU, U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

Ms. DEnNis. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

I would like to, first of all, thank you and the subcommittee for
inviting me to discuss women in the labor force. We think that the
subcommittee seeks a good perspective on the concerns of working
women. You are to be congratulated for this effort, for the role of
women is pivotal in the work force today.

I am very pleased to have the opportunity to present an overview
of the status of women in our economy and, in essence, in our soci-
ety overall.

As more women enter the labor force, it is important to view
their contributions in the context of the global marketplace as well
as the U.S. economy and our work force. This context also includes
the urger.t need to prepare for the jobs of the future. In particular,
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I will discuss work and family issues, preparation for employment
by women on welfare and, briefly, the Women’s Bureau initiatives.
As members of the subcommittee already know, Secretary of
\ Labor William E. Brock has made the Work Force 2000 Project the
] cornerstone of his stewardship in the U.S. Department of Labor.
g The Women’s Bureau is proud to play an important role in the
- Work Force 2000 initiative.
i This morning, I will bring news of a recent study by the Hudson
Institute on Work Force 2000, commissioned by the Labor Depart-
ment. The study discusses the changes in the work force that we
can expect and the adjustments which will have to be made in our
employment and training systems if our workers are to be well
matched with tomorrow’s employment demands.

Today, women are key players in our economy, as you said earli-
er, Mr. Chairman. The realization of their importance, however,
has been gradual and uneven throughout society as more women
have entered the labor force and have claimed long-term attach-
ments to employment.

The same is true globally. As I travel internationally, I am im-
pressed by the increasing recognition of women’s key economic
role. Awareness of the vital need for women workers in a healthy
economy is heightening both among our principal trading partners
and within other countries.

Today, in the United States, more than 52 million women age 16
and over are in the labor force, and only about 3.7 million of these
women sre among the unemployed. These millions of working
women are now the mgjority of all women and comprise 44 percent
of the entire labor force. By the year 2000, they are projected to
comprise about 47 percent of the labor force.

But the keys to their importance are twofold. One, the economy
in the United States has long been and, according to bes. esti-
mates, will continue to be dominated by the services-producing
sector where women are the majority of workers. And, two, women
will be the major source of new entrants into the labor market in
the foreseeable future, as just indicated by Congresswoman
Schroeder.

These two factors, tgfether with the move of our economy toward
increased international trade and competition, will have a signifi-
cant implication for the future of our nation.

Already in the United States we see significant changes taking
place. Of the nearly 49 million employed women, the vast majority
are working full time. Over half of all wives and half of all mothers
are in the labor force. The dual earner family has become the pre-
dominant family type in the United States today. Single parent
families are growing, the numbers of families maintained by wege
earning women increased 25 percent between 1979 and 1986.

The impact of women as both workers and family members is
significant.

Women have made great strides in obtaining better paying jobs
as they have met, challenged, and conquered many employment
barriers. Today, in fact, we have reduced the earnings gap, and
women now earn 65 cents for every dollar earned by men.
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Yet, with all we have achieved, the largest number of women
still are employed in the traditional female occupations, including
teachers, clerical workers, nurses, and service workers.

Minority women have also made strides in the labor force. While
their numbers do not match the totals for all women job to job,
there has been progress. At the same time, however, their high un-
employment rates, particularly among young black women, have
significant implications for the future labor force.

This brief overview, together with the more detailed analysis in-
cluded in my full testimony, provide an important background for
the research and planning which are at the root of Secretary
Brock’s Work Force 2000 Project. .

Two major reports have been shared recently with the members
of this subcommittee. On, the Bureau of Labor Statistics preview of
the economy of the year 2000, and, two, Work Force 2000, Work
and Workers for the 21st Century, which was issued by the Hudson
Institute.

Taken together, the two reports provide solid projections for the
coming 13 years.

In addition tv the rapid growth of jobs in the service industries,
meny new jobs will require much higher education and skill levels
than the jobs of today.

The work force will also grow more slowly as the pool of young
workers entering the labor market shrinks because of slower popu-
lation growth. Women, minorities and immigrants will become a
lerger share of the new entrants as in the past.

The Hudson Institute report sets forth a number of major chal-
lenges to policy makers that stem from these expected trends of
the future. One is the close relationship between the growth of the
U.S. economy and the economies of other nations, thus spurring
the United States to focus beyond its own share of the world trade
and to stimulate balanced world growt..

Developing innovative strategies .0 reconcile the conflicting
needs of women, work and families is another challenge identified
by the Hudson Institute reﬁort, as is the need to integrate black
and Hispanic workers into the economy.

In a nutshell, these trends and projections shape a powerful chal-
lenge for the future. We have no choice but to change. If we do not
invest more wisely in human development, including minorities,
women and immigrants, the loss to this Nation will be irreparable.
The shifts in demographics and the new employment opportunities
offer a real challenge for good jobs, but only if we are prepared.

In light of these t{rends and challenges, the Women’s Bureau is

focusing on three major program areas: one, balancing work and
family; two, work-related components of welfare reform; and, three,
acdressing grassroots concerns of women workers throughout the
country.
In gﬁe realm of balancing work and family, we have already
feund that forward-looking employers are beginning to recognize
+hat employees’ personal anc professional responsibilities affect the
workplace, productivity, the family, and society overall.

Flexibility in hours and work and leave patterns, assistance with
child care and elder care, flexible benefit packages and prorated
benefits for part time employees are all constructive approaches
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which we will continue to bring
plovees, unions and otheys.

¢ Women’s Burean is now developing a clearinghouse to serve
as a national vocal pomnt for the scate of the art information on
trends and developments in the work and family area. It will be a
resource for policy officials, legislators, employees, unions, re-
searchers and others. Final design of the clearinghouse information

base and the start of data collection and entry are scheduled for
the fall of this year.

I would like to shift now to another important area: our special
concern for women on welfare. Recently the Women s Fureay en-
vered the national dialogue on welfare reform. We are encouraging
commissions on women and other groups to follow suit. Ninety per-
cent of persons on welfare are women and children. Most of the
women are potential members of the work force, if not already
working part time,

The more closely welfare programs become tied to preparation
for employment, the more the Women’s Bureau needs to contribute
to policy formulation. We are advocating a holistic approach to
help meet individual needs and at the same time strengthen fami-

Finally, as we approach the challenges of a new century, the
Women’s Bureau mandate given to us by Congress in 1920 is more
relevant than ever. Promoting the welfare of working women, im-
proving their working conditions, increasing their efficiency and
advancing their opportunities for profitable employment are essen-
tial when viewed in the context of the year 2000 projections.

" The future will mean new opportunities for those who are pre-
pared. The national and grassroots initiatives we undertake are de-
signed to make a difference for those whose lives we touch.

Our impact is measured in human terms which cannot be easily
quantified. Serving as chief Federal advocate for the 52 million
women already in the work force, and the millions more to come,

to the atlention of empioyers, er-

the Women’s Bureau is helping to lay the groundwork . that we

can all be prepared for the year 2000 and beyond.
Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. MARTINEZ. Thank you, Ms. Dennis.

[Prepared statement of Shirley M. Dennis follows:]
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PrepARED STATEMENT OF SHIRLEY M. DENN1S, DIRECTOR OF THE WoMmeN's Bureau, U.S.
’ DepARTMENT OF LABOR

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Subcommittee:

I want to thank y~ and the Members of the Subcommittee
for inviting me to discuss women in the labor force as the
Subcommittee seeks a perspective on the concerns of working
women. You are to be congratulated for this effort for the
role of women is pivotal in the workplace today. I am very
pleased to have the opportunity to present a overview of the
statps of women in our economy and, in essence, in our society
overall. A

o

A8 more and more women enter the labor market, it is
important to view their contributions in the context of the ,
global marketplace as well as the U.S. economy and work force. '
This context also includes the urgent need to prepare for
the jobs of the future. In particular, I will discuss work
and family issues, preparation for employment by women on
welfare and, briefly, Women's Bureau initiatives.

As members of the Subcommittee already know, Secretary
of Labor William E. Brock has made the Work Force 2000 Project
the cornerstone of his stewardship in the U.S. Department
of Labor. The Women's Bureau is proud to play an important
role in the Work Porce 2000 initiative.

This morning, I will also bring news of a recent study
by the HBudson Institute on Work Force 2000, commissioned by
the Labor Department. The study discusses the changes in
the workplace that we can expect and the adjustments which
will have to be made in our employment and training systems
if our workers are to be well matched with tomorrow's employment
derands.

~ Today, women are key players in our economy. The realiza-
tion of their importance, however, has been gradual and uneven
throughout society as more women have entered the labor force
and have claimed long-term attachments to employment. The
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same is true globally. As I travel internationally, I am
impressed by the increasing recognition of women's key economic
role. Awareness of the vital need for women workers in a
healthy economy is heightening both among our principal trading
partners and within other countries.

Today, in the United States, more than S2 million women
age 16 and over are in the labor force, and only about 3.7
million of these women are among the unemployed. These millions
of working women are mow the majority of all women (55 percent)
and comprise 44 percent of the entire labor force. By the
year 2000, they are projected to comprise as much as 47 percent
of the labor force. Howevar, the key economic position of
women in the labor force depends on more than what they have
accomplished already. That ig great in itself, since they
have entered the labrr force at the rate of more than one
million a year for ~t least the last decade and a half, and
have clatmed more than one million new Jobs in the past year
alone. But the keys to their importance in the United States
economy, and, in fact, {n the economy of the global village
are two:

‘One, the economy in the ynited States has long been and,
according to beot estimates, will continue to be dominated
by the services-producing sector, where women are the
majority of workers and tvwo, women will be the major
source of new entrants into the labor market in the fore-
seeable future.

These two factors, together with the move of our economy
toward increased international trade and competition, will
have significant implications for the future of our nation,

To lay a groundwork for addressing these issues, let
me briefly summarize the 1abor force status of women in the
United states today. The majority (74 percent) of the 48.7
million employed women work full-time; that is, they work
35 or more hours per week. At the same time, the majority
(75 percent) of the 3.7 mfllion who are unemployed are seeking
full-time work. We find that over half of wives and over
half of all mothers (63 percent) are in the labor force.
Wives have increased their participation, for example, from
46 percent i{n 1976 to 55 percent today. It is gignificant
that the dual-earner fanily has become the predominant type
of family in the United States. Another family type which
i8 grcwing is the single-parent family. Families maintained
by wage-earning women increased 25 percent from 5.4 million
in 1979 to 6.7 million in 1986. Of course, the sole earner
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in the overwhelming majority of thege familieg is usually
the woran. Some 62 percent cf wonen who maintain familles
were in the labor force in 1986; but even in 1976, nore than
half were already working (55 percent). The impact of women
as both vorkers and family members is significant.

Over the last decade and a2 half, women have made great
strides in obtaining better paid employment as they have met,

. challenged, and conquered nany barriers to their acceptance

e
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in the full range of jobs. The sharpest rates of increase

for women have been in those jobs that require post-secondary
education and/or skills training. For example, in 1970, women
were 34 percent of all managerial and professional speclalty
workers, but by 1986 they were more than 43 percent. Women
were only 1.7 percent of engineers in 1970, but they are 6
percant today, increasing thelr numbers from 35,000 to 105,000.
Through their academic achievement, women, who were only 11
percent of engineering and science technicians (fewer than
100,000 strong) in 1970, were nearly a quarter million of

these skilled workers by 1986, representing 20 percent of

this work force. 1In 1970, women were only '19 percent of public
officials and administratezs, but by 1986, they had doubled
their participation to 37 percent and increased thelr numbers
from 1.1 million to more than 4.6 million. V¥oumen lawyers

and judges were rare in 1970, at 14,000 nationwide or less

than 5 percent of the total in these fields, but by 1986,

there were 118,000 or 18 percant of the total. Yet, with

all we have achleved, the largest number of women still are
employed in the traditional female occupations, including
teachers in elementary and secondary schools, clerical workers,
nurses, food, health and service workers.

In the past five yearsa or so, we have begun to see 2a
trend toward reducing the earnings gap between women and men
workers. Today, women employed full-time, year-round earn
about 65 percent of what similarly employed men earn. This
is up five percentage points since 1980.

Minority woman also have made strides in the labor force
over time. They, too, have confronted and conquered barriers,
including sexual and racial bias. While thelr numbers and
proportions of progress do not match the totals for all women
job-for-job, there has been progress, for example, in executive,
administrative and managerial jobz. 1In 1980, only 4.4 percent
of black women were in those jobs; by 1986, 6.0 percent were
s0 employed. At the same time, their high unemployment rates,
particularly among black women between the ages of 16 and
24, have significant implications for the future labor force
vhere minority women will have increased opportunities.
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I have provided only a brief sumnary of women's status
in the U.S. labor force. To further {1luminate their status,
I am subxitting an appendix of a few tables of statistical
data which will summarize women's recent labor force experience.
In concluding this statistical overview, I want to exmphagize
that women already play an important role in the U.S. econony,
but they wil®. play an even more central role in {ts performance
'n the future. The helghtening of the recognition of wonen's
ke role and what we need to do about it, 18 what I want to
enphasize most. wozen's concerns, you see, are now everyone's
concern.

I. ‘Projections for Change in the Work Force by the Year 2000

An increasing focus on the fulure has characterized much
of the recent research and planning at the Department of Labor
under Scgetary Brock's focus on the Work Porce 2000 Project.
Two major reports have been chared recently with Menmbars of
this Subcommittee. First, th2 Bureau of Labor Statistics
on Jure 25th released it's Preview of the Economy of the Year
2000,” the 16th of its series of projections of long range
econonic growth. The following week Work Porce 2000, work
and Workers for the 21st Centur was Issued by the Hudson
Institute, a non-profit re:eurcﬁ organization which drew together

a multidisciplinary team of professionals for this project.

While each report offered three alternative scenarios
for growth of the economy and the work force, some thenmes
were so predominant that they cannot be overlooked. For example,
continued rapid growth »f zervice industries will create most
of the new jobs, {ncluding growth in business services and
health care services. Many of the new jobs will require nuch
higher skill levels than the jobs of today. Exployment in
broad occupational groups that requires the mos: educational
preparation--such as executive, administrative and managerial
work; professional work; and technical and support work--will
grow faster than average. Very few new jobs will be created
for those who cannot read, follow directions or understand
mathematice. Further, the rapid shift in jobs, and the likeli-
hood that uany workers will have geveral quite different kinds
of work in a lifetime, require a broad, basic level of education
to facilitate the acquisition of new skills. Another pajor
theme of both reports is that the work force will grow aare
slowly as the pool of young workers entering the labor pmacket
shrinks because of slower population growth. Women, minorities
and {zmaigrants will become a larger share of the new entrants
than {n the past.

o 2 6
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mhe Huason Institute report sets forth a number of major
challenges to policymakers that stem from these expected trends
of the future. First, the researchers see the growth of the

U.S. economy as intimately related to the growth of the economies

of other nations and the need for the United States to focus
beyond its own share of world trade and to stimulate balanced
world growth.

These researchers also find that the need to improve
the education and preparation of all workers arises not only
as jobs for new workers becore more complex, but also as aging
workers face change and the need to adapt. The vast increase
in the number of jobs in the service industries demands that
attention now be paid to increasing productivity in the service
sector. We have tended to focus the productivity debate on
the manufacturing sector where we have made gignificant gains.
Now, we must take a look at removing barriers to competition
in servides and to investing in technologies that enhance
productivity in the service sector.

Developing innovative strategies to reconcile the conflict-
ing needs of women, work, and families is another challenge
identified by the Hudson Institute report, as is the need
to integrate black and Hispanic workers into the econony.

The fresh review of the trends and projections made in
these recent analyses, and the sharpened focus on the challenges
they imply, bring a powerful message as we look to the future.
We have no choice but to change. While we have examined most
of these issues before, it is now imperative that we act on
them. If we do not invest more wisely in humen development,

{f we do not take advantage of the opportunity to draw into

the mainstream of the new work force those minorities, women
and immigrants who have had marginal opportunity, if we-do

not do a fundamentally better job at education and training
very soon, the loss to this nation will be irreparable. The
shifts in demographics and the new employment opportunities
offer a real chance for good jobs--but only if we are prepared.
Public policy, private enterprise, non-profit institutions,

all will be needed in this effort. This picture poses special
opportunities and challenges for women workers and policymakers
concerned about women's employment and employability. That
new jobs will require more brain and less brawn can be good
news for women. But we cannot assume that pockets of illiteracy
will just disappear. The challenge for the growing numbers

of women coming into the labor force will be to increase their
job and/or career awareness and preparation. The challenge

for employers and program providers wlll be to help women
prepare for the more skilled jobs of the future.
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H II. Women's Bureau Initiatives

In light of these trends and challenges, the Women's
: Bureau is focusing on three major program areas: 1) balancing
Z work and family; 2) work-related components of welfare reform;
F] and 3) addressing grass-roots concerns of women workers through-
out the country.

In the realm of balancing work and family, we have already
found that forward-looking employers are beginning to recognize
3 that employees' pers wal and professional responsibilities
: affect the workplace, productivity, the family, and society
. overall. Yet, the vast majority of emp’ )yment practices,

policies, and benefits continue to address the needs of a

bygone era when it was assumed that one family member stayed

at home to look after the household needs of the entire family.

The social and economic conditions of today and the ones
we anticipate for tomorrow, require a naw perspective. Flexi-
bility in hours of work and leave patterns, a variety of means
of providing assistance with respect to child care and elder
care, flexible benefit packages that make the same number
of dollars fit the needs of different workers, prorated benefits
for part-time employees, are all areas for constructive employ-
ment policies which we will continue to bring to the attention
of employers, employees, unions, and others.

In addition, the Women's Bureau is developing a clearing- :
house to provide state-of-the-art information on trends and
- developments in the work and family area. The clearinghouse
will draw on the knowledge of experts on work and fanmily issues
and encourage dialogue among these individuals. as such,
this clearinghouse will provide a national focal point for
identifying emerging work and family issues and options for
addressing those issues. When fully operational, it will
. be a resource for policy officials, legislators, employers,
: unions, researchers, and others who require the highest quality
: information available to support making decisions in work
and family areas. Completion of the design of the clearinghouse
information base and the start of collection and entry of

information into the system is scheduled for the fall of this
year.

I would like to shift now to another important area:
our special concern for women on welfare. In response to
their needs, the Women's Bureau has entered the dialogue on
welfare reform and has begun to encourage commissions on women
and other women's groups also to enter the dialogue, Ninety
percent of persons on welfare are women and children; most

. o 8.
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Y of the women are potential members of the work force if not
already working at least part-time. More than 2 million women
worked full~-time last year and still earned poverty level
incomes. The more closely welfare programs become tied to
preparation for employment, the more the Women's Bureau needs )
. to contribute to policy formulation. A number of significant ]
3 experiments have been carried on in recent years in the States,

! . and there has been time for some evaluation and sharing of

results. .

In the months ahead, the Women's Bureau expects to join €
: with others in identifying exemplary welfare reform initiatives
% emerging in local communities and in discussing with policy-
y makers the kinds of programs that bring the most effective
and lasting results.

We already know that it takes basic remedial education
and adequate skills training to lead to good wages, that is,
wages that can support a family. Support services, primarily
child care, permit a mother to participate in training and
employment and 2 carefully planned transition program can
prevent the loss of health benefits, thus eliminating deterrents
to labor force participation. Some communities have made
special efforts to place former welfare recipients in jobs
that offer health insurance; other communities have phased
out such benefits gradually to ease the transition to self-~
sufficiency. We, in the Women's Bureau, are advecating a
holistic approach that looks at the individual's total needs .
and, then, focuses the resources of the whole community in
meeting those needs. This approach taps into the dreams and
aspirations of the participant and helps her an{ ner tamily :
to set realistic goals. .

e

We need communities that strengthen families. Changes 5
in family status, divorce, separation, or teenage pregnancy
out of wedlock, are the predominant events that contribute
to women's dependency on welfare., Moving off of welfare,
on the other hand, is most frequently associated with marriage
and children leaving the family home. Women on welfare need
an opportunity to break out of isolation. They need contact
with successful role models to help open their eyes and those
of their children to the wide range of opportunities available .
to them. Initiatives such as these can come from local communi- ’
ties as well as from non-profit organizations.

[

Pinally, as we approach the challenges of a new century,
the Women's Bureau mandate--given to us by Congress in 1920 ~-is
more relevant than ever. Promoting the welfare of working

 ERIS 29
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women, improving their working conditions, increasing their
efficiency and advancing their opportunities for profitable
employment are not only noble goals, they are essential when
viewed in the context of year 2000 projections. -

The future will mean new opportunitites for those who
are prepared. The national and grass-roots initiatives ve
undertake. are designed to make a difference for those whose
lives we touch. The Women's Bureau is more than national
policy papers, statistical analyses, and published reports.
The Bureau is also demonstration projects for women veterans
in Seattle, for handicapped women in Philadelphia, for immigrant
women in Brownsville, Texas, and much more. Our impact is
measured in human terms, which cannot be easily quantified.
Serving as chief federal advocate for the 52 million women
in the work force, the Women's Bureau is helping to lay the
groundwork: go that women, their families, employers, unions
and other groups can be as well prepared as possible for the
year 2000 and beyond.
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EZaployed Ucun 16 Yesre md Older,
1970, 1980 Inﬁ 1986
(Numbere in thousande)

1970 1980 1986 :
H N [] [-] .
Y Occupltion WmGer Xtog ll! Fmber ztot ll! Kumber ztogll! -

Total 30,347 44,304 42.6 48,706 4h.4
Henagerial and professioval spacialty 3,004 33.9 9,196 A0.6 11;525 43.4

: Rt rive sdainigtrative Emansgerial 10102 18.5 3'169 39.8 4eh 2.4 )
3 ozz&cm adainietrators, public * * * ‘
H ltutton 54 19.0 114 30.9 214 40.1
i ive, sdminietrstive and
Ha .{11 ed occupations gg %%9 2'856 zkg f.892 323
Profe l:“oul Specinley 3,902 ul.i:’s 6.0? 215 6:IZ§ bg!é
H ' ‘Ma mucduadcumor ecientista 35 16, 86 26.1 228 36.2
Nacural, sclestisce 31 1 63 19:9 26 22.5
Health ng occu 36 8.0 ii. 109 15.0 )
He ! u“"""“ SEEs occupe- BA7 BA.7 1,482 86.0 1,728 85.3 )
. Teachers, collsge snd univerei 148 2901 233 36.6 ‘230 36.0 b
: Tofey oy CxCOPE college mmd wmiver e 0.5 2,635 70.8 2,613 73.4 '
Lavyers® end Judges A S T % 57 18 R B3
oL@ cupa~
el al ope pe 686 35,2 1,313 &h.2 1,654 46.6

Technical, ssles and sduinistrative
'rcen ciens ead relsted

1 o
X 3,310 Al A, o 6,3 48,2
N . Su uoro opriltﬂl 59 .13, . 1:0 30.5
L mrmu vu.
- aefs: saxvice 193 17.4 6. 35.4 935 41.5
Sales nprmt-tivu. cc-odl.tiu. .
ucn retall 73 6.6 188 14.5 276 18.3

zcerkerl. retail end personsl '

ralgted occupati 15 66.0 15 SA8 42 66
Ah ml ve -uppo‘r’:. ncluding *

m
c«. oquipment retors 70 Al.S 249 59.2 89 68.5
aocrotu‘iu. ”M?ph.to. and 589

ggrt 3, o 67 98. 4,852 98.
pehelal vcoras ‘ARl ty hig §§ ngd #2 ni ¥4
Other administrative support,

including olerical 3,562 62.6 5,735 70.8 5,832 74.4
. Service occupations 6,084 59.7 8,021 58.9 8,905 60.7
Privete household 1,166 96.3 357 95.3 942 96.0
-‘rot:ctin servics 70 6.6 182 11.8 221 12,4

. ce, amcept private housshold and
. rotectiy 4,848 61.2 7,241 63.3 7,742 65.0
'00d sery. C: 2,272 68.5 3,183 6S5.9 3,219 62.8
Health serv cg“u 1,038 87.6 1,611 8s.1 1,639 89.9
Qunl. ! ding service 704 32.0 1,049 35.2 1.1 Al.S
B Pere sarvi 835 68.4 1,395 77.6 1,698 80.3
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Tadle 2.~~continuved.
Exployed Honcn 16 Yesrs snd Older,
1978{ 1980 lnﬁ 1986
(Numbers in thousands)

. '1970 1980

< 5 1986
N@Eer X of, NUaber X% of
Occupation total total ' ,o‘,’.;
Precision ytoducticn crdt. and repair 824 7.3 1,05 7.8 1,15 8.6
Mechanics s: rer 80 2.; 135 3.4 151 3,
g:uructtz:i::l 8 fucei raft and 61 1, 102 3.1 99 2,
er prec uction, C -l
epalt pe * 683 15.6 819 17.2 900 21.9
OP;:ctou. fabricators, lngllnbon: 4,498 25,9 5,486 27.4 W358 25.4
hine rators, sssemblers
fhapeccors oo + . 3,547 39.7 4,102 40.7 3,187 40.3
Hlnutuc{u:ins indurries 4 30.7 623 34.3 2.706 Ao.g
puravie: %6 gz.z 3# 31.8 1.1% :!0.8
” . . .
Nommenufacty: ndustries 8 323 AT IR R
Tznnpor::ucn w nto 01 m:ln
163 4.1 3;3 7.8 406 8,
Hotor vehicle o f' ora 133 49 2 9.1 367 10.
Other t.uupornt on and material
goving occupations 31 2.8 76 A9 39 3.3
Haudhu equipment cleaners, halpers, 788 17.4 1,0 19.8 767 16.3
oSor rs . . .
comm:tion Laborars # s 98 38 1 2.
Other handle :guiplnt cleansrs,
halperas, nnd laborer 776 19.8 982 23.2 741 18.8
hnin;. !orntry. and u-un; 277 9. 451 149 548 15.9
- Farms ogcrltou and asnsgers 72 5.0 130 9.9 188 14,1
Oth-r n:ning. forestry, and fishing
205 12.8 321 18.7 360 17.1

Source: Cospiled by th‘ Honn'rz !utun frea En oylout nnd Rarniugs, Bureau of I,

sn ittict. Y t of Labor, Jenusry 1987 and, Datailed Occupct on
of T oncod 5 !‘orco Sex for the Unu:od States and Regions
1980 xnd 970, Bureau of the C«mu. U,S. Departsent of Commerce.
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Tadble 3,

Comperieon of Medien Rerninge of Yeer-Round Full-Time Vorkere,

by Sex.

1955-198S

(Pezsone 15 yeere of ege end over)

" Women's Percent
51 Rerninge serninge zen's Eerninge
. gop 1n as a earaings sop 1n
. Medien eerninge current percent exceeded constent
' Women Men dolleze of men's women's 1967 dollere
4 Yeor (1) (2) (3) (8) (s) (6)
i 1985 $15,624 $24,195 $8,571 64,6 54.9 - 32,660
i 1984 14,780 23,218 8,438 63.7 57.1 2,712
% 1983 13,915 21,881 7.966 63.6 57.2 2,670
1982 13,014 21,077 8,063 61.7 62,0 2,789
19831 12,001 20,260 8,259 59.2 68.8 3,032
1980 11,197 18,612 7,415 60,2 66.2 3,004
: 1979 10,151 17,014 6,863 59.7 67.6 3,187
1978 9,350 18,730 6.380 59.4 68,2 3,267
1977 8,618 14,626 6.008 58.9 69.7 3,310
1976 8,099 13,453 5.356 60,2 66,1 3.141
1975 7,504 12,758 5.254 58.8 70.0 3,259
1974 6,772 11,838 $.063 57.2 74.8 3,433
1973 . 6,335 11,186 4,851 5646 76.6 3,649
1972 5,903 10,202 4,299 57.9 72.8 3,435
1971 5,393 9.399 3,806 59.5 68.0 3,136
1970 5.323 8,966 3,643 59.4 68.4 3,133
1969 4,977 8,227 3,250 60,5 65.3 2,961
1968 4,457 7,664 3,207 58,2 72.0 3,079
. 1967 4,150 7.182 3,032 57.8 73.1 3,032
1966 3,973 6,848 2,873 38,0 72.4 2,958
. 1965 3.823 6,375 2,552 60,0 66.8 2,700
1964 3,690 6,195 2,505 59.6 67.9 2,969
1963 3.561 5,978 2,417 59.6 67.9 24,637
1962 .44 5,974 2,528 59.5 73.4 «790
1961 3,351 5,644 2,293 $9.4 68.4 2,559
1960 3,293 5,317 2,124 60.8 64,5 \ 2,394
1959 3,193 5,209 2,016 61,3 63.1 2308
1958 3,102 4,927 1,825 63.0 58.8 2,108
1957 3.008 b.‘ﬂ 1.708 63,8 56.7 2,023
1956 2,827 4,456 1,639 63.3 58.9 2,014
1958 2,719 4,252 1,533 63.9 56.4 1,911
Notes: From 1967 forverd, dets include wegse end ealery income end eurainge
* from self-employments for 1935-66, dete include wveges end selerice
only, Pereone 15 yeere end over beginaing with 19793 peresns 14 yeers
old and over for previous yeers,
Source: U.8, Depertaent of Commerce, Bureeu of the Ceneues "Money Income of

Yemiliee end Perecne in the United States,® Current Populetion Reports,
1937 to 1984 end "Money Income end Poverty Stetus of Yemiliee end Perecne
in the United Stetee: 1985." (Advence Report), end Bureeu of Lebor

Stetietice.
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Table &.

Families b e and Number of Wage
and 3.1.!7 raers, 1979 and 1936

(¥umbers it thousands)

ilies P
Numbi T Of “'ﬁ“ cﬁ,x’:

Characteristic 1879

t dietribution
1986

TOTAL

Femiliee vith vagy or
s2leTy esrner
One earmer
Tvo OF more esacners

Marriad-couple
fawiliee
One sarner

Husband

1
Other family

uenbar
Two Or more esrners
Nusband and vife

only# ,
Husbsnd, wife,
d othar
ly membeor(s)

Hu » and othe
wi H <:|thu:':?'§

fenil ber(s)
Oth:: d.ﬁ‘i T

aembers only

Tamilies maintained
y women
One earnar
Householder
Other family

unemder
Te" Or more earnere
hgiliu saintained

/7
Two Or more eatrners 595

*NA = Not availeble

Excludas familiee where the hushband, wife, or housekoldar is
i,lf.-uployod.
Nusband, wife and other fsmily members includad in 1979,

Source: Prepared Women”s Buresu from Curreamt Population
.'lurscy, lguu of Labor Statietics. ve




’ (Mumber {n ttousende)

N ) Civiliso 1abor force Xot in lebor force
‘
p d Ficeme Yaapi:
< Teaily reletionship Tozal :ozg:n:i Inploye yumber 0: : Total Eosping cgéul Unable 2:}:&
\ opuletion sbor eckool Work
M 196
Totel, 16 yeere
: and over 96,158 61.6 88,752 7,406 7.7 39,991 34,782 7,799 2,866 14,54
' 7 . 1 5. 110 .
, il o I OSET S VI 43R WO L
; u t?s ,“.'n : Labor 1,393 92.5 1,226 166 11,9 112 2 1 33 6t ‘
M 0
5 }onc 19,359  74.7 18,620 739 3.8 6,594 53 84 781 5,71
Uives 21,858  45.6 20,353 1,504 6.9 25,933 24,120 251 248 1,3%
uith employed
W ‘glz.; : Loyed 19,176 0.6 17,949 1,226 6.4 18,621 17,544 209 1] 7
“h:;bgér'hp“’n . 880 34.3 MW 186 189 739 69 12 11 2
tn ladbor !ote: 1,802 21.5 1,689 112 6.2 6,554 5,882 2% 149 3
!/ h intain
fealides S5 lass s a2 428 10. 3,433 2,873 98 122 33 :
Civilian ladbor force ¥ot in ledor force
Faafly reletionehip Total Percent  Employed ;.reont Keoping Going Unable -
[3 Humber o§ Total Nouse to to  Othsr -
. populetion labor echool work reasc
force °
1986 -
Totel, 16 yeage
and ove: 93,304 65.8 89,478 6,826 7.1 30,115 24,041 6,863 2,026 17,18!
Huebands & 78. 1,648 4.2 1 2 1 86 2
éiténrplolod.zih Mol W3 WA 4R 83 wd W o1 WOy
0
vioy 1,26 918 1,082 16 132 1 N
H;th wife not labor
orce 14,114  62.4 13,520 393 4.2 8,517 107 78 53¢ 7,719
Uives 27,603 55.0 26,247 1,397 4.9 22,631 19,007 324 304 2,99
¥ith employed
yg 24,255 64.2 23,173 1,032 4.5 13,520 12,215 267 9% 94 -
uith usesployed —
"hg:b:ngh . 1,055 64.0 8%0 164 15.6 393 $26 18 1 3
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Mr. MARTINEZ. Ms. Craft.

STATEMENT OF CHRISTINE CRAFT, NEWS DIRECTOR AND CO-
ANCHOR, KRBK-TV, SACRAMENTO, CA

Ms. CrarT. Thank you very much fur asking me to be here. I
have been asked to speak a little bit on the question of women on
non-traditional jobs.

As a reporter, from my first perspective, in addition to being an
anchorperson and a news director, from a reporter’s perspective, if
you consider the question of American women in non-traditional
Jobs, it is very hard not to start at the top. In this greatest country
which is ours, the gospel is preached relentlessly of justice for ail,
and yet, it is still true that she, whether enormously qualified—
that enormously qualified “she” who seriously considers for run-
ning for President is dismissed all too quickly as something none
other than a eaczificial lamb. We have a long wey to ge.

If you go overseas across one ocean you find Mrs. Thatcher who
has just won a whopping re-election bid. Across the other ocean
there is Corazon Aquino, who is the heart and mind of the Philip-
pine people’s democratic revolution. Other countries have learned
to trust women as leaders, but not ours.

In this Congress and in the legislatures of all 50 States, female
faces are still few and far between. Representation on the Federal
bench is still fractional, and I guess at least one-ninth or, I guess
right now, one-eighth of the U.S. Supreme Court is ferale.

In the world of news, sgeciﬁcally tclevision news, the Radio and
Television News Directors’ Association is publishing a study .2 Sep-
tember coming up, and it shows gains for feraale news directors.
Back in 1985, only ten percent of the Nation's television news di-
recters were women. There has been a whopping increase. We are
now up to 14 percert. That means there are 110 female television
directors, or there were last year, up frov. 75 the year before.

In locking at those numbers, you do see an increase, but it is also
important to remember that women, as far as I know, are still
more than 50 percent of the American society. There is absolutely
no gender-specific trait that makes anyone, anyone a better report-
er, a better news director, anchor, judge, legislator, or national
leader. There is, Liowever, still today a males-only tradition that
still to a great exte. : bars women from staking their representa-
) tive positions in the halls of power, corporate, legislative, and oth-
* erwise.

If you are lucky, you work for a company that gives women pro-
motions to those middle-management positions. Where I work
there are women department heads in programming, promotions,
traffic, and news divisions. I am very lucky. I have a general man-
ager, an enlightened one, who makes a conscious effort to instill
good management skills in all his middle-management employees,
male or female.,

But from the women I talk to at other television stations and
women in other lines of work, I learned very quickly that women
managers are often not given the same amount of tirie to prove
their theories as are male counterparts, even those with lesser

|

™

40




.ship. They rightfully see a birthright of eq

" gkills. Women in non-traditional jobs often have extra jobs, just dis-

pelling the myths that abound about women and authority.

There is a very good argument that you cannot legislate e%uality,
any more than ulyou shovld legislate superiority. But I don’t think
that there should be any question in tﬁieu country that the proper
:ﬂ% tc;/f' igoo;iugovemment is to promote justice and equity of oppor-

¢ Or *

There are,-as:you well know, legislative proposals which directly
attempt to do just this. Day care, insurance :eform, tax incentives
for' companies which establish those sorts of programs, pension
reform, those are all proper topics for deliberations by body

.and by the States.

We.hee now a national dialogue on the subject of judicial inter-
pretation3 of constitutional law and just how close the modern ilu-
rists should stick to the intent of the framers, those freedom t
!.ng fathers, We must remember that those fathers were we
older white men who condoned slavery and the non-enfranchise-
ment of women, The lessons of our history have shown that neither
blacks nor women have been content to ac::ﬁt second-class citizen-

ty, and intend to con-
tinue to claim it.

. I don't think that any wise person, least of all those in public
life, would disregard that reality. Real social change in our country
does not come about solely because of legal challenges to the prac-
tices of discrimination. It comes via other routes as well, First and
foremost among those is public dialogue. And that, I think, should
logically be followed by legislative action to promote opportunity
based on ability.

From my experience challenging the sexism of an industry, the
broadcast industry, that used to discard women after the first
crow’s foot, I report that some progress has been made in on-air tel-
evision news. One of the moat popular anchors in the country in
New York City is a 50 plus woman, Pat Harper. In San Francisco
at the NBC affiliate, another grown-up, Sylvia Chase, sits at the
anchor desk. And from Sacramento’s K, the , unattrac-
tive, and even less deferential to men than ever, Christine Craft co-
anchors the nightly news and functions as news director as well.

The role models in our societﬁ' need to represent a broader base
of American women, not just the young, nubile goreiess ingenue.
Nothing wrong with being any of those things. 1 don't wish to dis-
parage the young, nubile or the poreless, But those media images
say an awful lot. In our biggest nationel drama of late, right down
the hall out here, I doubt if thers was any politically astute woman
in American who could not have failed to notice in the Iran-Contra
telecasts that in that biggest national drama the characters are
almost all male. There have been no female counsel or committee
members—maybe some behind the scenes counsel. They don't
speak. They don't have speaking roles.

The major female witness was not only young, nubile and pore-
less, but came across equipped with a conveniently blind loyalty
ga,t sqwhgoing beyond written law, in her own words, as her mas-

r's wish.

And beyond the beautifully deferentisl Fawn Hall was Lieuten-
ant Colonel North's best friend, a woman who knew a buffoon
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v‘vhen she saw one, Betsy of the All-American good locks and the
eter Pan, collars.

: There were a few other women seen in the proceedings, none of
them with speaking roles, no doubt they were legal and legislative
'aldes But much like the Soviet Politburo, our governing bodies
remain bereft of females. Surely the constitutional separation of
‘powers is a topic that both men and women find important.

I think that until that sort of representation changes, women
who rise out of clerical or service jobs will still be considered as
having non-traditional employment. Whose tradition?

- I would urge this body to give thoughtful support to legislative

’ solutions to workplace inequity. It is blatantly overdue. When we
. place our hands over our breasts in this blcentenmal year, we
v women want to know that the word “justice for all” do include our
: gender.

Thank you.

Mr. MArTINEZ. Thank you, Ms. Craft.

[Prepared statement of Christine Craft follows:]
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF CHRISTINE CRAFT, NEWS DIRECTOR AND CO-ANCHOR,
KRBK-TV, SAcRAMENTO, CA

From a reporter'- perspective, considering the guestion
of American women in non-traditional jobs, it is hard not to
start at the top. 1In this greatest country...ours...the
gospel is preached of justice for all. But she who seriously
considers running for President is too quickly relegated
to the role of sacrificial lamb.

Going overseas, across one ocean, we find Mrs. Thatcher
who has just won a whopping re-election bid. Across the
other ocean there is Corazon Aquino, the heart and mind of
the Phillipine people's democratic revolution. Other
countries have learned to trust women leaders, but not ours.

In this Congress and in the legislatures of all fifty
states, female faces are still few and far between.
Representation of the federal bench is still fractional.

At least one/ninth or, rather, one/eighth of our Supreme
Court is female.

In the world of news, specifically television news, the
Radio and Television News Directors' Association is
publishing a study this September which shows gains for
female news directors. 1In 1985, ten percent of the nation's
t.v. news directors were female. That percentage soared to
fourteen percent in 1985. There were 110 female news
directors last year...up from 75 the year before.

In looking at the numbers, sometimes it is good to
remember that women are not a minority group. Females
represent more than fifty percent of American society. There
is absolutely no gender-specific trait that makes anyone
a better reporter, anchor, news director, judge, legislator,
or national leader. There is, however, a males-only
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tradition that still to a great extent bars women from
staking their representative positions in the halls of
power, corporate or otherwise.

If you ure lucky, you work for a company that gives
women promotions to those middle-management positions.
Where I work there are women department heads in programming,
promotions, traffic, and news divisions. I have an
enlightened General Manager who makes a conscious effort
to instill good management skills in all his middle-
management employees, male or female.

But from women I talk to at other séations and women
in other lines of work, I know that women managers are,
often notgiven the sam; amount of time to prove their
theories as are male counterparts with equal or lesser
skills. Women in non-traditional jobs often haQe extra
jobs, Jjust dispelling the myths about women and authority.

There is a good argument that you can't legislate
equality, any more than you should legislate superiority.
But I don't think that there should be any -question that
the proper role of good government in this country should
be to promote justice and equity of opportv .ty for all.

There are, as you know, legislative nroposals which
directly attempt to do just this. Day care, insurance
reform, pension reform are all proper topics for
deliberations by this body and by the states.

We have now a national dialogue on the subject of
judicial intespretations of constitutional law and just
how close the modern jurists should stick to’ the intent
of the framers, those freedom fighting fathers...We nust
remember that those fathers were wealthy oldexr white men
who condoned slavery and the non-enfranchisement of women.
The lessons of our history have shown that neither blacks
nor women have been content to accept second-class
citizenship. They rightfully see a birthright of equality,
and intend to continue to claim it.
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No wise person, least of all in public life, would
disregard that reality. Real social change in our country
does not come about soley because of the legal challenges
to the practices uf discrimination. It comes via other
routes as well. First and foremost among those is public
dialogue. That is logically followed by legislative action
to promote opportunity based on ability.

From my experiences challenging- the sexism of an
industry that used to discard women after the first crow's
foot, I report that progress has been made in on-air
television news. One of the most popular anchors in the
nation's biggest t.v. market...New York City..is a fiféy-
plus woman, Pat Harper. In San Francisco at the NBC
affiliate, KRON-TV, a grown-up Sylvia Chase sits at the
anchor desk. From Sacramento‘'s KRBK, the aging, unattractive,
even less-deferential-than-ever Christine Craft co—-anchors
the nightly news and functions as. news director as well.
The role models need to represent a broader base of American
women, not just the young, nubile, poreless ingenue.

Not to disparage the young, the nubile, or the poreless,
but those media images say so awfully much. I doubt if
there was a politically aétute woman in America who watched
the Iran-Contra telecasts without noticing. In our biggest
national drama of late, the characters are almost all male.
There was no female counsel or committee-member. The major
female witness was not only young, nubile, and poreless,
but came across equipped with a conveniently blind loyalty
that saw going beyond written law as her master's wish.
Beyond the beautifully deferential Fawn Hall was Lieutenant
Colonel N%ﬂ:y's best friend, a woman who knew a buffoon
when she%éay-one, Betsy of the the All-American good looks
and Peter Pan collars. A few other women seen in the
proceedings...none of them with speaking roles..no doubt
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f'. were legal and legislative aides. Much like the Soviet

. Politburo, our governing bodies remain berefit of females.

; Surely the constitutional separation of powers is a topic

k] that both men and women find important. Until that sort

? of representation changes...women who rise out of clerical

? . Or service jobs will still be considered as having
non-traditional employment. I would@ urge this body to

i g

give thoughtful support to legislative solutions to
workplace inequity. It is blatantly overdue, When we
place our hands over our breasts in this bicentennial year,
we want to know that the words 'justice for all' do include

our gender.
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Mr. MARTINEZ. Ms. McClendon.

STATEMENT OF SARAH McCLENDON, DIRECTOR AND
WASHINGTON CORRESPONDENT, McCLENDON NEWS SERVICE

Ms. McCLENDON. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

You know, you are very unique in calling us in, asking us what
do we need in the way of legislation. I don’t know that it has ever
happened before.

This is particularly fitting now that we are celebrating the 200th
anniversary of the U.S. Constitution, which included the represen-
tation of slaves but paid no attention to women. In fact, the writers
of that Constituticn in their conversations and planning expressed
fears about educatiag wornen.

I recently was called to Philadelphia to speak to the women of
the Philadelphia area as they celebrated the Constitution in an old
house that was current at the time they were writing the Constitu-
tion. They researchzd on this, and the conversation of the people of
that day was women should not be educated. They should not go
outside the home and pursue other areas aside from caring for chil-
dren and waiting for husbands Yo come home.

Mr. Chairman, what we need is not diamonds and furs and
clothes. We want to be teken into the network of citizens. We want
to be treated as first class citizens in our government. This is an
almost unheard of situation in government, for women to make
policy. Can you think of any women in gevernment who really
make policy? I think you will agree with me that policy needs im-
provement.

This coulG be done by mandating in many ways an equal number
of women as well as men on some of these commissions of govern-
ment.

We want to make $1.00 for our work, and not 62 cents. And
today she has told me it is up to 65 cents. But this is quite an in-
crease in recent years. We want full access to credit and to govern-
ment loans, not just Jaws in this field that do not really operate.
Now, that is the truth. They have written some recent laws to try
to help things, but they don’t really operate.

We want equality in education and training so that we can get
better jobs and gt off welfare rolls. But we must have training to
get those women off of those welfare rolls.

We do not want a double standard of insurance, different for
men and women. We want Congress to override the giant insur-
ance lobby that annually keeps legislative reforms from coming
about in the insurance area. You had just as well face up to it.
That insurance lobby has really got a stranglehold on this Con-
gress.

We want women to be able to serve their country in defense
wherever they are needed. And they will be needed. There are
going to be fewer men of military age, and they are going to need
these women. And we need these women to be trained well and to
have some experience 80 that they can serve well.

I don’t know whether you know it or not, hut women have served
in all of our wars, actually served as well 88 laundered the clothes
and done the cooking. But they had to fight like the devil to get the
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chance to serve. This was true in the Civil War and all the wars.
Look at Clara Barton and look at Dr. Mary Walker, the only
woman who ever got the Congressional Medal of Honor for her
work as & surgeon on the battlefield. Yet, she was just a contract
surgeon. They wouldn’t take her into the service. Then they took
the medal of honor away from her, and her family had to go get it
back for her. And believe you me, it was a struggﬂa for her to keep
it.

Do-nothingness in laws has blocked women’s progress. We do not
need any more studies. We know what is wrong. We have been
studied to death. This is true in civilian women and military
women. And I want to say ‘hat Secretary Brock might have done a
fine thing recently in spending all that government money in get-
tinai that male chauvinistic bunch of people at Hudson Institute to
make a study for them, but Brock could have done better from his
own experience in the Senate. He is a fine, decent man, and he had
enoug.. experience in the Senate to know. One time he got 3,000
letters from people in Tennessee saying, for God’s sakes, get us
mure money so that we can have day care, have something done
for these mentally retarded children down here so they don’t have
to g: sit at home all the rest of their lives looking at the wall.

I went down to the White House *o car1, this question, and
got down there, and nobody knew what we were talking about. The
White House, the bureaucracy was so ignorant of the needs of fam-
ilies and women that they couldn’t understand. We had to gt some
government people and finally study it and prove it. They said,
‘Oh,”we know what you are talking about now. You need day
care.

It is like those southern governors coming to town recently and
saying, “We have just discovered that there is teenage pregnancy.
And if we got something done about this teenage pregnancy, we
would have more people able to buy goods in our stores.’

I don’t know what you thought, zut I thought it was pretty damn
sorry.

Mainly, we need less slave labor by women in the home and in
the job world, and I do mean slave labor. Someone has said that
the counbtelg has been very fortunate in that it has had women to
contributed so much to production at low wages. You’re right. They
have had less share of the educational opportunities and less
chance at the job opportunities.

Look at the way they bujlt this Luilding in the first place. They
built it with a swimming pool in the recreation department for the
men members of Congress. The women members of Congress had to
go in there later and have their own peol built because some of the
men wanted to swim in the nude. When they built these gymnasi-
ums all over the country for the schools at first, the taxpayers
money went into a lot of that. The time, the access, the rules did
not let women in. Then women went into the military, and they
said, oh, you don’t have enough ugper body strength. Well, you can
develop that upper body strength if you give us better facilities
with taxpayers’ money.

On the other hand, Mr. Chairman, think what an imp~ovement
could be brought about in our deficit if only women were allowed
to get any jobs or better jobs and better pay. You know, the G.L




44

bill showed that if you give people training, the G.I. Education bill
showed that if you give people training, they will increase the reve-
nue of the country greatly. Look how many of these House and
Senate members went to school under the G.I. bill, and look how
many other people in the corporate world went to school under the
G.L bill. They were able to increase the taxes amazingzly because of
their increase.in education.

There would be less money paid out on welfare, on food stamps,
on institutional care for those who have been subjected to poverty,
malnutrition, illiteracy, mental illness.

I want you to know that when these women raise these children
in poverty, and one in four children are being raised in poverty
today, that these children, their bodies are hurt, their minds are
hart, their souls are hurt. The first tew years of raising a child, you
have to give into that child some security, some confidence. He
doesn’t get that raised in poverty. How can they compete with the
Japanese on technolcigz'? And how can they run these sophisticated
weapons which this Defense Department 1s buying if they haven’t
had good minds and bodies? They can’t read, and they can’t study
well after they have been through poverty.

Every citizen sheould be guaranteed health care. It can be done.
Let us pay a few extra dollars on taxec and get adequate, decent
health care for everyone, as they have today in Canada. We should
heed the bills introduced in Congress every year by Congressman
Claude Pepper and Congressman Edward Roybal and others.

Now oniy the rich can afford to be ill, as we keep up this govern-
ment-backed preposterous system of guaranteeing profits to profit-
eering hospitals and doctors and insurance corporations. Families
today are forced from independence economically to poverty by the
system. Thsy even take away a man and womsaa’s wealth when one
sgouse goes into the nursing home. They take away t.eir wealth,
they play down their wealth, and the government forces them to
give all this money to tha nursing homes so that they become im-
poverished. Then the woman or man left back home, not in the
nursing home, doesn’t have enough money to live on. She has to go
to welfars,

The catastrophic illness bill which the House will consider this
week is nothing but a band-aid.

The neglect of women in the legislative process has been soft-
soaped for too long. When the Reagan administration’s political
office was preparirg for their 1984 campaign, Ed Rollins, the politi-
cal director, told the President that every program we have de-
signed, we have cut back on women. So they said, we've got to do
something.

They called in a quota of rich Republican women supporters for
a White House luncheon with the President and sought to give the
impression of helping women economically. They failed to mention
that the poverty of women who head households and raise children
makes 'hem dependent on governmental survival programs. The
number of women in poverty is growing daily, as is the number of
homeiess families now with children. And noihing is being done
about it actually at the White House.

The White House asked me not very long ago, why do you think
that this is a responsibility of the Federal Government? I s&id,
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well, T'll give you two reasons. One reason is, most of your policy

has caused this homelessness, your economic policies. And another

reason is because you've got to coordinate what you’re doing. You

may not have to spend any more money if you would just coordi-

nate the programs you already have. The volunteers are doing ev-

fgthing in the world they can about the homeless, but they can’t
e of the situation.

A study of the laws, regulations, policies and procedures under-
taken by the Justice Department under President Gerald Ford in
1976 was finally completed in 198", under Reagan; but since then,
it has laid on a desk. It has not been implemented at all. Some
practices have been corrected voluntarily by the agencies of Gov-
ernment along the way, but so far Congress has not been able to
change these injustices.

Bickering between the political parties was partly to blame. But
the White House has done nothing about this, particularly the
changes needed in-the Social Security Administration.

Many of the laws could be corrected easily if Congress would just
vote for the Equal Rights Amendment to the Constitution. It
passedlf_edthe Congress before and came within three states of being
ratified.

Do you know why it was defeated? Largely because fundamental-
ists preachers, a lot of them in the South, who don’t want women
to go outside the home to work, they came out and said it would be
a sin to vote for the Equal Rights Amendment. Hogwash.

Women are working because they have to, to support their chil-
dren. Women really need anforcement of that limp law providing
for collection of child support money for absconding fatliers in
other states. It isn’t working.

Mostly what we women need is a change in attitude nn the part
of citizens. Men should not be reared to fight women’s entrance
into the military scrvice scademies as they did. Now we have
women leading the ~lasses. They are still fighting to keep women
ou! of exclugive clubs. Men should not be treated lightly when they
commit brutal rape, which is dope about every three minutes in
thit country. Youn: execuiives should not be condoned in sexual
hara.;?ment prectices <which pervades the corporate world. And it’s
terrible.

When Congrese enuct: striageat laws % cssure Naal » for
wamen, adequate trainirg, i tler educaiion, decen. health care,
and representazion on Foderal smmissions, w.men *ill attain
their rightful piace in society.

Now. I can’t give you all ¢hese statistics. I am rot good on that
like Shirley Dennis is and .ther people. And .’he had some 7ery
good ones. But I brought aiong some things for you today that I ma
going to leave for your reference library if you will take it, a lot of
good material here. Statistics from the Women’s Equity Action
League; they have reports here on poverty, tke elderly, the dis-
abled, women in business, working mothers, all that ‘We have
something here from the National Women's Party which shows
how the Equal Rights Amendment is within, I think, two or three
votes of being accepted in the Senate today. They haven’t finished
their survey of the House.
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We've got a book here, The 2merican Woman, which has just
come out with Ford Founiation .noney. It is being introduced at a
press conference across town at this moment. And it is supposed to
be sort of a bible on women.
So I brought all these things along for you to have because I
can't talk statistics. But I can talk other things.
Thank you, sir.
[Prepared statement of Sarah McClendon follows:] .
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF SARAH MCCLENDON, McCLENDON NEWS SERVICE

Mr. Chairman, I vant to thank you on behalf of a1l women for this chance to ro-
port on our needs. I spaxk for women who vork and woaen who may work in future. I
might add that it is Quite wilque =~ I an not sure it has ever happened before —
that a chairnan of a Congressional comaittee has asked us to tell him what we need.

This is particularly £itting now that we are celebrating the 200th anmniversary of
the nited States Conatitution which inclnded the ropresentation of elaves but padd no
attention to women. In fact, the writers of that Constitution in thelr conversations
and planning expressed fears about educating women. They were concerned that that
night load wonen to 30 outside the home and pursue other aroas aside from caring for
children and waiting for the retuzn home of husbands.

¥r. Chairman, vhat we need is not diaaonds and furs and clothes. We want to be
taken into the network of citizens. We want £0 be treated as first class citizens. in
our governzent. This is an almost unheard of gitustion in governaent, whero wormen
make policy. This could de domo by mandating equel reprosentati.. on comaissions.
Fou w1l agree wich me, I am sure, that policy making needs isprovement. We wvant to
meke §1 for our work, not 62 cents, an incroase over recent yoars. Ve want full access
to credit and to government loans, not Just laws in ¢his field that do not really operate.

Ve vant equality in education and training so that we can get better jods and get
off welfare rolls. We must have training.

Ve do not want a doudle standard of insurance, different for men and women. We

want Congress to over-ride the giant inmurance lodby that annually keeps legislative

reforas from coming about.

ERIC ,
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¥e want women to be able to gerve thelr country in defmse wherever they aro needed.
Fros the bsginning of settling this continent, women have had to beg to be abdle to
serve in vars and they are atill being wnnoceazarily constricted. It is ouxr country.
We ought to be able to defend it vhore needed.

Do nothinzness in laws has blocked woaen's progress. We do not neod any more studies.
Ve know what is wrong. We have been stulled to death, ‘hat we need is loglolative
action and action on the budget as woll, for there &ro many prograxs involving woaen,
children, and their health and educational needs which have been cut back by the
Reagan sdmiristration.

Mainly, we need less slave lahor by women, in the home and in the Job world. Some
one Ms sald that the country has been very fortunate in that i¢ had women who con-
trituted so much to production at low wages. That is true. They have had less share
4f the educational opportunities and less chance at the Job opportunities.

On the other hand, Mr, Chairman, think what an improvement could be btrought about

in our deficit if only.wonen were allowed to get sny Jobs or better Jobs and better
pay. Thore weuld be less money paid out on wolfare, on food stamps, on lustitutional
care for those vho have been subjected to poverty, malnutriticn, illitermcy, mental
{1lness.

Every citizen should be guaranteed health care. I* can be done. Let us pay a few
extrs dollars on taxes and get adequate, decent health care for every one as they have
today in Canade. We should but heed the dills introduced in Congress every year by
Rep. Claude Pepper, Rep. Plward Roybal and others. Now only the rich can afford to
be 111, as we keep up this government-backed preposterous system o gukranteeing profits
to profiteering hospitals and doctors and ingurance corporations. Families today are
forced fxoa independence econorically to poverty by the systea. The catastrophic
{11ness bill which the House will conelder this week is merely a band ald.

The neglect of women in tha leglelative Fxocess has been soft-uoaped for too long. .

“hen the Resgan adainistrations’ political office as mreparing for his 1984 caspsign, ,j
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they realized, acoording to M4 Rollins, the political director, that they hud cut bak
Teasly every ogrea designed to help women. 5o they called in their quota of rich
Repudlican women supporters for a Whita Houss luncheon with the president and sought
to give the impreilion of helping women econoxically, They falled to menticx thl;. the
Poverty of women who heed households and ralse children makes thea dependent on
governneot survival programs. The nusber of women in poverty is groving daily g8 are
the piumber of homeless faxilies with children.

A study of the laws regulations, policies and xocedures undertaken by the Justice
Departaent undar Fresident Gerald Ford in 1976 was finally completsd in 1986, wder
Reagan; but since then £t hes not beea implenented. Some Tractices have been corTested
voluntarily by the agencies of government but eo far Congress has not implemented thess
injustices. Bickering between the political parties was partly to blame. But the
White House has done nothing to faplement the reports fasued by Justice that ghow in-
Justices must be overturned. Perticularly is this true in Social Secuxrity Administration.

Kany of these 1aws could be ccrrected eesily if Congress would Just vots for the -
Byual Rish’ta Anendaent to the Constitution. It passed the Congreas before and came
vithin three states of being ratiffed. It was defoatod largely by & fight by t\mdum-
talist xn"uchm who do not want women to go outeide the home to work. But they have
to, to support thefr children.

Wozmen really need enforceaent of that 1iap law sroviding for collection of child
dupport xoney for absconding fathers : other states.

Kostly whst we wonen need &8 & change in stiitude on the part of citirens. Men
should not be reared to fight wosen’s entrance into the military, service acadexies,
sxclusive cluds. They should not be troated lightly vhen they commit brutal rape.
Young executive should not be condoned in sexual haragsnent practices {n the corporate
world.

Vhen Congress emacts stringent laws to sssure equal Pry for women, adejuate traini-g,

better oducation, decent health care, and representation on foderal coxmiasions, women

vill attain their rightful place in society.

l{llc ‘5 '1
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Mr. MARTINEZ. Thank you, Ms. McClendon. All of those things
that you have will be entered in the record if there is nc objection.

I would appreciate that book that you have grovided for us. After
our staff has had time to go over it and gain the materials out of it,
I ?m goiLg to confiscate it for my own. Would you please auiograph
it

Ms. McCLENDON. I sure will.

Mr. MARTINEZ. Let me say that as you were speaking, I was con-
juring up all kinds of ideas. I have to agree with you that we study
things to death before we actually act. It is amazing how long it
takes us up here on the Hill to understand and know things thet
are reality in everyday life. It just doesn’t happen.

I will tell you that 1 dc see some things changing. Recently in my
district there was a Koung lacy who wanted to enter in the service,
and she was one inch too short. She wanted to join the Marines be-
cause her father had been a Marine, and her brothers had been
Marines, and it was a tradition in their family to serve in the
Marine Corps.

I'm a former Marine. Our staff went to bat for her, and they
worked until they got the Marine Corps to reconsider, and she is
now a recruit. She is doing a great job, and some day the Marine
Corps is going to thank me because this lady is really dedicated to
what she is doing.

Ms. McCLENDON. Great.

Mr. MARTINEZ. But even where I see things changing, they are
not changing fast enough or rapidly enough.

Ms. McCLenpoN. That's right.

Mr. MarTiNEZ. I would like to ask all of you a questior and each
one of you respond in turn. Because, you know, so miany times
when we are arguing for the rights of people, there are always
people on the other side that are saying, well, you are creating re-
verse discrimination. It seems that some people have the mentality
that any time that you try to rectify a wron%, you somehow are
doing another wrong and simply saying, well, two wrongs don’t
make a right.

Well], that’s baloney. If you try to rectify a wrong, you are doing
a good right, and it is not creating reverse discrimination. Some-
how we've got to change these people’s mentality.

But in that same vein, they charge many times, when you cham-
pio~ for the things that are right, they are saying to you, well, this
is just women'’s lib and other crazy notions. l{:zspond to me why—
this isn’t just women’s lib; this is just equality for all. You said, jus-
tice for all. It is equality for all. Our Constitution guarantees that.

But yet, I have people up here, saying, there is only one reason
for the Federal Government to exist at all, and that’s to provide for
the common defense, and the Constitution says so, which they are
reading from the Preamble. But they forget there are seven other
reasons if you really read that Preamble closely, why we estab-
lished that Constitution in order to form a more perfect union. And
one of them was to provide for the conimon good. Well, you can’t
provide for the cominon good unless you provide for all tge people
within that society.

But respond to me why, and answer the charges, that this is just
crazy women’s lib,
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Ms. DenNis. I would like to respond to that, Mr. Chairman. I
think, first of all, that affirmative action is very much needed in
this country. I consider myself to be a product of affirmative
action.

On the other hand, I think that there is no need for affirmative
action to be a political football or to threaten everyone in the work-
place. I think that affirmative action is what you have in a plural-
1stic society when the goal is to bring everyone into participation in
the society.

What I think is also very good news in terms of the Work Force
2000 Project is the fact that as the population grows more slowly
and the work force grows more slowly, women, minorities and im-
migrants will be needed in the workplace. There will not be enough
male white men to fill all the jobs. So I believe that affirmative
action will be less of an issue as we begin to move into the 21st
century.

And let me hasten to add, I am not talking about a distant
future. I am talking about a time that is upon us that we must
simply recogaize.

you.

Mr. CMARTINFZ. Thank you.

Ms. Crart. I guess I have to speak from my own experience.
Peopie thought I filed a lawsuit because they told me I was too un-
attractive and too old to do the news. That’s not true. The real
reasen I made a Federal case out of my situation in Missouri was
that they told me, they said, “Christine, you don’t hide your intelli-
gence, you know, to make the guys look smarter. For ezample, you
know the difference between the American and the National
League. People of Kansas City just don’t like that.” :

Well, as an eighth generation American whose fathers—my pa-
ternal lineage comes from Jamestown, Virginia, I think that know-
ing the difference between the American and the Naticnal League
is a birthright. I have every intentions of continuing to know the
difference. i

I cannot myself say, “Oh, Fred, you have nighlights of the morn-
ing’s game now, don’t you? The Orioles, is that the team with the
little birds?”

So really urged on more by that sense of what was a birthright
to know, that there should be no prerequisite for having to hide
your intelligence to make men look smarter or anycne else—what
man worth his salt would want a good woman to hide her intelli-
gence to make him look smarter—I fought a long, legal battle.

I learned from that battle that our country is the greatest
Nation—something that I, of course, have always known. We do
preach the rhetoric, as Pat Schroeder was talking about, about
equality and family and justice. It is preached relentlessly by polifi-
cians.

But our country falls far short of that. However, it is the one
Nation where we can really strive to make a difference. I think
that the power structure throughout our history has been mostly
white and male. Nothing wrong with being white and male. My
father is one. I love him dearly. But I think that men are not about
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to give women that equal share in the power structure without a
good fight. And.I say we ought to give them one. Thanks.

Mr. MarTiNEz. Thank you, Ms. Craft.

Ms. McClendon.

Ms. McCLENDON. Sir, it took me 27 years to get into the National
Press Club, and 16 years later after that, we are still being treated
down there sometimes as if we are not welcome. But now things
are getting better.

But I want to say that while women were not in the Constitu-
tion—and you know, Abigail Adams wrote a letter to her husband
when he was down there writing the Constitution saying, if you
don’t do eomething about women, for us, in that Constitution, some
day we women are going to revolt. Well, he didn’t. He ignored the
letter, paid no attention to it. I think the letter is down here in the
Smithsonian on the wall. Ms. Pat Nixon put that down there.

But I will say this for the Constitution. Women have always sup-
ported it, they have loved it, they have worked for it, they have
done everything in the world they could, as they do for this coun-
try. And they have been darn gocd citizens, and they certainly
ghould be treated as part of the team and not still be treated as
second class citizens which they are.

Mr. MARTINEZ. Thank you, Ms. McClendon.

Before I turn to the rest of the panel, I am going to take the lib-
erty to say one more thing. I have always believed in the Constitu-
tion. I believe the Constitution is a near perfect document, but I
have never believed our Government has been as perfect as the
Constitution interded it to be.

I heard the other day on the floor, in a facetious way, in a joking
way, one of the members of the Black Caucus explained that he
wasn’t going to Philadelphia because the Constitution didn’t in-
clude nim either. And if you think about it, a lot of women and
minorities could make that claim.

I think they were always there, but it took the amendments &and
report language, I consider, to make sure that the people who were
interpreting the Constitution understood that we were there. And
we are still evolving.

You know, the first years of this Constitution there were really
no f.<e elections. And as we started the electorate process after 13
years, only landowners were given the right to vote. Somehow that
was contrary to the belief of the Constitution, soc we all got the
right to vote. But did we all? There were minorities and blacks that
did not get the right to vote, and neither did women. It wasn't
until, I believe, 1924 that the women finally got the right to vote.

So we iinally have evolved to a more perfect government that
the Constitution talked about. I think we still have a long wavs to
go. There are still promises to be kept of that Constitution. Ve are
working towards it.

But I would like to close and turn to the panel by saying to you,
Ms. McClendon, if Pat Schroeder should decide not to run for Presi-
dent, wou”{ you run? I'll be your first supporter. [Laughter.]

Mr. MarTiNEZ. Mr. Gunderson.

Mr. GuNDERSON. Mr. Chairmen, I can’t help but point out to you
and this panel that sometimes actions speak louder than words. 1
want the panel to duly note when they leave this hearing room
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todglsthat it is the Republicans who have a femrale staff member
on staff committee, not the Democrats. [Applause.]

Ms. McCrxnpon. Sir, I guess you are aware of the fact that it
was Republicans who were la.xxlellg responsible for bringing about
the Equal Rights Amendment. yet, in 1980 they elected for the
first time in over 40 years to leave it out of their platform: when a
certain man was runnﬂ:ﬁ for President. But the Republicans have
been friends of women alon%.

Mr. GUNDERSON. That’s music to mﬁars. I want you to know I
have always been a supporter of the ERA.

Mr. MArTINEZZ. Would you yield for one minute?

Mr. GunpersoN. Well, 80 seconds.

Mr. MARTINEZ. | was thinking about that, that the only woman
on this whole committee was a woman, and it was on that side. But
I would ask, how many of the members on that side have as their
staff director or AA a woman?

Mr. GUNDERSON. Well, the person who runs my Washington
office and the person who runs my district office are both women.
1;"I\%r. MarTINEZ. Congratulations. But I asked how many. [Laugh-

r.

Mr. GuNDERSON. I am not the protector of my side any more
than you are the ;In-otector of your side.

Mr. ManTiNEz. [ would just like to say that my staff director and
AA is a woman. Go ahead, Mr. Gunderson.

Mr. GUNDERSON. I can understand how you feel a little guilty
about Eric. He’s a goed guy, but I couldn’t resist the opportunity.

As I listen to both Ms. Craft and Ms. McClendon, I have to from
a Reé)ublican perspective, ask the two of you, now don’t you under-
stand a little bit after reflecting on your testimoaies why some-
times Republicans say the media is not totallv objective? I mean,
you both gave pretty strident testimonies here today. Don’t you
think ;?ere was a little bit of unobjectivity in that, in terms of re-
portin

I mean, Ms, McClendon, you for example brought out this little
old statistic about the President bringing in rich Republican
women. You conveniently left out the statistic that the majority of
women in this country voted for Ronald Reagan in 1984.

Ms. McCLENDON. Well, I'll tell you why.

Mr. GUNDERSON. Okay.

Ms. McCrenpoN. I'll tell ycu one thing. I think it wes 16 million
women who were eligible to vote in 1980 who did not vute, and I
am ashamed of that because we fought with great bitterness
against the Democratic administration of Woodrow Wilson to get
the right for women to vote. There were 16 million women did not
vote. A lot of them did not vote in his 1984 election.

Had they voted, a lot of those women, they tell me they didn’t
vote because they were 8o poor that they didn’t have the money to

et to the bus to get to the ballot place. And a lot of them were so0

usy trying to raise money for their children and t-ying vo make a
living that they just didn’t give any thought to politics. They
thought theg couldn’t do anything about it anyway. They thought
it wouldn’t do any good for them to try.
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Now, those are not vnartisan—those are facts. I just want both
parties to work on it real hard to give women the freedom that
they should have.

Mr. GUNDERSON. I admire you for that.

Ms. Craft, go ahead.

Ms. CrarT. Also, when I mentioned the bit about well qualified
women running for President, I think that there are. It is certainly
¢ bipartisan question. There are we.l qualified women on both sides
of the party question who could well run.

In terms of the question of reporter objectivity, I think it certain-
ly is a great myth. My favorite reporters are not—the idea that you
should not have a point of view, that you should be a mindless twit
who just sort of looks things and gives an equal voice here and an

ual voice there is silly. From a woman'’s perspective and a report-
er’s perspective, I can’t help but notice when Governor Reagan was
the governor of my State in California, in 1967 he signed the most
liberal abortion funding bill in the Nation, one that provided the
largest amounts for safe legal abortions for all women. He not only
signed it, but issued a statement saying, I hope that my signing of
this bill brings new compassion to a difficult problem.

As a reporter, as a woman, and not in any partisan sense, I want
to know why he changed his mind. He certainly has every right to
do that, but there are questions that you <an’t help but observe. I
would say thal the women who helped e get to my first trial, the
Republican women of Santa Barbara County, the Democratic
women, it wasn’t a partisan question at all. It was one that all
women understood, regardless of party.

Mr. GunpEeRsoN. I am going to ask you another question because
it strikes a very sensitive nerve with me oack home. I agreed with
about 80 percent of your statement until you got to the point of
suggesting that Mrs. North, so'nehow by virtue of & marriage and
being a best frierd, was also 2 buffoon.

Ms. CraFT. No, no. I said she knew a butfoon when she saw
one—her husband.

Mr. GunpersoN. Wel’, it is suggesting the same thing. It disap-
points me greatly that a person who has been as articulate and as
aggressive in the causc of equal rights as you have in your own
professional fights, would suggest that we ought to resort to calling
either Mr. or Mrs. North: a buffoon.

But you bring up a point that I want to call attention to. And
that is, the one area where I think I have a dispute with some of
the advocates in the ERA movement is when we get so aggressive
ir trying to achieve equal opportunity for women that in the proc-
ess we somehow degrade those women who choose during the up-
bringing of their children, to stay at home.

My mother is a good example of that. And I will tell you one of
the things the ERA movement has done to her is somehow make
her feel like a second class citizen because she chose and was
happy to be a housewife and a mother at that time. Since her chil-
dren have grown, she has left the home.

But I think we have to be sensitive to that.
Ms. McCreNpoN. May I znswer you on that?
Mr. GunpereoN. Well, orice Ms. Craft is completed.
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Ms. Crarr, My comments about Betsy North were that she had
said—Colonel North with th. oakleaf clusters. W2 do have a coun-
try, you know, that is totally in love with style as opposed to sub-
stance. It tends to block out a lot. I almost wore oakleaves today to
Increase my credibility, speaking from a reporter’s perspective. She
had said to him, “You silly buffoon. Why, that check from the
contra funds, you spent that on leotards for our twa daughters, you
silly buffoon,” I merely said she knew a buffoon when she saw one.

I was looking at those hearings from any politically aware
woman’s point of view, that there were no women there with
speaking roles. There was clearly counsel there perhaps, but no one

ed. There was no congressional examiner or inquisitor who was
female. That was vhe point I was trying to make from ‘he perspec-
tive of those images going out all over the country. The roles of
women in this imtgortant national drama are reduced to the defer-
ential secretary, the wife.

That's all fine, but what ebout the choice to have some of those
other positions?

Mr. GUNDERSON. I will agree with the other——

Mis. CraFT. We all know that Colonel North brought his wife and
Mr. Poindexter brought the Episcogﬂ minister wife with a‘large
cross emblazoned as props. I don't think there is any question that
that was very well thought vut.

Go ahead, Sarah. I will defer.

Ms. McCLenDON. I was just going to say, sir, that it wasn’t ERA
that made your mother or anyone feel downgraded as a housewife.
It was the attitude of aoci:ffi in this country that has been going on
for many go.erations. I will say that, as I always tell housewives,
you are 2 secretary of transportation, you are head of the Depart-
ment of Education, you are head of the budget in your household.
You have all the sense of a general in logistics. You know how to
get tlie show on the road and get the meal on the table at one time.
And you are pretty geed if you can do that, sir.

Mr. GuNDERSON. you all very much.

Mr. MarTINEZ. Thank you, Mr. Gunderson,

1 am going to interrupt the panel. Do not leave, Ms. McClendon,
unless you have to. We have two other panel members who might
want to ask questions. But I want to interrupt at this time to bring
on the Honorable Mary Rose Oakar ‘o the front to give testimony.

There is a seat at the end here, Mary Rose. We would like to
hear your testimony. We know you have a time problem, you have
other bills that you are having heavings on. So we will go ahead

and hear your teatimony and then allaw you to leave.

STATEMENT OF HON. MARY ROSE OAKAR, A REPRESENTATIVE
IN CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF OHIO

Ms. OAkAR. Mr. Chairman, and distinguished members of this
panel and the panels coming after, thank you for the opportunity
to let me testify.

I want to eay to my gc .d friend Mr. Gunderson, you and I have a
lot in commion, one of which is that my mother was a homemaker
also, and she married my father in 1931. She gave up her job for
buyer in Higbee's Department Store in Cleveland, Ohjo and raised
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five children, and was a very active member of her community and
made a great contribution.

But if my mother were alive, I would really want the Equal
Rights Amendment primarily for people like my mother. Because
there is stil! discrimination, among other things, in the sociel secu-
rity system, and not intentionally or maliciously, but in pensions.
So that homemakers, for example, are not covered by disability and
social security even though they pay all their credits. You can’t get
disability insurance if you are a homemaker in this country. One of
the things that I think the Equal Rights Amendment would do is to

ut all these laws that we are trying to—all the legislation that I
ave introduced and my colleagues have introduced to correct some
of these loopholes, it would just force us to ﬁllll]t these pieces on the
front burner and mandate that we do something about ineciuity.

So I really do think that there has been, not necessarily inten-
tionally, but & lot of misrepresentation about what the Equal
Rights Amendment would do.

But anyway, I want to thank you for having this hearing. I think
it is so important that we talk about fairness ard job opportunities
for people who make up more than half the population. It is not
just a women'’s issue, it is a family issue, because as you probably

ow or have heard, 26 million American wemen are part of a two-
earner couple situation, 11 million women who are in the work
force are head of their own households, heads of their housekolds
trying to raise their children. Seventy percent of the women in this
country who are eligible through age were part or full time—lots of
others would like to work—and they are in the work force for sur-
vival reasons.

One of the areas that I have focused on trying to get some
reform in our Federal Governr:.ecnt in the manner in which we
treat Federal employees which I think would be a benchmark for
what we ought to do with everyone in this country is fairness in
pay, among other things, and some reforms in social security. The
two are interrelated.

For women it is really a catch 22 situation. If you are not paid
fairly when you are younger ou get a double whammy when you
are older because we really do still have to do some reforms in pen-
sion and social security. That is true for men who are in female
dominated positions as well. And very often they happen to be mi-
norities.

So what we found, for example, in the Federal Government was
that out of an 18 rung classification system, in a study done for us
by GAO, women and minorities are in the bottom five rungs of a
c'assification system which has not been reformed since the Civil
Service Act passed in 1923. At that time in our system we had less
than five percent of the employees happened to be female or mi-
norities. So it is time, I think, to take a iook at that.

What do we mean when we talk about pay equity? I don’t call it
comparable worth any more because, as my friend Ms. Berry will
tell you, being a member of the Civil Rights Commission, and I will
let her speak about that if she likes, but they ill define comparable
work. Basically what that commission said was that comparable
worth was the gap between what a woman made and a man made,
but they attributed it all to sex based wage discrimination.
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Nobody says that the gap which is about 81 cents, some say 63
cents, I still think it is even lower than that, but nobody says that
the 39 cents difference is due entirely to sex based wage discrimi-
nation. But what we do say is, if you look intrinsically at the job
content and the work of that job, and you also look at the market-
place, if those things check out and there is still a big wage gap
then there is nothing else left but discriminetion.

So what do we mean by pay equity? That's why I call it pay
equity because they ill-defined it, and then everything after that
was based on thct ill-defined definition, among other thirgs. But in
any event, to me, pay equity is equal pay for equal worth, equal
pay for equal value. Value ought not to be left out.

Are the laws on the books? Sure they are. The Civil Rights Act,
Title 7, the Equal Pay Act. So people can go to court if they have
the wherewithal to do it, if they are paid unfairly and treated in a
discriminated fashion. That to me is not the best way, it is not the
accessible way for most people anyway who are underpaid.

The other way you can achieve fairness in pay, it seems to me, is
to take a look at what it is like if you are able to, to join a union
and deal with the issue in a collective bargaining way. The proh-
lem with that, even though I am an advocate of that, is that most
people who happen to be female don’t belong to unions w.ud cannot
collectively bargain.

As a resilt, and very often they are in small offices where they
will lose a job if they even think of forming a union. On a Federal
level we have not passed the Hatch Act, so that it is against the
law really for people to attempt to collectively bargain or get in-
volved politically in terms of our Federal employment uaions with
the exception of the postal workers and the letter carriers who can
collectively bargain on certain elements. But as you know, the cur-
rent situation is they are not allowed to strike. So that is inaccessi-
ble for most women.

So the most reasonable approach is to study the situation, as we
tried to do with respect to the Fedecral Government and Federal
employees, and if the studies show that there are some real gaps in
wages such as the gap in white collar jobs, for example, the wage
gap between the average woman who works for the Federal Gov-
ernment and the average man is $11,000 a year. I mean, they don’t
even start at $11,000, let alone have that gar.

So we did this study. We also find, it might interest this distin-
guished panel, you in particular, that Hispanic women made in the
Federal Government an average of 50 certs for every dollar a man
made, and black women made 56 cents for every dollar. Then we
dealt with minority men, and it was very, very similar. So our
study not only included—the study we would like to see adopted by
Congress which has been adopted two sessions in a row in the
House, not onlv included women, but minority men as well. We felt
that was very important since they were at the bottom of the
barrel in ‘erms of wages as well.

It is a catch 22 for women m terms »f poverty and the feminiza-
tion of poverty. Because if you are paid unfairly, as I mentioned
earlier, when you are younger, you get this double whammy when
you are older. So we have this situalion where the poorest person
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in the country is a woman over 65, and the second poorest is that
woman on welfare,

So wc are really dealing with cross issues. That is why this is rot
an age issue. Younger women ought to be concerned about older
women’s plights, and families ought to be corcerned about younger
women's plights.

So what are we trying to do about it? Well, we passed this study,
and hopefully, if you do a study as 46 States have done or are in
the process of doing like my ocwn State of Ohio, for example; did
the study, they found that there are these gaps that they can’t at-
tribute anything other than this form of discrimination, and they
are going to implement that study, and they are going to do it in
phases. So it is not going to bankrupt my State.

You know what happens? Thgfroductivity and the morale of our
peo;;}e is tremendously increased when you pay people fairly. So I
am hoping that we can pass our study for Federal employees which
we have responsibility for, and then we can implement the study
once it is done objectively and phase in fairness in terms of wages.
It will not bankrupt the Federal Government whatsoever. It will
assist that Government and its workers in doing a better job.

I would like to say just two quick things about social security
and welfare reform. One canrot “pect people who are heads of
their households, male or female, in this case it happens to be
mostly women, to get off welfare if you are not going to give them
the means to do that. We have 36 million Americans without any
health insurance. How can we expect a good decent mother to go
off welfare when she is going to probably only be able to get, at
least in the beginning, a minimum wage job? I think we ought to
raise the m 'nimum wage, by the way. We can’t expect her to do
that if we don’t offer her some care for her children. No good
mother will leave their kids at home alone, particularly young
ones. And we can’t expect that mother to get off welfare if she is
gﬁ;ng to lose her health insurance. What thinking person would do
that?

We should also think in terms of job training and transportation.
It is about time we addressed the issue comprehensively. I know
this committee has a conscience and it will do this.

Just briefly about social security. We've got to do something
about the five percent of the people in this country who have no
pension. You know who they are. They are the domestics and the
Federal em%loyee spouses who have no access to—pretty much the
women in this country who are not covered by any pension or in-
surance.

Now that is a crime to humanity that we in the western world do
not have a pension for every American. That’s number one.

Number two is, social security, and I am a great fan of social se-
curity, but it was signed into law in 1936 when the demographics of
this country were very, very different. You only had 15 percent of
the women in the work force. If a working spouse trying to assist
with the family economics, if that woman works she is bound to get
less than if she never worked at all. So working spouses are dis-
criminated against in the system.

I already mentioned the problem that homemakers have They
are not covered under disability even if they paid all the’ :credits.
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Then i you are a divorcee, we used to say that you had w0 be mar-
ried to somebody 20 years to plug in, now it is 10. What happens to
the person who is married to somebody nine and a half years who
is nl())lt going to have access to that Social Security pension? That’s a
problem.

Then we have displaced homemakers who are between 50 and 59
when most women are widowed or divorced, and they have no
access to any kind of pension, and very seldom do they have ac ‘ess
even today in terms of job training. Although I know that this com-
mittee has a conscience about that. We have to restore some of the
things that we've lost.

So I guess what I am saying, for me anyway, the most liberating
issue for Americans is economic security. If you are economically
secure you can do anything you want you know. You can go on
and have true options. That’s why faii..ess in pay, farness in pen-
sions, fairness in the manner in which people are treated and wel-
fare reform are so important. We ought to have a conscience about
it which this committee does.

I want to thank you for your past support of my legislation and
for t}l;e outstanding work that this committee does. Thank you very
much.

[Prepared statement of Hon. Mary Rose Oakar follows:]
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF HON. MARY Ruse OAKAR, A REPRESENTATIVE IN CONGRESS
From THE STATE OF OHIl0

Thank you ¥r. Chairman, it is honor to testify before your
committee today on an issue which I feel is hecessary to ensuring
the future economic security of women--Pay Equity. I coimend
Chairman Martinez and the rest of the committee members on their
recognition of women as a permanent, expanding and vital sector of
the American workforce. These hearings will provide a much needed
forum on the problems women will be facing as they continue to
jugglas home, family and career.

Pay equity is a term that has been grossly misunderstood. It
has been the subject of a great deal of misinformatic., confusicn,
and distortion--some, unfortunately quite intentional. What I
would like to do today is look beyond the rhetoric and politics
surrounding Pay Fyuity and deal with the issue itself

What is pay equity? It is simply the elimination of gex-
based wage discrimination. It is a process that should be
conducted in a voluntary manner so as to avoid confrontation and
controversy. This can be accomplished through fitting pay equity
into the ey.isting framework of each irdividual employer's
compensation and classification systems. FPay equity is not the
process of equalizing a rookie's pay with a superstar's wages;
thoggh that is what some major newspaper columnists will have you
believe.

Pay equity is the process by which compensation experts
within a corporation or the government, review wage and
classification systems, That is what the movement is really all
about. What has caused the demand for pay equity? I believe two
factors have primarily created the groundswell of support. One is
the tremendous change that has taken place over the last 25 years.
Tienty-five years ago, women made up a very small portion of the
£u11-time wockforce. Today, women comprise over 40% of the
workforce and for the first time, the white male worker is a
minority in the American workforce. More than 51% of the
workforce i. composed of women and other minorities--that is
tremendous change.

The second change is the rapid advancement in technology and
its effect on the workplace. Today we are using technology on a
daily basis that was not even available a few short years ago--
much less commonplace! We now have computers and laser printers
instead of typewriters and xerox machines. This new technology
creates new demands on the workforce in terms of greater training,
skills, effort and to some degree, greater responsibilitv. It is
these catagories which are used to evaluate the worth of a job to
the employer.
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Page two

Many corporations and public sector employers have not kept
pace with these technological advances and the effect these
changes ‘ave on the type of skills necessary for their
employees to adequately perform their jobs. They have nnt kept
pace with the new technology in adapting their own classification
and compensation programs to the realities of today's workplace.
Unless the system is revised, it is obvious that the grim
statistics that gave birth to the pay equity movement will
continue to grow and flourish.

Women today constitute approximately 43% of the labur force
with 11 million households dependent upon a single women for their
financial existence. Another 26 million American households are
dependent on two incomes--husband and wife--to make ends meet. .
Despite this growth in the number of working women and their
importance to the economic well-being of so many, women continue
to earn only 60% of male wages. The impact of that percentage is
obvious when one looks at the effect on the approximately 23
million children dependent upon their mothers for financial
support.

The United States has over half of its children relying upon
their mothers for sustenance, yet these same women continue to
receive two-thirds of what their male counterparts earn. The
staggering reality of these figures is the most disheartening
statistic of all--over one-fifth of this nation's children live in
poverty and that figure will continue to rise unless a more
~quitable pay structure is installed.

In short, if we do not act quickly to ensure fair pay, the
women and men who are paid unfairly, and the families who depend on
them, will continue to suffer. It is incumbent on all of us to

act swiftly to promote and protect fair pay. our nation's .
economic security depends largely on our enactment of pay equity
reforms.

A good place to start is our own federal government. The
government employs almost 2 million civilian workers and 40% of
those workers are women. Yet, it is not startling to discover
that female federal workers are concentrated in the lowest eight
grades and earn apprnximately $12,000 less than their male
coalleagues.

As an example to the nation, the Federal Government should
review its own pay and classification systems to determine whether
they are marred by discrimination. It is essential that the
government set a standard to which the private sector aspire in
the area of pay practices.

Q 86 <y

ERIC
79-107 0-87~-3




Page three

It is time to take a long and thorough look at why
occupational segregation, wage gaps, and employment stratification
exists. The point has been reached where a study is necessary to
pinpoint: where the problem is and why it exists. Does the problem
lie in the lack of upward mobility or outdated classification and
wage gystems? Could basic sexual discrimination be the cause or
the rapid movement of women in and out of the workforce? It is
essential that these causes are investigated so that a workable
solution can be found.

After the study is completed there will be specific answers
upon which a foundation may be laid to determine which decisions
with regard to classification and wage system modification should
be made.

The issue of pay equity is making its third round through
Congress. The 98th Congress approved legislation I introduced,
H.R. 5680, The Federal Pay Equi%ty and Management Improvement Act
of 1984 by the overwhelming vote of 413 to 6. This bill mxzndated
a study of the Federal pay and classification systems to determine
whether they are effected by discrimination.

H.R. 5680 passed in the closing days of the 98th Congress .
directly preceding the election, taking its political opponents by
surprise and accounting for the huge approval margin. It
certainly shows the power women can have as a voting sector.
Unfortunately, the House did not have sufficient time to gather
the votves needed in the Senate and the bill died there.

Consequently, I returned in the 99th Congress with H.R. 3008,
The Federal Equitable Pay Practices Act of 1985. This time my
opponents were better prepared and lobbied strongly against
passage. Nevertheless, the bill once again passed with a strong
margin of 259-162 and unlike the previous effort, I believe the
votes were there in the Senate. Time was our great enemy again
and Congress adjourned before & floor vote could be taken due to
/ stalling tactics by those opposed to pay equity.

I now look forward to the 100th Congress--a Congress which
has a comfortable majority of pay equity proponents in both
Houses. Of course pay equity's opponents are still there and I
certainly do not underestimate that it will be a hard fight to
obtain final passage of H.R. 387. H.R. 387 is part of the
Economic Equity Act of 1987, which if passed in its entirety will
provide the security women and other minorities need and deserve.

: It is my conviction that pay equity will not just go away.
If we remember the lessons of the past two congresses it is "
evident that pay equity is destined tc became an economic reality.
Pay equity is an integral part of the issue of econcmic security
for women. Those employers who are
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forward thinking and who wish to accommodate and yes, even
embrage change are going to take the initjative ¢3 many gtatas
have done. :

It is change that is forcing the issue of Pay equity. Not
feminism or activism, but econcmic and sccial changas which are
necessitating that we re-think the way people are paid. Change is
always a very scary thing for most people and cresztes anxiety,
stress and usually misinformaticn. We have a changing workforce
and women are playing a vital and predominate role in these
changes. It is absolutely necessary to the well-being c¢f future
generations that the classification and wage systems now employed
are brought up to speed and reflect these changes.

Once again, I thank Chairman Martinez and the committee.
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Mr. MarTINEZ. Thank you, Mary Rose.

I am not geing to ask you to stay for any questions because I
know you have a time schedule problem. But I have three working
deughters and two working daughters-in-law. I know their capabili-
ties. And yet each of them have had their own struggle to over-
come some of those prejudic2s and discriminations that have exist-
ed in the jobs that they have had to do, and had to prove them-
selves way beyond what a man would have to prove himself to be
able to get any kind of a decent wage.

You hit the nail right on the head: The success of a democracy is
education and economic security. And until we understand that we
have to provide thav for every one of our citizens, we are going to
be denying what we stsrted out to do in this Constitution, which
was to create equality for all.

With that, I would like to ask the members, any one of them, if
they do have some quick questions that they would like to ask of
Mary Rose.

Major Owens.

Mr. OweNs. Mr. Chairman, I think the panel has been excellent
and covered most of my questions.

Mr. MArTINEZ. Thank you.

Mr. Hawkins.

Mr. HAwkins. I have no questions.

Ms. OakARr. I have to be on the floor.
belfylr. MarriNez. Thank you very much for appearing this morning

ore us.

Ms. OAxAR. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. Thanks for
having these hearings.

Mr. MARTINEZ. Then I would like to turn to the chairman of our
full committee, Mr. Hawkins, -

Mr. Hawkins. I have just one or two questions, Mr. Chairman.
Thank you.

I think the witnesses have well documented the problem, and I
think they have done it in an excellent fashion. The emphasis, it
seems to me, that we would like to focus on is, however, the solu-
tion to the problem.

I was quite concerred v .en Ms, McClendon said that there were
several responsibilities that had to be assumed at the Federal level
because so much of what is wrong has been due to Federal policies.

In the repcit of the Women’s Bureau that Ms. Dennis so ably
gave us, I noted some rather distinct statements made. I cannot
help but recall that the Women’s Bureau in the Department of
Labor perhaps is one of the exceptions to the rule. The point, it
geems to me, that has to be made—I would like to get, first of all,
Ms. Dennis’s views on it, and I commend her for the support that
she gave to affirmative action. Because her department, the De-
partment of Labor happens to be one of the very few in the cabinet
that has helped this committee in defending affirmative action.

However, I note, Ms. Dennis, on page 8 of your statement you in-
dicated that developing innovative strategies to reconcile the ccn-
flicting needs of womer, work and families is another chal'enge.
And you identified various injtiatives. However, then on a subse-
quent page you indicated initiatives such as these can come from
local communities as well as from nonprofit organizations.
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The question is, in what way has the Federal Government par-
ticipated in drafting initiatives or strategies or even supporting leg-
iglation that would implement the excellent statements that are in-
cluded in the report that you gave?

This committee, for example, has passed ~ut a tremendous
amount of legislation that would train and prepare women as well
as others, for that matter, for the work force ax. pravide civil
rights for them. The Civil Rights Act originated in this committee.
It is now being undermined by the Department of Justice, another
agency of the administration. We have the Civil Rights Restoration
Act to restore those rights to women in the field of education, for
example, not sup rteé by the administration unfortunately.

I don’t think the Congress is doing nearly enough. I have been
hearing these same statements made during 50 years of ex, =rience
of my own in public life. But we are talking today about the same
things we were talking about 50 years ago. We know that women
are not equal in their opportunities and in their rights. And et we
have in this Congress pending legislation that will address tk se
rights, and we have the administration on the other side not help-
ing us to provide the resources to train anyone or to even educate
the disadvantaged groups, including women.

Are there any Federal initiatives to back up the great and elo-
quent statements being mede by the President over television
which gives the impression that they support the equality of rights
of all, including women. Yet, no initiatives that I know of I can

identify. Can you cite fcr us any particular initiatives that you.

think the administration is launching or is supporting or would be
willing to support in order to implement what we are really talk-
ing about?

Ms. DENNis. Yes, Mr. Chairman, I would be happy to respond to
that question because I think it is an important one.

First of all, within the Labor Department, we are very pleased
that we have sent to the Hill and received support from Congress
thus far two pieces of legislation that can impact and be of assist-
ance to women in the workplace. One of course is the dislo.ated
workers bill, and our estimation is approximately one-third of the
dislocated workers of America are female. So we are very con-
cerned about that piece of legislation.

The other is the AFDC youth initiative which will be testified on
by our Labor Department in August. We are anxious to see that
piece of legislation go forward which allows “r a year-round pro-
gram for young people within welfare dependent families.

We also think that the administration’s initiative as it relates to
welfare reform is a critical one. I come from the State of Pennsyl-
vania, and we were right out in front on welfare reform some five
or six years igo in a very difficult time in our economy in Pennsyl-
vania, but we believed that we had to go forward with welfare
reform. So I am a proponent of the concept of giving States the
flexibility to go forward with welfare reform. So we are anxious to
see the initiatives that have been put forward considered in Con-
gress on welfare reformr

I also think that the work that the Labor Department has been
doing on Work Force 2000 is an important one. We convened a con-
ference in March of this year which diew over 1,000 people from
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around the country from some 45 States, and we discussed in detail
the problems of work and family and the roles that corporations,
unions, employees, governmeat might take, or roles that they may
play, and actions they might take. We were very pleased about
that effort.

Subsigluently, the Women’s Bireau initiated a work-family expo
within the Department of Labor. We developed that as a model te
show that the government a8 an employer can be of assistance te
its emﬁloyees by offering them support services and information to
help them baiance work and family. We hope to have that model
imitated by other Federal agencies.

I have talked with Director Horner about that particular initia-
tive, and we hope to see some fine cooperation in other parts of the
administration.

I think that so much of what has to be done in America requires
a public-private ﬁlartnership. It requires action by our social serv-
ices structure, which is why in my testimony I commented on the
role of nonprofit organizations.

I am also a former director of a United Way agency. I spent nine
years in that system, and I know that there is ¢ e needed in
the manner in which our social service system responds to families
of today and working women of today.

So part of what we hope to advocate within the Women'’s Bureau
is a need for our social service system also to be more flexibs> and
to look to the future.

Mr. Hawxins. I started out by commending the Bureau and the
Department of I.abor as being the exception to the rule. And I sus-
pect your answer supports that contention because you indicated
several initiatives that are not strictly from the Department of
Labor, such as the welfare reform bill which the President tureat-
ens i vetc. That is yet to be decided. So that may not be a good
case to aite.

The displaced workers initiative is in the trade bill which, again,
the President threatens to veto. So that may not prove to be a good
case eventually.

But the overall position of the Department of Labor has been
good. We have commended the secretary on this committee. But at
the same tjme, the Department of Justice has proved to be a De-
partment of Injustice as far as women and minorities are con-
cerned. It is obviously opposing us in the restoration of the Civil
Rights Act which is another wonderful opportunity they are miss-
ing in terms of such issues as child care which is before this com-
mittee. We have reported out a bill not supported by the adminis-
tration. We are suggesting increasing the minimum wage. Certain-
ly increasing the minimum wage is an issue that women are very
m.ich concerried abcut. The administration is opposing.

So I think when you look at the record if you judge them by
what they are doing ir terms of actual deeds, I don’t think it is a
very, very good time for women and minorities at this particular
time. I would hope that through these hearings that the subcom-
mittee is developing we can bring out the facts and we perhaps can
get the public support to do what we think is badly needed.

But we are not doing it. The trend is not good. What little
progress women have made has been lost, is being lost. We are not
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moving in the ‘voper direction. We obviously are not doing enough
in Congress ak. it it. The administration itself is doing much less.
It just seems to me that this has to be decided in the election by
the American public. I don’t think it is a matter of a Republican or
Demucratic issue, whether or not we have female secretaries on
our staff. I thinlk it is a question of whether or not the 100th Con-
gress is going to move in the proper direction to do something now
in this Congress in order to establish a record of whether or not we
are just talking and not doing anything about it.

Again, I went to end up on a positive note. I commend you and
your bureau for doing an excellent job. Unfortunately, what you do
1s washed out otherwise by other departments.

Ms. Dennis. If I may, Mr. Chairman, I would like to simply add
that on the Civil Rights Restoration Act I think that we have an
issue in which the Justice Department believes that the limitation
ought to be to educational institutions. So I think that is more of-a
difference of opinion perhaps with some of your colleagues.

I think also on the welfare reform initiative the administration’s
point of view is more to giving flexibility to the States. So, again, I
think that is more a question of a difference of opinion.

I think that we have to be very clear in America that people of
good will can disagree. So I don’t think it is quite fair necessarily
to say that when there is disagreement between the administration
and Congress that the administration is trying to roll back gains. I
know that that is kind of a popular statement that iz made often,
but I am not sure that that does a service to the American people.
I think that in this country neople are free to disagree, and I think
that people of good will disagree.

Mr. Hawkins. Not on constitutional issues, Ms. Dennis.

Ms. Dennis. I think that people who have goals that are similar
very often disagree.

Mr. Hawkins. We are not free to disagree on fundamental legal
and constitutional principles. That is not controversial. Your refer-
ence to what the States should do, I am asking you what is it that
we should do at the Federa’ level. We are not elected as State offi-
cials, we are elected as Fed. .al officials.

When we put on the statute books a Civil Rights Act, for exam-
ple, and then it is undercut ard practically abolished by the admin-
istration, I don’t see where that flexibility or that freedom is w0 be
commended. I don’t think that to refer to the States as giving the
States more flexibility, that is not what we are elected to do. We
are elected to protect at the Federal level the rights and privileges
that the women are going to be testifying about trday. If that isn’t
our role, then I think that the witnesses are going to be wasting
their time talking to the wrong people. They should go to the
States and plead for their equality at the State level.

But ERA is certainly not a Stete initiative. The Civil Rights Act
is not a State initiative.

Ms. DennNis. Mr. Chairman, I was talking about the welfare
reform proposal in which the administration is calling for an initia-
tive which would give the States more flexibility. And they do oper-
ate the welfare program throughout this country. That is w' .c I
was talking about as it related to flexibility to the States.
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It is the role of Congress to give them that flexibility because
currently they dc not have it based on Federal law.

Mr. Hawxins. Poverty has been created—six million people have
been added to poverty siuce this administration has been in power.
And it has been due to Federal policies, no’. i State policies. It has
been due to a restricted monetary and a backward fiscal policy.
The budget cuts have come from this administration that have
harmed a lot of Americans. If they are not willing to correct their
own mistakes, I don’t think that we should apologize for them.

I know my time is up, Mr. irman.

Mr. MarTiNgz. Thank you, Mr. Chairmen.

Ms. DENNIS. Mr. Chairman, I yield to the chairman, although as
a woman I am inclined to want to have the last word, Mr. Chair-
man. I can’t resist. I can’t resist. So I would say to you that it ie
not a matter of apologizing. It is again what I said earlier, it és u
matter of, in this country people of good will can disagree. I think
we all want the same things. It is a question of how we ge¢ about it,
under what circumstances, and what our approach is to¢ solving
problems. Thank you. .

Mr. MarTiNEZ. Thank you. I want to thank the panel. We are
going to have to move on.

Mr. Hayes.

Mr. HavYES. Just let me, for just one minute—I must say this. I
am certainly not going to usurp any time because I recognize that
witnesses here want to present their testimony who have not been
heard from yet. And as a member of this committee I want to hear
them, hear them out. We may very well be in session, Mr. Chair-
man. We may have to go register our presence around 12:00 when
1t)hekbell rings, and some of us, including me, won’t be able o get

ack.

But I do want to say for two reasons; one, I agree with what Ms.
Craft says. I think we can understand that history has taught us,
you don’t relinquish power voluntarily. That’s true even as we ap-
proach the legislative process with a body of lawmakers that are
mostly male, white male. They know what power means. Your cure
for what ails us, as you have mentioned, is going to come in eye
dropper dosages unless you begin to put - vessure on Congress and
organize as you have done.

Ms. Dennis, I wish you would convey your feeling in regards to
affirmative action to the director of the U.S. Dept. of Justice Civil
Rights Division He does not yet understand your position, let me
assure you, because he has been here before.

Ms. McClendon, I want to say I appreciate your candor, your
frankness with which you 2xpressed yourself. Your testimony has
been quite excellent, and 1 agree with it almost 99 percent, no
question absut it.

Ms. McCLeENDON. Thank you.

Mr. Haves. But we have to get it out of this kind of hearing
roor: into a place where other people migh.? narticipate. If you run
into Ms. Shaffley, you know, Phyllis, convey to her that the rights
of women is something that she may concern herself with.

Thank you very much.

Mr. MARTINEZ. Thank you, Mr. Hayes.

kY
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We will leave the record open so that any of the members who
would like to in writing ask questions of the panel can. We would
allow for that to be open so that they might respond.

Let me ask Mr. Owens——

Mr. Owens. I have no questions, Mr. Chairman. I want to thank
the panelists.

Mr. MArRTINEZ. Thank you, Mr. Owens.

Let me thank the panel for appearing. Let me explain to Ms.
Dennis that the right of last word always remains with the chair.
So I will take that prerogative and say that the chairman, the hon-
orable chairman was reterring to the fact thst we have the right to
disagree, but we do not have a right to violate the law of the land.
And when the Supreme Court has ruled over and over again that
affirmative actions are the law of the land, and the attorney gener-
al has consistently disagreed with that, it is his right to privately
disagree with it, but as attorney general, it is his obligation to en-
force th. law which he seems unwilling to do.

In that regard, I would say that those people who are afraid of
change will always focus on the negative, such as saying affirma-
tive actions create reverse discrimination.

Mr. Qunderson, I wish he hadn’t left, and I wish Mary would
take this messuge back to him—there may be some women in the
womer'’s liberation movement who degrade a housewife, but they
are in the minority and just a few have that simple opinivn. The
majority are working for us to recognize rights and the big contri-
bution housewives make.

I have heard women from this movement over and over again
say that. So if we are afraid of change and don’t want to relinquish
the power that Mr Hayes talked about, then we focus on the nega-
tive and try to illustrate that as the majority thinking. It simply is
not.

I want to thank the panel again.

With that, I would like to call the next panel. I am going to com-
bine the last two rav..ls for the sake of time and call up now Dr.
Mary Frances Berry, Commissioner, U.S. Commission on Civil
Rights, Ms. Sarah Crim, Staff Editor of the Pureau of National Af-
fairs Special Projects Division, and William H. Wynn, International
President of the United Food and Commercial Workers of the
International Union, and Ms. Cynthia Marano, Executive Director,
Wider Opportunities for Womer..

Let me explain before Dr. Berry gets started that she has a time
problem also. So we are going to allow her to give her testimony
and then leave, and we will submit questions in writing to you and
leave the record open so you may respond.

Dr. Berry.

STATEMENT OF MARY FRANCES BERRY, COMMISSIONER, U.S.
COMMISSION ON CIVIL RIGHTS

.Ms. Berry. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

In addition to being a member of the U.S. Commist ion on Civii
Rights, I am also the Geraldine R. Segal Professor of American
Social Thought at the University of Pennsylvania.
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I am pleased to respond to your invitation to testify before this
committee, Mr. Chairman, because you and your colleagues have
been in the forefront of legislative efforts to ensure equitable em-
ployment opportunities for all Americans.

I will simply summarize my testimony if it will be included in
the record.

Mr. MARTINEZ. Yes. All testimony in its entirety will be included
in the record, and we would appreciate summaries.

Ms. Berry. But I won’t again go into the discussion you have al-
ready had aboui the current status of increasing numbers of
women in the labor force, and also about the fact that there is an
increase in female head of households in the Nation at large.

But I will point out to you on that subject that in 1965 the per-
centage of families in the black community that were female
headed was 21 percent. And at that time, Senator Patrick Moyni-
han, who was then an assistant secretary of labor, said that that
meant there was a crisis in the black community. Today the female
headed rate in the Nation at large is nearly 21 percent. And if by
1965 standards that was a crisis in the black community, I assume
that means there is a crisis in the Nation at large that everyone
has to deal with today.

We have heard how despite the equal opportunity laws that are
on the bools, some of which were passed with the direc* support
and instigation of .2embers of this committee, that women are still
in occupations traditionally dominated by females. And we ha-. 2
heard about the low wages. Congresswoman Rose Qakar did
point out in connection with her pa;y equity hill that the reason
why she calls it pay equity instead of comparable worth is hecause
the commiesion on which I sit decided to draft a definiticn of com-
parable worth that would make it seem ridiculous, including
having the chairman call it the looniest idea since loony tunes
before any investigation of the facts, and so that pay equity is a
term that more clearly defines sex based wage discrimination
about which she is concerned and which I am concerned because it
does discriminate.

Pay equity is an issue, not just of sex, but it is also a race issue.
That is clear.

In recent years as a result of some of these legal changes, and in
ﬁarticular affirmative action, which was part of the discussion

ere, women have increasingly been able to enter non-traditional
jobs that pay higher wages. The recent Supreme Court decision in
Johnson against Santa Clara Transportation Agency is one exam-
ple of the use of affirmative action to move women into a job cate-
go’%from which they have been previously excluded.
eve is all kinds of evidence that in fact women have benefited
in terms of wages, higher wages and higher job categories. One
scholar whose study I just finished reading points out that accord-
ing to the 1980 Census analysis he did, four million women were
employed in higher job catcgories than they could have had before
the Civil Rights Act of 1964 \7as passed which resuited in a higher
income of nearly $22 billion 1.r them as a result of the emplovment
and training programs as well as affirmative action.

We all know that despite these increases, there is this continuing

problem of poverty
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Now let me move to what I think should be done; that is, what I
think should be done about these issues. The chairman, Chairman
Hawkins, has so eloquently in his questioning of Ms. Dennis point-
ed out the whole range of things that need to be done in the civil
rights area.

I might point out that when he was discussing the Civil Rights
Restoration Act and the opposition by the Justice Department, that
this is not just a matter of difference of opinion. Perhaps Ms,
Dennis, and I felt a little sorry for her, because she hasn’t been
here long enough to know, that this a struggle that goes way back
before the Grove City decision in 1984, and that there has been
consistent hostility on the part of the people in the Justice Depart-
ment and t*e ddministration to enforcing Title 9 and the other
civil rights laws in a broad way, and that each year they change
their strategy on what the opposition is going to be and how it is
going to be argued and articulated. But it isn’t simply a matter of a
difference of opinion. She probably doesn’t know that, and it’s not
her fault.

In addition to worrying about the enforcement of the civil rights
laws and trying to hold off the onslaught and worrying about
whether we are going to have a Supreme Court Justice confirmed
by the other body over there who will be somebody who will inhibit
our efforts in this regard, there are other things that I think need
to be done.

I am very worried about some of the current discussions of vari-
ous welfare reform proposals that are before the Congress, and
other training and educa‘ion proposals. What am I worried about?

Everybody agrees that welfare needs to be reformed. Everybody
now talks about jobs for the people who are on welfare. I am wor-
ried that jobs for the mothers who are involved must be provided
at an adecuate wage in order to move them beyond the poverty
level. I think that is an appropriate worry 2ecause I have a suspi-
cion that some people, not the members of this committee and
clearly not the leadership on this issue over here in the House,
that some people see welfare reform as simply a way of cutting the
budget in the short run. Some people see welfare reform proposals
as a way of irguing that everybody should be working and ignoring
the dirty little secret which is that we have a six percent unem-
ployinent rate with sbout eight million people officially unem-
ployed and that finding jobs for trainable welfare recipients will
notall)e an easy task even if we ceme up with a welfare reform pro-
posal.

This is going to require some money in the short run, and it is
going to require upward mobility for these people. Also, if we are
not carefu., we will end up with a welface reform propeusal which
will pretend that people can get jobs, and then we will cut the
amount of benefits to them on the grounds that they are not work-
ing, and ignore something—and I am sorry too that Mr. Gunderson
is not here, that in all his diccussion about women staying at home
with their children—ignoring in this whole discussion providing
adequate resources for the mothers who will continue to stay at
home with their children so that the children in those families will
not Se poor.
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So I will be looking, and I kn~w that members of this committee
are working very hard to make sure that it is a fair proposal that
will work. But we have to be careful not to make the situation
worse.

The other thing is that everybod%,saﬁilthat we need affordable
day care. I don’t know ar.tybody in Washington now who says that
day care is not necessary for the children of parents who work. Ev-
erybody says this, but we must avoid creating a situation in which
black women and brown women are moved from welfare to da,y
care employment where they care for their own and other people’s
children and receive poverty level wages while we pretend that we
are providing them with adequate resources.

ey must be paid enough, and they must be given upward mo-
bility on a track, and we must not compound the problem by any-
thing that we do.

The other thing is, we hear a lot about parental leave. And I am
in favor of parental leave. I am in favor of ‘e minimum wage. I
am in favor of all the things I should be in favor of and am. There
is a need for provisional parental leave.

However, we must recognize that unless and until we solve the
problem of wage discrimination, sex based and race based, and pro-
vide higher wage jobs for women in two parent families, parental
leave for the husband is an illusion. The hushand will continue to
work becavse his wages will be higher. It will be the women who
will not work.

Also, in female headed households in which the mother is work-
ing and is a low paid worker, unpaid parental leave would be just
another apparent option that she is supposed to have that will be
foregone because she can’t afford to taie it. Such women are un-
likely to have the savings or other resources to sustain themselves
over a period of unpaid leave.

Now I think that a combination of enforcing the civil rights laws,
enacting pay equity provisions in jobs not subject to collective bar-
gaining where it exists on these subjects, and education and train-
ing proposals will improve opportunity for women in the work-
place. These, along with resolving the day care dilemma, will help.

However, attending to the needs of the very poorest under em-
ployed and unemployed women will require structural changes in
the economy. And Chairmar Hawkins who is r jponsible for the
Humphrey-Hawkins or Hawkins-Humphrey balanced growth bill,
knows that better than anybody. And I know he knows that, and
the members of the committee do, that we will require in oraer to
attend to the needs of these people structural changes in the econo-
my which requires first one thing: acknowledging that the economy
needs to have structural changes made in it. That’s the first thing
that we need to do.

And I point that out because I noticed in recent discussions about
the new head of the Federal Reserve Board, Mr. Greenspan, in his
confirmation—I was in a meeting where a bunch of economists
were saying, we want him to keep his eye on the apple—infiation,
because unemployment i, about where it should be. At the time
they were talking it was 6.3, and black unemployment was twice as
high, and Hispanic unemployment almost twice as high. They said,
keep his eye on the apple in this room. And I looked around in the

~
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room, and there was no one in the room who was unemployed, not
a person.

So when we talk about structural changes in the economy, I
know that this will not be easy. But there is the macro economic
picture within which these changes to benefit women which is the
subject today will have to take place.

So achieving a change in the environment in which right now
full employment as a national policy goal is either ignored by a lot
of people or wished away, defined out of any meaningful existence,
will not make our task any easier.

Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

[Prepared statement of Mary Frances Berry follows:]
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF MARY FrRaNCES BERRY, COMMISSIONER, U.S. CoMMISSION ON
CiviL Ricurs

Mr. Chairman:

I am pleased to respond to your invitation to testify
before this committee on the subject of barriers confronting
working women. You and your cclleagues on this committee
have been in the forefront of legislative efforts to ensure

equitable employment opportunities for all Americans.

Today's subject is an extremely irvportant ohe.
Despite a legal structure that prohibits gex discrimination
in the workplace, including the Equal Pay Act of 1963,
Title VII of the 1964 Civil Rights Act, and Executive Order
11246, together with the various employment and training
programs that exist under federal and state authority, women
still face barriers to equal opportunity in employmeat,
Women have difficulty balancing the variouc roles they are
8till essentially required to perform. They have problems
acquiring and keeping jobs at adequate pay. They are too
often faced with sex-based wage discrimination, and the

sex segregation of jobs as barriers to employment opportunity.
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We have moved far beyond the notion that women work

only to acquire "pin money." Since the mid-1940's the labor

v participation rates of women have risen enormously. The

) U.S. Labor Lepartment, Bureau of Labor Statistics reported

that as of March, 1986, the labor participation rate for
mothers who were either married (spouse present) or separated
exceeded 60 percent and that for divorced mothers participation
surpassed 80 percent. About 53 percent of never-married
pothess were in the labor force, which probably reflects

the fact tha‘ uost are themselves young and “%.ey are caring

for young children.

But increased labor force participation or employment
has not meant enormous increases in family security. 1In
general, women remain concentrated in the lowest paying
jobs. Poor women especially have higher labor participation
rates, but they have difficulty finding work, must work
part—-time, or hold jobs that do not pay a wage adeguate to
support themselves or a family. Some women who work live
in shelters for the homeless because their earnings are
not sufficient to enable them to rent habitation of their

own.
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In 1980, 23 willion women were employed full-time
of whom 3.2 million were heads of households. The poverty
rate for these women was 5.4 percent, almost 2.5 times that
of nuclear families. 1In 1965, the percentage of families
in the black community that were female-headed was 214,
which then-Assistant Secretary of Labor, Patrick Moynihan
referred to at that time as a national crisis. Today the
temale~headed rate in the nation a! ~“erge is nearly 218,

which by the 1965 standards would s.mify a national crisis.

Despite equal upportunity laws, most women are still
in occupations tradj ionally dominated by females. Although
the jobs may not be ._w skill, they tend to be low wage and
to have little promotion potential. Even in “female"
professions, such as nnrsing, teaching, social work, and
academic librarianship, men are represented disproportionately
in the suparvisory and higher paid positions. Some theorists
allege that womer choose to enter certain low wage occupations.
But even if women did choose to enter certain occupations,
they certainly did not choose to make less money. Assigning
women to lower paying, sex segregated jobs is an unfair
employex decision when thc jobs women hold often require the
same amount of skill, effort and responsibilities as other,

higher paid jobs.
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In recent years, as a result of affirmative action
] requirements®, women have increasingly been able to enter
non~traditional jobs that pay higher wages. The Supreme

Court decision in Johnson v, Santa C.ara Transportation

Agency is one example of the use of affirmative action to
move a women into a job category from which weican had
previously been excluded. Alfred Blumrosen in an article,
"The Legacy of Griggs: ‘'Subjective Judgments,' Affirmative
Action, and Social Progress,"™ noted that in 1980 alone,

for example, four million women were employed in higher

job categories than they could have held hefore 1965

at a regulting higher income of nearly 22 L:llion dollars.
Equal opportunity laws, along with social progress that
faci’itated education and training in order to increase
individual human capital, were in large measure responsible

for these improvements.

Despite these improvements, the overall incidence
of poverty among women workers makes other sources of income
support absolutely essential. Private pension plans,
annuities, Social Security payments, unemployment benefits,
Workers' Compensation payments, and welfare payments aze
N major components that must be assessed in determining the

financial security of women.
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In addition to enforcing the cavil rights laws and
attending to ways to end wage discrimination based on sex
segregation of jobs, other measures are needed to eliminate
barriers in the workplace. In current discussions of various
welfare reform proposals, not only training and education,
but jobs for the mothers targeted must be provided in order
to move them beyond the poverty level. However, adequate
resourceé must be provided for those mothers who continue
to stay at home with their children. It is, after all, the
children who are the objects of the proposals. Welfare
reform must not be seen solely as a way of cutting budgets
in the short run. It must be understood that with a 6%
unemployment rate and about 8 million people officially
unemployed, finding jobs for trainable welfare recipients

-will not be an easy task.

Furthermore, affordable day care must be provided
for the children of parents who work. However, we must
avoid creating a situation in which black and brown women
are moved from welfare to day care employment where they
care for their own and others' children and receive poverty
level wages, while we pretend that we are providing them

with adequate resources.
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There is also a neeuc for the provision of parental
leave at the time of birth, illness, or other crisis times
“ in the lives of children. However, we must recognize that
unless and vntil we provide higher wage jobs for women in
two-parent families, parental leave for the husband is an
illusion. He is more likely to continue working because
his wages are higher. Purthermore, for female~headed
households in which’the mother iz a low paid worker, unpaid
parental leave would be another apparent option that must
be foregone. Such women are unlikely to have the savings
or other resources to sustain themselves over a period of

unpaid leave.

A combination of enforcement of federal civil
rights laws, enactment of pay equity provisions at the
state and federal levels in jobs not subject to collective
bargaining, and education and training schemes wouid improve
opportunity for women in the workplace. These, along with
resolving the day care dilemma, would help. However,
attending to the needs o* the very pocorest, underemployed
and unemployed women will require structural changes in
the economy which w~uld require first the acknowledgment

of a need for improvement in our current economic system,

? Achieving such change in an envirr.ment in which

full employment as a national policy goal is either ignored

or defined out of any meaningful existence will not be easy.

ERIC o

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

R AR




80

Mr. MarTiNEz. Thank you, Dr. Berry, for a succinct delivered tes-
timory that tells a lot in a brief message. Thank you.

STATEMENT OF SARAH K. CRIM, STAFF, SPECIAL PROJECTS DIV!-
SION, THE BUREAU OF NATIONAL AFFAIRS, INC. ACCOMPA-
NIED BY, PATRICIA LOGAN, STAFF EDITOR, OCCUPATIONAL
SAFETY AND HEALTH REPORTER

Ms. CriM. Thank you, Mr. Chairman and members of the com-
mittee.

My name i8 Sarah Crim. I am a staff editor in the Conferences
and Special Projects Division of the Bureau of National Affairs
Inc. Accompanying me is Patricia Logan, staff editor on BNA’s Oc-
cupational Safety and Health Reporter.

BNA is a private information company here in Washington with
more than 70 information services, reporting on business, labor,
!egal, environmental, financial, taxation and other public policy
issues.

Today, BINA is releasing a comprehensive special report titled,
“Pregnancy and Employment: The Complete Handbook on Discrim-
ination, Maternity Leave, and Health and Safety.” We are honored
to have the opportunity to make the report public at this subcom-
mittee hearing.

The report addresses several major issues affecting pregnant
vrorkers and their employers, including discrimination, maternity
leave, reproductive hazards, and career ramifications.

Corporations are in a transition period regarding pregnant work-
ers. Until recently, there simply were not that many pregnant
workers at the workplace. In the 1950’s when 75 percent of Ameri-
can households consisted of a father who wor’.ed and a mother who
stayed home with the children, women worked when they were
sinzle or until, but usually not after, they had children. Women
who climbed the corporate ladder were said to be smarried to their
jobs and often did not marry.

Our report notes that there are about 33 million working women
in America who are of childbearing age, and at least 75 percent of
these women become pregnant ot ~ome tim= during their careers.

Acccrding to BNA resea’ *h and interviews with corporate offi-
cials we assembled for our report, pregnant women in the work
force face numerous barriers, including these.

Despite antidiscrimination1 laws, some women get fired or passed
over for promotions because .hey are pregnant. Women are ex-
cluded from certain jobs that involve interaction with chemical
substances that may harm pregnant women or their reproductive
aystems. Experts interviewed for the report claimed thet these
same substances may have adverse e :cts on the male reproduc-
tive system, but men are not exclude«. from the workplace in this
manner.

New emergency technology such as semiconductor manufactur-
ing and video display terminal work where most of the workers are
women also are of concern in the area of reproductive hazards.
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Employers sometimes use a pregnancy or a request for maternity
leave as a performance appraisal tool, a way to get rid of a less
than ideal employee.

. Some employers still are reluctant to promcte women into high
) powered jobs that require overtime anc time spent away from
family duties.

, Even pregnancy itself can have a negative effect. According to
Y some experts, the view still persists among some employers that
. Pregnant women should not be put under undue stress, inherent in
jobs of authority and responsibiiity. And there continucs to be a
fear among em%loyers that once a woman has a baby, she will not v
» return to her job.

. Today, incr asing numbers of employers are facing up to the
need to provide some kind of maternity leave protections for preg-
nant workers. However, even among companies that are trying to
deal with preznant worker issues, not all pregnant employees are
treated alike.

For example, experts told us that professional or managerial
women often feel a subtle pressure while on maternity leave to
keep informed about what is going on at the office, o take work
home, and to return to work quickly. Yet paradoxically, our inter-
views indicat> that it is these women who often are able to negoti-
ate a better 7w fernity leave than lower ranking women.

Nonprofzs~ =al women, on the other hand, often are required to
be back on the job in a short period of time, sometimes two weeks
or less. If the women do not come back this quickly, they lose their
Job, their seniority, or both.

If we have the time, I would like to cite a few examples from our
report that illustrate these points. At a law firm in Boston featured
in the report, the attorneys, abou’ half of whom are women of
childbearing age, are given a more generous child care leave pack-
age than are the support staff, ¢. policy that apparently is not un-
comnmon among law firms across the country. Yet, a partner with
the law firm noted that several of the women partners pcstponed
having children unt’! they had achieved partner status in the firm
and their careers were secure.

An occupational health nurse at the Quaker Oats Compsny’s cor-
porate headquarters in Chicago told BNA that most pregnant
workers take only four to six weeks off when they have a child, in
keeping with the company policy that provides only short term dis-
ability leave. She said, this is a short amount of time, but added
that the workers, “just deal with it.” If 18 weeks mandatory paren-
«! leave were required by Federal law, she saw it es being a hard-
ship for th> company in some instances, particularly she said, “in
replacing managerial employees.”

But officials at Levi Strauss & Company, Corning Glass Works,
which respectively provide five months and six months child care
leave, said thot while managers sometimes find these policies in-
convenient, the companies feel that on the whole they work well.

Several corporate cfficials interviewed by BNA predicted that if
the Family and Medical Leave Act becomes law, companies v 1 be
reluctant to hire women of childbearing age because they wiw not
want to put up with the workplace disruptions that might occur
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when such a woman would take 18 weeks of unpaid leave to care
for her newborn child.

Increasingly, however, pregnant employees are not merely ac-
cepting whatever their employers give them. We found that in the
area of pregnancy discrimination, women are filing more and more
lawsuits pertaining to pregnant worker issues. These range from
cases involving morality issues in which unmarried pregnant
~vomen teachers or youth counselors are fired for setting a negative
example, to cases where women are fired or demoted almost imme-
diately after their supervisor learns of their pregnancy.

I would like to emphasize that the barriers I have mentioned in
this testimony are not faced by pregnant workers at all public and
private sector employers. Some employers in some states are more
active than others ir ‘ealing with pregnant workers concerns. Five
states just this year that pass laws that require employers to pro-
vide some form of mundatory parental leave.

The subcommittee has been given a chart prepared by BNA that
details State laws, regulations, and proposed iegislation affecting
pregnant workers.

We value the opportunity to appear here today. BNA considers
pregnancy in employment to be a very imporlant employee rela-
tions issue.

At this time we would like to submit the highlights of our report
and che chart on Stete laws, regulations and bills for the recora.
Ms. Logan, who wrote the report’s chapter on reproductive haz-
ards, and I will be happy to answer any questions you might have
about the report.

Thank you.

[Prepared statement of Sarah Crim follows:]
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF SARAH CriM, 5tAFF EDITOR, THE BUREAU OF NATIONAL
AFFAIRS, INC.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman, membors of the committee. .

My name is sarah Crim, and I am a2 staff editor in the Conferences
and Special Projects Div sion of The Bureau of National Affairs, Inc.
Acconpanying me is Patricia Logan, staff editor on BNA's Occupational
Safety and Health Reporter.

BNA is a private, employee-owned information company in Washing-
ton, D.C. BNA is the largest, non-government provider of information
services in the nation's capit?l, with more than 70 information ser-
vices reporting on business, labor, legal, environmental, financial,
taxation and other public policy issues.

Today, BNA is releasing a comprehensive special report on preg-
nancy and employment, titled :

i . We
are .onored to have the opportunity to make the study public at your
subcommittee hearing.

The report addresses several major issues affecting pregnant
workers and their employers, including discriminacion, maternity
leave, reproductive hazards, and career ramifications.

Corporaticas are in a transition period regarding pregnant
workars. Until recently, there simply were not that many pregnant
workers to contend with at the workplace. In the 1950s, when 75 per-
'zent of American households consisted of a father who worked and a
mother who stayed home with the children, women worked when they were
single or until -- hut not after -- they had children. Women who
climbed the corporate ladder were said to be "married to their Jjobsn
and often did not marry.

The large intiuX of women of childbearing age into the workforce
-= due to economic necessity and changes brought about by the women's
liveration nmovement of tite late 1960s and early 1970s -~ is really a
recent phencmenon to which some businesses have not yet fully
aijusted.

Our report notes that there are about 35 million working women in
America today who are of childbearing age -- and at least 75 percent
of these women will hecome pregnant at some time during their careers.

These numbers signify that a dramatic change has taken place over
the past 20 years in the American workplace. As recently as 1975, only
30.8 percent of married women with children one y.ar or younger were
in the workforce, according to the Bureau of Labor Statistics. Today,
says BLS, almost half (49.8 percent) of these women work.

It was not that lung ago that the American Medical Association
reconmended that women quit work in their sixth month of pregnancy.
Yet, according to the Department cf Health and Human Services'
National Center for Health Statistics (NCHS), in 1980, 41 percent of
pPregnant women in white-collar jobs worked in their ninth month of
Pregnancy.

Arcording to BNA research and interviews with corporate officials
we asr .mbled for the report, oregnant women in the workforce face
several barriers.

Let me emphasize that these barriers are not faced by pregnant
workers at all public and private sector employers. Some employers and
some states are more activist than others in dealing with pregnant
workers' concerns. For example, just this ¥ear, five states have
passed laws that require amployers to provide some form ot mandz.cory
parental leave. The subco.mittee has been given a chart prepared by
BNA that details state laws, regulations, and proposed legislation
affectiqg Pregnant workers.
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At cthuis point, however, I would 1like tc delineate some of the bar-
riers faced by pregnant women, as discussed in the BNA special report:

--Despite anti-discrimination laws, some women have been fired or
passed over for promotions because they got pregnsnt.

—--Woman are being excluded from certain jobs tnat involve interac-
tion with chemical substancis that may harm pregnant women or ‘heir
reproductive systems. Exper 8 interviewed for the report claimed that
these same substances may have adverse effects on the male reproduc~
tive system, but men are not excluded from the workplace in this
manner.

--Employers sometimes use a pregnancy or a request for maternity
.eave as what several experts termed a "performance appraisal tool," a
way to get rid of a less tbt .n exemplary employee. This is particularly
the case in companies that have no formal maternity leave policy.

--Taking a long maternity leave can icself engender negative feel-
ings among co-workers and superiors. .

--Some employers still are relucta.t to promote women into high-
powered jobs that require overtime and cime spent aray froa family
duties, since women still bear the major responsibilities of chil-
drearing.

--Even thu temporary ccndition of pregnancy itself can have a nega-
tive effect. According to some experts, the view still persists among
some employers that pregnant women should nc: be put under undue
gtress, inherent in jobs of authority and responsibility. Experts alsc
said that there continues to be a fear among employers that once a
woman becomes pregnant, she will not raturn '3 her job.

--Professional or managerial women often feel a subtle pressure to
ninimize the effects of having a child by keeping informed about what
is going on at the office, taking work home, or even delaying child-
birth until a career is well-established.

--Non-professional women often work for employers who expeit thea
to be back on the job in a short period of time, sometimes two weeks
or less. TIf the women do not come back this quickly, they lose their
job, their seniority cr both.

Let ma now cite soma specific examples that appear in our handbook
on pregnancy and ebnployment.

The Quaker Oats Company's corpwrate headquarters in Chicago employs
1900 persons, about half of whom are women witha white~collar jobs.
Quaker Oats has a disability leave policy for its Eregnant employees?
2ccording to an occupationa® health nurse for the company, most preg-
nant workers take only four to six weeks off when they have a child.
She said this is a short amount of time, but added that the workers
#just deal with it." She added that if HR 925 were to be enacted, it
would ba "highly impractical® for the company. She said that it might
re relatively easy to replace a clerical employee for 18 weeks, "but
you're not going to replace a manager" as es=ily, because the position
could not be left blank, and "that could be rough."

By contrast, Levi Strauss & Co. provides a total of five months
leave -- paid dicability plus unpaid child care leave -~ for its
employees. A personnel executive with Lavi Strauss told BNA that while
it is "a hardship sometimes” to have an amployee gone { »r five months,
“you make dv." He added, however, that while managers do not appear to
resent the employee's taking disability leave, £-me managers do resent
the child care leave. The way he described this «ttitude was, "Why
can't I fill the job? She's gone so long."
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CRIM TESTIMONY

Several corporate officials interviewed by BNA predicted tnat if
the Family and Medical Leave Act becomes law, companies will be reluc-
tant to hire women cf childbearing age, beca. ' they will not want to
put up with the workplace disruptions that mignt occur when such a
onan would take 18 waeks of unpaid leava to care for her rewborn
child.

Thare ara other affacts connected with the issue of maternity
laave.

For example, Jur interviews indicate that managerial and profes-
‘sional vomen often are able to negotiate a batter "deal® for them-
selves when they have a baby. By the game token, it is thesa women who
appear to feel the pressure to rat. - to work as soon as pozsible
baecause they are needed.

For example, at a law firm in Boston, the attorneys -- about half
of whonr are women of childbearing age -~ are given a more generous
child care leave package than are the support staf#, a policy that
apparently is not uncommon anong lzw firms. But according to one part-
ner at the firm, many of these womer pcstpone having children until
after they have achieved partnevr .enz within the firm and their
careers ara secure.

Fank Street College of Education in New York city, a 70-year-old
institution of higher learning that spacializas in researca and educa~
tion on children and the balancing of work and famiiy concarns, gives
its employees three months of paid child care leave. Since January 1,
1986, the policy has applied to all of the co'lege's workers, but pre-
viously it applied only to prof sional stafz. Interestingiy, a per-
sonnel official at Bank Street vold BNA that often professional staff
==~ particularly faculty -« do not take their three months all .. once,
because they feel & responsibility to be at their jobs.

Experts on work .nd family issues from sucn organizations as

‘catalyst and The Conference Board, whum we intarviewed for the report,

claimed that often professional women feel a "subtle pressure! to get
back to work as soon as possible.

An official of tue research organization catalyst, which con-
ducted a survey on corporate parental leave policies, sald that in her
view, many employers still view maternity leave as being "a hassle."
She claimed that there is a "myth" that women do not return to the
workplacs when they bacome pregnant. Among the eight companias pro-
filed in the matarnity leave section of the report, the raturn rate
for preandant workers was estimated 2s being from 75 percent to 95 per-
cant. This included companies that offer ! ralatively short disability
leaves, &s waell as employers that offered longer-term child czre
lgaves.

Interestingly, at the Boston law firm where prcgnant attorneys got
2 more generous child care leave package than did support statf,
nearly all the attorneys returned to work, but the support staff
tended not to come back. It is not clear whether this is because the
attorneys are more committed to their careers than the support staff,
or because there is a shortage of legal secretaries in the Boston
area, and the seCretaries take a longer leave than they are allowed to
be home with their babies, and then get a job with another law firm
when they are resdy to return to work.

The area of reproductive hazards also has generated concern in
terms of barriers that exist for pregnsnt workers. There are nawly
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emerging technologies -= such as semiconductor mauufacturing and Video
Display Terminal work -- where a large proportion of the workers are
women. Following the release last year of a Digital Equipment Corp.
study that showed a cluster of miscarriages among semiconductor
workers, a number of semiconductor manufacturers pulled their pregnant
workers off the line. This action generated some protests among
affected tnions, who claimed that companies should 1 -wove the hazards,
not shut the women out of work.

Although there has been little scientific charting of adverse
reproductive effects, some companies, such as American Cyanamid Com-
pany, have taken actions that require women of childbearing age to be
sterilized before they a allowed to work with certain substances.

Women's organizations pointed out to us that they do not know of
instances where men have been treated similarly, even though, accord-
ne to scientific experts we interviewed, ~ substance that is haza.d-
ous to the female reproductive cystem is likely to be hazardous to the
maie reproductive system as well.

In che area of pregnancy discrimination, women are filing more and
more lawsuits purtaining to pregnant worker issues.

These range from cases involving "morality" issues, in which
unmarried pregnant women employed by organizations whose purpose is to
teach or counsel young people are fired for setting a negative exam-
rle, to cases where women are fired or demoted almost immediately
«fter their supervisor learned of their pregnancies.

The barriers to advancement a pregnant woman faces often may be
subtle, as in the pressuras to return to work enumerated above.

Just the very fact that women have the potential of becoming
pregnant can work against their advancement in a company, according to
experts.

Two psychologists, writing in a recent iswue of Personnel maga-
zine, noted that "some managers are concerncd that pregnant workers
are psychologically unstable,™ even th.ugh, they said, "the reverse is
true. Pregnant women show reduced levels of tension and may be among a
malager's more stable employees."

We valua our opportunity to appear before the committee today.
BNA considers pregnancy and employment to “e one of the most important
employee relations issues in the workplace today.

Ms. Logan, wh: wcote the report's chapter on reproductive hazards,
and I will be happy to answer any questions you might have about the
report.

Thank you.
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PREGNANCY AND EMPLOYMENT:

The Complete Handbook on Discrimination,
Maternity Leave and iHealth and Safety

The attached chart, produced by The Bureau of National Af-
fairs, Inc., includes a breakdown of st *as that have laws,
regulations, or proposed legislation on parental/maternity
leave, discrimiration and reproductive hazards.

According to the data compiled by BNA:

* 5 states enacted parental/maternity leava laws in 1987.

¢ 15 states have enacted parental/maternity leave laws as of
7/21/87.

* 3 states have enacted discrimination laws or regulations as
of 7/21/87.

s 3 states have enacted laws on reproductive hazards as of
7/21/87.

* 19 states have considered legislation in 1987.
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State Pregnancy Laws, Regulations, and Bills
States

Alabama
Alaska X
Arizona X
Arkansas
California X X X
Colorado X X
Connecticut X X X
Delaware X
Florida X
Georgia X
Hawaii X
Idaho
lllinois X X
Indiana .
lowa X X
Kansas X
Kentucky
Louisiana
Maine
Maryland X
Massachusetts X X
Michigan
Minnesota X
Mississippi
Missouri X

Source: The Bureau of National Affairs, Inc.
© 1987
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State Pregnancy Laws, Regulations, and Bills
{Cont'd)

ey

2

(1]

States E
2

Montana
Nebraska
Nevada
New Hampshire X .
New dJersey X
New Maexico

New York X
North Carolina
North Dakota

Ohio X
Oklahoma X
Oresgon
Pennsylvania
Rhode lIsland X
South Carolina X
South Dakota
Tennessee
Texas

Utah

Vermont ° X
Virginia X
Washington X
Wast Virginia
Wisconsin X
Wyoming

Source: The Bureau of National Affairs, Inc.
© 1987
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Mr. MARTINEZ. If there is no objection, those materials will be
entered into the record.

Mr. Wynn.

STATEMENT OF \  .IAM H. WYNN, INTERNATIONAL PRESIDENT,
UNITED FOOD AnD COMMERCIAL WORKERS INTERNATIONAL
UNION ACCOMPANIED BY, PAT SCARCELLI, VICE PRESIDENT
AND DIRECTOR OF WOMEN'’S AFFAIRS

Mr. WynN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

01(\)%' name is William Wynn, and I am President of the United
F and Commercial Workers International Union, AFL~CIC
With me today is Pat Scarcelli, Vice President and Director of
Women’s Affairs.

UFCW has 1.3 million members organized in 700 local unions
throughout the United States and Canada. The UFCW and its local
unions have contracts with thousands of employers in retail, health
care, insurance, finence, food processing, meat packing, fur, and
leather, and other industries.

The UFCS’s membership mirrors the entire U.S. working popula-
lt)ion in terms of age, sex, education, iacome and geographical distri-

ution.

Women make up about one-half of our membership. Recent poll
and demographic data suggest that within the next several years
women may comprise a majority of our membership.

About half of our womer members are over age 35. Almost €9
percert work less than 32 hours per week. About 25 percent of
UFCW women are principal wage earners. Another 10 percent clas-
sify themselves as co-equal wage earners.

Union contracts are an important vehicle for helping working
women achieve equality in the workplace. Unions have been lead-
ers in ensuring that women receive equal pay for equal work.

The UFCW has made substantial progress in eliminating the
much-publicized malefemale wage gap for our members. Hourly
wages 1or women JFCW members average 87.6 percent of the rate
for men—considerably better than the national average of 64 per-
cent.

Moreover, we in the UFCW expect this comparatively small
wage gap to disappear soon. Because UFCW contracts tie ivage
rates to seniority, not gender, as women gain seniority, their wage
rates will rise accordingly.

In addition, virtually all of our women members enjoy through
their contract benefits such as health and welfare, pension, and
other benefits available on a gender-blind basis.

Most women work for economic reasons. Seventy-five percent of
all working women are still employed in the service sector indus-
tries. These traditional service joos generally have two characteris-
tics in common—low wages and non-traditional working hours.

Wag%?l for service employees are among the lowest of all indus-
tries. The average income for retail end service workers in 1986
was on11¥a$11,000 per year. For women, reliance on these jobs
means that they will stay at the bottom of the economic ladder.

erhaps a more dangerous aspect of the service sector industries
is the trend toward more part time and temporary positions.
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Women are hardest hit by tte switch to pert time and temporary
emplovment.

Let e give you an example of what I mean. In northern Califor-
nia, an affirmative action program was established by the UFCW
and Safeway Stores, Inc., to eliminate discrimination in promotion-
ai opportunities for women and minorities. The program was de-
8ignea iv move women and minorities in*o management positions
in the retail food stores. The Safeway Management Trainee Pro-
grain, however, was limited to full time employees.

The compuny had a difficult time meeting the goals of the plan

use most women employees worked part time schedules due to
their low seniority, child care obligetions and other traditional
famlicly obligations which limit the number of hours women can
WOrK.

Another critical problem that faces working families is the avail-
ability of quality, affordable child and dependent care.

Some of cur local unions are acting to addr:ss our members' crit-
ical child care needs. As an example, our loc.l union in Denver,
Colorado can now put their children into a UFCW spons. 3d day
care center.

Many working parents, particularly retail workers, have unpre-
dictable schedules, and the center is designed to address their
needs. It is open from 6 a.m. to 11 p.m,, six days a week, and has a
capacity of 88 children. Programs are tajlcred for children between
two and ten years of age, and include rcading readiness and com-
puter training.’ The center provides meals to children and is fully
licensedkand regulated hy the Stats of Colorado. The cost of $42.50
per week.

Other UFCW locals are Yringing child and dependent care to the
bargaining "able. Cur local union in Philadal)hia, Pennsylvania,
for exam, . cently negotiated with their employers a $15 per
member per  onth contribution to a Jjoint labor-management retail
food fund which will administer a day care service program.

Our Nation must recognize that women are in the workforce to
stay, and must act now to address the growing child care crigis.

Two other serious problems that women in service industries
face are the lack of basic health insurance and pensicn coverage.

Employers who have benefit plans shou'd be required to extend
them to part time employees on a pro-rated basis. This would allow
all employees of covered employers to participate in the health and
pension plans,

» & mechanism for peunsion portability should be established
to ensure that wrrkers who change jobs receive the pension rights
to which they are entitled.

The late President John Kennedy once said, “A rising tide liits
all boats.” There are, we believe, a number of legislative proposals
that will create a rising tide that would greatly improve the eco-
nomic status of all workers, and especially women workers.

Among these proposals is legislation to protect all workers’ jobs
in leveraged buynuts, sales of assete and corporate merger situa-
tions. Women often bear o disp:~rortionate share of the economaic
dislocation that results from “m.., -~ mania.”

36.
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Mr. Chairman, and members of the committee, winning better
conditions for all our members, women as well as men, is obviously
our top priority.

The UFCW and its locai unions have made great strides in
ending pay differentials and inequities in hours and benefits. We
view this not only as a fight at the bargaining table, but also a

1t here in Congress.

We appreciate the opportunity to appear today and look forward
to working with the Congress, this committee, and the administra-
tion to meet and deal with these real life concerns of working
women.

Thank you.

[Prepared statement of Williem H. Wynn follows:]
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF WiLLiaM H. WYNN, INTERNATIONAL PresIDE: T, UNITED Foop
AND CoMMERCIAL WORKERS INTERNATIONAL UNION

Thank you, Mr, Chairman and members of the Subcommittee. I am
pleased to testify today on some of the problems working women are
facing. My name is william H. Wynn, and I am the International
President of the United Food and Commercial Workers International
tnion (APL~CIO).

The UFCW has 1.3 million members organized in 788 local unions
throughout the United States and Canada. The OFCW and its local
unions have contracte with thousands of employers in retail, health
care, ainsurance, finan.e, food processing, meat packing, fur, leather,
and other industries.

The UFCW's membership mirrors the entire ©.S. working
population in terms of age, sex, education, income and geographical
distribution,

Women make up about one-half of our membership. Recent pc{l
and demographic data suggest that within the next several years women

may comprise a majority of UFCW members.

. mr—\;;m Jenry
Prescent Sacretary-Treasurer
~ -
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aAbout half of our women members are over ege 35, and half are
under 35. Almost 68 percent work less than 32 hours per week. About
25 percent of UPCH women are principal wage earners. Another 18
percent classify themselves ns co-equal wage earners.

Union contracts are an important vehicle for helping working
woman achieve aquality in the workplace. Unions have been leaders in
ensuring thet women receive equal pay for equal work.

«he UFCW has made substantial progress in eliminating the
ruch-publicized male~female wage gap for our members, Bourly weges
for women UPCY members @verage 87.6 percent of the rate for men --
conaiderably better than the nationa’ average of 64 percent.

soreover, we in the gFCwW expect this comparatively smal)l wage
gap to disappear soon. BSecause UFCH contracts tie wage rates to
sendority, not gender, as women gain ceniority, their wage rates will
rise accordingly.

In addition, virtually all of our woien members enjoy through
their contracts benefits such as health and welfare, pensions, and
other services available on a gender-blind basis.

The service sector is the most rapidly growing sector of the
U.5. economy. Forty-six percent of all jobs ard three out of four new
jobs created are in the service sector. The vast majority of these
new service sector jobs are characterized by low pay und part-tixe
hours. An increasing number are also temporary positiens. As the
service sector becomes a larger f.ctor in our economy, special
attention must be paid to the needs and problems of individuals wko
work in these industries.

9q:
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Most women work for economic reasons. Any analycis of the
problems of working women reguires a thorough examination of the
content and quality of service jobs., Single mothers work to support
their children. Forty-one percent of married working women have
husbands who earn less than $15,886 per year, making two paychecks
» crucial to family income, While some women have begun to enter

non-traditional occupations, 75 percent of all working women are still
employed in service sector industries —-- retail and wholesale trade,
finance, insurance, personal services, health care, and education.
These traditional service jobs generally have two characteristics in
common -~ low wages and non-traditional working hours.

Wages for gervice employees are among the lowest of all
industries, The average income for retail and service workers in 1986
was only $11,754 per year, For women, reliance on these jobs means
that they will stay at the bottom of the economic ladder,

Perhaps a nwre dangerous aspect of service sector industries
ig the trend toward more part-time and temporary positions, the
so-called "marginal® or “"contingent® jobs. Fewer full-time jobs, and
which frequently offer better pay, basic health benefits and pensions,
are no¥w being created, Employers would ratrer offer part-time and
temporary positions to avoid having to provide benefits for their
vorkers. Wages for these marginal jobs are often 48% to 58% lower
thar wages for comparapie full-time positions, This trend towards
*marginalization® of jobs is rapidly resulting in a two-tiered

. economic system where a few select employees are awarded full-time

status, while most are forced into part-time or temporary positions,

s
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Women are bardest hit by tbe switch to part-time and temporary
employment. In fact, wome make up 78 percent of 2ll part-tinme
employces and 67 percen of all temporary employees. Often they end
up trapped in Geud-end jobs, with little opportunity for economic and -
professional advanzement. Let me give you an example of what I nean.- ‘

In Northern California, an affirmative action program was
established by the UPCW and Safeway Stores Inc. to eliminate
discrimination in prcmotional opportunities for women and minorities.
The program was designed to move women and minorities into management
pogitions in the retail food stores. The Safeway Management Trainee
Program, however, was limited to full-tigme employees.

The company had a difficult time meeting the goals of the plan
because most women employees worked part-time schedules due to their
low seniority, child care obligations and other traditional femily
obligations which limit the number of bhours women can work.

Another critical problem that faces working families is the
availability of quality, affordable child and dependent care. The
need for child care has increased dramatically in recent years as
women have entered the workforce in record numbers. Almost one-half
of the children under age 13 care for themselves when they are not in
school, Many sexrvice sector workers have special difficulty coping
with child care arrangements because of part-time or temporary jobs,
late hours and unscheduled call-ins.

9El{
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Current levels of direct and indirect support for child and
dependent care sexvices are wholly inadequate to meet this increasing
need. Major funding sources for full-day care of preschool children
include Federal programs for child care for low-income families, food
subsidies for child care centers, and income tax deductions allowed to
worhing parencs for child care expenses. Since 1988, however, federal
subsidies for child care for low-income families and food subsidies
for child care centers has decreased. We wholeheartedly support full
funding those Pederal programs to assist low-income families with
their .day care problems. Attention also must be directed to a much
larger group of workers above the poverty line -- middle income
workers, many of them UFCW members, who cannot find affordable,
quality child care. Hany of our members cannot afford licensed day
care centers, even when they can f£ind them. They leave their children
with their grandparents or other relatives, a neighbor, or worse yet,
they are left unattended.

Some of our local unions are acting to address our members'
critical child care needs. UPCH Local 7 members in Grand Junction,
Colorado, can now put their children in a UPCW sponsored day care
center. The center is designed to meet the special needs of parents
who do not work 9 to £ shifts. Many working parents, particularly
retail 1vod workers, have late-night and unpredictable schedules, and
the center is designed to address their needs, It is open from 6:08
a.m, to 11:08 p.m., six days a week and has a capacity of 88 children.
Programs are tailored for children between two and 18 years of age,
and iuclude reading readiness and computer training. The center
provides meals to children and is fully licensed and regulated by the
State of Colorado. The cost is $42.58 per week, Not surprisingly,
there is a waliting list,
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Other UFCW locals are bringing child and dependent care to the
bargaining table. Local 1357 in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, for
example, recently negotiated with Acme Markets a $15.88 per member
contribution to & Joint Labor-Management Retail Food Trust Fund, which
will administer a day care service program.

The Retail Pood Trust Fund, which expects to have the day care
program in operation by January 1, 1988, will provide UFCW members
with a choice of using the Trust Fund‘'s own regional day care center
for a small deductible co-payment fee or receiving an equivalent cash
voucher to be used at the day care center of the menber's choosing.

Our nation must recognize that women are in the workforce to
stay, and must act now to address the growing child care crisis.
Specific proposals include: grants and low-interest loans for
davelopment of child care facilities; additional incentives for
employer-provided child care services; development of state voucher
programs for middle-income families; and incentives for the
establishment of cooperative child care facilities.

Two other serious problems that women in Service industries
face are the lack of basic health insurance and pension coverage.
only 42 percent of service sector employees work for employers who
offer health plans. In reality, substantially fewer employees actually
receive coverage. Most plans require full-time or near full-time
employment before coverage, as a result, few part-time workers are
eligible for medical benefits. Hany plans also require extensive
waiting periode, leaving workers uncovered during an initial three to
12 month period. In many cases, these factors combine to place women
in an intolerable position —- they must either purchase insurance at
emorbitant rates or do withkout mdical coverage.
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A similar situation exists for pension coverage. Only 25

percent of service sector employees work for employers who provide

pension plans, Less than half of the women eligible for the plan will

eventually vest, Low vesting rates are the result of two major

factors ~~ part~time work and changing employment histories. Women

+ who work part-time are often ineligible for pension coverage because

many plans require full or near full-time hours for participation,

making it difficult for part~time workers to accumulate enough hours

to participate. The majority of UPCW contracts provide both health

and pension coverage for part-time employees working as éew as 20

hours per week, It is important to note that this benefit has not

proved to be an extraordinary financial burden to our organized
employers,

Moreover, many women move in and out of the workforce because
of childbearing and rearing or relocation to accommodate a spouse's
job, FPew employers offer job security, health benefits or pensions
that transfer from job to job, even when workers remain with the same
employer or in the same industry. Additionally, women are many times
more likely than men to work as temporaries, an employment status
which is generally not covered in a benefit plan.

workers' advocates offer a number of proposals for dealing
with these problems. First, employers who have benefit plans should
be required to extend them to part~time employees on a pro-rated
basis. This would allow all employees of covered employers to

. participate in health and pension plans, Tvu alleviate uncompensated
health care problems, employers should be required to provide a
minimum medical package to all employees, Second, a mechanism forx
pension portability shouid be established to ensure that workers who
change jobs receive the pension rights to which they are entitled.
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The late President John Kennedy once said, "A rising tide
lifts all boats.® There are, we believe, a number of legislative
proposals that will create a rising tide that would greatly improve
the economic status of all workers, and especially women workers.
They includes

. Legislation to protect all worker's jobs in leveraged
buyouts, sales of assets and corporate merger situations. Women often
bear a disproportionate share of the econamic dislocation that results
from "merger mania.®

. Legislation to restore the purchasing power of the minimum
wage.

. Legislation to reduce America's mammoth trade deficit.

This is by no means a canplete list of problems that working
women face in today's service economy,

Mr. Chairman, and Hembers of the Committee, winning better
conditions for all our members —— women as well as men — i8 obviously
our top priority. The UPCW and its locul unions have made great
strides in ending pay differentials, and inequities in hours and
benefits. We view this not only as a fight at the bargaining table,
but also a fight here in Congress. We appreciate the opportunity to
appear today and look forward to working with the Congress and the
Administration to meet and deal with these real life concerns of

working women.
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Mr. MArTINEZ. Thank you, Mr. Wynn.
Ms. Marano.

STATEMENT OF CYNTHIA MARANO, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR,
WIDER OPPORTUNITIES FOR WOMEN, INC.

Ms. Morano. Mr. Chairman, it is wonderful to be back before
this committee again, and I thank you for the opportunity to talk
with all of you about the needs of working women in the United
States, especially as it relates to transitions to non-traditional em-
ployment.

. I am Cynthia Morano, Director of Wider Opportunities for
Women, a_nonprofit national women’s employment organization,
located in Washington, DC, which works to create systemic change
in employment policies, programs and practices to ensure economic
independence and equality of opportunity for women.

I am going to take my testimony and summarize a number of the
problems which I raised in the testimony and move fairly quickly
into the remedies. Because I think we have heard a great deal
about the data, and I would like to make some suggestions to you
about some things that perhaps the committee might act on.

The growing numbers of women in poverty is of critical concern
tv my organization, Wider Opportunities for Women. You have
heard a great deal about the poverty rates of women, particularly
those in female-headed households.

I would like to just bring to your attention one issue that we
haven’t heard so much about this morning, and that is the situa-
tion of the working poor. Of those women working in the United
States for pay, 4.3 million worien are working for incomes which
are tco low to bring them out of poverty.

For these women, obtaining a job has not provided a route out of
poverty.

Women represent 60 percent of all Americans aged 16 or over
who have incomes below the poverty level. More than half of all
women and 75 percent of mothers with children work to support
themselves and their families. But the jobs women hold typically
pay low wages.

Of the 84 million minimum wage earners, 64 percent are
women. Women comprise 60 percent of those earning between
$3.35 and $5.00 an hour, a wage that is below the national poverty
threshold for a family of four.

. The primary reason so many working women are in poverty is
that women continue to be segrega in occupations with the
lowest pay and most limited benefits. Currently close to 80 percent
of women workers are still employed in clerical, service, retail

’ sales, and factory operative jobs.

The presence of worien in non-traditional occupations continues
to be extremely limited. Women comprise only 2.4 percent of
skilled craft workers in 1984. According to 1985 annual averages,
women comprised 2 percent of workers in the construction trades
generally. They were 0.5 percent of brick masons and stone
masons, 1.2 percent of carpenters, and 3.1 percent of construction
laborers. In many cases, these small numbers represented large
gains from the past.
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In 1984 WOW conducted & study of four high technology indus-
tries, industries reputed for their Erogressive rsonnel and human
resource policies, to determine the status of femaie employment
and opportunities for the future.

Many of the firms reviewed were Federal contractors, most had a
high growth profile. We found the following: widespread prevailing
occupational segregation; a visible lack of women in minorities in
the ﬁ?ghest paid and most responsible positions; and a persistent
wage gap in itions where males and females were employed.
Only in the telephone industry where there has been consitferable
affirmative action, scrutiny and litigation, was progress in the
movement and promotion of women really apparent.

I would like to move now to talk witkgdvou e little bit about the
remedies thst we s t. A muitifaceted approach is essential to
re?ucing the effocts of occupational segregation and women’s pov-
erly.
}iey elements include focusing on affirmative action, education
and training programs which lead women to a broader spectrum of
well paid work and pay equity.

WOW believes that enforcement of our Nation’s affirmative
action policies is critical to insuring economic independence and
equal opportunities for women in minorities who continue to suffer
the effects of past discrimination and who continue to face severe
labor market underutilization.

As a trainer of women for non-traditional jobs, we experience
firsthand the importance of a strong Federal affirmative astion
program in helping to overcome occupational segregation.

I don’t need to tell this committee that recent studies confirm
that affirmative action in the form of goals and timetables has con-
tributed greatly to the gains that women have made in entering
non-traditional jobs.

We are strongly committed to the reter .ion and improved en-
forcement of Executive Order 11246 which we see as critical to
women’s transition into the labor market.

Our stuciy of high technology industries, many of which, as I told
you, are Federal contractors shewed us that those affirmative
action policies are simply not being enforced in those industries.

We were pleased that the Supreme Court findings in the Johnson
case were 80 clear in upholding the use of affirmative action to
remedy occupational segregation and the past discriminatory prac-
tices in the California Department of Trangzortation. This is a crit-
ical message to the Nation’s employers.

But at the same time, members of our women’s work force net-
work across the country tell us that employers they are working
with have experienced a substantial decline in enforcement or an
lémFgC Ic;f communication from the U.S. Department of Labor’s

Adequate funding and special new initiatives by the Department
of Labor may be needed to stimulute adequate enforcement. We
would like to work with the committee on trying to design some
new initiatives.

Special initiatives can make a difference. A look at the coal
mining and shipbuilding industries show us how such measures
can open up non-traditional employment opportunities for women.
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Ihhave outlined what some of those special initiatives have done in
the past.

The data provides evidence that the scarcity of women in non-
traditional jubs cannot be attributed to a lack of desire by women
for those jobs or that their incomes would not be significantly in-
creased if they had them. What we need is to see the affirmative
action policies that are part of the law be enforced carefuléir.

Education and training programs also have the potcatial to posi-
tively affect women’s economic status and participation in a broad-
er spectrum of occupations These programs can help in reducing
women’s poverty by training and channeling women into non-tradi-
- tional occupations with better earnings and benefits.

Yot currently sex segregation continues in publicly funded educa-
tion and training programs resui*ing in different training assign-
ments, different outcomes, and different earnings for women.

The vocations: education system has a great potential to assist
women and girls entering non-traditional employment. About half
of the 17 million students enrolled in federally-funded vocational
education courses and programs are women. Yet, there is a great
disparity between males and females in the kinds of programs in
which they participate.

You all here in the committee and in the House Education and
Labor Committee on the whole were very involved in the passage
of the Perkins Act in 1984, and wa worked to see that there were
monies better targeted to women and girls.

The sex equity provisions of that act encouraged States to focus
on eliminating sex bias and stereotyping in secondary and post-sec-
ondary vocational education. Yet research carried out by our orga-
nization and the National Coalition for Women and Girls in Educa-
tion indicates that few states have funded or encouraged women to
enter non-traditional training programs in any substantial num-
bers, even under the Perkins Act.

The Job Training Partnership Act emphasized sex equity in non-
traditional training by requiring that efforts be made in all pro-
grams to develop training which contributes to occupational devel-
opment, upward mobility, development of new careers, and over-
coming sex f*...otyping in occupations traditional for the other
sex.

Yet all studies on State implementation of JTPA have indicated
substantial variations by sex withi specific training program as-
signments. Under JTPA. the majority of women participating con-

. tinue to be placed in short-term ciassroom training leading to jobs

in the clerical and service sector which result in low wages.

In addition, those provisions of JTPA which you here in the com-
mittee helped to establish to remove barriers to JTPA training for
women are frequently not being implemented. Most local service
deliverers in nearly every State have failed to use the 15 percent
allowable costs for supportive services.

Few States have funded or implemented specizl efforts to train
women in non-traditional occupations. Performance standards are
being interpreted as an incentive to train participants in those oc-
cupations in which it is easiest to gain job placements and which
are the least expensive for which to train.
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Training low income women for non-traditional jobs tends to
take longer, cost more, and result in a longer placement period.
Yet the results of this type of training include higher wages, better
benefits, and a gréater impact in overall economic terms.

I can't:talk about education and training for women without ex-
amining the situation in welfare employment programs. Both State
and federallv funded welfare employment programs have tended to
continue the occupational segregated training found in vocational
education in JTPA This is particularly disturbing giver the need
of adult welfare recipients who are more than 90 percent female to
gain jobs which will provide wages and benefits which can result in
economic self sufficiency.

We urge you to continue to do all you can—and you have done a
great deal already, but we want you to do more—to ensure that
quality training for jobs with the prospect of decent wages and ben-
efits continues to be a focus of the current welfare reform debate.

My reading of the paper in the last few days has made me even
more concerned about the welfare reform process yet ahead of us.
While I congratulate this committee’s work on this issue, I think
we have yet much to do.

Equitable training, affirmative action enforcement are key strat-
egies in affecting women'’s participation in non-traditional employ-
ment and overall women'’s economic security. Other strategies such
as implementing pay equity initiatives, which you have heard
about earlier in these hearings, and increasing the minimum wage
are crucial in reducing women’s poverty.

Certainly the kind of child care legislation which is part of the
Economic Equity Act and that which Mr. Hawkins has introduced
are other important strategies.

No single strategy is enough or will affect enough wemen. The
approach needs to be extensive and multifaceted to overcome his-
torical employment discrimination and occupational segregation.

I thank you for the chance to come before you, and I look for-
ward to your questions.

[Prepared statement of Cynthia Marano follows:]
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PRrEPARED STATEMENT OF CYNTHIA MARANO, ExEcuTivE DIRECTOR, WiDER
OPPORTUNITIES FOR WOMEN, Lic.

iNCREASIHG WOMEN'S ECONOMIC EQUITY:

GREATER ACCESS TO NONTRADITIONAL JOBS

Good morning, I am Cynthia Marano, Executive Director of
Wider Opportunities for Women (WOW), a non-profit national women's
employment organization, located in Washington, DC which works to
create systemic change in employment policies, programs, and
practices to ensure economic independence and equality of
opportunity for women. Since 1964, WOW has provided outreach,
career counseling, skill training, educational assistance, job
development, and job placement for more than 3,000 women in the
Washington, DC metropolitan area. WOW also provides leadership to
a national network of community women's employment and training
programs, public administrators, employers, and other policy
makers interested in eXpanding women's employment optionc. The
network rezches into 48 states and into the lives of more than
300,000 individual women who seek to improve their employment

opportunities and economic status.

Women's Poverty

The growing numbers of women living in poverty is of critical
concern to WOW. The poverty rate for female-headed tamilies is
34% -- more than five times the poverty rate for married couples.
Although female headed households are only 17% of all families,

they represent 47% of America's families in poverty.

2
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Of thcse women working in the U.S. for pay, 4.3 million women
are working for incomes which are too low to bring them out of
poverty. For these women, obtainiag a job has not provided a
route out of poverty. Those women comprise the growing numbers of
Americans who are "the working poor.® The numbers of women who v
work and remain in poverty are rapidly growing and WOW believes
this issue requires national attention. There are a number of
reasons why employment does not always provide a path out of
poverty for wcmen. OQccupational segregation, the undervaluing of
women's work, and a bias toward® the hiring and promotion of men
are major contributors.

Women represent 60% Of all Americans aged 16 and over who

have incomes below the poverty level. More than half of all women
and 75% of mothets with children work to support themselves and
their families. But the jobs women hold typically pay low wages.
Of the 8.4 million minimum wage earners, 64% are women. And women
comprise 60% of those earning between $3.35 and $5.00 an hour -- a

wage that is below the national povarty threshold for a family of

four. Women's ,earninys are often lower than men's because woman

who work are often forced to take part-time jobs, even though they

prefer to work full-time. 7.2 million women ars involuntary part-
time worke sarning only $8% of the average hourly wags for

full--time .

«
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Occupational Seqregation

The primary reason so many working women are in poverty is
that women continue to be segregated in occupations with the
lowest pay and most limited benefits. Currently, close to 80% of
women workers are employed in clerical, service, retail sales, and
factory operative jobs. Nearly twice as many men as women hold
managerial and admianistrative jobs in the economy; nearly three
times as many men as women own their businesses.

The heavy concentration of women in low paying "women's jobs*®
contributes to a wide and persistent gap between the wages of
women and men. Women earn only 64 cents for every dollar earned
by men. When working full time, women continue to earn less then
men in every job category, including those in which women
predominate. Yet the wage gap narrows when women work in jobs
that are traditionally held by men. (See Appendix A) Women are
less likely to live in poverty when they are employed in non-
traditional jobs.

Despite some evidence of male nurses and female carpenters,
overall the labor market remains sharply segregated. The vast
majority of women today work in jobs that are very similar to
those held by their grandmothers two decades ago.

The presence Of women in nontraditional occupations is

extremely limited. Women comprised only 2.4% of skilled crafts

workers in 1984. According to 1985 annual averages, women
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comprised 2% of workers in the construction trades generally:

they were ,.5% Of brickmasons and stonemasons, 1.2% of carpenters,
and 3.1% of construction laborers. And, in may cases, these small
numbers represent laxge gains from the past. By 1981, there were
802,000 women employed in ths skilled trades, more than double the
number in 1970 and almost four times the number in 1960. The
numbers of women apprentices increased from less than 2,000 in
1973 to more than 5,000 at the end of 1984. Black women have made
inroads into occupations such as bus driver, delivery person snd
truck driver. These advances, however, are relative; they are
great only because women have 50 far to go in gaining access to
nontraditional jobs.

Tha* occupational segregation and discrimination persist in
new, dynamic, and high growth industries is particularly
disturbing.

In 1984, WOW conducted a study of four high technology
industries -- industries reputed for their progressive personnel
and human resource policies -- to determine the status of female
employment and opportunities for the future. Many of the firms
reviewed were federal contractors. Most had high growth profile.

WOW found the following:

»*  widespread, prevailing occupational segregation;

ke a visible lack of women and minorities in the highest

paid and most responsible positions: and

CERIC 113
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a persistent wags cap in pocitions where males and
females were employed.
Only in the telephone industry, where there has been considerable
affirmative action scrutiny and litigation, was progress in the
movement and promotion of women apparent.

Rather thzn creating an opportunity, expanding technology

has presented new crises for many women. It has been estimated

that almost 80% Of women are concentrated in iobs that will be
changed, eliminated, or made obsolete by technological advances
and automation. If opportunities in the technical arena do not
expand in more nontraditional areas, women's employment status
will be seriously affected.

Studies of other trades or occupational groups have yielded
dismal results as well., The Southeast Women's Employment
Coalition (SWEC) analyzed U.S. Department of Tranzportation (DOT)
figures of female participation in the workforces of 39 state
depgrtments of transportation. SWEC found that nationwide, fewer
than 4% of highway jobs are held by women: one-fourth of 1% by
women Of color. The findings, released in 1985, focused on the
promotion and hiring of women and minorities in six gstates. In
California, only 17% of DOT empioyees were female and more than
half worked in office or clerical positions. The departmant
underemployed women in all other categories, and to reach parity
with the civilian workforce, DOT would have had to hire 5,306

women and minority males. In Georgia, females constituted fewer
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than 10% of DOT employees, and no women served in official,
administrative, or skilled craft positions. And in New York,
women were less than 12.3% of the DOT workforce, and black women
only one-half of one percent.

San Francisco Women in the Trades, a municipal employees
organization interested in improving the status of women working
in nontraditional jobs in the city, studied San Francisco's record
of hiring women in nontraditional, skilled occupations in 1986.
San Francisco has an affirmative action policy that requires 45%
of nontraditional jobs be f£illed by women. But the good
intentions Of city elected officials have not been carried out in
city hiring practices.

San Francisco Women in the Trades found women in only one of
the city's 60 plumbing jobs; 1 Of the 73 auto mechanic positions;
2 of the 145 stationary engineering positions: 17 of the 222
laborer positions: and 4 of the 250 engineering jobs. Every one
of San Francisco's electrical and plumbing inspectors,
firefighters, and police sergeants and lieutenants were male. And
these findings are especially ironic, since San Francisco has the
largest population of skilled tradeswomen of any major metro area

in the country.
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REMEDIES

A multi-faceted approach is essential to reducing the effects
of occupational segregation on women's poverty. Key elements
include focusing on affirmative action. education and training :
programs’ which lead women to a broader spectrum of well-paid

work, and pay equity.
Affirmative Action

WOW believes that enforcement of our nation's affirmative
action policies is critical to ensuring economic independence and
equal opportunities for women and minorities who continue to
suffer the effecis. of past discrimination and who continue to face
severe labor market underutilization. As a trainer of women for
nontraditional jobs, WOW experiences first-hand the importance of
a strong federal affirmative action program in helping to overcome
occupational gsegregation.

Recent studies confirm that affirmative action, in the form
of goals and timetables. has contributed to the gains that women
have made in entering nontraditional jobs. WOW is therefore
strongly committed to the retention and improved enforcement of
Executive Order 11246 which we believe is critical to wcmen's
transition into the labor market. In 1983 and 1984, studies Of

the federal enforcement of Executive Order 11246 comparing
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contractor and noncontractor establishments found that affirmative
action has been successful in promoting the employment of
minorities and females:

Moreover, only through the use of gender and race conscious
measures can women gain access to jobs from which they have been

excluded in the past. Such measures serve not only as a prod to

employers to recruit, hire, and promote qualified women, but as

R

evidence to interested women that nontraditional jobs are an
option for them.

WOW was pleased that the Supreme Court findings in the
Johnson case were so clear in upholding the use of affirmative
action to remedy occupational segregation and the past
discriminatory practices in the California Department of
Transportation. This is a critical message to the nation's
employers. But at the same time, members of our Network
nationwide tell us that employers across the county have
experienced a substantial decline in enforcement from the U.S.
Department of Labor's OFCCP. Adequate funding and special new
initiatives by the Department of Labor may be needed to stimulate
adequate enforcement.

Such sgpecial initiatives cun make a difference. A 1look at
the coal mining and shipbuilding industries show how such measures
can open up nontraditional jobs for women. There were no women
coal miners in 1973. In the 1970's, after pressure and litigation

from women's organizations, the OFCCP targeted the coal mining
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iadustry as one ef gevazal industrica to focuc on in its
enforcement &c’' ivitios. The result was that coal mine oOperators

began to comply with their alfirrative action obligations undar

Executive Order 11246, a3 amended.

because Of this focus were dramatic:

The guinu achiaved for wenen

by December 1980, 3,295

women had bocoﬁe coal miners.

Thue, because Of affirmative

action, the percentage of women hired in the §1dustry went from 0
to 8.7% in seven years. 'Similarly, the numbors Of women workers
dramatically increazed when the Maritime Administ.aticn required
shipbuilding contractors to establish goals and timetablcs for
women. The contractors found that as more women were hired, more
applied.

This data provides evidence that the scarcity of women in
nontraditional jobs cannot be a.tributed to a lack Of desire by
women for those jobs. When occupations become opon, women have

responded by moving igto them.

Bmployment, -Training and Educational Proqrams

Education and training programs aluo have the potential to
positively affect women's economic status and participation in the
labor force. These programs can hilp in reducing women's poverty
by trainins and channeling women into nontradit.onal occupations
with better earnings and benefits. Yet, currently sex ssgregation

continues in publicly funded education and training programs and

10
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results in different training assignments, different outcomes and

different °°f2i995 for women.

The vocational education system has great potential to assist
woren and girls enter nontraditional employment. About half of
the 17 million students enrolled in federally funded vocational
education courses and programs are women.

Yet there is great disparity between males and females in the
kinds of programs in which they part.cipate, and in the long-term
economic consequences of their program choices. About 7 million
students are enrolled in occupationaily specific programs. In
1980, 78.8 percent of the female students in those programs were
enrolled in tcsaditionally "female" activities —-- nursing,
secretarial and food services. In sicondary vocational education
programs, nearly 70 percent of the female students are currently
enrolied in programs leading to jobs and occupations that pay
baelow-average wages. For post-secondary vocational and technical
school programs, the corresponding figures is 60 percent. This
pattern of sex segregation in vocational education perpetuates tie
economic disadvantage of women in the general labor force.

Research indicates that because the female labor market
eXperience is different from that of men, many women and girls
need a comprehensive array of services to prepare for the labor
market. These services include: adequate, affordable and
accessible child care; transportation assistance; basic education
skills: career exploration; job search skills; life skills; and

11
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transition to work assistance. They may also nved remedial math
and science. hands on experiaence., and physical conditioning.
depending upon the type of employment opportunity they seek.
There is a need to dévelop and incorporate these servicec into
nontraditional training programs for Women.

The Carl D. Perkins Vocational Eaucation Act of 1984, as this
Committee is aware, emphasizss the delivery of tergeted services
to women and girls. The Sex Equity provisiona of this Act
encouraged states to focus on eliminating sex bias and
stergotyping in secondary and fost-secondary vocational education.
Yet research indicates that few sntates have funded 2r encouraged
women tO enter nontraditional training programs in any substantial
aymbers. In a 16 state study of implemsntation of the Act, WOW
and the National Coalition of Women and Girls in Bducation found
few nontraditicnal programs in operation.

The Job Traianing Partnership Act (JTPA! also emphasizes gaex
equity and nontraditional training by xequiring that efforts be
made in all programs to develop training which "contributes to
occupational development, upward mobility, developmant of new
careera, and overcoming sex stereotyping in occupations
treditional for the other sex.” Yet all studies on state
implemantation of JTPA have indicatad substantial variations by
sex within specific training program assignments. Under JTPA, the
majority of women participating continue to be placed in short

term clasgroom training leading to jobs in the clerical and
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service sector, which result in lower wages. In addition, those
provisions of JTPA which Congress established to remove barriers
to JTPA training for women are frequently not being implemented.
Most local service deliverers and nearly every state have failed
to use the 15% allowable costs for supportive services. Few [
states have funded or implemented spacial efforts to train women
in nontraditional occupations. Performa:ce standards are being
interpreted as an incentive to train participants in those
occupations in which it is easiest to gain Jjob placements and in
the laast expensive training categorles. Training low income
women for nontraditional jobs tends to take lounger, cost more. and
result in a longer placement period. Yet the results of this type
of training includo higher wages, better benafits. and a greater
impact in overall economic terms.

While the Women's ;ureau of the Departimment of Labor and WOW
have provided extaensive technical assistance to regions and states
on this issue, JTPA administrators on the whole have continued to
invest largely in lower impact training. Incentives may nheed to
be added to JTPA, if wa wish to see oxpanded nontraditional
training for women.

‘A discussion of education and training for women cannot be
completa without examining welfare aemployment programs. 3oth
state and faederally-funded welfaro employment programs hava tended
to continue the occupationally segregated training found in

vocational education and JTPA. This is particularly disturbing
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given the need of . dult welfare reciplente, who are more than 90%
female, to gain jabs which will provide wages and benefite which
can result in economic self-sufficlency. WOW urges the Coowittaee
to do all it can tO ensure that quality tralning for jobs with a
prospect of decent wages and benefits continues to be a focus in
the current uzlfaxe reform debate. As I'm sure my testimony makes
clear, any job is not the answer for women and families in
poverty, and we must ensure that thig reality becomes the basiz
for our welfare employment policles.

Equitable education and training programs, and affizmative
action- entdrcement are ey strategles in affecting women's
Participation in nontraditional employment and overall women's
economic security. Other strategles such as implementing p:.
equity-initiatives which you've heard about earlier in these
hearings and increaeing the minimum wage ars also crucial in
reducing women's pgvirty. No single strategy iz enough or will
affect enough women. The approach needs to be extensive and
multi-faceted to overcome historical employment dlscrimination and
occupational segregation.

I thank you for the chance to discuss these issues with the
Subcocmittoe and for your continued vigilance over affirmative
action and employment and training igsues. WOW will work with you
to monitor how the programs you Bvorsoe are implemented and what
effects they have on the future economic securiiy of women and
girls We look forward to working with you to £ind new strategles
to achleve groater proyress in the years ahead. New strategies
24r¢ neeled to haaten theo declire in women's poverty and its

oxtens{on to further generations of American familier.




SEX~COMPOSITION AND MEAN ANNUAL EARNINGS
OF SELECTED OCCUPATIONS: 1980

Mean Ann .l Mean Annual
Occupationl X Female Earnings Occupacionl  Male Earnings
Secretarica 99.0 $10,622 Biue~collar supervisors 89.7 $21,290
Bookkeepers/Acctng clerks 9t.3 10,420 Supervisors in sales occup. 59.8 21,135
Bank tellers 93.5 8,458 Janitors and sextons 80.9 12,130
Nursing aides/Orderlies 90.5 8,433 : Automobile mechanic 96.8 14,443
Teachers, clementary 85.2 13,411 Laborers, exc. construc. 88.5 13,551
Cashiers 82.9 8,777 Carpenters 98.6 15,086
Typists 96.3 9,553 Welders and Cutters 95.4 16,43t
Sales clerks 71 2 8,130 Electricians 98.4 19,429 .
Waiters/Waitresses 80.1 6,554 Machinists 96.2 17,115
Data entry keyers 93.5 10,217 Industrial Machine/Heavy ::
Clinical lab technician 72.3 17,398 pachide cepatr fnc. 7 o
Registared Nurses* 94.3 18,255 :
Accountants & Auditors 39.5 17,655 Accountants & Auditors 61.5 23,835
Lawyers# 14,2 26,319 Lawyers 85.8 41,362
Teachers, post-secondary Teachers, post-secondary .
subject not specified* 35.2 19,130 subject not specified* 64.8 25,642 -
Social Workers* 63.8 16,873 Physicians* 86.3 71,972
Librarians* 82.8 16,324 Engineers* 98.4 30,374

*among workers age 35-44 with 5 or more years of college

lyear-round, full-time workers .
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Mr. MarTiNEzZ. Thank you very much. .

Ms. Marano, the first question I have for you is, in your testimo-
ny you described that one of the telephone companies, was evident-
3: carrymﬁ out affirmative action and that there was pro in

at tele‘;) one company. Can I agk the name of that telephone
compan:

Ms. 0. Well, fascinating y enough, Mr. Martinez, the situ-
ation is that because of the suits in 1cular companies, we see a
better situation for women in minorities across the telephone com-
munication industry, I think because the situation is that there is a
belief that sor:2thing might be done. I think clearly I am referring
to the AT&T situation earlier.

Mr. MarTINEZ. The reason I re sed that question is because earli-
er I said I have three working daughters and two working daugh-
ters-in-law, and they have had their obstacles to overcome in trying
to create careers for themselves.’

Two of those daugltters work for the telephone company, one
particular telephone company-on the West Coast. You can imagine
which one it is. Contrary to what progress has been made in af-
firmative action, it hes been very selective and tokenism. I can
aftest to that, not only because I have two daughters working for
the telephone company, but I still have one son working for the
telephone company. He was a typical kind of Hispanic who it was
easy to use as a tohen because he was 80 Americanized.

But he has not seen the progress that his ability, warrants.
Maybe I am prejudiced because they are my children, but there
have been times where he has had glowing reports from his super-
visors which have not materialized in the kind of promotion that
the time that he has put in and the efforts he has put in should
have merited him.

Which leads me to another question. A lot of us fall into a false
sense of security that because we are minorities and we succeed to
where we are, that everything is all right. The most ridiculous
statement I hear over and over again is, especially as somecne re-
ferred to the chairman of the Civil Rights Commission, as someone
wto really has blinders on to the fact that somehow he feels that
because he succeeded, ignories the fact that he may have been
more aggressive and may have had a little more talent than the
average person has, that because he can do it, everybody else can
do it without %roviding access.

See, the problem in this country has always been that we are the

d of opportunity, tremendous ogflortunity. But that opportunity
hasn’t been accessible to all, especially women.
" You know, we talk about thi that are needed. You talked
about child care and all of that. I continue to say, we keep talkinf;
when are we going to do something? When are we going to provide
that access to that opportunity I say we may all be created equal,
and we naturally know that some of us are going to excel in some
areas more than others, hut to whatever degree and in whatever
area that we can excel, we ought to be provided the opﬁ;tuni? to
%o as far as our ambition and desire carry, and not be hinder by
alse standards and sets of discriminations built in by some tradi-
tional experiences from before, but move on and move forward sn
that we do provide access to that opportunity for every individual.
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thI still see in this country, the great discrimination that exists out
ere.

So where we do see some affirmative action and some companies
working, it is not working fast enough or long enough or far
enough to really make-this an opportunity for everyone.

One of the things I would like you to touch on a little bit because
your testimony touched partly on it is, even though we are seeing
more access to non-traditional jobs for women, has it become any
easier for them? Are they really all of a sudden melting away the
opposition that they have had traditionally for years? Or even yet
does the recessity for them to prove themselves bevond what that
normal male would have had to prove himself in that same par-
ticular job still exist?

Ms. MaraNo. I am delighted that you have asked :me the ques-
tion because clearly the barriers which wemen experience in
moving into non-traditional occupations continue apace. The kind
of stats that I shared with you that shows less than five -percent,
for example, in women in particular trades shows you that the bar-
riers are there and they are very entrenched.

Women in our training program who are going into_non-tradi-
tional jobs in the trades and In technical occupations find sexual
harassment alive and well in America today, find discriminatory
hiring practices, get stuck and aren’t promoted, find themselves
isolated. Sure, they: have to prove themselves at a greater level
than is the case witkh many men.

I. think the important message, however, that I want to leave
with you is that we have made some ,ains, and they have been
very small. But those gains are really dependent upon the enforce-
ment of the policies which this committee has helped to ensure.

We aren’t going to continue to have even that limited progress if
we don’t have enforcement of affirmative action. The experiences
of the members of your family I think are the kinds of experiences
of women and minorities continuously across this country. No in-
dustry is free of it.

Mr. MarmiNgz. Thank you.

Mr. Wynn, you touched on increasing problems of low wages and
part time employees and you have offered some of the solutions to
!ay care that some of your locals have initiated, which is very sup-
portive of the women being able to move out and move into jobs
and upward mobility.

What are some ofy the other suggestions you can give us of thin
that we might do as a committee or as a Congress that might facili-
tate the employment and equal pay for women and the ability for
them to enter into better jobs by providing day care, supportive
services?

Mr. WynN. Well, certainly one of them, Mr. Chairman, would be
to increase the minimum wage. Certainly the minimum wage law
in this country needs to be increased. It would have a great impact
on women because, as I said in my statement, and I think was said
before here, that unfortunately many of the women in this country
w}ggk in jobs thst are at the minimum wage level or just slightly
above.

Despite the fact of what our union did in Colorado and what our
union did in Philadelphia—and the one in Philadelphia has, in my
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opinion, even a greater impact because if you analyze Colorado,
ou are i ut a situation where we are only taking care of
children. The potential in Philadelphia because of the local
union’s ability to negotiate day care money from the employer and
create a system whereby, as an example, we probably have 30,000
members in the city of Philadelphia, and without a doubt the same
breskdown on women and men would exist there. There are thou-
sands of children that.could benefit from that. So certainly that
will be one of our prioritics.

However, there are millions upon millions of workers that work
in retail stores that don’t have the right to have a union contract
or are not covered by a union contract and don’t have: that. Cer-
tainly this Congress should give thought to developing a day care
system in this country that provides proper assistance to our chil-
dren and permits women to work at a job that is not a luxury but a
necessity. -

Mr. MarTINEZ. Over the history of our count:t'ﬁ, women’s role in
the work force has changed. Traditionally, in the beginning only
single women worked, and it was expected that most women got
married and raised a family and stayed at home and took care of
the family, whicli is no simple job. I had five children and had
nobody to watch the children while my wife was having each one
of those children. So I had to stay home and take my vacation at a
time when she was having the baby. And believe me, that’s no easy
job. I wouldn’t trade jobs for a million dollars. In fact, I couldn’t do
the job as well as she did.

But the thing is, we need to understand, because of economics
more than any other reason, women started to go to work to help
the family to make ends meet because the economy got tougher. Fi-
nally through that experience there were young women that just
decided, hey, rather than being married right away, I want a
career. And they started getting professionally oriented and started
to move out, not just to help the familiamake ends meet, but to
provide for themselves because that is what they wanted to do and
thsly wanted to have a career. So it has changed.

et, our system of dealing with that tremendous .nflux of women
in the work force has not ¢ ed as rapidly as the work force has
changed. It seems to me that your union has maybe come to the
front in understanding and realizing some of the problems and
working to correct them. The child day care centers is one of the
most important things. We have talked and talked about that. .

Some States, like Massachusetts, have already started to provide
that. California has done a little bit of a job on that. But we need
to do this on a national basis.

I think that one of the witnesses was testif{ing what our role is
and flexibility on a local level. Well, our role is that when that
flexibility on the local level allows those local level officials to cop
out and not live up to re:lponsibility that they need to, then we
should step in with nation legislation that requires them to.

Would you comment on that?

Mr. WynN. Mr. Chairman, I certainly %ree that I think day care
centers are a Federal responsibility. We would applaud those
States that have already moved in that direction. But if we think
the rest of the States in this country are going to move in that di-
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rection, if we had to wait for that time, none of us would see it
during our time.

So, yes, I think it is a Federal responsibility. There are probably
millions, and I don’t have any data on this, but there are thou-
sands, if not millions, of women going to work on a daily basis, and
many of them are leaving their children home unattended. In a so-
ciety as rich as this country is, that question clearly needs to be
addressed. And:it is the responsibility of the Federal Government,
you are absolutely correct.

It could be a time in our history when it was just basically single
women. who were working, or it was women who were supplement-
ing the  income of the husband. But the economics of this country
today make it very difficult—only in the rarest cases where the
husband is making such a salary that one person, that a husband
can provide for that family.

So a job that a woman is performing today is out of necessity and
not out of luxury. Because of that, it creates certain problems that
this Federal Government needs to deal with.

Mr. MArTINEZ. I agree with you.

Ms. Crim, the pregnancy thiniis something that women have
always had to contend with and the fear of losing their job because
they become pr:gnant. It is ridiculous that even today that there
are States where an employer can release a woman from her job
because she got pregnant.

You know, the basis of that bill is really to prcvide women pro-
tection, somethingethat is very equitable. In many cases if a male
were ill and maybe took off as much time because of an extended
illness, somehow or other his job in many cases would be vacant.
Sometimes they lose their jobs too. So this is a bill that covers
almost a multitude of sin. When I say sin, I consider it a sin that
because somebody in circumstances beyond his control is not able
to work and still can come back and be a valuable work participant
in t}ﬁe g’vork force is denied that opportunity. Would you comment
on that?

Ms. Crim. Well, I thought it was kind of interesting, one of the
companies that we interviewed was Levi Strauss and Company in
California. They provide a disability leave of about I think six t>
eight weeks, and then in addition there is another three or four
months of child care leave. The disability leave is paid and the
child care leave is unpaid. But the company has the policy that
they think it is a good idea to let the parents bond with their chii-
dren, as Representative Schroeder mentioned earlier this morning.

I talked to oue of the personnel officials of Levi Strauss and he
said that for the most part managers liked the policy, they thought
it was a good policy, and the company liked the fact that about 95
gercent of presnant women came back. They didn’t just have the

aby and decide to stay home with the baby. Thefy came back. He
I

attributed that partially to the fact that it was a five month leave.

But he said that sometimes managers resented the child care
leave. He said, we get comm mts from managers like, well, why
can’t I just replace her? She has been gone fur five months. But it
was interesting that he said they didn’t resent the disability part
because in their minds that was the same as a man who is gone
with a heart attack, or a woman who is gone with a heart attack,




for example, is out for six to eight weeks or whatever. But there is
something about that extra three or four months that appears from
our interviews in here that maybe it is not quite at the same level.
R is nice that you can go home and bond with the child, but look at
what is happening at the office.

So I thought that was kind of interesting.

Mr. MARTINEZ. Thank you.

Mr. Owens.

Mr. Owens. I have two or three questions that I will ask all at
once. They are primarily directed .to Mr. Wynn, but the rest of you
may comment.

I think: Mr. Wynn mentioned something about the impact of tem-
porary employees on this whole problem. I wondered if you find
that the temporary employment .agencies are being wsed to wreck
unionization efforts. Ave they particulerly using—do they find
women particularly useful in this process. Minorities in general
have always had the situation where they desperately needed jobs,
and they have been misused in unionization situations to break
strikes and to undercut efforts to organize. What is the impact of
more women being in the work force on that procese? Are women
subject to special kinds of harassment? Do we need a new look at
our labor laws and the way we enforce them in terms of the vul-
nerability of women in that situation?

We always talk about sexual harassment, but there are other
forms of intimidation which I think may relate more to unioniza-
tion_and efforts to protect themselves like any other worker. I
wouid like for you to start, but the other two may comment.

Mr. WynN. It certainly could be used for that, but I don’t think
that’s the basic design. Not all part time workers in this country
shun away from joining the union. A Iot of them are very support-
ive of a union. Certainly it is not a female issue. Just because you
are a woman—millions of women make up the labor movement.
They are among the most militant people and very supportive of
the labor movemeat.

Basically the part time and the expansion of part time workers is
created because of economic reasons. They pay them substantially
less wages. They pay them little, if any, benefits. In most situations
there are no benefits.

So basically a company does it from an economics standpoint.
Now you could take that situation and say that there would be
some situations where a person wouldn’t want to join a union, but
primarily an employer does it because it is a cost saving feature to
the company.

Ms. MARrANo. I would like to just speak to that for one moment.
In our network of women’s empioyment programs around the coun-
try we are seeing more and more women who are having to take
part time jobs because they can’t find full time jobs. I think there
is an enormous myth that most women who work part time do so
because they like it and it is easier.

In fact, it is 7.2 million women in the United States who are
working xlmt time involuntarily. They would prefer to have full
time employment. And those workers earn only 58 percent of the
average hourly wage for full time workers.
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: So you see that part of the poverty that we are looking at comes
from folks who are working part time who really would prefer not
to

We have seen this particularly in placing women in retail envi-
ronments. Jobs that used to be full time are becoming increasingly
: part time jobs. I agree that it is for cost savings reasons from the
v employers’ perspective, but it is becoming an enormous barrier, :
particularly for female heads of households. .
' We have seen jobs, for example, in retail stores that used to be :
good entry level non-traditional positions being made part time. So
the very people who most wanted those jobs as a way into a better
wage find that they no longer can take them. They don’t have the
benefits, and of course the end result wages are significantly less.
] The other issue 18 the issue you raised, which is the contingent
: worker, the temporary workers and people who.are being brought
on to the labor market as consultants or workers without wages.
I think we do have to take a look at it and what is happening. |
Mr. Owens. Does either one of you know of any situation where —1
a large supplier of temporary employees has also been unionized? |
Ms. Crim. I don’t. Do you? ‘
Mr. WynN. No,:I do not.
Mr. Owens. Nofurther questions, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. MArRTINEZ. Thank you, Mr. Owens. |
Mr. Hayes.
Mr. Haves. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
You know, I want to be quite candid. I appreciate the testimony.
The witnesses have been invaluable to us. But I am not optimistic, :
I'll be very honest with you, in getting this administration, even .
people of my own party, some of them, to do a 180 degree turn and ‘
?o some of the things that would be solutions to some of the prob- ‘
: ems. .
! As we proceed now to, we are going to be talking about deficit ’

reduction heavily over the next few months. And we have people
who are part of this group who don’t see some of the things that
we have been talking about as a human issue. The easiest way to
reduce the deficit, reduce the burden of the Federal Government is
to cut cut some of the existing programs that we have been talking
about here now.

I don’t have an answer as to how we put the pressure to change
the course on which we are going now. Mr. Wynn, I know you |
know, by my own background, I thought I knew a lot as a trade "
unionist. But when I look at this body of which I am a part of now .
and how it functions on some of these issues, and the little regard |
that they have for the welfare of peopie. You just heard one of the 1
better departments in some respects in terms of the way it is con- .
ceptually run, the Department of Labor. They are setting their =
sights towards the year 2000. We have 12 and a half years before
we reach that plateau.

We are talling about poverty being on the rise, as it is now. And
that is actually true. I represent from the point of view of per
capita income probably one of the poorest districts, if not the poor-
est, in these whole United States where unemployment runs
among our youth particularly better than 50 percent with no pros-
pect for the future.
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What I would like to see, I guess, is some real look-see on the
part of the trade union movement on this whole economic bill of
rights which we have just, along with my colleague here, Hawkins,
have:just again is a re-enactment of what we committed ourselves
to do a number of years ago—begin to gear ourselves towards a
goal of trying to seek full employment.

This'is the answer to much of what.we have been talking about.
We can’t even reach the point where we can make education our
number one objective. We don’t see yet how important it is to begin
to train our youth to take over the res'gongibility of leadership, and
Eianrticularly if the economically disadvantaged come from those

inds of families who want to spend less money on public educa-
tion.

I've got kids in my district who don’t eat after the third week of
the month until they go to school. Yet, we have people here who
want to reduce the amount of money that we are now spending for
that purpose.

I only use these as examples to point out to you the severity of
the problem which we are now faced with. And T wish that I could
get more of an understanding, more of a commitment, on the part
of people who are from organizations like you represent to really
begin to flex their muscles.

I don’t have the answers exactly as to how, but I do think we
need to do something about the jog program. I don’t think we are
yet.

The minimum wage is going to come up this year, but you ought
to hear some of the arguments against increasing the minimum
wage. It sounds like the argument that is being used by those who
are against sanctions in South Africa. When they say to us, if we

ush for sanctions, we are going to throw people out of work in

uth Africa. If we push for minimum wage, people testify right

before our committee, that all you are going to do is increase the
number of people who are unemployed by pushing that.

We know that isn’t true. This is their kind, of argument. This is
the mentality of some of the ople who are now guiding the desti-
ny, who even-overlooked $2(§)e million that has been lost in these
hearings we are having. I wish I could helY find it and get it into
my First District. It would help an awful lot. We don’t even deal
with these kind of questions.

I will just cut it off by sayingsthat we need your help. We need
Kgur advice. We are your friends here on this committee. But God

ows, it looks like we are grossly outnumbered among those 435
people out there in that House.

I think we are going to get a o1g push for the ecohomic bill of
righits that is going to be made this year, but we need some pres-
sures on some of the people who you particularly, Brother Wynn,
have supported. )

I don't think it is enough to just support some of these congress-
men without dollars of our members who contribute to a political
action fund because they support us 51 percent of the time. We
have to establish some of our own priorities, single out those things
which are most important to us, and maybe sometime reward
people who support us on some of these things and punish those

who don't.
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Mr. WynN. I feel like, congressman, you are giving me a sermon. '

I couldn’t agree with you more. There are a variety of legislative
agendas that are before this body that will deal with of—not
just for people who happen.to be members of the union. You know
as well as I do, because of your broad experience in the labor move-
ment, the AFL-CIO, when they propose legislation, it is just not
applicable to union members, 1t is applicable to workers. And in
fact, in most cases, what ‘the AFL—E{O is proposing is to assist
those who are non-members because they don’t have the benefits
that many union members have in this country.

And there is no single one. I think it is a variety. But if you want
to talk about the corporate takeover in thig country needs to be
changed so that it can be fair, so that it gives protection to work-
ers; if you want to talk about if we need a trade bill in this coun-
try--und I know that we are not dealing with that question. right
now—but if you want to talk about taking care of workers, wheth-
er they are union members or whether they are mexw. or women or
whether they are black or white or what color they might be, we
need some. system of equity. We unfortunately have a government,
not just Republican or Democrat, that on occasion has always
talked about the fairness of having an open market, and a market
where the goods can flow in and out of this country with no restric-
tion. That'’s outstanding.

Except, we don’t. have that system around the world. As a
layman, -‘or as an outsider just representing working men and
women in the union, I don’t see our government protecting the

ights of workers in the same ma.iner as many other foreign coun-
tries protect their workers’ rights.

S0 there is a broad agenda before this Congress. We will do ev-
erything that we can to support those who support working men
and women, not just members of the UFCW, or not just members
of the AFL-CIO.

Naturally, it has always been our position that those who don’t
support working men and women, that we attempt to punish them.
We don’t always accomplish that, but certainly we attempt to.

Mr. MARTINEZ. you, Mr. Hai'es.

By the way, when Charlie was talking about the 51 percenters,
he w?i.;n,t tal)l,:.m g about me or Gus. We both have hundred percent
records.

Mr. Chairman.

Mr. HAwkiINS. Let me just shorten my contribution. I would like
to thank the witnesses. I think they have been very invaluable. .

.1 would like to agree with my colleague. I certainly think he is
right. I think that his economic bill of rights which updates the
Roosevelt Bill of Rights is a flag around which all of us can march.
I f5:ertﬁxtgly think it is in sharp contrast to the Reagan so-called bill
of rights.

I am a little more optimistic. I have lived long enough to know
that people go only so far before their intolerance gives out and
they begin to wake up and come back to their senses. I think that
that is what we are looking for at this time. Certainly we need to
hurry up and try to accomplish that reawakening of the people.

I think your hearing has been wonderful, Mr. Chairman. I have
learned more about, not only abo™it the problems, but also about

\
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your lovely family as we go through these hearings. Thank you
very much.

Mr. MARTINEZ. Thauk you, Mr. Chairman.

Let me just close by saying that I think what Mr. Hawkins is
talking about is that we return to sanity. The so-called new policies
that were to take place are the failed policies, tI_at turned out tc be
worse failed policies. I think that the frustration of many of the
members is beginning to take its toll, and the resistance is begin-
ning to grow to those failed policies that exist today. And ‘we
should see some changes hopefully.

I want to thank the witnesses for appearing before us today and
congratulate you and commend you for your excellent testimony.

you.

[Whereupon, at 12:51 p.m., the subcommittee was adjourned.]




A PROSPECTUS OF WORKING WOMEN’S
CONCERNS

WEDNESDAY, JULY 22, 1987

U.S. Housz oF REPRESENTATIVES,
SUBCOMMITTEE ON EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES,
CoMMITTEE ON EDUCATION AND LABOR,
Washington, DC.
The subcommittee met, pursuant to notice, at 9:36 a.m., in room
2175 Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Matthew G. Martinez
(chairman of the subcommittee) presiding.

Memt _rs ‘present. Representatives Martinez, Hayes, Owens,
Jontz, Hawkins, and Gunderson.

Staff present: Eric Jensen, Valerie White, Tammy Harrison.

Full committee staff present: Shirely Wilshire.

Minority staff present: Mary Gevdner.

Mr. MARTINEZ. It is a pleasure to welcome all of you here today.
We are joined on the panel by the Honorable Chairman of the full
Education and Labor Committee, the Honorable Gus Hawkins.

I will go ahead and make my opening statement.

T say is the second day of the Employment Opportunities Sub-
committee’s hearings on the prospectus of women in the work
force. Yesterday’s witnesses described in detail many of the obsta-
cles facing working women. Today we will look closer at the specif-
ic concerns of women workers.

Although the number of women entering the labor force each
year continues to increase, many women are still confined to enter
at levels under-employing their education, training and skills and
still being paid less than men for comparable work. Moreover, be-
cause employers often fail to provide incentives for maximum indi-
vidlllml productivity, the under-utilization shortchanges them as
well.

A lack of adequate and affordable child care also deters many

- women from reaching their full career potential. This problem of
reasonable day care mast often affe.ts those who need working in-
comes the most. Low income families and working women whose
earnings are below the poverty level are extremely affected by this.

~ Tragically, it is estimated that by the year 2000 nearly all adults

r' on welfare will be women. The feminization of poverty is one of the

| most important concerns that the U.S. faces today.

Congress is addressing this issue through welfare reform legisla-
tion introduced this.session. However, it must be emphasized that
women requiring welfare asgistance are not just women of workin
age. More and more retiring women who have never requir
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public assistance are forced to depend on welfare because of a lack
of adequate pension and retirement benefits for part-time and tem-
porary employees and those who have not been constant partici-
pants in the work force.

Today’s testimony will address some of these problems, and H.R.
2577, which was introduced early last week by Pat Schroeder and
our first witness today, the Honorable Congressperson Olympia
Snowe, an omnibus bill which addresses the problems facing work-
ing women and their families. I look forward to hearing from Con-
gresswomen Snowe and the rest of the witnesses today.

With that, we will begin.

Mr. Chairman, do you have a statement to make?

Mr. HAWEKINS. Mot at this time. Thank you.

» Mr. MARTINEZ. Then we will proceed with Congresswoman
nowe.

STATEMENT OF HON. OLYMPIA SNOWE, A REPRESENTATIVE IN
CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF MAINE

Ms. SNowe. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. First, I would like to ex-
press my gratitude and appreciation to you and members of this
subcommittee for holding these hearings. As co-chair of the Con-
gressional Caucus, I am especially pleased that you are willing to
address a number of the critical issues facing women in the work-
place. And as your witness list of yesterday and today suggests ob-
viously this is a multi-dimensional problem that needs to be ad-
dressed by the Congress. Hopefully, it will be a priority of the Con-
gress to begin to tackie some of the key issues facing women in the
workplace.

It 1is still a sad fact of American life, Mr. Chairman, that there
are wide-ranging and definite problems that are facing women.
These are obstacles which prevent women from becoming full and
equal participants in society. The unique demands and the road-
_ blocks with which women must contend have hindered their per-
sonal as well as their professional development to an unacceptably
nigh degree.

In an attempt to rectify a number of the problems that women
are facing, the Caucus has introduced once again the Economic
Equity Act of 1987. We have done so since 1981, although the com-
ponents of the package have changed as provisions have been en-
acted by the Congress.

This year we identified two major responsibilities of American
women; that is, of course, work and family. Balancing the compet-
ing needs and demands and interests of work and family are at the
center of life for millions of American women. No longer do we
have the number of households that fit the traditional pattern of
the father going to work and the mother staying at home taking
care of the children. That traditional profile only represents about
19 percent of the families in this country.

. In 1983 the New York Times conducted a survey which indicated

that 71 percent of the women said their primary reason for work-
ing was not because they wanted something interesting to do, but
rather they had to support their family.
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For all too many women, this balancing act has been made ex-
traordinarily difficult by the lack of affordable and available qual-
'ilt‘K day care in this country, as you have suggested, Mr. Chairman.

ere are 51 million women in the work force—that represents 55
percent of all American women are now in the work force. Some 20
million are mothers with children under the age of 18. Another 8
million have children under the age of 6. Lack of affordable day
care in this country is a major factor for women and children re-
maining in poverty. Aad 45 percent of non-working, single mothers
have indicated that they would be able to go to work if day care
was available at a reasonable cost.8

We know that it is an expensive proposition. The fact is child
care represents the fourth major factor in overall family expenses.
According to the Census Bureau, the American fumily spends $11
billion on child care in this country. That represents an enormous
burden. And the fact is the Federal Government has done little to
encourage an increase in the supply of day care in America, has
done little to improve upon the existing day care svstem or to
strengthen the regulations which govern child care.

At a time when the United States Government, and particularly
the United States Congress, should be increasing and expanding its
commitment to child care, the fact is we have reduced it. The ma-
jority of working Americans want the government to support poli-
cies that would .expand the availability, as well as providing afford-
able day care in this country.

During the 98th Congress I conducted a ser'es of four hearings
sponsored by the Joint Economic Committee v address this issue.
It became evident at that time thet perhaps the single most diffi-
cult issue women had to contend witiein order to enter the work
force or to stey in the work force for any prolonged period of time
was child care. That is what led me to introduce the dependent
care tax credit that is now one of 1he provisions included under the
family title of the Economic Equity Act.

Briefly, the dependent care tax credit, as I have introduced it,
would expand upon the existing tax credit to provide a more realis-
tic level of support for family expenditures on day care. First, it
would increase the credit for low income individuals.

Second, it would make the credit refundable so that those indi-
viduals whose tax credit exceeds their tax liability would still have
full access to the credit.

A third provision would provide support for respite care. One of
the other discoveries, of course, has been that 1 out of 10 women in
this country between the ages of 45 and 65 years of age has the
responsibility for the care of an older family member. Many of
these women are forced to curtail their jobs use they cannot
fulfill both responsibilities—working as well as taking care of an
older member of the family.

That is why I have included in my legislation support and sssist-
ance for respite care. This is short-term substitute care in or out of
the home to alleviate the physical and emotional demands of pro-
viding care on a day-to-day basis. Frankly, in the long run, it will
forestall the costly alternative of institutionalization.

When you look beyond the questions of child care and respite
care, even if we do address those issues, women still contend with
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ineyuities in the workplace. The fact of the matter is women still
do not receive a fair and decent wage. They can work hard for less
money, as has been evidenced by the wage gap that it is still appar-
ent in the work force today.

The National Academy of Sciences has indicated that those occu-
pations which are dominated by women will continue to pay less.
Women continue to earn less than two-thirds of what men earn in
the work force. To me, wages should be based on skills, effort, re-
sponsibility, and working conditions demanded by the occupation,
rather than on the traditional patterns of historical discrimination.

It is also apparent that occupations are segregated by sex. Of the
more than 36 million women employed in non-professional occupa-
tions in 1985, 67 percent worked in female dominated occupations.
These also happen to be the lowest paid jobs in the country.

In the executive branch, we have discovered that 80 percent of
the women work.inﬁ for the Federal Governraent are concentrated
in grades 1 through 7. On the other hand, 85 percent of the men
working in the Federal Government are concentrated in grades 10
through 15.

An informal study of the House committee system several years
ago aiso produced interesting evidence: 81 percent of those earning
below $20,000 were women. On the other hand, 75 percent of those
earning above $40,000 were men.

At this point we have 45 states who have been willing to take
steps to eveluate sex-based wage discrimination. Interestingly
enough, 17 states have already been willing actually to appropriate
funds to eliminate the inequities in their wage systems. The Feder-
al Government, with its infini:e capacity for procrastination, has
not even studied its own ‘wage system for the last 60 yoars. The fact
is the numerical system in place governing our wage rates has
been in place since 1923. I think in that period of time this must be
the only issue that has not been studied by the United States Con-
gress

So, we have two provisions i1. the Economic Equity Act that
begin to address pay equity, one that has been introduced by Con-
gresswoman QOakar, which would establish a commission to exam-
ine whether or not wage discrimination exists in the executive
branch. Secondly, I have introduced legislation which would estab-
lish a commission to examine whether may inequities exist in the
legislative branch and to implement a comprehensive system
throughout t! : entire legislative branch. I would think that if we
refer to this body as the people’s House, then obviously the people
who work for the House of Representatives should not be discrimi-
nated against.

There are a number of other issues contained in the Economic
Equity Act besides dependent care and pay equity. We have spous-
al impoverishment, pension benefits, access to business credit a. 4 a
number of other issues.

It seems to me that we know that these are obstacles faced by
American women. But women only don’t pay the price for these ob-
stacles. All of society is beginning to pay the price for these inequi-
ties and these obstacles. And this is a burden that has to be re-
moved from American society.
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.So, I appreciate the attention that you are giving to these issues,
Chalrman And I applaud your leadership. It seems to me that

we have to give recognition, and ultimately we have to take action
by the Congress 1 think that action on child care is long overdue,
and it is an issue that has been ignored in the past by Congress.
And until we address this issue—and I think the beginnings of it
will certainly come through welfare reform, but we have to much,
niuch more if we want to accord equa. status to women in the work
place.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

[Prepared statement of Hon. Olympia Snowe follows:]
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PREPARED STATEMENT o7 HoN. OLYMPIA J. SNOWE, A REPRESENTATIVE IN CONGRESS

FroM THE STATE OF MAINE

Mr. chairman, I would like to thank you for providing me with the
opportunity to testify toddy. As co-Chair of the Congressional
Caucus”for Women's Issues, I -am very concerned with the many
issues affecting-the participation of women in the labor force,
and-I applaud the focus of these hearings.

We nust face the fact that there are definite and wideranging
obstacles which are preventing american women from reaching full
and equal participation in our society. As you know, the
Congressional Caucus fof Women's Issues has introduced the

Economic Equity Act of 1987, which addresses many of these
obstacles. )

The Economic Equity Act is divided into two main titles -- work
and family. Balancing the competing needs, demands and interests
of work and family are at the center of life for millions of
American women -- and to an unprecedented extent, to their
employsrs, employees, husbands and ch?ldren.

Perhaps the one issue to face all wome in their search for
economic equity is that of caregiving. For women, providing care
foxr their children, their husbands and their parents has and
continues to be a characteristic of their lives. Even as women
have taken their place in the labor force as contributors to the
economic security of the family, their caregiving
responsibilities have not lessened.

With the recent growth in the elderly population, women
increasingly have been sandwiched between the competing demands
of children and parents, while working and meeting other needs.
once caregiving responsibilities cease for grown children, they
accommedate to the needs of parents and/or a sick spouse.

In response to these caregiving situations, women will either
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leave the labor force, adjust their hours, or in other ways alter
their work experience in order to satisfy family demands. In all
of these cases, they do so at the price of their economic
security.

One major problem facing today's women is the lack of quality
child care. This first became evident to me when I chaired a
series of four hearings of the Joint Economic Committee in the
98th Congress on the role of women in the work force. It was an
issue of concern then, and, because of what I perceive as
inaction on the part of the federal government, is an even more
serious problem today:

currently, over 51 million women, 55% of all American women, are
now in the job force. Of this number, 20 million are mothers
with children under the age of 18: eight million have children
under the age of six. In addition, by 1990, the number of
children under age 10 is expected to increase by 14% to 38
million, two-thirds of this growth will be children under the age
of six.

According to the Census Bureau, American families spent some $11
billion last year just to care for children under the age of
four. This is an enormous burden -- yet the federal government
has done little to encourage an increase in the supply of child
care facilities, to improve the quality of existing care, or to
strengthen standards for child care.

The second title of the Economic Equity Act consists of several
proposals to address these recurring problems. I would
particularly like to highlight legislation I have introduced to
expand the Dependent Care Tax Credit and make it refundable.

The dependent care tax credit is currently available to taxpayers
vho incur work-related expenses for tne care of a child under age
15, a disabled spouse, or any other dependent who is physically
or mentally incapable of caring for him or herself. The scale
currently allows a 30 percent credit for work-related dependent
care expenditures up to $2,400 for taxpayers with incomes of
$10,000 or less; the credit is reduced by one percentage point
for each $2,000 of income between $10,000 and $28,000 to a
minimum of 20 percent.

In order to provide a more realistic level ot support to working
families to help them meet dependent care expenses, ny
legislation would raise the sliding scale to 50 percent of
dependent care expenditures for families earning $15,000 or less.
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The scale would be reduced by one percentage point for each full
$1,000 of income, with persons earning $45,000 or more receiving
a credit of 20 percent. In addition, the dependent care tax
credit would be indexed to the cost of living and made refundable
so that those families with incomes too low to have tax liability
or whose credit exceeds their tax liability have access to the
credit. This will ensure that lower income families have the
same access to the credit as the middle 2znd higher income
£amiiies who currently derive considerable benefit from this tax
credit.

The need for adequate elder care is no less pressing than the
need for child care. One in ten middle-aged women between 45 and
65 years of age has the responsibility for the care of an older
relative. While many of these women continue to participate in
the labor force, others retire or curtail their work effort.

They do so, for the most part, because they lack the options Page

five

necessary to permit them to continue to work and discharge their
family responsibilities. 1Indeed, when caregivers are asked, they
consistently indicate their preference for respite care as a
preferred service intervention for elderly family members.

Por this reason, my legislation would also include respite
expenses as a part of the dependent care tax credit. This would
provide for a credit of up to $1,200 on respite expenses for one
dependent and $2,400 for two dependent individuals. Respite care
is the short-term, substitute care provided either in or outside
of the home on behalf of the primary caregiver. Wwhile thesge
services assist the frail and/or disabled elderly, the principal
beneficiary is the caregiver.

A caregiver would be able to eitner hire someone to come to the
home or to care for the dependent for & few hours a day or week,
or could bring the dependent to an adult day care center. My
legislation would also permit up to a two-week stay in an
institution for the dependent family member in oxder for the
caregiver to tend to otker personal or family affairs.

The demands of work, family and personal needs, in addition to
financial and physical demands can lead to a high level of
caregiver strain. Respite care is a crucial break from the
cons“ant care of a chronically disabled older person. 1In the
long run, dollzrs prudently spent on respite care for the Page
six
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caregiver will save even greater amounts for both families and
State and Federal governments by avoiding forced exit from the
labor force or the expensive institutionalization of family
members.

The dependent care tax credit, ard other tax assistance
legislaticn introduced by my colleagues and I, are essential in
encouraging the continued involvement of women both in the care
of older family members and in the labor force.

Indeed, just yesterday, I introduced legislation which would
provide a tax deduction for taxiayers who provide home health,
adult day and respite care for a dependent who has Alzheimer's
disease or a related disordet:. We know that the family that
cares for an individual with Alzheimer's spends, on average, 40
hours pevr week o. the perscnal care needs of that individual.
Encouraging respite services assures that families maintain a
high level of involvement in the care of those with Alzheimer's.

This continued involvement is essential since we know that
families are the most important element in the long-term care
gystem. Families, primarily wives, daughters and daughters-in-
law, provide the bulk of care for frail and disabled elderly.
Indeed, research has shown that between 80 percent and 90 percent
of the medically related care, personal care, household
maintenance, transportation and shopping needed by older persons
is provided by the family. The presence of a family, principally
women family members, is one of the most critical factors in
preventing or delaying the need for nursing home care.

There are times, however, when the needs of the elderly can no
longer be met in the home. At any period in time, five percent
of older persons reside in nursing homes. The financial
catastrophe that such placement creates falls most heavily on
older women. The expense of nursing home care ranges from $2,000
to $3,000 per month, or more. This can deplete the income of all
but the wealthiest. While Medicaid will pay for the care of
nursing home residents, it will only do so when all resnources
have been spent down to a level of about $2,700. The average
institutionalized individual spends his resources in about
thirteen weeks.

The consequence of the "spend down" provision is to leave the
spouse in the community with very limited rescurces. often,
after years of hard work, the community spouse will become
dependent on public welfare programs because all assets have been
used. 1Income follows the individual in whose r.ame the check is
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written. often a women will be completely dependent on her
husband's social security and retirement income because she
worhed in the home or worked parttime and does not receive these
benefits herself. 1In these circumstances, all of her husband's
income goes to pay for nursing home care leaving her as little as
$340 per month on which to live -- that is the SSI minimum
monthly needs allowance.

The inclusion of leagislation to address this devastating scenario
was essential in tle crafting of the Economic Equity Act. In
almost no situation was the interrelationship between economic
security and long~term care more obvious. I am pleased to say
that I was the author of one of the bills to address spousal
{mpoverishment.

I proposed applying the concept of community property to the
division of income and sssets because I believe it is a fair way -
of allocating resources among individuals who, each in tneir own
way, have contributed to the family unit. For wmany women the
contribution has been either through unpaid work in the home or

in employuent that has brought a lower wage. Yet each family
nenber has contusibuted in his or her cwn way, for which neither
one should be penalized.

I am pleased to say that language from my legislation has been
included in catastrophic health legislation that will come to the
floor this week for consideration. The recognition of the need
to address the economic situation of women who have been
impoverished as a result of the institutionalization of their
spouse is an ivwportant step in providing economic security for
all older women.

Another irportant issue addressed in the Economic Equity Act is
that of pay equity. The concept of pay equity recognizes simply
that discrimination exists not only when people are paid
differently for doing the same work but when they are paid
differently by their employer for work of equal value.

The wage gap between men and women has remained virtually
constant in recent years, with women continuing to earn less than
two-thirds the wages paid to men. And, of the more than 36
nillion women employed in non-professional occupations in 1985,
67% worked in female~dominated jobs - jobs that are among the
lowest paid in our society. And the pay they receive appears to
have far less to do with the actual work they do than with the
fact that they are women.




At the present time, twenty-eight states have either completed or ’
are in the process of completing studies of discriminatory wage- >
setting policies. And, 17 states have actually appropriated
funds to eliminate the pay inequities that had been identified.
s Over 100 state and local governments have undertaken pay equity

initiatives, with successful outcomes.

The Economic Equity Act includes legislation I have introduced
that would address this issue here in congress. It would
establish a bipartisan commission to identify the existence of
discriminatory wage~setting and personnel policies within the
. legislative branch as a whole, and the Library of congress

w specifically. This Commissiton would then develop a

) comprehensive plan for eliminiating these inequities.

a

Sex-based wage discrimination is «ertainly a major factor
preventing women from reaching their full economic potential and °
therefore economic security. It is only fitting that the

Economic gquity Act recognizes this obstacle.

I am pleased that these hearings are looking closely at the many
problems facing women in the work force. It is my hope that as
we address the many obstacles hindering the productivity of
virtually half our workforce, we will move a step closer to the
achievement of equal participation of women in our society.
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Mr. MARTINEZ. Thank you, Congresswoman Snowe.

Let me ask you a question, because over and over as we debate
this situation, I keep hearing the same thing from a few—hopefully
it is a few and hopefully we will be able to even convince them if
we need enough votes—that child care is something that many
middle class American families can afford where husband and wife
both wozk. These people believe these families are somehow able to
provide for their own child care and why should the governmant
get involved in providing somethi

And I remember specifically at last week’s markup on the wel-
fare reform package one particular individual remarking that it
would be ridiculous to provide day care for a 13 or 14 year cld, that
they are not going o go to that anyway. It shows the limited view

.that some (F%Ople ave of the real situation out there.

It should have been apparent to that individual, as astute as he
is, tha¢ there are latchkey programs all over the United States
where children through the 9th grade—I think 13 is the maximum
on that program, but what is the difference of one year—are pro-
vided forms of day care. And they are not necessarily day care cen-
ters that you think of in conjunction with 5 year olds or less or
even 6 year olds.

These programs help these young people in different ways, in
counseling or tutoring in a sulject that they might be short on.
There is a multitude of benefits to these programs. And these
people welcome these programs. And the Federal Government put
some seed money in, but a lot of it is done on a volun basis.

But how do we get across to these people that even though there
are many middle class Americans tm are providing child care,
maybe through family arrangements because they have the avail-
ability of family that there are many women, not only welfare re-
cipients, chat need some assistance in providinf day care so that
they can get out and be productive. That in the long run it is going
to pay us back anyway?

Ms. Snowe. Well, I know the statistics would be very convincing
and persuasive in terms cf the available child care slots in this
country and the need to provide for additiona® slots. There are so
many children, teenagers, as you mentioned, and younger children,
who are in need of day care. Their families need to provide day
care, but the slots do not exist. So, there are statistics that are : >
compelling that would show and demonstrate that there is a need
to provide day care for middle income families, and certainly for
low income families, because day care is 80 expensive even when it
is available that there is no way that a lot of middle income fami-
lies could support it. And obviously low income families cannot.
Day care cost can go from anywhere on an annual basis cf $3,000
tc $10,0600 a year depending on what is aveilable in a community.
Many of rural areas in the second district of Maine h-ve very little
in the way of child care, and when it is available, obviously it is
expensive and many cannot afford it. The statistics demonstrate it.

There are 7 million latchkey children in this country of all ages.
It seems to me that we have a responsibility to them. If we want to
strengthen the family unit, this is ore area in which we can do it. I
do not think there is anything worse for a young child 13 or 14 to
go home at the end of the day and to be alone. They need a place
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to go, and I think we have a responsibility in recognizing the
changing dynamics in the work place that affect men and women
and children. Therefore, if we are going to strengthen the family, I
think this is one area in which we can do it. The statistics are so
strong in this area that I think it would be convincing to demon-
strate that there'is a necessity for provid.in% additional care.

The fact is, the overwhelming m jority of American people think
the government should do more in Etl}ns regard.

. MARTINEZ. Let me ask you on a little bit different subject
but really pertaining to the same thing, the archaic thinking that
exists in sume people’s minds that if we try to bring about equity
for people it is somehow a divisive kind of mechanism, that some-
how if we provide this equity for women, that they will flock to the
workplace and forget about families. Thus it destroys and erodes
the family concept.

I happen to be one who has five married children and all spouses
on either-side work. And they have families. And hey, they are
good, strong family units. So, I do not believe that.

But somehow some people develop those ideas. Would you com:-
ment? Where do we get decisive statistics to repel this idea?

Ms. Snowe. Well, 1 certainly could provide, and certainly the
Caucus could provide, I think enough statistics to dismiss that ar-
gument. It certainly is archaic.

As I indicated, in the New York Times survey—and I am sure
there are more recent surveys which would suggest that a lot of
women are compelled to go into the workforce to su port their
fumilies. Many of them are single heads of household, and they
find themselves in poverty. The fact is that the fastest growing pov-
erty group in the country, is female, single heads of household

ing care of chiidren. So, it is not a question out of choice or im-
fgevinﬁ their day-to-day interests. The issue ir that they have to go
work.

I do not think it is d*visive. I think women have the same right
to be entitled to improve shemselves personally and professionally
as do men in society. So, even if it is a choice, that should be their
choice and they are entitled to that choice to be able tc expand
their careers and to do something that would enhance their own
confidence and self-esteem and obviousl improve their standard of
living and to support their children gecause meny women find
themselves in that predicament,.

Mr. MARTINEZ. nk you.

Mr. Chairman.

Mr. HAwkins. Certainly, Ms. Snowe, I would like to congratulate
you on your leadership in this field.

have only one question. Would you explain how the tax credit
that you propose would help women who have no tax liability, who
are exempt or whose eainings are so low that they have no tax li-
ability? In what way will they be helped?

Ms. SNOWE. First of all, my dependent care tax credit has been
adjusted to comply with the new tax reform proposal because a
number of low income individuals were taken off the tax rolls. Sc,
we had to make adjustments in increasing the tax credit from 30
percent to 50 percent for those who earn $15,000 or less and pay
taxes.

145




142

For those whose tax credit exceeds their tax liability, we would
make it refundable. In other words, if someone is entitled to a $500
tax credit because of their expenses, it would be refunded to them
by the United States Government. They would actually receive the
money because obviously there is no way to benefit from the tax
credit if they are not paying any taxes.

Mr. HAwWKINS. But if they have no tax liability, how would you
refund that which they do not have?

Ms. SnowE. Again, as I have said, it would be returned. If they
are paying X amocunt of dollars in the form of day care, and iet’s
say $500, they are entitled to it. I mean, it is a credit on your tax
return. But since they do not have tax liability in which they can
write that off, then the government would return the amount in
the form of a check to them.

Mr. HAwxkiInNs. You would fix a scale——

Ms. Svowe. It would be like the earned income tax credit.

Mr. HAwKINS [continuing). Based on what they actually expend
in child care.

Ms. SNowe. For 50 percent of their expenses.

Mr. HAwkINs. The national average is in somewhere in excess of
$3,000. Now, would they then get $8,000?

Ms. Snowe. We give 50 percent of their costs.

Mr. Hawxkins. Of the actual cost.

Ms. SNowe. Right.

It is already an existing law. And what my bill proposes to do is
to expand the percentage to 50 percent for those on the lower
scales. We have taken off a lot of people from the tax rollg already.
So, on the tax cre: .t aspect, it would be for those——

Mr. Hawrinsg. Do you have any idea how much that would cost?

Ms. SNowE. Yes. My bill overall would cost $1.3 billion.

Zr. HAwkins. '(hat’s $1.3 billion overall.

Tnank you.

Ms. Snowe. Thank you.

Mr. Martivez. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Gunderson.

Mr. Guwransoxn. Thank you. Mr. Chairman.

I* i3 a uniq2e nrivilege for r.e to welcome to vur subcommittee a
very dear and special friend who I worked with so closely on so
many iseues an: coagratulate ber act only ¢ her leadership on a
number of the iesue that che has include. within viac Economie
Equity Act, but ir many ~ther areas 2s 1 il

1 want to ack uaanimous consent, Mr. Chai. uan, «nwt I mizht
insert & more comyuiet. stateinent in this regard :into the recoird at
this point in time.

Mz, MArTINEZ. ‘Nithout chjection, so ordered.

[Prepared statement of Hon. Steve Gunderson follows:]
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PREPARED STATEMENT or Ho». Steve GUNDERSON, A REPRESENTATIVE IN CONGRESS
F om THE STATE oF WIsCONSIN

Mr. Chairman, I commend you for holding these hearings so that our
Subcomnittee may identify and begin to address the concerns and
challvnges confronting women in today's workforce. At a time when we |
an*icipzte that by the year 2000, approximately 47 percent of the

workforce will be women, with 61 percent of all women employed, we .

nust take into account the very special needs Of this population,

particularly for those who have the double role of worker and mother.

Current projections estimate tnat women will comprise about 3/5 cf
the new entrants into the labor force between 1985 and 2000, with
much Of this increase coming from increased participation by women
with children. Statistics show that of the 14.6 million married
women who joined the labor force between 1960 and 1984, 8 million
came from families with children, with the proportion of married
mothers at work growing from 28 to 61 percent. And, the ghare of all
children under 6 whose mothers work grew from 19 to 52 percent.

We can no longer shut our eyes to the real concerns and needs of this
population, from both an econcmic and human vantage point.
Unfortunately, many of the policies governing the workforce which
were designed during an cra of male breadwinners &and female
hcremakers continue to be practiced in today's workplace. To say the
least, these are row unrealistic. And, as we continue to see more
women working, whether as a result of gocietal Or economic chang ,
we must find ways to accomodate their families' special needs.

To be truly successful, these concerns must be addressed through the
combined efforts of government, private interest groups, and
business. Hearings such as these provide us with a first step to
identify government's role in providing assistance, guidance, and
encouragement to the private gector to realis.ically meet the needs
of its workers, as well as to define where we can be of most
assistance. Rather than goveranment being the sole provider of
assistance, or dictator to business in the development and initiation
of these new policies and programs, we must act as innovative
facilitator, providing encouragement and leadership as we move into
the year 2000. If we are to retain our competitive edge in the world
marketplace, the United States must recognize that nearly half of our
workforce today is comprised of women and that these workers must be
treated fairly in terms of equitable pay, fringe benefits, tine away
from work and flexible working hours, pensions, and child care, to
name only a few areas of concern.

At this time I want to extend a very special welcome to the
gentlewoman from Maine, Representative Snowe, and to thank her for
joining us this morning. Your insight as co-chairperson of the
Congressional Caucus for Women's Issues and ags a Member on the Select
Committee On Aging i3 valued and places you in a position to provide
leadership to the Congress in guch inportant issues as these we are
dealing with today. In addition to legislative initiatives which
fall directly under the juriasdiction of this Committee, you have
introduced geveral measures in related arcas such as spousal
impoverishment and respite care, which while not necessarily gender
specific, affect the worklives of women, voung and old alike.
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Representative Snowe's Medicare Community Pre¢ pe..y and Respite
Care legislation (H.R. 2131) establishes a balanced mechanism
to maintain the economic security of a "community
spouse,™ {[gonerally a woman) while providing, when financially
necessary, long-term nursing hore care Zor his/his spouse through

Medicaid.

The basic theory underlying community property is that both
spouses contribute equally to the property [assets/incoma)
acquired during their mavried years, and should, therefore, share
equally in the ownership of any interest resulting from their

joint effores.

Since January 1, 1986, the principle of community property
has been at work in my home state of Wisconsin. H.R. 2131, like
wisconsin's marital property reform law, ~snsiders the assets and
incone of married persons to be joint resources divisible by two.
Thus, half of a couple's assets, income and resources remain with
the community spouse, and the remaining portion is to begin

covering the expenses of the nursing home spouse.

At a series of four regional forums held throughout
Wis~onsin's Third District on the issue of Hedicare catastrophic
health care coverage, I nade an interesting observation. The
issue of spousal impoverishzment continually surfaced as & concern
of the Medicare populatiop, and vas always raised by a woman. A
seewpmew community spouse should no longer fear impoverishment
whe%ﬁﬁgr spouse enters a nursing facility. H.R. 2131 moves us

responsibly in that direction.
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on the eve of House consideration of H.R. 2941, thae Medicare
Catastrophic Protection Act, it is appropriate to note that
community property, as outlined in H.R. 2131, is a vital element
of this Medicare package. Incorporation of Represontative
Snowe's community property legislation into the Medicare
Catastrophic Protection Act reflects on one hand our commitment
to provide necessary nursing care to one spouse while on the
other hand assisting the "community spouse® to rezmain in their
comnunity, preserving their dignity, indepéndence, and financial
sacurity. It is a pleasure to join as a cosponsor of this
equitable community property legislation, one element of the 1987
Econonic Equity Act (H.R. 2577).

Caregiving and respite care are two important issues,
closely associated with wowen, that will continue to comnmand
greator attention as our society ages and as women increasi.gly
account for a larger share of our workforce. By the turn of the
century, estimates indicate that 61 percent of American women
will vork, and will hold 47 percent of the occupations in our
workforce. Others will explore educational opportunjties,
joining our growing population of non-traditional students._
Hhile thers clearly are positive effects of a greater
participation of women in our workforce and educational systen,
econonically and socially, we must address how such shifts, or
changiny demands, will affect the delivery of child care,

caregiver, and respite care services.
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Two recent nawspaper articles [“Firms Begin Support for
Workers Who Look After Elder Relatives," The Wall Street Journal,

6 July 1987; "Coping With Carcers and 'Elder Cara'," The
washington Post, 19 July 1987) clearly illustrate the need for
the public sector to work with the pri;atc sector in an effort to
pull together our patchwork of programs responding to our
workforce needs in the area of child care, caregivers and respite
care, It is evident that without viable solutions to assist
emnloyees in properly meeting thair familial caregiving roles there
will continue to be an economic drain on our werkforce and
families. As our workforce becomas more service and information
oriented and technologically advanced, it will cause a greater
econoxnic strain for employees who are facad with the situation of
relinquishing their job in order to meet caregiver
rosponsibilities. Enployers in this sceniaro are also faced

with a hardship of replacing and ratraining competent employces.

The neod for compaasionate and proper rasponses for the
delivery of caregiver gservices and reapite care will only
continue grow zs our society ages, thus it is important to focus
on an economicaliy feasible answers for our expanding workforce.
The extraordinary efforts of the gentlawoman from Maine in
responding to thesa compley issues are commendable and duserving
of greater atcention in the formation of future employment policy

as our populace ages and we head into the year 200cC.
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I wcald like to conclude by restating in the areas of child
care, caregiver services, and respite care, and in the areas of
flexible working conditions, equitable pay and pension benefits,
we must move from narrow workplace policies offering limited ranges of
personal choices to a mutiple-option society. Both the private
and public sectors rust address and expand the economic alternatives
and options available to women and men alike in an effort to bridge
their familial responsibilities and their careers.

Again I commend you Mr. Chairman for holding these hearings,
and I look forward to the testimony of this morning's witnesses.
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Mr. GunpERrSON. And Olympia, I would like to ask you & more

general question. I think one of the frustrations that I feel at
times, and I suspect that the Chairman of this subcommittee feels
at times as well, is that as we look at the Economic Eeguity Act and
. we look at the various provisions which have combined to form this
legislation, we have the frustration that most of these bills are re-
ferred to different committees all over the Congress. And I am not
sure, to be honest, if we have the actual jurisdiction over any of
these particular bills in this subcommittee. I am not critical of the
i Chairman because I think th2 frustration we feel is that there is no
) committee that has the authcrity to look at the big picture.
. You can take child care, for example. This Congress has nothing
but a hodgepodge of legislation on child care because of the fact
that no one committee has a broad enc;:.:gh jurisdiction to deal with
the issue and come up with a coordina rogram.

What I am asking from you I guess is what can we do in the sub-
committee that can provide the assistance to you and others to deal
with some of these issues? I mean, oversight hearings are a nice
discussion. It is sort of like the preacher telking to the choir, how-
ever.

Ms. SNowe. Well, first of all, there are probably some of these
issues--and again, I would have to go through them—in the Eco-
nomic Equity Act that would be referred to your committee. But

ou are right. When it comes to child cere, at least insofar as my
egislation is concerned, obviously it would go to the Ways and
Means Committee. There are some other child care provisions in
this act which I think would be referred to your committee.

But many of them—obviously, it’s goingFto require funding. And
that is also an issue for us in Congress. Frankly, I think that al-
though we would be required to spend a considerable amount of
money on chi_3 care, that may be a short-term loss, but I think it is
going to be a long-term gain in any event.

Certainly, if we are talking about welfare reform, we have to
spend some money to make a difference for people to get off wel-
farc. There is no way you can expect individuals to get off welfare,
earn the minimum wage and yet finance transportation, chi:d care
and their medical benefits which are terminated once they begin to
work full-time.

So, that is why welfzre reform in my opinion is essential. And
although it is Joing to be costly at the beginning, I think ultimat.
ly we will assist women in becoming self-sufficient and independ-
ent.

To get to the crux of your question, I think that these oversight
hearings are valuable because they do draw attention to the issu..
I think if there are any of these bills which have been referred to
your committee, I hope your committee can consider them.

I think raising the issue of child care with members of the Ways
and Means Committee is absolutely important because I am afraid
that we are going to adjust child care to a certain extent in weif.ve
reform, but we are going to stop there, and we are not going t» do
much more. And certainly much more needs to be done to assist
not only low income, but middle income individuals. Our first
target obviously has to be the low income individuals who happen
to be on welfare as well.
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So, we need to draw more attention to this issue all the way
around. I think that this hearing serves a very good purpose. But
we have to contact other individuals who are in a position in chair-
ing committees that have responsibility on some of these provisions
to address them as well. .

Mr. GUNDERSON. One of the issues of concern I brought up yes-
terday to Congresswoman Schroeder, which I kknow you share with
me, is the problem that when we are looking at child care thus far,
we are looking at it only from a means tested basis as to eligibility
for government assistance.

I think there is also a geographic basis or accessibility basis that
needs to be included as well use one of the biﬁ;g)est problems we
find in rural western Wisconsin, when we talk about economic de-
velopment and we talk about the opportunity for the farm wife or
the woman ever in the small town to leave the home and go to
work, is even the availability of child care. It just does not exist in
rural America. We have nof come up with a system to do it. Prob-
ably we are going to have to come up with an REA loan program
or something for child care. .

I want to change just a second because one of the issues in the
Economic Equity Act and an issue that you have been dealing with
is an igsue that probably will be successful, at least on the House
side, over the next 24 hours. That is spousal impoverishment. Do
you want to comment on that? I think Il?inh the proposals in front
of us deal with that issue, don’t they?

Ms. SNowE. Yes. The fact is both the committee bill and the Re-
ggblican initiative contain the spousal impoverishment initiative.

me of the suggestions I made in the legislation I introduced on
this issue, are very important for women—women traditionally, the
wife, but not in all cases. Obviously, one spouse has to diminish
their resources to a poverty level in order to be eligible for Medic-
aid when their spouse neeas to have nursing home assistance. So, I
ghllnk that spousal impoverishment legislation is absolutely essen-

ial.

I am pleased that the committee also included a 50-50 division of
community property. That was a provision I had included in my
spousal impoverishment legislation so that the remaining spouse is
entitled to at least 50 percent of the assets and does not lose every-
lt)llllmg lm tll1e process of having to spend down to the Medicaid eligi-

ility level.

I am pleased that both the committee and the Republican initia-
tive recognize the importance of spousal impoverishment, so that
we do not diminish people in the process of trying to gst some long-
term care, which is obviously an issue that we will ultimately have
to address in greater substance. But certainly, that is a step in the
right direction.

Generally, this affects women more, and they lose all of their
assets because they have to spend down in the process of trying to
get eligibility for their spouse. It happens to be women, but obvi-
ously it can be the reverse.

... HAwkins. Sure. Thank you.

. Thank you, Mr Chairman.
Mr. MARrTINEZ. Thank you, Mr. Gunderson.
Mr. Owens.
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Mr. Owens. Mir. Chairman, I have no questions. I would just like
to congratulate Congresswoman Snowe and the members of the
Congressional Caucus on Women'’s Issues. I think you have made a
tremendous contribution in this area. And if I have further ques-
tions, I know where to find you.

Ms. SNowE. Thank you. I appreciate yeur comments.

Mr. MARTINEZ. Mr. Hayes?

Mr. Haves. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I just want to join with
you and my other colleagues here on the committee in commend-
ing Congresswoman Snowe for her introduction of legislation in re-
gards to the matter which is before us.

I have learned during my time in Congress that you do not ques-
tion or converse too much with those that are already converted.

Ms. SNowE. That is right.

Mr. Haves. You spend the time with those who have not yet
reached that point. Thank you v2ry much. -

Ms. Snowz. I appreciate your well-taken statement.

I would also add that 107 members of the House have co-spon-
sored this legislation. So, I think that that is a step in the right
direction. We need to get more support. But I think that is a strong
commitment on the part of a number of members. And obviously
we hope to be successful in this Congress.

Mr. MArTINEZ. Thank you, Congresswoman Snowe.

Before you depart, let me suggest that maybe we ought to get
those that are co-sponsors of the bill to talk to some of their col-
leagues in getting more co-sponsors. We should gc to the floor with
this thing with about 435 co-sponsors.

Ms. SNowE. That would be groat. Probably not possible.

Mr. MarTinez. Well, thank you very much for your testimony
this morning.

Ms. SNowe. Thank you.

Mr. MARTINEZ. Our first panel consists of Dr. Evelyn Handler,
President of Brandeis University, Waltham, Massachusetts; also
the Honorable Elizabeth Holtzman, District Attorney, Kings
Cour'y, Brooklyn, New York; and Ms. Irene Lee on behalf of the
National Institute for Women of Color. I welcome you three and we
will begin with Dr. Handler.

STATEMENT OF DR. EVELYN HANDLER, PRESIDENT, BRANDEIS
TNIVERSITY, WALTHAM, MA

Dr. HANDLER. Good morning. I v >uld like to ~xpress my sincere
gratitude to Chairman Martinez, to you, sir, and to the members of
this committee for the invitation to speak to you on the topic of
working women.

And as President of Brandeis University, I choose to approach
this topic not fr..n my personal perspective as a working woman,
but really from the personal vantage point of a college administra-
tor who is extraordinariiy alarmed at the declining numbers of mi-
norities and specifically also minority women—and I think I will
concentrate on black women today—on our college campuses.

As far as I am concerned, the under-education of minorities is a
topic which clearly affects women and is not a problem relegated to
the minority community a.one. Indeed, with the demographic data
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showing minorities growing at a faster rate than whites, declininai
enrollment in our four year programs becomes an issue of nation
concern because it portends a future loss of one of the country’s
greatest resources, its brainpower.

‘Now, T have preparéd for your consideration a rather voluminous
text which documents the decline of minorities on our campuses,
some of the causes therefor, and I would like to address that issue
with you in a very personrl way. I .would hope that you would
accept this testimony, ‘sir, put it into the minutes. And I hope it
will bé. of use.to your staff and to yourselves at some future time in
terms cf legislation under consideration and future legislation.

But I bﬁzve firmly that a problem which I became involved
with when I was on the faculty of Hunter College in the late 1960s
and early 1970s, a problem which I continued to address when I
became dean of sciences at Hunter, and a problem which we face
at both public and private institutions today, is one that is so close
tc my heart that I can geak to you directly and hope thut there
are points that I will make that you can address and resonate to.

en I first went to Hunter College, it was an all-female institu-
tion which had a considerable number of blacks and minorities be-
cause black and minorities entered it through the usuul process of
examinations and achievements. And there were many in New
York Cit{‘ who could so achieve.

With the advent of the SEEK program and open admissions, the
numbers of minorities who were given such opportunities in-
creased, as was the opportunity for others who could not get in in
the normal route in years .

By 1969, 1970, the numbers of minorities at Hunter College had
increased to apYroximately 50 percent of the student body. And it
was evident early on that they were under-prepared, but they were
there. And it was our job to create a program for them that would
enable them to suc and succeed they did.

I was given the privilege of developiug a biology program be-
cause, as you will nete by my vita, I am a biologist. taught a pro-
gram for them that enabled those under-prepared students to pre-
pare themselves aad to succeed in the regular four year program.

I continued that interest, and when I became dean of sciences
and mathematics at Hunter, aspects of the lack of presence of mi-
norities in the sciences became even more evident. And with the
Federal Government’s aia and through MBS program and MARC
programs that we put into place at Hunter Co lege, the number of
students in undergraduate sciences and graduate training of mi-
norities increased. And the city university continues to thrive and
to perform the appropriate function that it has for those minor:-
ties.

But if we look across the college campuses in this country since
the 1970s, we see that instead of 44 percent of high school gradu-
ates who are minorities entering the college campuses, that
number has dropped to 38 percent. We note that 60 percent of
those students are in two year programs. And we note even further
that the number is declining black youth in particular, but minori-
ties in general, are discouraged and feel that American higher edu-
cation is not receiving them well, not doing right by them, not
making a hospitable environment available to them. And I think
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all campuses can be considered wanting in doing that which needs
to be done.

We have become aroused in recent months and weeks about
some of the incidents on our campuses. And those of us who hope-
fully are college administrators have begun to address the issues
seriously and with a desire to do something. Obviously, for many
college youth and especially minority women, the system fails
them because it appears to them that they are in a double
whammy: They are not at home on the campuses because there are
not enough of them. There are not enough roll models on the cam-
puses because we lack the staff who are trained and people on our
faculties who would act as roll models.

We ned to create an environment, and we need to start early.
But it is something else that we have to add.ess, that we need to
do as well. We have to educate minority youth early to make them
believe that the system can, indeed, work for them and that educa-
tion is the way up and out of the poverty route. Education at every
level. But if this country is going to have the work force and the
brainpower available to it from its own society, it will have to ta
that large, emerging minority society which has growing muc
faster than the white component that we currently are tracking.

How do we start? Which are the programs which have suzceeded
and which the Federal Government has been involved with? You
know them. The Headstart programs were some of the most effec-
tive programs that this government has ever put into place and
supported. Headstart continues but there is not enough of it. And
the support structure that must be created for students must not
end with the Headstart program.

‘the critical years of the elementary school, and most especially
the junior high school, must be attended to. The mentoring that
begins in Headstart must continue into the elementary schools and
the junior high schools when young people are at an extremely im-
pressionable age and when the culture that they are on a daily
L asis, the culture of poverty, of drugs, of neglect, of working moth-
ers, of lack of day care—you talked about day care with Congress-
person Snowe.

Day care does not involve baby-gitting. Day care is continued
education. Students in elementary schools could be given in day
care programs continue education. Stud. its can be provided with
continuing education and rientoring in the junior high schools.

A program which we are now managing at Brandeis University
called ‘ Career Beginnings” is an example of a successful program
that identifies students in the junior and senior year of high school,
not high achievers, but students who achieve at a modest level and
at an average level, who a.e encouraged to pursue and do better
through a program in partnership with private industry.

Mentors, who are people in the community, meet with studewnts
on a monthly basis and promote their interest in education, give
them confidence, give them a desire and show them that “whitey’s
system” can work for them.

To convince young people who are turned off by the systems for
all the reasons that you know they are turred off, we must develop
a way of providing summer jobs as Career Beginnings does, of inno-
vative mentoring as Carcer Beginnings does and showing them the
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way into junior college, fou. year institutions and ultimately to
provide them the training which would permit them to enter the
technological and other work forces.

I will summarize by saying that I deem this a high priority item
for the Congress. A question asked also of Congressperson Snowe is
how do you convince.the non-believer rather than preaching to the
believer—it is: really very simple. It is enlightened self.interest. If
this Nation will remain competitive in the years ahead, it will do
so only if it utilizes fully the tremendous resource that is available
in the people. That resource is available in women. It is available
in minorities. And it is available in the population at large. But
what I see is the gap becoming greater and greater and greater.

And despite the fact that many of us have spoken out, very few
of us have been willing to take the action necessary to bring the
commuyr.ities together, express our strong desire to the community
that is lacking, that there is help out there, and to provide it.

Thank you very much.

[Prepared statement of Evelyn E. Handler follows:)
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF EVELYN E. HANDLER, PRESIDENT, BRANDEIS UNIVERSITY,
WALTHAM, MASSACHUSETTS

GOOD MORNING. I AM HONORED TO HAVE THIS OPPORTUNITY TO SPEAR TO
YOU TODAY AND WOULD LIKE TO EXPRESS MY APPRECIATION TO CHAIRMAN
MARTINEZ AND THE COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION AND LABOR FOR INVITING ME
TO TES1IFY ON BEHALF OF WORKING WOMEN.

AS PRESIDENT OF BRANLEIS UNIVERSITY, I CHOSE TO APPROACH THIS

TOFIC NOT FROM THE PERSON.L PERSPECTIVE OF A WORKING WOMAN, BUT

FROM THE PROFESSICNAL VANTAGE POINT OF A COLLEGE ADMINISTRATOR.
AS SUCH, I'D LIKE YO TALK TODAY ABOUT AN ISS"E OF NATIONAL s
IMPORTANCE: THE STEADY AND ALARMING DECLINE OF MINORITY STUDENTS
ON AMERICA'S CAMPUSES -- PARTICULARLY BLACK STUDENTS -- AND THE

IMPLICATIONS OF THAT DECLINE ON THE FUTURE ECONOMY.

THE UNDEREDUCATION OF MINORITIES IS A TOPIC WHICH CLEARLY AFFECTS
BOTH MEN AND WOMEN, AND IS NOT A PROBLEM RELEGATED TO THE
MINORITY COMMUNITY ALONE INDEED, W1TH DEMOGRAPHIC DATA SHOWING
MIMORITIES GROWING AT A FASTER RATE THAN WHITES, DECLINING
ENROLLMENT IN FOUR YEAR PROGRAMS BECOMES AN ISSUE OF NATIONAL
CONCERN BECAUSE IT PORTENDS A FUTURE LOSS OF UF ONE OF THIS
COUNTRY'S GREATEST RESOURCES, ITS BRAIN POWER.

IT IS MY CONTENTION THAT EDUCATING MINORITY STUDENTS IS CRITICAL
TO CORRECTING THE ECONOMIC AND SOCIAL RAMIFICATIONS OF RACISM,
AND ENSURING THE FJTURE STABILITY OF THIS COUNTRY. YET, MORE

AND MORE MINORITY STUDENTS ARE TURNING AWAY FROM THE COLLEGE
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TRACT. WHETHER IT IS LACK OF MONEY, GUIDANCE OR SELF ESTEEM, AN
INCREASING NUMBER OF MINORITY AMERIC2MS ARE CHOOSING THE LABOR
FORCE AND HILITARY OVER A BACCALAUREATE DEGREE.

THERE ARE FEEDER PROGRAMS IN EXiSTSNCE NOW THAT ARE TRACRING
PROMISING MINORITY STUDENTS INTO HIGHER EDUCATION. I WILL
DISCUSS ONE SUCH PROGRAM, CALLED CAREER BEGIMNNINGS, WHICH HAS
EXPERIENCED LIMITED SUCCESS AND IS IN NEED OF GOVERNMENT

ASSISTANCE IN ORDER TO EXPAND.

IN DISCUSSING THE PROBLEM OF DECLINING ENROLLMENT I AM GOING TO
FOCUS ION THE SPECIFIC ISSUES FACING BLACK STUDENTS, BECAUSE IT IS
HERE WHERE THE SHARPEST DF~ 1IN COLLEGE ENROLLMENT IS BEING FELT.
AND WHILE THE BARRIERS TO HIGHER EDUCATION FACING BLACK A.ERICANS
ARE FORMIDABLE, I BELIEVE THE PROBL.M IS PARTICULARLY ACUTE FOR

BLACK WOMEN.

INDEED, MANY BLACK WOMEN CONSIDER THEIR SEX AND RACE TO BE TWO
STRIKES AGAINST THEM. AND THOUGH THE AFFIRMATIVE ACTION MOVEMENT
OF THE '60S HELPED TO PROPEL BLACK AMERICANS FORWARD, pPROVIDING
OPPORTUNITIES THAT WERE PREVIOUSLY BEYOND REACH FOR MANY, IT
SHOULD NOT BE OVERLOOKED THAT TODAY MORE BLACK WOMEN WORK IN
SERVICE POSITIONS, SUCH AS DOMESTIC WORK, THAN {N ANY OTHER

OCCUPATION.

THE LOW EMPLOYMENT STATUS OF BLACK WOMEN IS REFLECTED IN ANNUAL
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MEDIAN INCOME FIGURES. IT IS ESTIMATED THAT BLACK WOMEN AGE 25
AND OLDER WITH A HIGH SCHOOL EDUCATION EARN ON THE AVERAGE 8,000
DOLLARS A YEAR. ADD TO THIS SITUATION THE FACT THAT HALF OF ALL
DISADVANTAGED BLACK CHILDREN ARE BROUGHT UP ALONE BY THEIR
MOTHERS, IN SITUATIONS WHERE INADEQUATE NUfRITION AND HEALTH CARE
PREVAIL; IN NEIGHBORHOODS WHERE DRUG ABUSE IS RISING AND WHERE
FOUR OF EVERY 10 GIRLS ARE PREGNANT BEFORE THEY REACH 20. 1IN
THIS ENVIRONMENT, ACADEMIC MOTIVATION AND SCHOLASTIC SUCCESS ARE

TOO FREQUENTLY REGARDED AS FOhRnIGN CONCEPTS.

ALTHOUGH STATISTICS REFLECT SOME PROGRESS IN BLACK STUDENT
ENROLLMENT SINCE THE EARLY ‘'60S -- WITH BLACK WOMEN REPRESENTING
MORE THAN 50 PERCENT OF ALL BLACK MATRICULANTS IN FOUR-YEAR
PROGRAMS -~ OVERALL THEY REPRESENT A DECLINE FROM THE PEAK PERIOD

IN 1975 AND ‘'76.

WHAT MAKES THIS DROP PARTICULARLY SIGNIFICANT IS THAT THE NUMBER
OF MINORITY STUDENTS GRADUATING FROM HIGH SCHOOL IS AT AN ALL-

TIME HIGH.

STATISTICS COMFILED BY THE BUREAU OF CENSUS REVEAL THAT 55
PERCENT (58G,000) OF BLACK AMERICAN 18- AND 19-YEAR~OLDS
GRADUATED FPOM HIGH SCHOOL IN 1978 WITH 46 PERCENT OF THAT FIGURE
(270,000) GOING ON TO COLLEGE. IN 1984, 63 PERCENT OF THAT AGE
GROUP (688,000) GRADUATED FROM HIGH SCHOOL YET ONLY 38 PERCENT

{265,000) ENTERED COLLEGE.

O
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COMPARE THOSE FIGURES TO THE WHITE POPULATION, IN WHICH 76

PERCENT (5,391,000) OF ALL 18- AND 19-YEAR-OLDS GRADUATED FROM
HIGH SCHOOL IN 1978 WITH 48 PERCENT (2,553,000) ENTERING COLLEGE.
IN 1984, 75 PERCENT (4.632,000) OF WHITE AMERICANS IN THAT AGE
GROUP GRADUATED FROM HIGH SCHOOL, AND 55 PERCENT {(2,541,000)

ENROLLED IN COLLEGE.

I SHOULD ALSO POINT OUT THAT APPROXIMATELY 55 PERCENT OF ALL
BLACK STUDENT ENROLLMENT FIGURES ARE.IN TWO-YEAR COLLEGES. 1IN
JOTAL, NEARLY TWO-THIRDS OF THE BLACK FRESHMEN CLASS ARE PURSUING

ASSOCIATE DEGREES.

THERE ARE MANY FACTORS CONTRIBUTING TO THE LISPROPORTIONA'.
REPRESENTATION OF BLACK STUDENTS IN FOUR-YEAR PROGRAMS. RISING
TUITION COSTS. COUPLED WITH A REDUCTION IN GRANTS TO LESS THAN
HALF OF THE AID PACKAGE AND A 50 PERCENT INCREASE IN STUDENT
LOA#HS, CAN BE CI?ED AS ONE EXAMPLE.

INDEEC AS SOLOMON ARBEITER, ASSOCIATE DIRECTOR OF RESEARCH AND
DEVELOPMENT AT THE COLLEGE BOARD, POINTS OUT., “"A DEBT LOAD OF UP
TO 10,000 DOLLARS AT THE CONCLUSION OF A FOUR-YEAR DEGREE PROGRAYM
CAN PROVE A VERY STRONG DETERRENT TO SOMEONE WHOSF ANNUAL FAMILY

INCOME IS [ABOUT)} HALF THAT AMOUNT.™

WITH THE AVAILABILITY OF PELL GRANTS. STATE AID AND WORK-STUDY
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PROGRAMS, ONE CAN ARGUE THAT FIMNANCIAL AID IS STILL AVAILABLE FOR
THE TRULY NEEDY. YET IF COLLEGES AND UNIVERSITIES ARE PERCEIVED
AS PRICED-BEYOND-REACH ENTITIES, THAN THE IMPACT RISIN& TUITION
COSTS HAVE ON THESE YOUNG PEOPLE CAN BE NOTHING LESS Tg@N
DETRIMENTAL.

ONE 18-YEAR-OLD EXPLAINS HER REASON FOR JOINING THE ARMY AFTER
GRADUATION IN A RECENT NEW YORK TIMES ARTICLE. SHE SAYS:

“THE GUIDANCE COUNSELORS TELL US THERE'S FINANCIAL AID AND
OTHER HELP, BUT WE KNOW NOBODY'S EVER HELPED US BEFORE.
ONCE YOU START HEARING THOSE NUMBERS, LIKE THOUSANDS OF

DOLLARS, MOST COF US JUST SAY FORGET IT.”

ALSO AGGRAVATING THE NEGATIVE ATTITUDE TOWARDS HIGHER EDUCATION
AMONG BLACK YOUTHS. IS AN INCREASE IN RACIAL TENSIONS BEING
REPORTED ON COLLEGE CAMPUSES. IN ONE SUCH INCIDENT,
APPROXIMATELY 3,000 STUDENTS WEFE INVOLVED IN A BRAWL THAT LEFT
10 PEOPLE INJURED, INCLUDING A BLACK STUDENT WHO WAS BEATEN

UNCONSCIOUS.

THE FEELING AMONG BLACKS THESE DAYS IS THAT THEY ARE NO LCNGER
WELCOME ON COLLEGE CAMPUSES. THIS MAY EXPLAIN WHY SOME BLACK
YOUNG PEOPLE REGARD ACADEMIC SUCCESS AS SOCIALLY UNACCEPTABLE.
AS ONE BLACK STUDENT PUT IT, STUDYING FOR EXAMS AND DOTNG WELL IN

COURSES IS "WHITEY'S wWAY."
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THAT A GENERATION OF YOUNG PEOPLE ARE DEFINING THEWSELVES IN
DIRFCT OPPOSITION TO THEIR PERCEPTION OF THE WHITE CULTURE IS ONE
OF THE MOST HARMFUL COMPONENTS IN THE DECLINING EMROLLMENL
PROBLEM. THE RAMIFICATIONS OF SU&A A DEFENSIVE ?OS&URE Is
ESPECIALLY TROUBLESOME IN LIGHT OF THE U.S. LABOR DEPARTHENT
STATISTICS, WHICH REVEAL THAT A BACHELOR'S DEGREE IS JUST ABOUT
THE MOST EFFECTIVE TOOL IN THWARTING THE ECONOMIC RE?ER?USSIONS

OF RACISH.

AND SINCE THE NUMBER OF BLACK STUDENTS IN FOUR-YEAR PROGRAMS IS
DECREASING, SO TOO IS THEIR PRESENCE IN GRADUATE SCHOOLS. TVE
NATIONAL CENTER FOR EDUCATIONAL STATISTICS ESTIMATES THAT BLACKS
MAKE UP FEWER THAN FIVE (4.8) PERCENT OF ALL U.S. GRADUATE SCHOOL

ENROLLMENTS. oo,

OF THE HEARLY 281,000 MASTER'S DEGREES AWARDED IN 1982 AND ‘83,

ONLY FIVE PERCENT WENT TC BLACKS. SIMILARLY, OF THE MORE THAM :
29,000 DOCTORATES AWARDED THAT SAME YEAR, ONLY FOUR PERCENT WERE

RECEIVED BY BLACKS.

AS A PERCENTAGE. THAT FIGURE IS DAMNING ENOUGH. BUT CONSIDER THE

FOLLOWING ABSOLUTE NUMBER: 1IN 1985, oUT OF °Z,l41 AMERICANS

RECEIVING DOCTORATE DEGREES, BLACKS RECEIVED 909.

IN AN AGE WHEN TECHNOLOGICAL AND SCIENTIFIC COMPETITION BETWEEN .
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. NATIONS HAS NEVER BEEN MORE CRITICAL, IT'S INTERESTING TO NOTE
- THE FIELDS IN WHICH THOSE 909 BLACK DOCTORATES ARE CONCENTRATED.

JAMES E. BLACKWELL, PROFESSOR OF SOCIOLOGY AT THE UNIVERSITY OF
MASSACHUSETTS IN BOSTON, BREAKS DOWN THE PIGURES IN HIS BOOK,

HE WRITES:

"HORE THAN HALF OF THE DOCYORATES EARNED BY BLACKS ARE IN
- L. THE FIELD OF EDUCATION. 1IN 1985, BLACKS EARNED 503
DOCTORATES IN EDUCATION; 205 IN SOCIAL AND BEHAVIORAL
SCIFMCES; AND 75 IN THE HUMANITIES. BLACKS RECEIVED SEVEN
DOCTORATES IN MATHEMATICS, THREE IN COMPUTER SCIENCE, 23 IN
CHEMISTRY, 34 IN ENGINEERING, 18 IN LIFE SCIENCE AND ONLY

: FOUR IN PHYSICS."

MOREOVER, PROFESSOR BLACKWELL POINTS OUT THAT NOT A SINGLE BuLACK
RECEIVED A DOCTORAL DEGREE IN SUCH SPISCIALIZATIONS AS
" PHARMACEUTICAL CHEMISTRY, THEORETICAL CHEMISTRY, BIOMEDICAL

ENGINEERING, OPERATIONS RESEARCH, EMBRYOLOGY, STATISTICS AND

AMERICAN STUDIES.

WHILE THE FIGURES REPRESENTING THE BLACK STUDENT POPULATION AS A
WHOLE ARE DISMAL, A FURTHER ITEMIZATION OF THESE FIELDS IN

REGARDS TO WOMEN ALLOW LITTLE ROOM FOR OPTIMISM.
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ALTHOUGH THE TOTAL NUMBER OF DOCTORATES AWARDED TO BLACK WOMEN
INCREASED IN THE '705 -~ FROM 32 PERCENT OF ALL BLACK AMERICAN
PH.D. CANDIDATES IN 1973 TO NEARLY 48 PERCENT IN 1979 -- THEIR

UNDER-REPRESENTATION AS A GROUP IS APPARENT WDl LCOKING AT THE |

AGGREGATE FIGURE FOR THE DECADE. THIS NUMBER REVEALS THAT BLACF f
MEN RECEIVED &$IX OUT OF EVERY 10 DEGREES EARNED BY THE BLACK
POPULATION AS A WHOLE. AVEN THOUGH WOMEN REPRESENT MORE THAN 50

PERCENT OF ALL BLACK MATRICULANTS IN BACCALAUREATE PROGRAMS.

AS PROFESSOR BLACKWELL POINTS OUT, "SINCE THERE IS STILL SUCH A
CRITICAL SHORTAGE OF BLACKS WITH DOCTORATES IN THE ENTIRE LABOR
FORCE, IT IS STILL IMPERATIVE TO INCREASE THE ABSOLUTE NUMBERS OF

BLACK MEN AND WOMEN WITH THESE DEGREES."

WITH DEMOGRAPHIC TRENDS SHOWING MINORITIES AS THE FASTEST GROWING
POPULATION GROUP IN AMERICA. IT IS APPARENT THAT OUR FUTURE
ECONOMY AND LABOR FORCE WILL BE DEPENDENT UPON THEIR SKILLS AND
ABILITIES. YET., AS A RESQLT OF A LOST DECADE OF PROGRESS, IT IS
EQUALLY TRUE THAT EFFORTS TOWARD FUTURE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

v ALREADY HAS BEEN SERIOUSLY UNDERMINED.

INDEED, ACCORDING TO THE BUREAU OF LABOR STATISTICS NEARLY 20
PERCENT OF THE JOBS EXPECTED TO BE AVAILABLE IN 1995 WILL REQUIRE
FOUR OR MORE YEARS OF COLLEGE. MOREOVER., THE BUREAU ESTIMATES
THAT A MASORITY OF THE OTHER JOBS WILL REQUIRE SOME COLLEGE.

ALTHOUGH FEWER THAN FOUR YEARS.
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THE WASTED PROGRESS APPARENT IN THIS OMINOUS FORECAST IS OUTLIMED
BY WILLIAM RASPBERRY IN ) RECENT BOSTON GLOBE EC TORIAL. HE

WRITES:

"AMERICA, MOVING AWAY FROM ITS SMCKESTACK PAST INTO A HIGH-
TECH FUTURE, WILL NEED MORE AND MORE WELL-EDUC . _ED WOXKERS.
AN INCREASING PERCENTAGE OF THOSE WCRKERS WILL HAVE TO BE
MINORITIES, FOR THE SIMPLE REASON THAT MINORITI™S ARE
GROWING AT A FASTER RATE THAN WHITES AND WILL CONS.LTUTE A
GROWING PERCENTAGE OF THE YOUTH POPULATION. BUT THERE IS
ANOTHER TREND THAT UESERVES ATTENTION. THE RATE OF COLLEGE
ATTENDANCE BY MINORITY YOUNGSTERS —-- ESPECIALLY BLACKS --
HAS BEEN FALLING IN RECENT YRARS. WHAT THAT MEANS IS THAT
JUST WHEN THE OPPORTUNITIES FOR MINORITIES WILL, OUT OF
DEMCGRAPHIC NECESSITY, BE GREATEST, THEIR FITNESS FOR THOSE

OPPORTUNITIES WILL BE DIMINISHED."

THEREF2RE OUR CONCERN FOR THE MINORITY YOUTH POPULATION MUST GO

BEYOND MORAL OUTRAGE TO ONE OF ECONOMIC NECESSITY. HOW CAN WE
REACH THIS GROUP? KOW CAN WE BREAK THE CYCLE OF POVERTY AND POOR

JOB SRILLS THA1 INVARIABLY LEAD TO WELFARE DEPENDENCY?

AS I SEE IT. HIGHER EDUCATION IS THE NLY WAY TO MARE SIGNIFICANT
AND LASTING CHANGES IN THE LIVES OF BLACK MEN AND WOMEN. YET

DISADVANTAGED YOUTH ACROSS THE COUNTRY LACK THE APPROPRIATE
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RESOURCES AND INFORMATION THAT WILL LEAD THEM TO PURSUE A
BACCALAUREATE DEGREE. THEY COME FROM FAMILIES WHO ARE TRAPPED IN
THE CYCLE OF POVERTY. FAMILIES WHO CAN'T GUIDE THEIR CHTLDREN IN
THE DIRECTION OF EDUCATION BECAUSE THNY, THEMSELVES, NEVER

LEARNED THE "SYSTEM.”

THROUGH NEGLECT AND SELF ABSORPTION, WE, IN HIGHER EDUCATION,
HAVE WATCHED AS THE NUMBERS OF BLACK STUDENT ENROLLMENTS
DECLINED. AND FOR THOCE BLACK STUDENTS WHO WERE ABLE TO CVERCOME
FORMIDABLE BARRIERS AND ENTER CCLLEGE., WE'VE WITNESSED A MARKED

INCREASE IN THE NUMBER OF MINORITY DROP OUTS.

ONLY A FEW DECADES SINCE BROWN VERSUS THE_TOPERA BOARD OF

EDUCATION AND THE HIGHER EDUCATION ACT OF 1975, WE HAVE ONCE

AGAIN REACHED A NADIR IN RACIAL UNDERSTANDING AND ATTITUDES.

ILLINOIS SENATOR PAUL SIMON DEFINES THIS DIVISION IN AMERICA AS
EXISTING NOT BETWEEZN BLACKS AND WHITES, HISPANICS AND ANGLOS, OP
EVEN RICH AND POOR, BUT BETWEEN THOSE WHO HAVE HOUPE AND THOSE WuO

HAVE GIVEN UP.

THE CHARGE FACING US IN HIGHER EDUCATION TODAY IS, SIMPLY, WHAT
CAN WE DO TO REINSTALL HOPE IN THE BLACK YOUTH POPULATION? OUR
MISSION MUST BE NOT ONLY TO DRAW IN MOR. BLACKS TO THE LEVEL OF
PARITY, BUT ALSO TO WORK TOWARDS SUSTAINING AND ENCQURAGING THE

NEARLY ONE MILLION BLACKS ALREADY IN COLLEGE.
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HOW CAN WE DO THIS?

IN ORDER TO OFFSET DECLINING MINORITY ENROLLMENT FIGURES, EVERY
COLLEGE AND UNIVERSITY.IN THE COUNTRY SHOULD WORK IN PARTNERSHIP
WITH HIGH SCHOOLS AND THE PRIVATE SECTOR IM SETTING UP A FEEDER
SYSTEM THAT WOULD TARGET AND TRACK MINORITY STUDENTS INTO

COLLEGE.

ALREADY THERE ARE PROGRAMS IN EXISTENCE NOW, WITH PUBLIC CCLLEGES
AND URBAIN HIGH SCHOOLS TAKING THE MAJOR INITIATIVE. BUT IN OKRDER
FOR THESE PROGRAMS TO HAVE A BROADER. LONG-TERM IMPACT, PRIVATE

COLLEGES AND UNIVERSITIES MUST ALSO TAKE PART.

AN EXAMPLE OF ONE SUCH PROGRAM, CAREER BEGINNINGS., WAS DEVELUPED
BY THE COMMONWEALTHY FUND IN NEW YORK AND IS AN OUTGROWTH OF A
PROJECT BEGUN THREE YEARS AGO AT HUNTER COLLEGE. IT IS NOW BEIMNG
MANAGED BY THE CENTER FOR HUMAN RESOURCES AT BRANDEIS®' HELLER

GRADUATE SCHOOL.

IN 24 SITES ACROSS < COUNTRY, HICH SCHOOL JUNIORS FROM LOW-
INCOME FAMILIES ARE SELECTED TO PARTICIPATE IN PROGRAMS THAT WILL
STRENGTHEN THEIR CHANCES TO GRADUATE FRkOM HIGH SCHOOL AND EITHER
GAIN ADMISSINN TO COLLEGE OR OBTAIN A FULL-TIME JOB WITH CAREER

POTENTIAL.
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THIS PROGRAM AND OTHERS LIKE ARE DRESIGNED TO BUILD ON THE
DEMONSTRATED ABILITIES OF HIGH SCHJOL STUDENTS, BOTH MALE AND
FEMALE, TO OVERCOME DIFFICULTIES AND TO ACHIEVE.

A MAJOR OBJECTIVE OF CAREER BEGINNINGS IS TO TARGET YOUNG PEQOPLR
WHO DEMONSTRATE GOOD ATTENDANCE RECORDS AND AVERAGE ACADEMIC
ABILITY, WHO MIGHT BE OVERLOOKED BY OTHER PROGRAMS AIMED AT HIGH

ACHIEVERS OR DROP OUTS.

THESE STUDENTS COME FXOM FAMILTES WHO LIVL EITARR BELOW THE
POVERTY LINE OR MARGINALLY ABGVE IT. THEY MAY BE IN FAMILIES
WHERE COLLEGE EDUCATION IS NOT RLGARDED AS A REALISTIC CHOICE OR
WHERE PARENTS HAVE LIMITED ABILITIES TO HELP THEIR CHILDREN FIND
PLACES IN THE WORK WORLD. THESE DISADVANTAGES USUALLY ARE
AGGRAVATED BY GAPS IN THE SUPPORT SYSTEM THAT HIGH SCHOOL
STUDENTS NEED TO HELP THEM FULFILL THEIR COLLEGE OR EMPLOYMENT

POTENTIAL.

AFTéR ONE YEAR IN OPRERATION, THE CAREER BEGINNINGS PROGRAM HAS
ENROLLED APPROXIMATELY 2,350 HIGH SCHOOL STUDENTS. OF THAT
NUMBER, 80 PERCENT ARE ECONOMICALLY DISADVANTAGED AND
APPROXIMATELY 75 PERCENT ARE M.. "RITIES. NEARLY TWO-THIRDS ARE

FEMALE.

AT THE HEART OF CAREER BEGIIININGS IS THE MENTOR PROGRAM.

STUDENTS ARE ASSIGNED MENTORS WHOM THEY MEET WITH ON A MONTHLY
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; BASIS TO DISCUSS CAREER AND COLLEGE PLANMING. MEN'TORS INCLUDE
BUSINESS EXECUTIVES, GOVERNMENT OFFICIALS, OWNERS OF SMALL
BUSINESSES, EDUCATORS, COLLEGE PRESIDENTS, LAWYERS, DOCTORS,

TECENICIANS, PROFESSIONAL ATHLETES AND REY COMMUNITY LEADERS.

S.A.T. AND A.C.T. PREPARATION, ACADEMIC DEVELOPMENT, SOCIAL
SRILL., CAREER PLANNING AND TEAM BUILDING ARE ALL A PART OF THE
RANGE OF ACTIVITIES CAREER BEGINNINGS STUDENTS PARTICIPATE IN

THROUGHOUT THE 24 SITES.

INSTITUTIONAL COLLABORATION BETWEEN COLLEGES, HIGH SCHOOLS,
BUSINESS AND GOVERNMENT HAS CONTRIBUTED TO THE HIGH RATE UF
SUCCESS EXPERIENCED BY CAREER BEGINNINGS IN ITS FIRST YEAR. JOB
TRAINING PARTNERSHIP ACT RESOURCES DURING THE SUMMSR COMPONENT
ACCOUNTED FOR MORE THAN 50 PERCENT OF ALL SUMMER JOBS WITH
PRIVATE SECTOR PLACEMENTS PROVIDING THE REST. COOPERAT.iON FROM
THE PUBLIC SCHOOLS AND COMMUNITY AGENCIES WAS VITAL TO THE

SUCCESS OF THE EARLY START-UP OF THE PROGRAM.

THE YE2R-LONG COMPONENT OFFERS ALDITIONAL OPPORTUNITIES FOR
STRONMGER AND MORE EXTENSIVE COLLABORATIVE EFFORTS, WHICH WILL
PAVE THE WAY FOR THE LONG TERM INSTLTUTIONALIZATION OF CAREER

BEGINNINGS IN MANY OF THE 24 SITES.

TRADITIONAL AND NONTRADITIONAL SOURCES HAVE BEEN USED TO FINANCE

CAREER BEGINNING PROJECTS, AND TO ASSUE THEIR MATCHING FUNDS IN
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THE FJRST YEAR. JOB TRAINING AND PARTNERSHIP ACT FUNDING WAS

USED IN APPROXIMATELY 85 PERCENT OF THE SITES. WAGES PAID TO
STUDENTS ACCOUNTED FOR A PORTION OF THE MATCH IN 50 PERCENT OF
THE PROJECTS. COMMUNITY AND PRIVATE FCUMDATIONS AS WELL AS
UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION PROVIDED SUPPORT TO ALMOST 20 PERCENT OF
ALL PRGJECTS, ALONG WITH AN EQUAL NUMBER OF CORPORATE
FOUNDATIONS. SITES ALSO RELTED ON VOCATIONAL TRAINING FUNDS FROM

FEDERAL AND STATE SOURCES.

THE GOAL OF CAREER BEGINNINGS AND OTHER PROGRAMS LIKE IT IS TO
ENHANCE THE ASPIRATIONS.OF CHILDREN FROM DISADVANTAGED
BACKGROUNDS, ALLOWING THEM 70O REALIZE THAT DROPPING OUT OF HIGH
SC!I0OOL, GETTING FREGNANT, ABUSING DRUGS, AND CRIMINAL BEJAVIOR

ARE NOT THEIR PRE-DESTINED PATHS.

INCREASED FEDERAL FUNDING IS IMPER2IIVE IN ORDER FOR FEEDER
PROGRAMS SUCH AS CAREER BEGINNINGS TO WORK. IN ADDITION,
COMMUNITY FOUNDATIONS, JOB TRAINING DOLLARS AND PRIVATE DONATIONS
MUST ALSO BE A PART OF THE EFFORT SO THAT THESE PROGRAMS CAN GROW
BEYOND THEIR CURRENT SCOPE -- INTO THE JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOLS AND

GRAMMAR SCHOOLS.

INDEED, EVEN EXPANDING INTO THE GRADE SCHOOL YEARS MIGHT PROVE
TOO LIMITING. WE MUST EVENTUALLY SET OUR SIGHTS ON YOUNG
CHILDREN -- MAYBE AS EARLY AS KINDERGARTEN -- AND BUILD THEIR

CONFIDENCE AND SENSE OF SELF WO.Td IN ORDER TO REALLY MAKE A
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SUBSTANTIAL IMPACT.

AS MARTIN LUTHER KING JR. ONCE SAID, "RACIAL UNDERSTANDING IS NOT
SOMETHING THAT WE FIND BUT SOMETHING THAT WE MUST CREATE. AND SO
THE ABILITY OF [BLACKS] AND WHITES TO WORK TOGETHER, TO

USDERSTAND EACH OTHER, WILL NOT BE FOUND READY-MADE: I MUST BE

'CRE?ED BY THE FACT OF CONTACT."

THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT WILL HAVE TO SUPPORT US IN CREATING THIS
CONTACT IN OUR SCHOOLS, BUSINESSES AND COMMUNITIES. TO STAND
STILL AND DO NOTHING WILL MEAN JEOPARDIZING THE ECONOMIC AND

SOCIAL WELL-BEING OF QUR FUTURE.

&
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Mr. MARTINEZ. Thank you, Dr. Handler.

Our next witness is Elizabeth Holtzman, District Attorney,
Brooklyn, New York and a former Congresswoman.

I understand you were one of the founders of the Women’s
Caucus. Welcome here today, and you can begin your testimony.

STATEMENT OF ELIZABETH HOLTZMAN, DISTRICT ATTORNEY,
KINGS COUNTY, BROOKLYN, NY

Ms. HoLrzMAN. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. I am very
grateful for the opportunity, indeed, the privilege of appearing
before you, especially because I hold in very high regard the distin-
guished gentieman from the Borough of Brooklyn, Congressman
Owens, who is also a member of this subcommittee. And it is spe-
cial pleasure to appear before him as well, and the other members
of the subcommittee.

I want to congratulate you on holding these hearings on the ter-
ribly important issue of working women and the problems they
confront because this is an issue that affects not just women, but
the entire country.

Mr. Chairman, if I may, I would request that the text of my writ-
ten testimony be incorporated in the record. And I would like to
summarize a few of the points orally for you.

Mr. MArTINEZ. Allow me to interrupt me for one minute.

I should have announced at the beginning that all written testi
mony will be entered in its entirety into the record. And we do wel-
come summarization.

Thank you.

Ms. HoLtzMAN. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

The work of women has traditionally been devalued, underval-
ued. Even the title “working women” suggests that the work that
women traditionally do in the home does not count as work.
Indeed, the work that women do at home is given no economic
value whatsoever in this society. It is not included in the gross na-
tional product. I remember the former Secretary of Commerce,
Juanita Krebs, a distinguished scholar in her own right, complain-
ing about the devaluation of the work of women whether it ir in
the home or outside the home.

Congresswoman Snowe cited figuree vith respect to the issue of
pay. In fact, women who work outside the home have to confront a
number of very serious obstecles, not the leas. of which is the ex-
pectation that they will be paid substantially less for exactly the
same work as a male counterpart.

In addition, many women who enter the work force will discover
that they are segregated into primarily women-only jobs, most of
which are paid substantially less than jobs that are held by men
alone.

I mean there is litigation now in New York City involving emer-
gency telephone operators. For example, police emergency tele-
phone operators are virtually entirely women. They are paid sub-
stantially less than fire telephone emergency operators who are
men. I believe that the differences is about $8,000. Tn fact, the
women police emergency operators work under much more strenu-
ous circumstances, the work is harder, and the pressure is harder.
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And yet, they are paid more than $8,000 less than m2n doing a
comparable job.

Not only are women paid less and segregated into specific jobs,
but they are specifically denied opportunities to hold jobs because
of prejudices and myths about women’s intellectual capacities and
various kinds of ability. I will cite you an experience from my
being district attorney.

fien I was assigned a detail of detectives to protect me, there
was not a single woman included. And I asked the captain of the
folice squad why this was so. And he said to me, well, h~ said, your
ife is in danger. We cannot ibly assign a womai to protect
you. And this was in 1982, And I said to the captain, well, since it
18 my life, I'll take that risk. And Mr. Chairman, I am pleased to
report that I am still here five years later. But if I had not been
district attorney and had not insisted, there was no way in the
world that a woman would have been given that opportunity be-
cause of the sheer, absolute prejudice.

Women encounter not only that kind of prejudice in terms of the
kinds of job opportunities they are given, but they encounter what
has been calle(Yothe “glass ceiling.” Even if they get past the bar-
rier of being hired, and even if they get past the barrier of the kind
of job that they could be segregated into, there are serious barriers
to promotion.

ain, to cite an experience frorn my being district attorney,
when I came to that office, although there were more than 300 law-
yers, more than a third of them women, not one, single woman was
chief of any single unit in that office. It did not matter how loyal
she was. It did not matter how intelligent she was. It did not
matter how hard-working she was. She was not going to be promot-
ed to be in charge of anything.

Well, one of the nice things about being a boss is that you can
change that overnight. Mr. Chairman, I am pleased to report that
now about 45 percent—the number fluctuates from time to time.
Sometimes it is over 50 peccent—-of all the uniis are headed by
women, and a substantial number of the deputies are women. And
I would not say despite that; I would say because of that, Mr.
Chairman, we were able to achieve the highei! conviction rates in
New York City for several years in a row.

< 1t I think that that is a problem that women confront whether
it is in the public sector or in the private sector, and it is a very
serious problem.

Another problem that women confront is the problem of sexual
harassment or demeaning treatment, whether it is insisience on
sexual favors in return for retention of a job or a promotion or the
demeaning treatment of women, women encounter that in all fields
of employment.

And the courts, for example, are not exempted. I can cite to you
example after examgg:3 in my own office of women prosecutors, at-
torneys, who have n demeaned in the courtroom, in fact, in

front of juries. We once had a judge who threatened to take a

woman prosecutor over his knee and spank her.
The other prohlem that women confront, aside from the basic
economic problems of %ay, romotion, and job opportunities, has to
as geen discussed before you and the prob-

do with an issue that
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lems of how women in particular, though to some extent men too
are confronted with these problems—how they deal with the dual
responsibility of providing economically for themselves and their
families, and at the same time alsc making sure that their families
are cared for.

The inalequacy of day care in this society is scandalcus. The ab-
sence of the right of parental leaves is scandalous. We talk about
how we value women and we value motherhood in this country,
but the fact of the matter is that a woman who leaves her job to
Eavl({a a baby and to care for it can be fired, never to get her job

ack.

Th- absence of part-time and flexible time opportunities too has
a very adverse igi)act on the ability of women to meet both eco-
nomic and parental responsibilities.

And let me add one point here, Mr. Chairman, because you have
asked about the issue of day care and its importance. I would sug-
gest—and I am going to put on the hat of a district attorney here
when I answer this question. One of the consequences of the make-
shift availability of day care in this society is the injury to the chil-
dren. How man~ cases do we have to prosecute of sexual abuse of
children because day care centers are not adequately monitored?
The staff that is recruited is inadequately paid. I recall reading a
statistic that zoo keepers are paid more than attendants in day
care centers. How can we recruit the best people to care for our
Nation’s children if we pay them such inadequate salaries?

On top of that, we have situations in whic well-meaning people
will take several children to care for them. There is inadequate
compliance with fire codes, with building codes. How many times
do we have to be confronted with the question of prosecution for
criminally negligent homicide or other %nds of crimes when chil-
dren die as a result of fires or other kinds of hazards in inadequate-
ly regulated and inadequately monitored day cere centers?

These are the daily tragedies that happen across America be-
cause this country has not been willing to recognize the fact that
women will work outside the home, that that is a permanent fact
of life in America, that we cannot separate women from the re-
sponsibility to see that their children are cared for. And we have
refused to provide high quality daf' care for working women, work-
ing parents, in this country. And I give you this dimension because
it is one that is not often tall.cd about but is a reality that I myself
see.

Mr. Chairman, one final point that I would make here has to do
with the issue of education. We are growing more and mcre a tech-
nological society. But women are traditionally and have been tradi-
tionally discouraged from becoming experts in science, in mathe-
matics, in techuological matters. And I see the problems of the
wage gap increasing as we neglect to insure that women are not,
even in educationa! areas, segregated in terme of the skills that
they will be taught and the dreams that they will be encouraged to
aspire to.

Mr. Chairman, I believe that as solutions to these problems, we
must have vigorous enforcement of the laws already on the books,
which we do not have. The fact that a district attorney’s office in a
city like Brooklyn could operate without promoting women system-

175




172

atically over a period of years is a testament to the inadequate en-
forcement of the simple anti-discrimination laws on the books.

Secondly, the laws obviously need to be changed with respect to
not only assuring parental leaves, to provid. a system of day care,
to pravide equal pay for work of comparable worth, but I think in
addition, Mr. Chairman, the government has to set an example.
This Congress can set an example. The Federal Government can
set an example. .

I just cite with some small regret that the televised joint hear-
ings on the Iran-contragate scandal, which has won such important
national attention, has not single woman sitting or that commit-
tee. When I served in the United States Congress, I was privileged ‘
to have been on the House Judiciary Committee during the Water-
gate hearings. And the absence of women may suggest again to the
country that somehow women do not have the intellectual ability
or are not capable of sharing in the decision making on the most
important matters cornfronting the Nation. They are and the Con-
gress can do much to help reshape public attitudes and give women
the opportunities they are entitled to in this society.

Thank you.

[Prepared statement of Elizabeth Holtzmean follows:]
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF EL1zABETH HoLTzMAN, DistRICT ATTORNEY OF KiINGS
County, NY

THANK YOU VERY MUCH FOR THE OPPORTUNITY OF
TESTIFYING BEFORE THIS SUBCOMMITTEE ABOUT THE PROBLEMS OF
WOMEN IN THE LABOR FORCE.

THIS YEAR MARKS THE 200TH ANNIVERSARY OF THE
k4 UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION, A DOCUMENT THAT HAS PRESERVED A
. SYSTEM OF DEMOCRATIC GOVERNMERT IN THIS COUNTRY. WHILE
THAT IS CAUSE FOR CELEBRATION, FOR MORE THAN ONE-HALF OF
THIS COUNTRY'S PCPULATION, WOMEN, THIS IS ALSO A TIME FOR
" SAD REFLECTION -- BECAUSE THE CONSTITUTION STILL DOES NOT
RECOGNIZE THAT "WOMEN ARE EQUAL UNDER THE LAW. THE LACK
OF A FORMAL DECLARATION OF WOMEN'S EQUALI™V EXPRESSES
PERVASIVE DISCRIMINATION AND NEGATIVE ATTITUDES TOWARD
WOMEN IN THIS COUNTRY. THIS PROFOUND DISCRIMINATION
AGAINST WOMEN, WHICH CAN BE FOUND IN EVERY ASPECT OF OUR
SOCIETY, HAS A PARTICULARLY HARMFUL IMPACT ON WOMEN IN THE

LABOR FORCE.

THE NUMBER ' WOMEN IN AMERICA'S WORKFORCE HAS
RISEN DRAMATICALLY 1IN THE LAST FEW YEARS AND ALL
INDICATIONS ARE THAT THEIR NUMBERS WILL INCREASE IN THE
FUTURE. TODAY, 45% OF THE WORKFORCE IS MADE UP OF WOMCN
(51 MILLION WOMEN IN ALL), UP FROM 33% IN 1960. MOREOVER,
BETWEEN NOW AND THE END OF THE CENTURY IT IS PROJECTED THAT
TWO-THIROS OF THE NEW ENTRANTS INTO THE WORKFORCE WILL BE
WOMEN . 'OMEN WEO WCRK OUTSIDE THE HOME ARE NOT A PASSING
PHENOME. N IN OUR SOCIZTY. THEY ARE HERE TO STAY. BUT
AMERICA HAS NOT YET ACCEPTED THIS REALITY, NOR TAKEN STEPS
TO ELIMINATE THE RAMPANT DISCRIMINATION THAT WOMEN CONERONT
DAILY IN THE WORKPLACE.

THIS DISCRIMINATION IN THE WORKPLACE TAKES MANY
FORMS. WOMEN ARE REFUSED EMPLOYMENT, PASSED OVER FOR
PROMOTIONS, AND PAID LESS THAN MEN WHO DO COMPARABLE OR
IDENTICAL WORK. WOMEN REMAIN SEGREGATED INTO OCCUPATIONS
TRADITIONALLY HELD BY WOMEN, AND FACE SERIOUS OBSTACLES
WHEN THEY TRY TO ENTER NEW FIELDS OF EMPLOYMENT
TRADITIONALLY DOMINATED BY MEN. ON THE JOB, WOMEN ARE
SUBJECTED TO SEXUAL HARASSMENT AND DEMEANING TREATMENT BY
MALE EMPLOYERS AND COLLEAGUES, DESPITE ALL THE LIP SERVICE
GIVEN TO MOTHERHOOD IN THIS COUNTRY, WOMEN MAY LOSE THEIR
JOBS IF THEY LEAVE TO HAVE A BABY OR CARE FOR A SICK CHILD.
THERE ARE TOO FEW CPPORTUNITIES FOR PART~TIME EMPLOYMENT OR
FLEXIBLE WORK SCHEDULES THAT WOULD ALLOW WOMEN TO FULFILL
FAMILY RESPONSIBILITIES, ECONOMIC DEMANDS AND THEIR
CREATIVE POTENTIAL. AND SINCE THE BURDEN OF CHILD CARING
. STILL FALLS PRIMARILY ON THE WOMAN, THEY ARE MOST ADVERSELY
AFFECTED BY THE UNAVAILABILITY OF QUALITY AFFORDABLE DAY
CARE.
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LET US EXAMINE THESE PROBLEMS IN GREATER DEPTH.

ONE OF THE MOSTY BLATANT INJUSTICES IS WAGE DIS-
CRIMINATION. ON THE AVERACE, WOMEN EARN 64 CENTS FOR EVERY
DOLLAR A MAN EARNS, WHICH HAS BARELY CHANGED FROM 1960,
WHEN THEY EARNED 57 CENTS. IN SOME CASES, WOMEN ARE DOING
EXACTLY THE SAME JOB AS THEIR MALE OOUNTERPARTS BUT
RECEIVING LOWER WAGES. FOR EXAMPLE, IN NEW YORK CITY,
POLICE EMERGENCY TELEPHONE OPERATORS (71% OF WHOM ARE
WOMEN) ARE PAID UP TO £8,614 UESS THAN FIRE EMERGENCY
TELEPHONE OPERATORS (97% OF WHOM ARE MEN). THE LOWER
SALARY CANNOT BE EXPLAINED WITH THE ARGUMENT THAT THE
WOMEN'S JOB IS EASIER: ON THF {ONTRARY, THE LOWER-PAID
WOMEN (POLICE OPERATORS) RESFOND TO MORE TYPES OF

*EMERGENCIES AND ARE UNDER MORE TIME } .£SSURE.

A RELATED PROBLEM IS OCCUPATIONAL SEGREGATION.
EMPLOYERS RELY ON DISCRIMINATORY BELIEFS ABOUT WOMEN'S
INTELLECT, CHARACTER AND PHYSICAL CAPABILITIES TO DENY
WOMEN EMPLOYMENT IN MALE-DOMINATED JOBS. FOR EXAMPLE,
UNFOUNDED AND BIASED PERCEPTIONS OF WOMEN'S PHYSICAL
STAMINA HAVE BEEN USED TO TRY TO BLOCK WOMEN'S ENTRY INTO
THE POLICE FORCE, CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY, SANITATION AND
FIREFIGHTING.

INSTEAD, WOMEN ARE SEGREGATED INTO JOBS TRADITION-
ALLY CONSIDERED "WOMEN'S WORK." THE GREAT MAJORITY OF
WOMEN IN THE LABOR FORCE HOLD JUST SUCH SEX SEGREGATED
JOBS. NEARLY HALF OF ALL WORKING WOMEN ARE EMPLOYED IN
CLERICAL, SALES AND TECHNICAL SUPPORT JOBS, AND ANOTHER 20%
ARE IN SERVICE OCCUPATIONS. WOMEN REMAIN OVERWHELMINGLY
REPRESENTED IN SUCH JOBS AS SECRETARIES, NURSES, WAITRESSES
AWD LIBRARIANS.

NOT SURPRISINGLY, SEX SEGREGATED JOBS CARL. LOW
SALARIES. (THE ARCHETYPE FOR WOMEN'S WORK IS, AFTER ALL,
WORK DONE IN THE HOME, WHICH IS ASSIGNED NO ECONOMIC VALUE
AND OMITTED FROM THE GROSS NATIONAL PROLUCT.) A WOMAN IN
THE LABOR FORCE Mha¢ HOLD A JOB INVOLVING SKILLS AND
RESPONSIBILITIES EQUAL YO A COMPARABLE POSITION HELD BY A
MAN, BUT HER SALARY WILL BE LOWER. 1IN LOS ANGELES, FOR
EXAMPLE, LIBRARIANS AND ADMINXISTRATIVE ASSISTANTS WERE
FOUND TO HAVE COMPARABLE JOBS. YET LIBRARIANS (OVER-
WHELMINGLY WOMEN) WERE PAID 12% LESS THAN ADMINISTRATIVE
ASSISTANTS (OVERWHELMINGLY MEN).
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THE CYCLE OF OCCUPATIONAL SEGRE~ATION PERPETUATES
ITSELF. WHEN THERE ARE NC WOMEN IN A PARTICULAR Jos, IT
REINFORCES THE VIEW THAT THE JOB CAN BE DONE ONLY BY A MAN.
IN SUCH A CASE, WOMEN ARE DENIED THE OPPORTUNITY TO PROVE
TO OTHERS OR EVEN TO THEMSELVES THAT THEY ARE PERFECTLY
CAPABLE OF PERFORMING THE JOB. IN ADDITION, ATTITUDES
ABOUT WOMEN'S -ABILITIES AND ROLES ARE REFLECTED IN THE
EDUCATIONAL SYSTEM. FROM ELEMENTARY SCHOOL ON, WOMEN MAY
NOT BE SUFFICIENTLY ENCOURAGED TO PURSUE STUDIES IN MATH
AND SCIENCE OR TO SHARPEN SKILLS TRADITIONALLY ASSOCIATED
WITH MALE ROLES. WHEN WOMEN LACKF THE EDUCATIONAL PRE-
REQUISITES FOR MALE-DOMINATED JOBS, SEGREGATED EMPLOYMENT
PATTERNS ARE REINFORCED.

EVEN WHEN WOMEN SUCCESSFULLY BREAX THROUGH FMPLOY-
MENT BARRIERS AND ENTER NON-TRADITIONAL FIELDS, THEY ARE
STILL SUBJECT TO DISCRIMINALTION IN PROMOTIONS. REGARDLESS
OF CAPABILITY, CREATIVITY OR COMMITMENT, MOST WOMEN REACH A
"GLASS CEILING" IN EMPLOYMENT AND ARE PERMITTED TO ADVANCE
NO FURTHER. THEY ARE SHUT OUT OF THE HIGHEST POSITIONS IN
THEIR FIELD, REMAINING PRIMARILY ON THE LOWEST RUNGS OF THE
CAREER LADDER. SUCH DISCRIMINATION CAN BE FOUND IN
VIRTUALLY EVERY BUSINESS AND PROFESSION. FOR EXAMPLE, (N
THE NATION'S 250 LARGEST LAW FIRMS, JUST 6% OF THE PARTNERS
ARE WOMEN. IN EDUCATION, ONLY ABOUT 6% OF COLLEGE AND
UNIVERSITY PRESIDENTS ARE WOMEN. AND OF THE 5.543 DIRECTOR-
SHIPS OF FORTUNE 500 COMPANIES, JUST 2.8% ARE HELD BY
WOMEN .

WHY ARE WOMEN NOT PROMOTED TO THE HIGIUEST LEVELS?
JUST AS ANTIQUATED NOTIONS ARE USED TO KEEP WOMEN OUT OF
JOBS ENTIRELY, THES® SAME STEREOTYPES AFFECT PROMOTION
DECISIONS. FOR EXAMPLE, ONE STUDY OF WOMEN MANAGERS 1IN
AMERICA FOUND THAT MYTES ABOUT THEIR ABTLITY TO MAKE
BUSINESE DECISIONS, TRAVEL, TAKE CRITICISM, WORK WITH
NUMBERS OR FUNCTICN AS A MANAGER HINDER THEIR CAREER
DEVELOPMENT.

THESE SAME MYTHS ALSO HINDER WOMEN WHO SEEK HIGH
PUBLIC OFFICE. DURING MY FIRST CAMPAIGN FOR DISTRICT
ATTORNEY, PEOPLE OPENLY QUESTIONED MY ABILITY, AS A WOMAN,
TO PROSECUTE CRIMINALS (MY OFFICE HANDLES 70,000 ARRESTS A
YEAR), TO SUPERVISE 800 EMPLOYEES, TO DEAL WITH MALE
SUBORDINATES, AND TO HANDLE THE TOUGH DEMANDS OF AN
EXECUTIVE JOB.
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GIVEN THESE ATTITUDES, IT IS NOT SURPRISING THAT
THERE ARE APPALLINGLY LOW NUMBERS OF WOMEN IN PUBLIC
OFFICE, PARTICULARLY IN THE HIGHEST POSITIONS. ONE WOMAN
SITS IN THE PRESIDENT'S CABINET TODAY, THE SAME NUMBER AS
FIFTY YEARS AGO. THERE ARE ONLY 2 WOMEN IN THE SENATE, ONE
FEWER THAN FIPTY YEARS AGO, AND ONLY 3 WOMEN GOVERNORS,
JUST ONE MORE THAN SIXTY YEARS 2{s. MORE PROGRESS HAS BEEN
MADE IN THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES, WHERE THERE ARE 5 MORE
WOMEN TODAY THAN 25 YEARS AGO. THIS MPANS THAT IT WILL
TAKE ONLY 970 MORE YEARS FOR HAL: OF THE HOUSE OF
REPRESENTATIVES TO BE COMPRISED OF WOMEN. THZ PROGNCSIF
FOR EVEN THIS ADVANCEMENT IS NOT ESPECIALLY ENCOURAGING
SINCE FEWER WOMEN RAN FOR THE HOUSE AND SENATE IN 1986 THAN
IN 1984.

ASIDE FROM THE ENORMOUS PROBLEMS OF DISCRIMINATION
IN HIRIPG, PAY, AND PROMOTION, WOMEN ALSO CONFRONT A
WOKKPLACE THAT IS OFTEN HOSTILE AND UNSUITED TC THEIR
NEEDS.

WOMEN IN EVERY FIELD OF EMPLOYMENT FACE SEXUAL
HARASSMENT AND DEMEANING TREATMENT FROM THEIR EMPLOYERS,
COLLEAGUES, AND OTHER MALES IN THE WORK” .ACE. IN NEW YORK
CITY, FOR EXAMPLE, THE F¥IRST WOMEN FIREFIGHTERS WERE
REPEATEDLY SUBJECTED TO EXTRHME PHYSICAL HARASSMENT BY
THEIR MALE CO-WORKERS, WHO REPORTEDLY EVEN TAMPERED WITH
THEIR LIFE SAVING EQUIPMENT. IN MY OWN OFFICE, WOMEN

_ PROSECUTORS HAVE REPORTED A NUMBER OF DISTURBING INCIDENTS

OF DEMEANING TREATMENT FROM JUDGES, DEFENSE ATTORNEYS, AND
COURT OFFICERS, IRCLUDING AN INSTANCE IN WHICH A JUDGE
THREATENED TO TAKE A FEMALE PROSECUTOR OVER HIS KNEE AND
SPANK HER. THE PERVASIVENESS OF SUCH DEMEANING TREATMENT
HAS BEEN IDENTIFIED BY EVERY STATE THAT HAS STUDIED THE
PROBLEM.

ANOTHER CRUCIAL PROBLEM FACED BY AMERICAN WOMEN
IS THE ABYSMA*. LACK OF ADEQUATE CHILD CARE. TOO MANY WOMEN
ARE FORCED TO MAKE THE EYCRUCIATING CHOICE BETWEEN KEEPING
THEIR JOBS AND PROVIDING FOR THEIR FAMILY'S ECONOMIC
SECURITY, OR LEAVING THEIR JOBS {AND POSSIBLY HAVING TO GO
ON WELFARE) IN ORDER TO CARE POR THEIR CHILDREN PROPERLY.
CURRENTLY, ALMOST 10 MILLION CHILDREN UNDER THE AGE OF 6
HAVE MOTHERS IN THE WORKFORCE. ANOTHER 6 TO 7 MILLION
"LATCHKEY" CHILDREN BETWEEN THE AGE3 OF 6 AND 13 HAVE NO
CHILD CARE. BECAUSE THE FATTEST GROWING SECTION OF THE
NATIONAL WORKFORCE IS MOTHER. WITH CHILDREN UNDER 6, THIS
SITUATION, UNLESS CORRECTED, WILL ONLY WORSEN IN THE COMING
YEARS .
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DESPITE THE MAGNITUDE OF THIS PROBLEM, ONLY AN
INFINITESIMAL NUMBER OF COMPANIES -- 0.04% —- ASSIST THEIR

SIMILARLY, AT PRESENT, A MOTHER WHO LEAVES HER JOB
TO CARE FOR A NEWBORN OR SICK CHILD CAN BE FIRED AND HAS NO
RIGHT YO RETURN TO THAT JOB AT A LATER TIME. THUS,  WOMAN
WE. CHOOSES TO HAVE A CHILD MUST CONFRONT THE POSSIBILITY
OF LOSING HER SENIORITY, WHICH WILL AFFECT HER FUTURE PAY,
THE POSSIBILITY OF UNEMPLO! , AND THE DIFFICULTY OF
FINDING A NEW JOB. WHILE MOST MEN DO NOT BEAR SIGNIFICANT
RESPONSIBILITY FOR CHILD-REARING .N OUR SOCIETY, MEN WHO DO
ACCEPT SUCH RESPONSIBILITY WOULD FACE THE SAME PROBLEMS.

MANY MOTHERS ALSO REQUIRE A PART-TIME OR FLEXIBLE
SCHEDULE SO THAT THEY CAN BOTH EARN A LIVING AND FULFILL
THEIR FAMILY OBLIGATIONS. SADLY, TOO FEW EMPLOYERS PROVIDE -
THEIR EMPLOYEES WITH THE OPFTION OF PART-TIME OR FLEXIBLE
HOURS .

THE SOCIAL AND ECONOMIC CONSEQUENCES OF WORKPLACE
DiSCRIMINATION AGAINST WOMEN ARE FAR-REACHING AND DEEPLY
DISTURBING. PLAINLY, WORKPLACE DISCRIMINATION AGAINST
WOMEN CAN HAVE AN ADVERSE ECONOMIC IMPAC™ ON A FPAMILY VHEN-
A MAN AND WOMAN SHARE ECONOMIC RESPONSIBILITY FOR IT. BUT,
WHEN A WOMAN IS THE SOLE PROVIDER FOR HER FAMILY, AS HALS
INCREASINGLY BEEN THE C\SE FOR THE PAST FEW DECADES, THE
ECONOMIC IMPACT ON THE FAMILY OF YORKPLACE DISCRIMINATION
CAN BE DEVASTATING. NATIONWIDE, 77 PERCENT OF ALL THOSE IN
POVERTY JARE ''OMEN AND CHILDREI:. THE FAILURE TO END
WORKPLACE DISCRIMINATION HAS HAD AND WILL CONTINUE TO %AVE
THE EFFECT OF SENTENCING MILLIONS OF CHILDREN TO GROW NP IN
POVERTY.

COMPOUNDING THE DIFFICULTIES OF WOMEN HAS BEEN THE
THE REAGAN ADMINISTRATION'S HOSTILITY TO WOMEN'S EQUALITY
AND ITS DECISION TO REVERSE THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT'S
HISTORICAL ROLE OF PPOMOTING WOMTN'S RIGHTS. THE ADMINIS-
TRATICYN HAS OPPOSED THE gQUAL RIGHTS AMENDMENT, AFFIRMATIVE
ACSION, AND THE ERY NOTION OF COMPARABLE WORTH, AND HAS
ENACTED ENORMOU3 KBUDGET CUTS --IN NUTRITION, AID TO
PAMILIES WITH DEPENDENT CHILDREN, AND THE WOMEN, INFANTS
AND CiILDREN PROCRAM -- THAT HIT WOMEN AND THEIR CHILDREN
HARDEST. THE DEP7XITMENT OF LABOR AND THE DEPARTMENT OF
JUSTICE HAVE CUT BACK SHARPLY ON EFFORTS TO PROTECT WOMEN
FROM DISCRIMINATION. THIS ADMINISTRATION HAS SOUGHT TO
PERPETUATE THIS HOSTILITY TO WOMEN'S CONCERNS BY NOMINATING
ROBERT BORK, A RIGID OPPONENT OF THE RIGHTS N WOMEN AND
MINORITIES, TO THE UNITED S TES SUPREME COURT.




WHAT CAN BE DONE YO REVERSE THIS NATIONWIDE
PATTERN OF DISCRIMINATION AND TO AFFORD WOMEN EQUALITY O
OPPORTUNITY IN THE WOMKPLACE?

I SUGGEST THE FOLLOWING:

1) THIS NATIUN MUST MAKE A COMMITM™NT TO END DIS-
CRIMINATION IN HIRING AND PROMOTION AND TO OFFER WOMEN AN
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY TO ENTER AND ADVANCE IN EVERY FIELD OF
EMPI OYMENT . IN MY OWN OFFICE, A FIRM COMMITMENT TO
WOMEN'S ADVANCEMENT PRODUCED DRAMATIC RESULTS IN A SHORT
PERIOD OF TIME. WHEN I FIRST BECAME DISTRICT ATTORNEY IN
1982, WIILE THERE WERE OVER 300 STAFF ATTORNEYS IN MY
OFFICE, THERE WERE NO WOMEN ON THE EXECUTIVE STAFF AND NO
WOMEN WHO WERE HEADS OF TRIAL RUREAUS (SUCH AS SEX CRIMES,
HOMICIDE, OR NARCOTICS.) TODAY, 45% OF THE BUREAU CHIEFS
ARE WOMEN, AND ONE-THIRD OF DEPUTY BUREAU CHIEFS ARE
WOMEN. I BELIEVE THAT SIMILAR EFFORTS BY MANAGERS AND
ADMINISTRATORS CAN GREATLY IMPROVE WORKPLACE CONDITIONS FOR
WOMEN .

2) THE WORKPLACE MUST BE ADAPTED TO HELP BREAX
T« * THE ARBITRARY BIFURCATION OF RPSPONSIBILITY IN THE
Fi....X UNIT BETWEEN MEN AND YOMEN HAT HAS GIVEN MEN THE
PRIMARY ECONOMIC RESPONSIBILITY AND WOMEN THE PRIMARY
RESPONSIBILITY FOR CHILL REARING. BY RESTRUCTURING AND
HUMANIZING THE WORKPLACE, A MORE EQUITABLE DISTRIBUTION OF
RESPONSIBILITY CAN BE ACHIEVED IN AMERICAN SOCIETY.
CREATING GREATER OPPORTUNITIES FOR PART-TIME WORK AND
FLEXIBLE HOURS, ENABLING WORKING MEN AND WOMEN TO TAKE
PARENTAL LEAVES TO ©CARE FOR DE?ENDENTS, AND MAKING
AVAILABLE QUALITY (3{ILT CARE FOR WORKING FAMILIES WILL MAKE
IT POSSIBLE FOR MEM AND WOMEN TO SHARE ECONCMIC AND CHILD
REARING RESPONSIBILITIES AS EQUAL PARTNERS.

3) THIS COUNTRY MUST ENSURE THAT WOMEN HAVE TEE
SKILLS F3EDED TO FND THEIR SEGREGATION IN UNSKILLED, LOW
PAYING JOBS. THERE MUST BE EQUAL OPPORTUNITY FOit WOMEN AT
EVERY EDUCATIONAL LEVEL AND SPECIAL EMPHASIS MUST BE GIVEN
TO TRAINING WOMEN IN MATH, SCIENCE, AND COMPUTEZR LITERACY.
AT PRESENT, FEWER THAN 4% OF WORKING WOMEN HAVE ENTERED THE
FIELDS OF MEDICIN.? AND ENGINEERING. AS OUR Ki'fION ADVANCES
TECHNOLOGICALLY, SCIENTIFIC EXPERTISE WILL BECOME A PRE-
REQUISITE FOR AN INCREASING NUMBER OF JOBS, PARTICULARLY
niGH PAYING JORS.
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4) GOVERNMENT MUST LEAD THE WAY IN THE STRUGCWLE
FOR WOMEN'S EQUALITY. IT CAN DO THIS IN A NUM3BER OF WAYS.
FIRST, IT MUST VIGOROUSLY ENFORCE EXISTING ANTI-DISCRIMINA—
TION LAWS. ‘THE JUSTICE DEPARTMENT, EQUAS.  EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY CGMMISSION AND THE CIVIL RIGHTS COMMISSION MUST
BE STRENGTHENED AND REQUIRED TO COMBAT SEX DISCRIMINATION
IN EMPLOYMENT "ACGRESSIVELY. SECOND, CONGRESS MUST PASS
STRONG NEW LAWS ADDRESSING THE PROBLEMS I HAVE DISCUSSED,

AND CLOSI*." LOOPHOLES IN EXISTING LAWS THAT HAVE BURT WOMEN
IN THE. AhLAS OF GOVERNMENT CONTRACTS AND FEDERAL AID TO
EDUCATIONAL INSTITUTIONS. THIRD, THE TEDSRAL GOVERNMENT
MUST PUT PRESSURE ON STATES AND CITIES TO TAKE A MORE
ACTIVE ROLE IN ENFORCING ANTI-DISCRIMINATION LAWS. FOURTH,
SYSTEMATIC EFFORTS MUST BE MADE TO INCREASE THE NUMBER OF
WOMEN ELECTED AND APPOINTED TO TOP GOVERNMENT POSITIONS.
IN ADDITION TO THEIR TREMENDOUS SYMBOLIC VALUE, THESE
EFFORTS WILL HAVE A CONCRETE VALUE IN ENSURING THAT WOMEN'S
CORCERNS ARE PROPERLY ADDRESSED. FIFTH, CONGRESS MUST
OPPOSE THE APPOINTMENT OF ROBERT BORK SO THAT IT WILL NOT
ENSHRINE ANTI~WOMEN ATTITUDES IN THE SUPREME COURT.

FINALLY, (ONGRESS ITSELF MUST SET AN EXAMPLE
THROUGH ITS OWN ACIIONS AND PRACTICES. FOR INSTAWCE, I
WAS DISAPPOINTED THAT THERE WERE NO WOMEN ON THE JOINT
COMMITTEES INVESTIGATING THE IRAN-CONTRA SCANDALS, PERHAF 3
THE MOST VISIBLE CCHGRECSIONAL FORUM. THIRTEEN YEARS AGOU,

FOSTERS THE REAGAN ADMINISTRATION'S ATTEMPTS TO PORTRAY
WOMEN AS INCAPABLE OF DEALING WITH COMPLEX POLITICAL
ISSUES. ONLY A STRUNG AND VISIBLE CONGRESSIONAL CO4MITMENT
TO WOMEN'S EQUALITY WILL SEND A MESSAGE THROUGHOUT THE
NATION THAT WORKPLACE DISCRIMINATION AGAINST WOMEN WILL NOT
BE TOLERATED.
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Mr. MarTinez. Thank yca, Ms. Holtzman.
Ms. Lee.

STATEMENT OF IRENE LEE, ON BEHALF OF THE NATIONAL
INSTITUYE FOR WOMEN OF COLOR

Ms. LEE. Thank you. On behalf of the National Institute for
Women of Color, I am pleas~d to accept this invitation to appear
before the subcommittee and present testimony on women of color
in the work force.

Let me add my congratulations and admiration to the subcom-
mittee for convening this two-day hearing. And I certainly would
want to reinforce the remarks of Dr. Handler, as well as Ms. foltz-
man, concerning issues of access, particularly in higher education
of recruitment, enrollment, retention and graduation, as well as
the kind of supportive services that ars needed.

I would like to provide just a small bit of background informa-
tion woout the National Institute so that the testimony which fol-
lows will be understood in a context. The National Institute for
Women of Color is a nonprofit organization founded in 1981. Its
mission is to enhance the strengths of diversity and to premote
educational and economic equity for women of color, women who
are Hispanic, Black, Asian American, Pacific Islander, American
Indian and Alaskan native. The Institutes promotes the interests of
these groups by focusing on mutual concerns and bringing together
woinan who are traditionally isolated.

Because of the psychological impact of being consiasred a minori-
ty and the restrictions rendered by the term minority, the National
Institute uses and promotes the phrase “women of color.”

I would like to begin with the statement that women'’s work from
all of our perspectives is the backbcae of our country ia paid or
unpaid capacities, ir. homes, schools, offices, factories and farms.
Yet, by virtually every statistical measure, women have not
achieved a share of America’s bounty that is equal to that of men,
not unde> the laws, i. the work place or the home, not as youth,
adults or senior citizens. This is particularly true for women of
color who earn less than half of the wages of working men, seldomx:
have full-time, year-round employment, are often forced into
narrow job categories, have little or no upward mobility, bear a dis-
proportionate share of responsibility for family maintenance with
few resources, and are more likely to be under or unemployed.

Yet, women of color are a major part of the T3S. work force
while they ex} rience the worst aspects of participation. Conserva-
tive estimates of data from the U.S. Census Bureau document that
women who are Hispanic, Black, Native American, Asian Ameri-
can, Pacific Islander and Alaska natives number approximately 30
million. Of these women of color, most are in the work force. Reli-
sble Department of Labor and Census Bureau data indicate that
there were 51 million women 16 years of age and over working or
looking for work in 1985. It is obvious that from one-third to one-
Lalf of these 51 munon women workers are women of color.

However, women »f color earn much less than cther workers. Re-
search performed over the last decade shows that the lowsst , aid,
most impoverished and least secure workers are women of color.
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A few statistics—while all women earn an average of 64 cents for
every dollar earned by men, Hispanic women earn 52 cents and
Black womer 56 cents for every dollar earned by men. This per-
ceniage holds true for women of color in comparison to all men for
decades from 1955 through 1985. That is the median income of
women of color has hovered about 55 percent of men’s income for
the last three decades.

It is a small woader then that women of color & ‘count for tne
highest percent. e of female-headed, single parent families that

ive in poverty. In 1984 women maintained more than 73 percent of
poor Black families and 49 percent of poor Hispanic families.

Not only do women of color earn little more than half of what
men earn, but when employed, women of color are most apt to
work on a parl .ime basis. Again, looking at the 1984 data on
woraen heads of households, orly 81 percent of the women of color
houszholders were employed full-time, year-round versus 37 per-
cent of white women fa.m1Kr heads.

Women of color are more likely to be emnployed in ‘he pink and
blue ccllar categories, clerical, service, retail sales, craft and opera-
tive. Furthermore, within these categories women of color are con-
centrated in jobs segregated by race and ethnicity. Of the approxi-
mately 400 occupations identified " y the U.S. Department of Labor
in their handbook, women are concentrated in only 20, primarily
clerical, sales, service, blue collsr and professinnal manegerial cate-
gories. Yet, women of color are only concenirated in about eight of
these job categories.

For example, Mexican American and Puerto Rican women are
found largely in agricultural work and operative occupations such
as sewing machine opevators.

Asian American women, Chinese, Japanese, Korean, Vietnamese,
Thai are over-represented in service and technical occupations such
as electrical assemblers and launderers.

Black women as histc sically continue to be concentrated in jobs
as household workers, cooks and aids of various t .

Native Americarr women too are concentrated in occupational
categories with aid titles, child care aid, teacher’s aid, nurse’s aid,
welfare aid,

White women are primarily concentrated in administrative Jup-
port jobs such as secretary, management assistant, bookkeepers.

In addition to these categories, all women of color have made
great inroads into white collar jobs but primarily hrough clerical
positions.

Finally, women of color tend to be invisible to licymakers. As
you are looking for different roles that you cen &o to support the
efforts of women of color to get cut of poverty into the work force,
part of the responsibility for the st:‘e of ignorance regarding
women of color in the work force has to do with the lack of data
collection hy Federal data agencies, including the Labor Depart-
ment and the Census Bureau.

I would simply like to summarize the concluding remarks in the
written testimony on personal and family ramifications of women
of color in the work force.

It is our belief that working full-time, year-round, earning an eq-
uitable wage based on the value of tk- Job, not the race, ethnicity
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or gender of the person doing it, is the best way to prevent poverty
and improve living standards.

I would encourage the subcommittee to continue to look at exist-
ing pieces of legislation, including the Job Training Partnership
Act and thoge provisions which “pport child and day care, trans-

. portation, stipends. Those are the important provisions which need

to continue to be reinforced and expanded if women of color are to
succeed in the coming decade.

Thank you very much.
[Prepared statement of Irene Lee follows:]
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. PREPARED STATEMENT 07 IRENE LEE ON BEHALF OF NATIONAL INEITTUTE FOR WOMEN OF >
’ CoLox '

: FORWARD

on behalf of the National Institute for women of Color
¥ (NIWC), I am pleased to accept the invitation to appear before
this Subcommittee and present this tes*imonv on women of color in
the work force.

First, I must provide you with some background information
: about NIWC itself, so that the testimony which follows will be
- understood : its proper context.

NIWC is a non-profit organization, founded ir 1981. Its
mission 1is to enhance the st.engths of diversity aud to promote
educational and ecoaomic equity for women of color; i.e., women
who are Hispanic, 3lack, Asian American, Pacific Islander, Ameri-
can Indian and Alaska Native. NIWC promotes the interests of
these groups by focusiny on mutual concerns and bringing together
women who traditionally have been isolated. Because of the
psychological impact of beilng considered a minority and the
restrictions rendered by the term ™minority", NIWC uses and
promotes the phrase "women of color™ to convey unity, self-
esteem, political and global status.

In carrving out its mission, NIWC engages in the .ollowing
types of activities:

* leadership skill development

* promotion and recognition of women of color ieaders

* public education on the status and basic needs of women of

color --collectively and individually

* providing a support network for women of color

* public policy and issue analysis

* public policy advocacy.

The specif{ic projects of NIWC have incluvded:
* The Brown Papers, issue analysis papers for and about
women of color
* NIWC Network News, -~ periodic newsletter with notices
of meetings, new publications, professional opportunities,
and special notices
The National Strategies Conference for Woman of Color,
a bi-annual event bringing together women from all
over the U.S. and the globe to share or develop strate-
gies for addressing urgent concerns
* The Outstanding Women of Color Awards, a means of
identifying and honoring the leaders among us
* Busic information collection and dissemination, throvgh
Fact Sheets and public presentations
v * Advocacy, issue-by-issu~ aralysis and promotion of the
perspectives of women of color, as well as raising aware-
ness among women of colox about issues and prirniciples
of feminism.
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INTRODUCTION

women of color are a greatly diverse population with a long,
long history of workforce participation and income-generating
enterprises. By conservative estimates of data ‘rom the u.S.
Census Bureau, women whc are Hispanic, Black, Native American,
Asian American, Pacific Islanders, and Alaska Natives, number
approximately 3¢ million. of these women of color, most are in
the work force. Because reliable Department of Labor and Census

Bureau data indicate that there were 51 million women 16 years cof

age and over working o. looking for work in 1985, it becomes
obvious that from 1/3 to 1/2 of w'men workers are women of color.

women of color earn much less than other workers, we are far
-ess likely to be employed full-time, year-round. when we are
employed, our Jjobs are in the "pink" and blue collar categories:
clerical, service, retail sales, craft and operative. Further-
more, within these categories women of color are concentrated in
jobs segregated by race and ethnicity.

The intersection of practices which result in discrimination
by sex and race/ethnicity has a tremendously negative impact on
women of color. our job choices are severely limited, no matter
how willing, well prepared, or agssertive we are. once on the
job, our upward mobility is also severely limited. When we are
out of a job, the burden of job searching is greater because it
ir much harder to find work that fits the paradigm for women of
color in the economically depressed areas in which we live.

Consequently, when considering solutions to problems of
workers, it 1is very important to examine the differing impact
upon the various populatiens affected. Just as what is good for
men workers is not necessarily good for women workers, so too is
it true that what helps white women workers, does not necessarily
help workers who are Jomen of color. Moreover, because of
differences among populations of .olor, the workforce experience
of each gr: » also must be considered separately and factored
into the larger picture.

THE WORKING POOR

Research performed over th2z last decade shows that the lowest
paid, most impoverished, and least secure workers are women of
coior. #hile all women earn an average of $8.64 for every dol'ar
earned by men, Hispanic women earn $6.52 and Biack women $6.56 to
the §1. This percentage holds true for women of color in
comparison to all men for the decades from 1955 thzough 1985,
That 1is, the median income of women of color has hovered about
55% of m.1's income for the the last three decades.

it is nc wonder then that women f color ancount for the
highest percentagz of female-ne ded, single-parent families that
live in poverty. In 1984 womeu maintained more than 73% of poor
Black families and 49% of poo> H:.spanic families. In that same
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year, the unemployment rate among female heads of households was
16.3%; the national average was 7.5%. For women with children
under age six, the rate was even higher: a whopping 20.2% of
these female-headeu families, 61% of the women hougzholders
worked to support their families. Not only do women of coloyr earn
little more than half of what men earn, but when employed, ‘Wwomen
of color are moust apt to work on a part-time basis., Again,
looking at the 1984 data on women heads of bouseholds, only 31%
of the women of color householders were employed full-time, year-
round, along with 37% of white women family heads.

CRUSES

While some of the reasons for greater workforce problems among
women of color can be attributed to inadequate educational prepa-
ration and limited job experience, there are other factors which
contribute to this deplorable situation.

For one thing, there is a tremendous differential between
women and men in occupationr., 0Of the approximately 46¢ cccupa-
tions identified by the v.S. Department of Labor in their hand-
book, women are concentrated in about 26, in clerical, sales,
service, blue collar, and rrofessional/mrnagerial categories.
Women of color, however, are concentrated i. about 8 job categor-
ies.

For example, Mexican American and Puerto Rican women are
found largely in agricultural work and operative occupations,
such as sewing machine operators., Asian American women (Chinese,
Japanese, Korean, Viatnamese, Thai) are ovar-represented in ser-
vice and technical occupations, such as electrical assemblers and
launderers, Black women, as historically, continue to be concen-
trated in jobs as household workers, cooks, and aides of various
types. Native American women too are concentrated in
occupational categories with "ajde" titles: child care aide,
teacher's aide, nurse's aide, welfare aide. White women are
primarily concentrated in administrative support jobs, such as
secretary, management assistant, bookkeepers., In addition to
these categories, all women of color have made great inroads into
white-collar jobs through clerical positions. Researchers have
concluded that the occupational and wage differentials (unex-
plained by edvcation and work experience) are the effect of
discrimination based on gender, race arnd/or ethnicity.

Another problem-causing area concerns official definitions of
employment and unemployment. People with jobs which pay a wage
are counted as employed, regardless of whether they are working
one or more part-time jobs, or are "discouraged workers" (that is
people who are seeking paid work but who have been unsuccessful
for an extended period of time). Women, and especially women of
color, are far more likely to be under-employed and discouraged
workers because of the limited pool of jobe open to women. Twice
as often as men, women under-employed and discouraged workers.
Furthermore, women are twice as likely as men to have pzrt-time
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work because that is all that is available. Such workers are
counted as employed but this disguises the fact of under-
employment. Women of color, again, are more vulnerable to this
groblem and often murt piece together several part-time Jobs to
earn sufficient income for personal and family needs. Finally,
not counted at all in either employed or unemployed categories
are women who receive public assistance and those who have simply
given up seeking a job actively because they know that there
isn't any. Here again women of color fall through the cracks.

»
part of the responsibility for the state of ignorance
regarding women of color in the workforce, and therefore the
lack of appropriate, remedying action, 1lies with Federal data
collection agencies. For years the Labor Department and Census ~

Bvreau neglected to gather information about  women in
racial/ethnic minority populations. Moreover, once it was
established that such data is useful ard needed, the backlog of
comparative information didn't exist, so long-term measurement
has been nearly impossibic. In addition, because of the novalty
of focus on women, survzys are not always consistent from time to
time,

Furthermore, even where statistics are available, they
usually reflect another inadequacy of Federal data collectiosn:
under-counting and inappropria‘.e grouping of racial/ethnic
minority population= For example, it has been traditional prac-
tice to lump all Asiau and Pacific Island peoples together. Thus
it becomes nearly l.possibvie to document the plight of native
Hawaiian women, as compared with new Asian immigrants or third
generation Japanese and Chinese American women.

As another illustration, data on Hispanics was not available
until recent years because this pnpulation was usuaily counted
among whites. Therefore, surveys failed to document the status of
Mexican American, Puerto Rican and other Latin Americen peoples
as culturally-ethnically distinct groups. Since information has
begun to emerge on & case-by-case bacis, with breakouts for
women, it has come to light that Hispanic women have the lowest
educational attainment levels of all groups. This information is
significant in developing remedies to employment needs of
Hispanic women. Asian American womer, on the other hand, have
very high educational attainment levels but are significantly
under-employed when in the work force.

Also it is important to note here that thus far in this
testimony, 1little mention has been made of Native American
(Aserican Indian and Alaska Native), Asian-American,, and Pacific
Islander women. Again, this is a failure of data collection
agencies, Despite NIWC's 6-year campaign to get the Census
Bureau and the Department of Labor to collect and prepare
information on these groups by gender, very little is available.
Therefore, when fact sheets or other materials are prepared women
of color, information on Native Amer.an, Asian, and Pacific
women must be extrapolated from data ¢n the popualtions as a
whole. For example, it is knows that unemployment on
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reservations often averages 50%. 1f there are data, by gender,
on the numbers of persons living on reservations, then it ig
possibl- prnject that half the unemplcoved must be women.

NIn a8 projected that Native American women are the lowest
earners of all women of color, based on available information
about reservation employment, wages in economically depressed
rural and urban areas, and the gsmall numbers of Native American
women with advanced degrees or in professional/manageria) jobs,
on the other hand, Asian American (Japanese, chinese, Korean,
Vietnamese, pilipino, Thai, Asian Indian) women are projected to
be among the highest earners among women of color bssea on their
high educational attainment levels and concentratisn in vechnical
fields.  That is not to say, however, that asisa American women
are high earners, In fact, given their education levels, this
population segment is seriously under-employed. Furthermore,
given the previous perspective on unemployment among women of
color, it is probable that Asian American women are experiencing
a seriously under-reported problem there also.

DISCRIMINATION

Any discussion of the concerns of working women of oclor
must begin with an understanding of discrimination --its
definition, its characteristics, and its impact. Di.crimination
cuts through every single aspect of the lives of men and women of
color. 1t 1limits access to resources, whether they are jobs,
homes, etc. Discrimination is founded on sterotypes which have
only in recent years become subject to legal sanctions. It is a
burden which both constricts the options of women of color and
spurs on women of color to exert extra effort to achieve. The
fact and impact of discrimination is readily aparent when the
status of women .of color is examinied with respect to two issue
areas: sexual harassment and pay equity.

The increase in this past decade, in the number of women
entering and staying in the labor force (though women of color
hava always had a high labor force attachment) has fozused new
attention on an o0ld problem --gexual harrassment. While the
problem is an old one, its analysis by women has taken on a new
twist, For the first itme this unacceptable behavior by
employers and co-workers was recognized as having an economic
impact by affecting the woman's ability to retain or be effective

n her job. fThe caselaw which established gexual harassment as a
legal theory were heralded as breakt:*roughs for womc-i's equality
in the workplace, As debate continues about the issue, one fact
consistently fails to emerge: the impact and contribution of
vomen of color in establishing the concept.

The f£i)3t case establishing gexual harassment as a legal
theory of recovery under Title VII of the Civil Rights aAct was
brought by a Black woman and ori{ginally filed on the basis of
race rather than sex discrimination. Analysts and advocates are
only now Leginning to agree that race and sex both operate to
make ywomen of color more often the victims of Tharassment. In
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most instances, the harasser enjoys a position of market place
power relative to the victim. Stereotypic ideas about the
availability or morals of women --particularly women of color--
as well as the propensity for women of color to be in subordinate
employment situatious, make women of color especially vulnerable.
whezn this vulnerability 1is paired with a lack of access to
systems of redress, women of color most often have only a limited
set of options: remain in an intolerable situation or lose a much
needed source of income. NIWC projects that thousa.:ds of women
of color are victims of sexual harassment each years.

Pay equity, like sexual harassment, 1is an issue that
critically affects working women of color. Pay equity has been
identified as the single most important work issue affecting
wumen today. The purpogse of pay equity is tc eliminate
discriminatory bias from vage-setting practices. wWhile most of
the general public recognizes the term "pay equity”, they fail to
link pay inequity to race and ethnicity as well as sex. 1In fact,
many advocates continue to view pay 2quity as solely &8 women's
issue in spitn of this country' tradition of tying specific work
and specific pay to the race and ethnicity, as well as the
gender, of the worker, Only receuntly, through the joint efforts
of NIWC and the National Committee c¢. Pay Equity, hias the impact
of pay equity on women of color been studied -nd documented.

Labor market routes for women of color often consist of che
following: prohibitions and barriers to hiring in certain profes-
sions and occupations, foliowed by gradual inroads into the
bottom levels of these occupations, followed. finally, by "whitr
flight" from the occupations and resulting in women of colos
dominated job-ghettos. Considez:

* the mejor workplace change for Black women in the last 20
years has been out of household work and into the hottom
rungs ‘f clerical jobs;

* that ov. 60% of Black women clericals are enployed in the
public sector; and

* over half of these have earnings which place them below
150% of the poverty line.
>yven this situation, it is no wonde. that pay equity is a
critical issue for working women of color.

CURRENT ISSUES

Sob Training and vocational Education. Women and girls make
up half the 17 mlllion participants in vocational education;
likewise, they are just over nalf of all job training program
participants. Despite this lesel of participation, over 985 of
the women and girls continue to be tracked into
traditionally female~dominated occupations: i.e., Jobs with low
wageg, limited fringe benefits, and even more limited options for
upward mobilicy. within the last *. years, efforts have been
made to especially target employment training and vocational
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services to low-income women. While these efforts have been
welcome, 1limited federal monitoring and oversight, gaps in
support services, and inadequate follow-up have made it
impossible to paint a comprehensive picture of the long term
success of these programs. Even more disconcerting is the lack
of data collection systems which would allow guaging of
participation and success rates of women of color. Inadequate
funding of the Job Training Partnership Act and the Perkins
Vocatioral Education Act perpetuate the failure of these systems
to provide needed services or to zssess their imps t on women of
color and their families.

Welfare Reform. Contrary to popular belief, most poor people
are white: according to 1985 data, 57% of the nation's poor were
white (non-Hispanic), 27% were Black (non-Hispanic), ard 12% wer
Hispanic. Neve=theless, the rcte of poverty for various
racial/ethnic miuority groups is disproportionately high: in that
same year 31.3% of Black Americans and 29% of Hispanics yere
counted as poor, compared with 11.4% of whites who were poor.
Moreover, because children and adults who live in female-headeAq
households are more 1likely to be poor and of a racial/ethnic
ninority group, the stereotype persists that women of color are
indigent, welfare-dependent, mothers of many children. According
to the same data, "More poor people live in families headed by
married couples or by men than in families headed by women,
nationally 43% versus 35%"...and "the average family size is less
than 4 persons, including one or two parents."

Welfare reform, therefore, must be designed to meet the real,
not stereotypic or mythical, needs of people in distress.
Unfortunately, however, because of such myths, certain groups of
women are unfairly penalized and costly and ineffective public
policy has been enacted. In contrast, a comprehensive, flexible
system of alternatives is what is needed. Such proposals have
been put forth by the National Coaliticn on Women, Work and
Welfare, and the Women's Economic Justice Project of Boston, the
wWomen's Economic Agenda Project of California, and the Women's
Economic Agenda Working Group organized under the Institute for
Policy Studies. Such proposals call for --

~ adequate income maintenance, at least at the level of
poverty subsistence rather than below it;

educational services and employment trzining;

adequate support services, such as child care and trans-
portation; and

effective child support enforcement (which does not
penalize men who are already poor).

79-107 0 - 87 - 7
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Minimum Wage. Nearly two-thirds (63%) of minimum wage workers
are women, with a disproportionai.zly high percent of Black and
Hispanic women workers among that number. Among workers paid
hourly, 66% work part-time. Sixty percent of all workers paid by
the hour and whose households live in poverty have earnings at or
near the minimum vage. iIn contrast to families with minimum wage
workers that escape poverty due to the earnings of other family
members, most poor workers are their family‘'es sole source of
earnings. Seven in ten poor minimum wage workers were their
family's only earner (as of March 1985). A majority of these
poor families were female-headed., Therefore, the issue of
increased minimum wage disproportionately affects women of color
who are most often in jobg which are part-time and which pay the
minimum.

The current minimum wage is $3.35 per hour. It has remained
at that level since 1981, despite the fact that consumer prices
have risen by 36%. The minimum wage was designed to provide a
family of three sufficient income to escape poverty. However, a
full-time, year-rouné worker earning the current mninimum wage
brings home $6,968 year; only 77% of the 1987 poverty
threshhold for a family of three.

wWhile NIWC and many others advocate for expanded basic skills
training programs for new and re-entry workers, such programs
would do little to alleviate the problem of working poor because
without a higher wage floor, workers would finish training only
to enter minimum wage jobs. Such jobs do not allow workers to
escape poverty. It should be noted that of the 2.1 million
workers, age 25 and above, who were paid hourly and earned the
nminimum wage or less in 1986, nearly two out of every three had
four years of high school or some college education. Thus, the

current low level of .earnings of hourly and minimum wage workers
appears more directly related to the low level of the minimum
wage than to their individual lack of basic skills.

PERSONAL AND FAMILY RAMIFICATIONS

Working full-time, year-round, earning an equitable wage
(based on the value of the job not the race, ethnicity or gender
of the person doing it) is the best way to prevent poverty and
improve living standards. Unfortunately, however women of color
strive to work their way up, there are barriers which make it
impossible.

As has been stated previously, women of color

* earn less than half of men when working

* geldom have full-time, year-round employment

* are forced into narrow job categories

* have little or no upward mobility
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* bear a disproportionate share of responsibility
for family maintenance with fewest resources

* are mo:se likely to be un-, under-, and non-employed

As a result women of color are less likely to have retirement
or pension plans and health insurance. wWithout the latter, women
of color are more likely zo refrain from making regulaz doctor
o visits and experience more health problems due to lack of care.
Moreover, given the limited range and low-level of job options
for women of color, the chances are greater for these workers to
be employed in occupations or job situations that pose health
hezards, For example, there is a high percentage of Hispanic
women who are sewing machine operators, of Asian American women
who electrical assemblers, anc¢ Black women who are VDT
operators-~ all cccupations with high potential for injury and
constant pressure for performance. Unfortunatley, this not a
unique situation for women of <olor.

Given the overall income level for women of color, it is
further understandable that the search for decent, affordable
housing, where children are accepted, is difficult. Women of
color, therefore, often 1live in marginally safe neighborhoods,
where congestion, pollution, trashing, and rodent/insect
infestations are high. Moreover, with the very low buying-power
of single heads of households, residences themselves are more
often in disrepair, giving occupants more exposure to adverse
weather conditions and other health hazards (fires, lead paint,
open sewage, etc.)

While there is much emphasis on hardships of women of color
who are single heads of households, it should be noted that even
among married couples or in two-earner families, the family
income level is still quite low. Women of color most often marry
and shave households with men of color. In the earnings
hierarchy, men of color earn the lowest wages among men and
somewhat more than white women. For instance, Black men earn
$6.72 on the dollar; Hispanic men earn $8.76. Despite that
higher earning, men of coler are as vulnerable to under-
employment, unemployment, and "non"-employment as women of color.
They predominate in blue-collar occupations (e.g., garbage
colleztors, commercial fishers, hunters, laborers, heavy equip-
ment operators) where exposure to weather, pollution, and
dangerous conditions are the norm. Consequently, the rigors of
job and home are not necessarily greatly improved when women and
men of color have dual income households,

Understanding the precarious anature of work and income for
Asian American, Black, Native American, Hispanic and other
racial/ethnic minor3¥y families, the issues of access to chilo
care, educational attainment, leave time, suxual harrassment, pay
equity and affirmative action take on tremendous significance.
While success on one issue alone will not be a panacea to the
ills of women of color workers, each advancement will made
significant improvement in life. For example, achieving pay
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eguity in occupations where women of color are concentrated could
imporve take-home pay from 5.7% to 37.8%.

Providing accessible, affordable cnhild care could also im-
prove the take-home pay situation. of the 68.5% of women with
children (under age 18) in the work force, it is estimated that
about 1/2 are women of color. With low-buying power, these
mothers must find no-cost ways of caring for their young children
or sacrifice a portion of their already slim paycheck to .a
caretaker. If women of color can not afford quality care and
must improvizz or leave children in unsa*isfactory conditions,
then they are more likely to jeopardize their job in worry over
the children or to see to their needs from afar (i.e., checking
up and supervising by phone, leaving work to travel across town
to meet clusing/opening hours, or relinquishing care of young
children to grandparents or others outside of the mother's home
or even her city).

The link between teen pregnancy and educational attainment is
an increasingly worrisome one. Teen girls having babies leave
school at alarming rates. once they have dropped out, the
chances of returning to gain a GED or continue high school
studies and beyond are woefully diminished. Without adequate
education, women of color are triply handicapped in trying to
secure a good-paying job with some future and upward mobility.
It has been known for some years that women with college degrees
earn less than men with an 8th grade education; in 1985, that
fact had not significantly changed. wWhat chance, then, have
women of color without a high schocl diploma? Because the ob-
vious answer is extremely little chance, stategies for helping
women of color earn degress are as important as strategies for
helping to earn more money.

CONCLUSIONS

Women of color are a major part of the U.S. work force vyet
experience the worse aspects of participation. Therefore, the
National 1Institute for Women of Color recommends the following
actions tc this Committee:

1) Requests to Pederal agencies under the jurisdiction of
this for relevant data on women of color, insisting on
long~term comparability studies to evaluate the improve-
ment or decline of workforce status among women of color;

2) staff analysis of pending reform legislation (such as Wel-
fare Reform and Child Care) for impact on the work options
of women of color --separately and as a whole;

3) Public support for legislation and its enforcement, includ
-ing oversight hearings, which would improve the overall
situation for women of color, such as legislation to in-
crease the minimum wage;
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4) Encourage programs/actions which are based upon the
reality of situations, not upon myths and stereotypes;

5) Design and fully implement programs for the wcrking poor,
incluing programs that focus upon preventing economic

dependency.

Unless &nd until the part cular needs of women of color are
addressed --from development of a statistical base to implementa-
tion of strategies for equity and support-- women of color will
continue to be a disproportionate percentage of the working and
want-to-work poor. fThe problem has already reached epidemic
proportions but we fail to recognize it because women of cclor
aren't being counted.

Unless and until it is recognized that women cf color have
been and will continue to be a part of the werk force, and that
the families of women of color depend upon the income of women to

survive, we will continue to endanger the future of millions of
fzmilies and communities. When we look to the future ¢f this
country, we can not ignore the Hispanic, Black, Asian, Pacific,

and Native American youth who are now growing up in the poverty
of single-parent households. In the next 12-15 years, their
numbers could swell the prisons, public assistance rolls,
unemployment offices, shelters for homeless and battered --or
their numbers could swell the next generation of 1leaders,
creators, workers, tax payers. The choice is ours.

16
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Mr. MARTINEZ. Thank you, Ms. Lee.

I was going to beat Steve Gunderson to the points today, and he
left again.

Yesterday he raised the issue of homnemasakers, that people—let
me phrase this right because I do not want to put words in his
mouth. But it scems like I raised the issue that so many times
when we are looking for equity and for people to be treated equally
as our Constitution says they should be, that people have a tenden-
cy to term this special interest and put a negative focus on it, such
as all of this movement for equity for women is just a women’s
movement and is divisive.

And later on Mr. Gunderson brought up the point that so many
people in the women’s lib movement tend to downgrade or degrade
women that are just homemakers. And one of your statements, Ms.
Holtzman, was the prestige that hormemakers in the eyes of today’s
society have. We have recognized their contribution to the family
unit, and the success of people in that family unit is so great that
we can no longer look at homemakers as people to be taken for
granE ted and people that do not have a true value connected to
them.

I know there have been movements by women’s organizations to
establish the value of homemakers, so that people understand.

So, I would like you to respond really to the idea that somehow
or another in some people’s minds in order to maybe place a nega-
tive focus on providing equity or equality, they tend to look for a
negative focus and say, well, this is why they are doing something
and to really deemphasize it. Would you ccrmment on that?

Ms. HorrzMaN. Mr. Chairman, the question raises so many inter-
esting issues. I will try to be very brief.

First, I wish the Constitution did require equality for all people.
It still has not, despite our celebration of its 200th anniversary, in-
cluded women as equals under law. And I hope that that will
happen sooner rather than later.

But I think the point that Secretary of Commerce Juanita Krebs
raised and that I rained here is that the contribution of women,
whether it is the home or outside the home, has traditionally been
devalued de:gite all of the rhetoric. You see it nowhere in the gross
national product, although we could not survive as a society with-
out the contribution of women in the home. And indeed, if the
work of women at home were paid for, it would be very, very ex-
pensive indeed. But this is just another aspect of the devaluation of
women’s contribution in fact.

Ard those people who detract the effort of equal rights, well, I
gJaess there vill aiways be those who are opposed to human efforts
for liberty and freedom, whether it is for women or Polish people
or blacks in South Africa or whatever. We cannot let them stand in
our way.

Mr. MARTINEZ. Thank you.

You know, I have to comment that yesterday I commented on
the fact that I always considered the Constitution a near perfect
document, not necessarily that the interpreters of it were near per-
fect, and in fact, that the amendments, as they took place, were
brought about by those people that wished to clarify, as report lan-
guage in a bill does, the intent of that Constitution because al-
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though the Preamble lays it out, there are some people that choose
to focus on one aspact of the Preamble in determining how we
make a more perfect union.

I commented yesterday that on the floor several Members were
talking about Philadelphia and the celebration of the Constitution
that was taking place there. And one of our members of the black
caucus facetiously, in a joking way, commented that the Constitu-
tion did not.include us. Well, 1 think it included all of us., It was
just that there were interpreters of it that did not include us. And
the amendments to the Constitution have gone a long ways to
make sure that we were all included.

You krow, women’s suffrage and eventually the right for women
to vote in 1924 was the evolutior of what was prescribed for the
perfect document but not interpreted by pecple carrying out the
mandate of it.

We know as late as the early 1950s was when the most indige-
nous people in this country, the Indian, got the right to vote in the
State of New Mexico, which was always inherent in that Constitu-
tion but was not granted him until there was ratification of it by
that last state.

So, we are working. And the document itself provides us with the
opportunity to evolve to a better democracy. Hopefully, we will
continue to.

Let me ask you in regards to that situation that you have where
you have corrected a long and grave injustice in your agency. How
do we get people to change their attitudes without it taking a
woman’s place in that position to be able to do it?

Ms. Hourzman. Well, Mr. Chairman, it may not be possible to do
it without having more women in places to be able to make those
kinds of changes.

And perhaps to respond even more specifically to the question
you raised at the beginning, I want to make it clear that in my
view the objective of the women’s movement is to revalue the con-
tribution of women in this society whether it is a contribution at
home or outside the home and to look at women as full human
beings i whatever task they undertake.

But Mr. Chairman, I think that the question you raise is a very
profound one I think because it should not require to be in a posi-
tion as a boss or as an executive to be able to make the changes to
eliminate discrimination and to give other women an opportunity.
And in my case it was not only women, but it was ninorities in
general who also suffered from exactly the same kind of discrimi-
natory attitudes.

I think that partly it will come about through education which
has to start in our schools, and partly it has to come about through
vigorous enforcement of the anti-discrimination laws that are on
our books and that are not being adequately enforced. And this ad-
ministration itself has created a hostile attitude towards it.

And I think the other way it can be done is for thé Congress
itself and for government itself, to the extent it possibly can, to set
an example. I think Congresswoman Snowe very aptly suggested &
number of ways in which the Congress itself could help to set an
example for the rest of the country in its own employment prac-
tices. And I think these are things that can help make 2 difference.
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Mr. MARTINEZ. Some of us in the Congress have signed the
pledge for pay equity among our employees. Not all Members of
Congress have. I think every member of this panel has.

Dr. Handler, you have a theme which I very much buy onto, and
that is education. Education is a way up and out of poverty. And
you can never stress enough how much education can help a
person.

But some of the people that we are trying to help somehow do
not seem to realize it themselves. And it seems to me that there is
something more than just emphasizing education that we must do.
From your perspective what are those things that we might need to
do? One, you say discouragement is a problem. Well, there are two
forms of discouragement: one, self-inflicted discouragement; the
other, discouragement from someone outside ourselves, some other
body or some institution.

And I think we have got to change. Vigorous enforcement of our
civil rights laws, as Ms. Holtzman has indicated, is one way to stop
some entity from discriminating against romeone when in many
cases the person comes from a perspective of a self-defeating situa-
tion anyway.

So, what do we have to do to make sure that beside the vigorous
enforcement of our laws to stop entities from discouraging stu-
dents? What dc¢ we have to do to make people stop discouraging
themselves?

Dr. HanprER. I take your question, Congressman Martinez, in
terms of education.

Mr. MARTINEZ. Yes.

Dr. HanpLER. And I pointed to at least two ways in which—
through partnerships with the Federal Government and the
schools and the home and with business, we can put programs into
place that supplant—not supplant, but add to the Headstart initia-
tives that have already been taken which clearly show young girls,
people of color or children of color that there is an opportunity for
them out there which, in fact, produces an aspiration in them that
becomes a reality through a support system from the earliest &s;ears
that they are able to absorb it into the schools through Headstart
and programs similar to-that in the elementary schools, and most
particularly continuation of that mentoring and substantial sup-
port system into the junior high schools.

I think that the discouragement that young children feel when
for instance their aspirations are elevated and then substantially
shattered when they do not make it by virtue of not buying into
the system in the junior high schools, dropping out of high schools,
or even finishing high schools, but not formalizing their education
at higher levels and entering this so-called technological society
that we live in can be cut short for many. And we can supplant a
negativism with a positivism if indeed we provide for them oppor-
tunities of support systems.

Now, if the home does not provide a clear-cut road to higher edu-
cation.and, in fact, to completion of high school, ther it must come
from without. And the best way to get to the largest numbers is
through the school systems. But the school systems in their present
mode without edditional help cannot not do 1t alone.
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So, private business partnerships, along with the Federal Govern-
ment, and various programs that suit the community--and I em-
phasize that because no one, single program suits all communities.
Urban is different from a small town, and certainly very different
from rural scattered populations. But there are ways, and they
have been shown to work.

I think what it needs is putting the will of the Congress, the will
of the people—join them in some way. And I plead for enlightened
self-interest because I believe that is the best way you can get any-
body to do anything. If it is going to mean some ing for me per-
sonally, I will try to get it accomplished. So, it is persuading those
who would not think that this is the route that they wish to go.

Ca;1 I comment or: a question you asked District Attorney Holtz-
man?

Mr. MARTINEZ. Surely.

Dr. HanpLer. It is this question of who is going to persuade
people if there are no women in positions.

I have long thoughi that the best advocates sometimes for
women are men. And I have seen in my own instance that opportu-
nities that I have had have been afforded to me by enlightened
males. And I think that unless we enlighten the male population
also through educational processes from early on, there is very
little hope that there will be sufficient numbers of women in power
to do the job as completely as it needs to be done.

And I think somehow you have to advocate a position that you
want to have happened by individuals who are themselves not
either of people of color or women. And unless you can persuade
sufficient numbers of people that they must help you to promote
the rights of women who are not themselves women, then you will
not be able to maka the changes that are required to be made.

Mr. MARrTINEZ. I agree with you.

Mr. Chairman.

Mr. HAwkINS. I regret that I could not listen to the witnesses.
However, I have had an ogportunity to read Dr. Handler’s state-
ment. And I am very much impressed with the intriguing idea of
the Career Beginnings that was describ 'd. It seems to have arisen
out of the commonwealth fund in New York City, as I scanned
through the statement. And yet, it operates on a national hasis, Is
that true?

Dr. HANDLER. That is true, in 24 locelities. And it is managed by
Dr. Andy Hahn at the Heller School at Brandeis University.

Mr. HAwKINS. Does it have any other funding that is outside of
the commonwealth fund in New York?

Dr. HANDLER. Yes. It currently receives local funding from some
of the communities in which it is located. And this why I referred
to it as a public—you know, as a partnership with the——

Mr. Hawxkins. How does it operate? Let us assume that——

Dr. HANDLER. I wish I could give you exactly——

Mr. HAWKRINS [continuing]. It is in some other state.

Dr. HANDLER. Yes.

Mr. Hawkins. And you select students.

Dr. HANDLER. Well, a high school has to be receptive, And ithe
individual school structure is receptive and recruits the mentors
for the young people.
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And the selection of students, as I pointed out earlier, and made
clear in the testimony is that we are not in those programs looking
for the highest achievers. We are looking for students who are
acﬁev@ng what you call the average level or maybe slightly under-
achieving.

Mr. Hawrkins. Is there any participation in funds then if it—

Dr. HANDLER. Yes, of the business community.

Mr. HAwxins. I see.

Dr. HANDLER. And to the degree that the high schools provide
the support structure from the locality in the high schools.

Mr. Hawkins. I assume there is no Federal funding involved.

Dr. HANDLER. No.

Mr. Hawkins. Would it be desirable?

Dr. HANDLER. It would be desirable I think to engage more high
schools or more local school districts. If they had more resources to
devote, then you could get the partnerships of matching funds with
business and with the local constituencies more firmly established.
Not all institutions or local, whether they be municipalities or
school boards, have sufficient breadth and flexible dollars to pro-
vide the kind of infrastructure in terms of counseling and teaching
that some manage to provide. And there is not the enlightenment
in all school districts that there is in some.

So, it would be desirable—at least the seed money to begin such
programs across the Nation. And they are not I think that expen-
sive. But, sir, I could not put a dollar amount on it for you at this
time.

Mr. HAwkins. Well, has it been demonstrated that these stu-
dents selected perform academically well in a four year institution?
. Dr. HANpLER. Yes. The early three years of this program, when
it was begun in New York City and then extended across the
Nation, demonsirated that these students then went on to achieve,
and I think graduated from institutions of higher education.

And it is our hoge that this next step in this project will demon-
strate that more than adequately. And there is every indication to
assess this because during the summer months, these students are
working instead of elageazfin in less, shall I say, desirable activities.
They are being afforded jobs. They are afforded mentors, monthly
meetings with mentors, being encouraged by their school principals
and their teachers, and they are beginning to achieve at somewhat
higher gnd higher levels academically, and are sufficiently trained
to enter into the higher education system.

Mr. Hawking, Well, there are mgnﬂy other questions I would like
to ask. The time is limited, but I will try to avail myself of other
questions subsequent to the hearing.

Dr. HanpLeEr. Mr. Hawkins, if you would likz, I could make
available to you—and I will do so—fuller regorts of this program,
which is funged by a commonwealth fund and which we now moni-
tor and manage, so that you will be abic to with dollar amounts
assess the value of perhaps participating through legislation in this
kind of endeavor. But I will make certain that Dr. Hahn delivers to
you, and with some additional commentary, a full desc.iption.

Mr. Hawkins. All right. Thank you very much.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. MArTINEZ. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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We will allow the record to remain open so that there can be
written questions submitted to the panel if the panel is agreeable.
And we can get the response and still make it a part of the record
anil/I any other information that we might be able to obtain.

r. Owens.

Mr. Owens. Yes, Mr. Chairman.

I would like to begin by welcoming my district attorney from
Brooklyn. And 28 you heard, she is doing a magnificent job in her
present career. But I want fo state that I am one fan of hers from
the Watergate hearings who missed her in the Iran-centragate
hearings. I was disappointed by a lot of things that took place in
those hearings, especially the fact that the witnesses were allowed
to use them as platforms to sell their ideas. I think somehow if
they had had a diiferent set of Ple, ii would not have happened.

But former Congresswoman Holtzman, our district attorney, is
doing a magnificent job in her present capacity as a good district
attorney, but as you heard, in the area of moving the system to do
the kinds of things they should be doing with respect to providing
equal opportunities for women. She is also doing that.

What she did not talk about is the fact that she does the same
kind of thing in terms of equal opportunities for all ethnic groups
in her office.

What disturbs me, Liz, is the fact that you were asked a question
of what would happen if you had not been there. We are glad that
you were there. We are gfad there are more women in various deci-
sion making positions in government. But I am very disturbed by
the fact that you are not talking about a backwater community
somewhere. You are talking about the beachhead of liberalism,
New York City. And that in New York City you found a situation
where systemic discrimination against women has been practiced
and was accepted as the norm. I wonder if the government at every
level is doing its Job.

Is there anything more that can be done by government, realiz-
ing the fact that we are having difficulties here on the £7ill at this
point getting the Civil Rights Restoration Act passed and we
cannot offer any immediate, new relief?

But the laws that are on the books now—are they being used suf-
ficiently to guarantee that no situation like that could exist in a
major city agency? And if it exists there, I am sure it exists else-
where..It goes on and on. And the only relief is that individuals
may bring court cases themselves. They must tzke the initiative.
They must risk being fired and the things that go along with indi-
viduals being in cases related to discrimination.

Under present law, is there no way the government cannot be
held responsible for taking the initiative to do more, the attorney
general at the state level or the U.S. attorney, when situat:ons like
that exist? Is there no initiative that can be taken using the re-
sources of government?

Ms. HortzMaN. Congressman Owens, let me say first that this
must be a mutual admiration gociety because I have long admired
the record that you established as a state senator in New York and
the outstanding job you have done as a Member of Congress. And
we are all fortunate not only in Brooklyn and New York City, but
in the Nation to have you sit here.




200

The issue you raised has troubled me very deeply, and it is &
point that Dr. Handler made too, that we cannot have enough
women in positions of power or authority to begin to make the
changes to end discrimination. What do we do about it?

I think the enforcement of the laws is terrible. For example, we
are required to submit forms every year indicating our hiring prac-
tices. But I am not sure anybody ever takes a look at them. And
they surely could never have taken a look at them before I became
district ettorney because there were no women out of a very large
office in positions of authority. But does anybody question? I be-
lieve not. I don’t think there is any systematic—there may be re-
porting requirements, but I am not sure there is any systematic
review or any kind of random checking of it.

I just think that the anti-discriminatior. laws that are on the
books largely are unenforced except when people complain. And if
they do complain about i, then perhaps there may be some iavesti-
gation. But I think it iz a very bad system, obviously, to rely on
someone complaining because let’s take a young woman in my
office who has been an attc ney there for 10 years, who has done
an outstanding job, has been extremely talented, has won many
cases, has demonst-ated her professional capacity very well, and
hag been passed over for 10 years for all promotions. If she goes to
complain about the situation, she may lose all opportunity for pro-
motion in the future. So, you have a tremendous inhibition against
these women bringing a complaint t< begin with.

The same things happen with the court. Women, whether they
are witnesses or attorneys, who enter the courts can be mistreated
by judges or opposing counsel. But many times, especially when it
is the judge who will demcan the woman attorney, she will not
complain because she will say, well, I have to appear before this
judge again. And so, am I going to risk my financial future to pro-
tect my own personal dignity? It is a terrible choice to put humen
beings into.

And I think one of the ways of resolving it is much more vigor-
ous enforcement of the simple anti-Ciscrimination laws that are on
the books.

And I think you r..d= an excellent point, and I alluded to it
briefly, that the discrimination against women, if it exists, is prob-
ably not there by itself. You will aise find discrimination against
minorities, against blacks, against Hispariu Not only did I find
discrimination against women w}en I became DA, but in my office
in Brooklyn, one of the bureaus completely excluded all blacks.
This is in 1981. There as not a black attorney who would be al-
lowed to work in that bureau and not a black clerical staff. No one,
no black.

To me this is inconceivable that this could happen, but it seems
to me that one of the ways of dealing with it is better enforcemen?
of the laws.

Of course, I mentioned education. I think that is important, but
before we have enough enlightened Eeople, if we start educating
them now, it will be 40 years before they are in a position to make
a difference. And I think we have got to do something in the inter-
im, as well as educating people.
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Mr. OweNs. I was also quite shocked l:ﬁ the statement you made
that the police dispatch people who handle the phone , mostly
women, are underpaid to the tune of $8,000 compared to their
countexﬁaarts in the fire department, who with all due respect to
them, they have a much easier job. I wonder where do unjons come
in in that kind of situation. How does that go on and continue?

Ms. HovrzraN. I am sorry. I did not hear the question.

Mr. Owens. The discrepancy of $8,000 between two obvious posi-
tions doing obviously the same thing except the women in the
police department have 4 much more stressful load.

Ms. HoLTzMAN. Right.

Mr. OwWeNS. And I just wondered how that persists, you know. I
thought we had taken care of pay equity problems in New Yerk
City. I did not know we still hed problems.

Ms. HovrzMAN. Part of the reason it persists, Congressman
Owens, is because New York City itself has refused to undertake,
for example, a comparable worth study. That is something that the
magjor has been objecting to for a very long time.

Congress itself, as I gather from Congresswoman Snowe’s re-
marks, has not done that either. Perhaps this is an area in which
Congress. can beﬁin to set an example by doing that here and by
either through the carrot or the stick requiring other governmen-
tal units and others to take a look at comparable worth issues. I do
not think that this is really an issue of comparable worth. I think
you see the same people doing exactly the same job and they are
not paid the same amount of money.

It is an outrageous situation, but unless we have better laws on
the books or more vigorous enforcement of the laws, many times
there is no incentive. And the press won’t report apout it use
just as I mentioned to Chairman Martinez earlier how twomen’s
work is devalued, discrimination against women is not seen as a

ai’icularly important issue, and that is not going to be on the
ront page. So, issues like this are generally buried. The public does
not understand and there is very little public clamor, therefore, for
the kinds of changes that have to be made.

Mr. Owens. Thank you.

Dr. Handler, I want to thank you and congratulate you on your
very intent and impassioned statement on a subject which is very
close to my heart and I have spent a lot of time studying, the fact
that the upper part of the educational pipeline for blacks, both fe-
males and males, is diminishing. The number of people in that
pigeline is steadily decreasing instead of inc.easing as it should.

must congratulate the higher education community. When we
were considering the extension of the Higher Education Assistance
Act last year and proposed that special efforts be made to save the
black colleges, 105 black colleges in the Nation out of 8,000 higher
education institutions, thanks to the wisdom and the generosity of
the total higher education community, and we got cooperation in
doing that.

On the other hand, we recognize that 80 percent of blacks are
attending predominantly white institutions. And one of the big
jssues has been the kinc{ of treatment they have been receiving on
the campuses and recent violence on those campuses has been
traced back to a notion and a myth that is being perpetrated that
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black students are getting everything. You know, the aid money
and the changes in loan policies and a number of hardships that
white students are suffering now is as a result of black students
getting everything.

Can you comment on that at all?

Dr. Hanpeer. I think you are right in that it plays a role in atti-
tudes. It is unfortunate because obviously it is so false, I think that
thera are aid programs, whether it starts with the Pell grants and
difterent financial programs for all students.

Mr. Owens. Do you know of any place where wc can get some
documentation on how false it is? Has anybody done any work on
the question?

Dr. HANDLER. There is no question. I do not have it at my finger-
tips, but I have seen all the figures that are available. Certainly on
cur campuses aid is distributed on the basis of need, and as many
white students as non-whites or students of color receive financial
aid that is both government dcrived and which we raise at our in-
stitution for all of our students. And I think that that would be
easily available to you, Congressman Owens, and I will be again
very happy to go back to the higher education commurity and
mge certain that you receive thet data. A few phone calls should
provide that for Xou with no difficulty whatsoever. And I will call
the president of ACE and make sure that you get that data.

Mr. Owens. I appreciate that. That’s a little item that we dealt
with in the—

Dr. HanpirEr. This is a very major item in terms of false percep-
tions.

Mr. OwWENS. Another item we dealt with in the passage of the
Iigher Education Assistance Act related to requiring that one-half
of the students—or that priority be assigned with respect to Pell
grants or student work assignments to students who were the first
generation of their family to attend college. I would be interested
i?l knowing how that has worked out, what has been the result of
that.

I do not necessarily mean that will end up having more minority
students.

Dr. Hanr- £R. Let me see if I can—

Mr. OwENs. But there are probably a number of white families
in the same situation.

Dr. Hanpier. Well, I can comment, you know, from general ex-
perience back at the time when I was at the City University. And
you know, so much to-do was made about open admissions at that
time and who would benefit from it. And you know the data as
well as I know the data that it was clearly shown that the stagger-
ing numbers of majority students, if you will permit me, or white
students at that time, entered the system when open admissions
w:::dput into effect, and that the overwhelming numbers that en-
tered the City University were, in fact, not_people of color or mi-
norities, but rather the majority students although they were die
tributed in interesting ways in the colleges. And that is another

story.
I think in making students comfortable on the campus and pas-

sions that arise—they are quite unique and different and distinct
for the campus involved. And it would be foolhardy to draw conclu-
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. sions that all campuses are alike and that all campuses have nega-
: tive attitudes towards people of color. But I think from a few nega-
tive incidents, it does spread like wildfirs in terms of both percep-
tions and the media and stories. And I think in general that most
institutions are making strides and trving very hard to recruit stu-
dents to their campus and make them feel comfortable.

Mr. Owens. Thank you. I also want to congratulate you for
sounding the alarm for black female siudents. We in the black
community are very alarmed about the fact that male students are
decreasing, the number is decreasing at such an alarming rate, but
iguiis almost as bad with females. And I am glad to hear you point
that out.

Ms. Lee, I did want to ask you a question if the Chairman wouid
be so gracious as to let me ask one more question considering I did
not use time—

Mr. MarTINEZ. I'll yield part of my time.

Ms. Lee. May I first also comment on your request for informa-
tion from Pr. Handler on data collection——

Mr. OweNs. Yes.

Ms. LEE [continuing]. On those kinds of statistics. From my own
professional background wlhen I had to do that in a major urban
city here in the country recently, looking at the issue of minority
access to higher education in an urban area, in talking to 15 uni-
versities both two and four year college and university institutions
in that city, what I found was that there was a very wide spectrum
of data that was available, statistical information on who was re-
cruited, who was enrolled, what were the levels of retention and
who graduated.

And that had to do very distinctly with the level of enforcement
that is now prevalent throughout the country within the Depart-
ment of Education that is required that some institutions were
very good at keeping that data up to date. Other institutions were
not, that it was very difficult to get that information. And I think
that is true of ge*ing data on minority participation both in edu-
caggn and in t- <+ork force and work place. And as a policy-
maker——

Mr. OWENS. That w the question I was going to ask you. You said
before that data is not collected——

Ms. Lee. That’s right.

Mr. OweNs [continuing]. In the case of——

Ms. LEg. And then it just limits in terms of both advocates and
policymakers. You cannot make ¢ sod policy without a good infor-
mation base, and I would just like to encourage and reinforce that.
As you look at it, that is to me a very appropriate role for congres-
5 sional oversight committees to look at what the Federal agencies
’ do in their own data collection efforts.

Mr. Owens. Thank you.

Mr. MarTINEZ. Thank you, Mr. Owens.

Mr. Hayes.

Mr. Haves. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

At least I will not have to engage my colleague in a discussion
over his characterization of New York as being the beachhead of
liberalism because I think part of the answer came out in Attorney
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Holtzman characterization, the revelation of the difference in
salary within the fire department.

But I do want to say that testimony of all three witnesses has
been excellent.

I wish it were possible, Dr. Handler, you would have the opportu-
nity—I know it is a vain wish—to just site some of the statistics
revealing the current problem as it relates to the education of
blacks to members of my garty, the Democratic party, so they
would understand it, the kind of serious situation—

Dr. HanpLEr. Sir, if you invite me, I would be hapgy to do it.

Mr. Haves. I wish I had the power. You would be there tomor-
row if & forum could be set because I feel that you are on target in
focusing attention on this problem as it relates to blacks.

When you say, for example, on page 5, “The feeling among
blacks these days is that they are no longer welcome on college
campuses,” I think this is true.

This may explain why some black young people regard academic
success as socially unacceptable. As one black student put it, study-
ing for exams and doing well in courses is whitey’s way. That is the
waX'nman of them express it.

d when you along with that say that the numbers of blacks
and minorities is growing in our society and there ought to be some
focus on how can we turn the things around from the direction
they are now going and begin to concentrate in.the area where
help is so greatly needed in the education for the present and
coming generation. More needs to be said and publicized about the
geriousness of this situation.

And you mentioned—although you did not call it creaming, but
that is what you meant. There is more creaming now when it
comes to the selection of students who are going to be exposed to
the Ofportunity to get higher education. This begins, as you say, at
the elementary level all the way into the post secondary level. And
these children are future leaders and we are overlooking in many
instances those who have the potential who we are not willing to
work and concentrate on these studies.

And I think you are on target, as the other two witnesses here,
in focusing attention in this direction. And as a member of this
committee and one who represents a district—I know it is redun-
dant for me to say it to some who might have heard it before. I
represent a district where the dropout ratio among blacks at the
high school level is better than 50 percent now in the City of Chica-
go. It is a crime to see what is happening to many of our kids.

And the reason—for this neglect is economic. Some is lack of in-
terest. But I think we in the Congress have got to begin to address
ourselves to these kinds of problems. It is not the question of just
the kids. It is the future of this great Nation of ours that is at
stake. The best security to this country can ever have is to invest
in educating our youth. And we do not seem to realize that.

Mr. MarTinez. Thank you, Mr. Hayes.

Mr. Jontz.

Mr. JoNTz. Mr. Chairman, I have no questions, but I do want to
thank each of the witnesses for the excellent statements and associ-
ate myself with the comments of my colleagues here about the im-
portance of these matters for cur consideration. Thank you.
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Mr. MarTINEZ. Thank you.

In closing this panel, let me take a moment to say that Mr. Gun-
derson yesterday pointed out that in fact on this committee there is
only one woman, and she is on the Republican side. Let me say
that I would admonish. the Chairman to next year recruit one of
our Democratic women colleagues to be on our side of the ajsle.

And he was also going to bring out the fact that on the panel for

ranscam, or whatever you want to call it, that there are no
womnien: And he was quick to point that out. The Democrats had no
women. Well, we selected our side, and it is a tragedy that there
are no women. But they have.choices too on the Republican side,
and they didn’t choose any women either.

Thank you ali for appearing before us.

Our next panel consists of Ms. Helen Blank, Director of Child
Care, Children’s Defense Fund; George, Engelter, member of the
National Legislative Committee, American Association of Retired
Persons; and Ms. Diana Pearce, Director of Women and Poverty
Project; Ms. Anne Moss, Director of Women’s Pension Project, Pen-
sion Rights Center.

Mr. MArTINEZ. With that, we will begin with Ms. Blank. And I
understand that you have a time problem. We would ailow you
then to give your testimony and ask quick question of each of the
panel, and then allow you to leave.

STATEMENT OF HELEN BLANK, DIRECTOR OF CHILD CARE,
CHILDREN’S DEFENSE FUND

Ms. BLang. Thank you.

Mr. Chairman, before I start, we really at the Children’s Defense
Fund, I would like to say, appreciate this committee’s deep interest
in children and commitment to building strong child care pro-
grams. We worked closely with you on improving the child care
provisions of the welfare reform bill, and we think given the cir-
cumstances, that ycu have produced a good start for children. Obvi-
ously, we all know we need to move further. But the Education and
Labor Committee has always understood the kind of resources vou
have to invest to provide decent child care. And we look forward to
working with you in the future.

Obviously child care—and you have heard from other wit-
nesses—is &n enormous problem in this country. The demand far
exceeds the need. We have had mothers go to work in record num-
bers And the child care system that they need is simply not there.
All families must sort through a patchwork system to. find child
care. Many communities now have what we call resource and refer-
ral programs to help families, but many communities have no such
programs. And all mothers have to turn to are the Yellow Pages.
All families, regardless of income, face a tremendous sro%péfv issue.
The situation is particularly critical for infants and ers be-
cause nearly 50 percent of mothers of children under 1 are now in
the work force.

We recently did a survey of hospital-based child care ﬁograms
for hospital employees. And 110 out of 400 responded. They had
1,500 infants being served, but they had almost 3,000 on waiting
lists. And directors wrote painful stories of turning parents away.
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What happens is not only do parents accept less than the
should: for-their children, they move young children back and fort
-all day. A-New York Citg study of child care found that more than
half the parents had made multiple child care arrangements.

One reason child care is so hard to find is the child care workers
earn poverty level wages. As a result, the turnover rate is 42 per-
cent. Programs cannot find workers, and young children face a
multiplicity of care givers in a single day.

The cost is obviously expensive. It is $3,000 per child on the aver-
age now. And as other witnesses have testified, we have many,
many low income families who cannot afford child care. In 1984
one-fifth of husbands heading two parent families and two-thirds of
wumen heading single parent families were low wage earners.

We think that three new issues are also propelling this countries
interest in child care and make it imperative that we move to be
bold and to address the child care crisis in this country.

The first is en issue that you all looked at last week. It is welfare
reform. We have many opinions on how welfare has to be fixed.
But we are seeing very little disagreement that mothers, who are
low income, cannot go to work unless child care is provided. Every
day a new study comes across my desk—they are included in my
testimony—that show the sin%I: most important reason that moth-
ers cannot go to work and self-sufficient or participate in a
training program is the lack of child care at a reasonable cost.

We can open up new funding for child care and welfare reform,
but we found we cannot improve child care for all low income fami-
lies and make some improvements we need for all families on a
welfare reform bill.

We are also seeing—and I believe this is fueling interest in child
care—a new interest in bagic skills. We are finding that we have a
shrinking youth population. The young people between the ages of
16 and 24 made up 24 percent of the population in 1978. By 1995,
they are going to make ap 18 percent of the population. If we are
goin% to remain competitive, we cannot lose any of our young
peoble.

Where do we start? This committee has long recognized we start
in programs like Headstart. The Governors Association, Fortune
Magazine, the Committee on Economic Development agree now,
and they say that for poor youngsters the place to begin to build
the foundation for basic skills is an early childhood development
program.

However, young children who are poor have half the chance of
participating in these programs than upper income children. And
67 percent of 4 year olds of parents who earn $35,000 a year or
more are enrolled in preschool programs. Yet, only 33 percent of 4
year olds whose families earn $10,000 or less are enrolled in these

programs.

I\E; testimony talks about the keﬁ' linkage between basic skills
and employment and dropouts. We have done a recent publication
on new data by Dr. Andrew Sum at Brandeis. We must start when
children are very young to help them build this foundation.

A third factor that is fueling interest in child care is increasing
middle class dissatisfaction with child care arrangements. There
have been a number of studies. A recent Fortune Magazine study
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looked at 400 working mothers and fathers with children under 12.
They found that the dissatisfaction with child care was the most
reliable predictor for absenteeism and unproductive work time.
An AFSCME study found that many parents were uncomfortable
about the quality of their child care a:e;;aggements. In some cases
the ramifications are greater than inc or reduced productivi-
ty. We all shared the terrible tragedy in Florida last December. A
young mother was on the waiting list for child care in that state, a
waiting list that has now climbed to 26,400 families in one state.
She had to go to work. She had what many policymakers say is
. what families should do, a cousin, a relative, makeshift child care .
- arraniements. A cousin could not come. She did not want-to leave |
: her job. Maurice and Anthony, who were 8 and 4, were left home |
alone. They crawled into the dryer, a seemingly cozy place, and {
these two young boys burned to death. |
|

A judge in Miami called peo;l)le who do not, want to fund these
programs that wculd have helped Maurice and Anthony, child
abusers. We agree with them.

We found another Miami mother who has not faced a tragedy
Yet. But she puts her two nine month old twins in the bathroom,

ocked in a playpen so she can go to work.

We face a challenge now. Our challex;ie is to take these concerns
?nd_gveave them into a policy that makes sense for children and

amilies.

The Children’s Defense Fund, along with 60 other national orga-
nizations, have launched a major campaign to foster such a policy.
We have joined together in the alliance for better child care. Our
group represents women’s groups, education groups, religious
groups, church groups, professionals. The goal is to pass a major,
new Federal child care initiative that will help low income families .
pay for care and improve the quality of care for all families.

We believe the time is right. Polls are saying that more Ameri-
cans believe that increased funds must go into child care.

" Why the Federal Government? We think we are not going to
move ahead unless the Federal Government becomes an equal part-
ner. For the iast five years at CDF, we have been chronic ing state
child care developments. We see an uneven picture.

If you live in Massachusetts where you still have gaps, you see
enormous new resources in child care. If you are an Alabama or a
Georgia or a Louisiana parent, you can’t vote and move to Massa-
chusetts, you face a crisis. In Georgia there are 76,000 children
needing care, 8,000 receiving it, and that state cut child care by 37
percent last year.

California is moving ahead, has always been, but they serve less
than 10 percent of the million children who need child care.

5 There has been a recent study of public housing child care
projects. They found 96,000 children on the waiting list.

State governments cannot do it alone. The private sector is the
place where many of us have been focusing our efforts. Employers
will do it. Let’s be honest. There are 3 million employers, and only
about 6,000 do something about child care. On-site child care cen-
ters are mostly in hospitals who have trouble recruiting nurses. We
would have never asked employers to cover our whole health care
system. We have a Medicaid program. We still have 37 million fam-
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ilies who have no health insurance. Employers can play a bigger

: role, but they cannot be asked to do it by themselves.
At the Federal level, all we have for direct child care services is
: the Title XX social services block grant; 18 percent of that goes for
child care. That block grant is $600 million less than if it had not
been cut in 1981. But when we factor in inflation, it is half of what
it was a decade ago. .

We have with this committee’s help passed a few minor child -
care initiatives in the last few years. I think some of them are too
small to even be called modest. We have provided a million dollars
to help care givers improve their credentials by earning a child de-
velopment associate degree. We have added some money to help
communities start, but not operate school age child care programs,
so low income families have no funds to use these programs. We
have added some child care authorization to the Higher Education
Act. Good steps, but not enough.

The Federal Government cannot shirk its role anymore either in
for helping families pay for care or helping to insure that their
care is good.

We still have some states that let one care giver care for seven
babies. My 138 year old baby-sits a lot. We sit at the dinner table
and talk about how many children she can take care of. And she
goes, one, two. I don’t think I could take care of three, Mom. Well,
in North Carolina they are asked to take care of seven and some
days eight.

We hope to have legislation ready to be introduced this fall. The
final details are being hammered out. We know that many groups
and people across the country are anxious and waiting. It is not a
smail bill, but seeing the encrmous crisis we face, we feel it is time

s to be bold and lay out what this country needs to address its child
care dilemma. We are fooling ourselves, but we are doing worse.
We are providing an enormous disservice to our children. We are
threatening the future productivity and competitiveness of our
country, the safety of our youngsters, if we do not move ahead and
deal with child care in the way that we have to deal with it.

Thank you.

[Prepared statement of Helen Blank follows:]

o




PRE: 'ARED STATEMENT OF HELEN BLANK, Director, CHILD CARE, CHILDREN'S DEFENSE
Funp, WasHiNGToN, DC

There is a new sense of urgency about child care issues,
This gense of urgency is well founded. By 1995, two thirds of
all preschool age children or nearly 15 million children will
have a mother in the workforce. This will represent a 50
percent increase over the 1985 figure of 9.6 million children.
Mothers are working out of economic necessity. A 1983 New York
Times poll indicated that "for 71 percent of mothers who work the

primary reason was not for something interesting to do but, to
support their family."

3

o Between 1967 and 1985, wives' contributions to family
income increased from 10.6 percent to 18 percent for
white families, from 19.4 percent ‘to 30 percent for
black families with children and from 14.4 percent to
20 percent for Hispanic famiiies with children. .

o Idn the average the income of two parent families,
dropped 3.1 percent between 1973 and 1984. This
decrease would have been more than three times larger,
9.5 percent, if mothers had not increased their
workforce participation and earnings,

° In 1985, 45 percent of the mothers of newborn children
worked in clerical and sales jobs, 31 percent in

service blu€ collar jobs, and only 24 percent in higher
paying professional jobs.

The reawakening of interest in child care is due, to a
beightened understanding of the central role that child care
plays in America's economic Security--present and futvre. Our
challenge is to cranslate this new attention into public policy
which supports our families and prepares our children for rich

and productive lives, We cannot afford to shirk away from this
challenge, ,

Progress toward a coherent child care policy over the past
15 years has been fragmented and tenta.ive. fThe steps that have
been taken toward meeting the growing child care needs of
America's families have, for the most part, been small, hardly
enough to make up for the ground lost in 1981 when Congress and
the President reduced the Title XX Social Services Block Grant--
the largest source of direct federal child care support--~by 20
percent, much less enough to keep pace with inflation and rapidly
increasing need. Even before the 1981 cuts, Title XX child care
programs only served 472,000 of the 3.4 million children living
in poverty in 1981. 1In 1984, there were 4.9 million children in
that age group and less money to serve them. Since 1981, the
steps taken to address child care at the federal level have been
too small to be evan termed modest: $5 million doilars allocated
to provide start-up funds for school-age child care and resource
and referral services, $10 million authorized to help children
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: who need chil(: care as a respite service *nd for thise in crisjis
P nurseries, $10 millinn authorizeé to lielp low-income college
students pay for the care that the; need to complete their
education, and $1.5 million to help caregivers seeking to improve
their skills and eam & Caild Develcpment Associate credential.

: At the state level, progress is uneven, depending more on
the health of each state's economy than on its child care needs.
States with stronger economies (such as Massachusetts and New
York) are taking positive steps, while states with wuaker
economies have not only failed to move forward but, worse Yet,
have moved backwards. Georgia, which provides child care help to
only 8,000 out of 76,000 eligible children, reduced it- child
care budget by 37 percent last year. They, "as all of us who have
struggled to build a decent child care systeuw, were faced with

: painful choices. Tiie state did not reduce the number of children

i who receive child care help but instead lowered already miniwmal

g standards for child care and reduced salaries for child care
workers.

¢ Even the states that have taken important steps forwa:d bave
failed to create a sensible pattern of services which are easily
accessible to parents. One example is state efforts to develop

p preschool programs for four year olds. While the growth of early

. childhood development programs for low income children is a very

e important goal, it must be corz&laies? 4ith famiiies' child care

. needs. These new programs, however, while ostensibly seeking %o

‘ meet the needs of working parents, are only open for a limited
number of hours, not a full working day.

A plecemeal approach to meeting the ever growing child care
needs of America's families will not provide children and
families with the suppor: they need. The time has come for a
bold and far-reaching approach to child care.

The need is startling: Child care costs are high, averaging
K approximately $3,000 a year per child. Yet, in 1984, one fifth
of husbands heading two parent families and 2/3 of women heading
single parent families were low wage earners. They could not
earn enough to meet the yearly poverty income level for a family
of four, even if they worked 52 weeks a year. This situation
does not promise to improve. Between 1963 and 1978, 27 percent
of all new jobs paid less than §$8,700 a year in 1984 2 llars.
From 1978 to 1984, 37 percent of new jobs were in thu. category.

These families cannot £ind adequate help in meeting their
child care needs:

. o Fewer than 10 perent of the 1.1 million eligible

- California children who are fourteen or younger can be
gserved at the state's current level of child care
funding.

rRiC . 214

A Fui Tex: Provided by ERIC




211

o Louisiana, which will reduce child care expenditure
by 20 percent this year, already has 9,000 children on
the waiting 1ist for state funded child care.

o In 1986, nearly half of Kentucky's counties gave no
state funded child care assistance to chiidren of low-
income working parents. .

o In 1984, only 20,000 of the 300,000 Pennsylvania
children in need of subsidized care received it.

o In more than 230 public housing projects with child
care centers recently surveyed, thuce was a waiting
list of approximately 96,000 ch.ldren. Purthermore,
surveyors estimated that households with approximately
170,000 children might be interested in tke centers'
services if care were to be available for a wider range
of children for more hours.

o In a new national survey of 600 American families
conducted by the American Pederation of State, County,
and Municipal Employees (APSCME), nearly four out of
ten respondents claimed that they cannot afford the
service they use or are precluded from using other,
more desirable, services by cost.

The need, however, goes beyond affordability. Too many
states have failed to enact and enforce bagic health and safety
protections for children. State child care standards vary
widely. 1In too many cases, standards are so minimal that
children's basic health and safety is threatened. The growing
number of infants in child care poses a .special concern. The
National Aggociation for the Education of Young Children, the
major membership organization representing early childhood
development. professionals recommends that no more than three
infants ghoyld be cared for by one caregiver. fThis ratio is not
difficult to comprehend. small infants require a great deal of |
constant attention, including frequent feedings. Yet, only three
states (Zansas, Maryland and Massachusetts) require the 1:3
ratio. Seven states allow one caregiver to care for six infants.
Two states allow as many as seven and one sgtate (South Carolina)
will let one caregiver care fnr eight infants. Wwhen disaster
strikes, the consequences can be grims

o Last November, Tiffany, age 2, and Asif, age 4, were
killed when a fire broke out in an unlicenaed family
day oare home in Brooklyn, New York. Six other
children were injured. Two of the six children were 11
months old, the others were two and three years old.

No caregiver could carry all eight children.
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While child care experts believe that the size of a group of
children is key to the learning environment, 26 states have no
requirements for group size relative to age of children. 1t is
possible, in such a situation, to hav® 30 three year olds in one
room, though the quality of that care is most certainly lowered.

Training of staff is intimately linked to the quality of
care yet 20 states hava no ongoing training requirements for

staff working in child care centers and 35 scates do not require -
traiuing, at all, for family day care home providers. Twenty-two

stzces have no pre-service requirement for teachers in chaxge of

classrooms, nine states do not require directors of child care

programs to have any training prior to employment. r

Unlimited purental access, the right of a parent to visit
their child's program at any time, is a sound concept. While
most working parents are unlikely to disrupt a caregiver's
schedule, they certainly should have the right to assure their
child's basic safety and well being at all times. However, 33
states do not guarantee unlimited parental access for child care
centers and 39 states for family day care homes.

Lower quality care has many consequences. A study of abuse
and neglect in North Carolina day care programs found that child
care centers which met lower standards and were subject to less
monitoring were five times as likely ta have a serious complaint
than programs whizh met higher standards and received more
frequent monitoring. Complaints against unregistered family day
care nacees were three times as likely to be severe as those
against registered homes.

The quality of child care is also threatened by the low
salaries paid to child care providers. In 1984, 90 percent of
private household child care workers and 58 percent of all other
child care workers earned less than poverty-level wages. Despite
higher levels of education, child care providers are paid less
per hour than animal caretakers, bartenders, or parking lot and
amusement parh attendants, according to the 1980 census. Low
salaries hurt vhe quality of child care available. These
salacies make it increasingly difficult to attract rhose
caregivers with the training that enables them to care best for
young children. The National Day Care Study, commissioned by the
U. S. Departmenc of Health, Education and Welfare in 1976, found
that children in child care centers--especially low-income
children--make the greatest test score gains when they are with
caregivers who have participated in specialized education and
training programs. But, child care administrators point out that
the wages offered today make such staffing virtually impossible
to maintain.

a confluence of circumstances has helpei move child care to
a priority position on the public policy agenda. Three factors L
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contribute to the current climate: the Welfare Reform debates, a
reawakening of interest in early childhood development programs,
and increasing middle class frustration with the lack of quality
child care.

There is a broad consensus that the welfare system is
fundamentally flawed and must, for the economic health of the
nation as well as for that of poor (amilies, be."fixed.* This
question~-how to £ix welfare-~has fostered heated debate at the
state and federal level. However, there is agreemant by all
players that child care is a critical part of a strategy to move
families from poverty and dependence on welfar. to salf-
sufficlency through education, training, and employment. The
welfare reform debate hus provided a forum in which to publicize
the well documented link between the avallability of affordable
child care and the ability of low-income parerts to wurk. , A
broader audience is now aware of studiés such as the one
conducted by the National Social Science and Law Canter in 1986
exploring the barriers to ewployment faced by single mothers
receiving welfare benefits In Washington state. Nearly two-
thirds of the respondents cited difflculties with child care
arrangements as the primary problem in seeking and keeping a job.
Seventy-six percent of those women in the survey who had given up
looking for work eited child care difficulties as preventing
thelr search for or attainment of employment. A 1982 Census
Bureau survey found that 45 percent of zingle parents and 36
percent of low-income parents would work if child care were
available at a reasonable cost.

A recent survey by the Legal Ald Society of Northeastern New
York of 101 low income mothers found that mora than half of the
non-working mothers survaeyed and 57 percent of those recently
unemployed were not working because of problems finding child
cara.

Yet another recent repurt by the GAO: wWork and Welfare:
Current APDC Work Programs »ud Izplications ¥or Federal Policy
not that abeut 60 percent of its APDC work program respondents
sald that lack of child care prevented participation. 1In certain
cases, shortage of child care providers seemed to pose major
problems in arranging child care for participants work programs,
howaever, states reported spending very little on child care.

Child care accounted for only 6.4 percent of the median program's
budget.

The lack of child care also prohibits women from working
longer hours. Almost 35 percent of women who are working at or

looking for part time jobs said thay would work longer hours if
child care were availabla.

On the other hand, a public investment in child care has
baen shown to be cost effective. The Colorado Department of
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Social Sarvices has escimated that providing child care
assistance to low-incowa working families costs only 38 percent
of what it would cost to provide these same families with AFDC
and Medicaid benefits, vere they unemployed.

An understanding of these and similar findings has resulted
in the inclusion of significant child care provisions in state
welfare reform measures—-most notably in the Massachusetts ET

zogram, which commits 50 percent of its total budget to child
care for progran participants, and in the Ccalifornia GAIN
prograw, which in its first year had a child care budget of six
million dollars. .

One Louisville, Kentucky mother who has become indepandent
with the kelp of child care assistance speaks movingly about the
‘rewards: . .

“We have a very low income and without child care help, I

wouldn't get the tz2ining I need to make us a better future

and maybe some day help someone elge.“

Pederal welfare reform measures now pending before Congress
do include child care policy improvements. Howaver, the child
care provisions of welfare reform proposals cannot address the
gaps in our current child care system. Those of us concerned
with child care understand welfare rcform as part of a means to
an end. It may result in modest but important policy
rpodifications and funding increases. But, perhaps more
significantly, the welfare reform movement has educated
policymakers, both public and private, about the role that child
care plays in helping 1ift themsalves out of poverty. The
welfare debate has preparad the ground for more substantial steps
toward & decent child care system.

While the welfare reform debate has helped heighten an
uhderstanding of the link betwean the availability of child care
and the ability of low-income parents to move from dependency to
self-gufficiency, there is also a broader understanding of the
link betweon high quality child care and preschool programs and
our nation's future economic health. High quality preschool ox
early childhood developrent programs can provide children,
particularly low-income children, with the foundation upon which
to build the basic skills thacv they need to become successful
students and eventually prcductive adults.

Denmographic changes, particularly the rapidly 4teclining
percentage of young people and cnildren in the population, drive
&n increased interest in “early investrment,“ which includes high
quality preschool proyrams. Young people between the ages of 16
and 24 made up 27 parcent of the population in 1978. By
contrast, in 1995, they will account for only 18 percent of the
population. As the number of future workers declines, the value

6




of every individual worker to business and indust.y increases.
Yet, our traditicnal neglect of childre:., particularly poor
children, imperils their futures and our future as a competitive
nation.

o One in four children is poor.
o One in three is non-white, of whom two in five are
puor. .
() One in five is at risk of becoming a teen parent.
o gne in six is in a family in which neither parent has a
obe
. o One in geven is at risk of dropping out of school.

The need to invest now in young children, to help compensate

for past neglect and to helr assure a competitive workforce.in

. the future, should and does seem to weigh more heavily on the
minds of policymakers. Am increasing number of business and .
government leaders agree that early childhood development -
programz play a key role in getting children off to a strong :
start. For example, the Research and Policy Committee of the :
busines3-led Committee fo: Economic Development firmly supports a
public investment in such.programs for low-income children and
finds chat the benefits far outweigh the costse. According to the :
National Governor's. Association in its 1986 report Time for "
Results: The Governors' 1991 Reggrt‘ggsEducation, quality early
childhood programg "reduce the high school dropout rate, increase

the college attendance¢ rate, increase employment, and reduce the -

welfare and crime rate after high school.” In an article on

Anerica's "underclass" Fortune magazine strongly supported

including comprehensive early childhood development programs,

such as Head Start, as the child care component of any workfare

programs,

While all american children could benefi: from preschool .
programs, those who are less well-off have, by far, the most to -
gain from such programs- ‘though they are far less likely to get ——

" the chance to participate. In fact, they are less than half as :
likely. In 1985, fewer than 33 percent of four-year-olds and 17
percent of three-vear-clds whose families had incomes of less
tran §10,000 a year were enrolled in preschool programs, } N
according to Sheila Kamerman and Alfred Kahn of the Columbia  _ -
School of Social Work. In contrast, 67 percent of four-year-olds -7
and 54 percent of three~year-olds whose families have incomes of
§35,000 a year or more attend preschool programs. Poor children .
are not getting an equal opportunity to participate in the early
childhood development programs that they so badly need if they
are to have an egual opportunity to build successful academic
careers,

i

A positive early cnildhood development experience helps low- -
income children begin school on a footing more even with their
more advantaged peers, improving their ability to gain the basic
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skills so necessary to their ‘future success. The level of a
young person's reading and math skills has a powerful effect on
his or her future employment prospects, according to data from
the National Longitudinal Survey of Young Americans, analyzed by
Dr. Andrew Sum of Northeastern University. Youths who by age
eighteen have the weakest basic skills (in the lowest fifth) are
between four and seven times more likely to be jobless and out of
school .in subsequent years than those with above average basic
skills. The-average poor teenager who is unemployed has basic
skills in the bottom fifth relative to his or her age group and
poor jobless minority teens, on the average, fall in the lowest
tenth of the basic' skills distribution for their peers.

Basic skills .°ficiencies are linked closely to the problems
of poverty among <nildren and youths. 1In large part as a result
of the.deprivation they experience wh'le growing up, nearly half
of all poor youtks are concentrated in the bottom fifth of the
basic skills rankings of all young Americans. More than three-
fourths -have below average skills. 1In their hiring decisions,
employers-often use.-a high school diploma as a screening
mechanism or proxy for attainment of basic skills. It is not
surprising, given the fact that 85 percent of all high school
dropouts: have below average basic skills, that dropouts are two
and-a half times more likely to be unemployed than high school
graduates. Iropically, as women's labor force participation has
increased over the last decade, the likelihood that a Jlack
single-mother, between the ages of 18 and 34 with two or more
children is working has decresed from 34 to 31 percent. A
primary reason for the decreased work participation among black

. women is their high:school dropout rate.

Even for youths without diplomas, however, strong basic
skills make & difference. Male dropoutg with very good basic
skills earn nearly twice as much on average 2s those wich very
poor skills. They also out-earn male high school graduates with
the lowest skill level by roughly 50 percent. The growing
awareness of the importance of basic skills, accompanied by an
enhanced understanding of the importance that early childhood
development programs play in making sure that children are ready
to learn basic skills when they enter school, is fostering

_increased public support not just for child care, but also for
high quality child care.

- A third factor is emerging to make child care a policy
priority: an increasing number of middle income families are
expressing dissatisfaction with their child care arrangements. A
number of recent studies vividly illustrate that dissatisfaction
with child care arrangements or lack of child arrangements
adversely affects the productivity of America's working parents.
The AFSCME poll found that three in ten parents suffer from fear
that the child care that they are able to afford is not of high
quality. Pully 28 percent of all working parents interviewed
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with children 12 and under had given up a job or a promotion
because of .the lack of child care. A recent Census Bureau study
reported tbat one in twenty working parents were absent from work
in the month previous to the study because of problems with their
child care arrangements. A Fortune magazine study of 400 working
mothers and fathers with children under 12 also found that
dissatisfaction with child care was the most reliable predictor
for absenteeism and unproductive work time. . -

In some cases, the shortage of child care was greater than
the ramifications of reduced productivity.

Linda Grant's two small children, anthony (age three) and
Maurice (age four) died in pade County, Florida, on November
6, 1986, in an accident that could have been averted had the
family had access to child care help. Aalthough Ms. Grant
worked to support her- family, her income was so low that she
could not afford to pay for child care for the two children.
Because she qualified for government help, she put her
children on Florida‘'s waiting list for child care
assistance, a list which then included 22,000 other names.

While she waited for help, Ms. Grant relied on friends and
relatives to care for the children. But, some days these
arrangements fell through, and the boys were left alone. On
one such day, Novemher 6, Maurice and Anthony climbed into
the clothes dryer tu look at a magazine in a seemingly cozy
place, closed the door, and tumbled and burned to death. .

After their deaths, the Miami Herald observed that *anthony
and Maurice might be alive today 1f affordable care had been
available.” The wait for subsidized day care is eighteen to
twenty-four months, because local, state, and feceral
governments have been unwilling to provid- cthe funds to meet
the demand for child care help to low-income families. The
Miami News wrote, "There are hundreds, maybe thousands more
tragedies waiting to happen in pade Count¥ alone, in every
home where young children are left to fend for themselves...
They're not latchkey kids, they're lockup kids, locked
inside for the day by parents who can't afford day care,
can't afford not to work and can't get government
assistance...” pade County Juvenile Court Judge William
Gladstone said, "People who don't want to fund these
programs are child abusers."

The challenge before us at the local, state, and federal
level is to weave various concerns about child care issues
together to demonstrate that they are complementary, not
competi-3j, concezns and to translate the various concerns into a
new national policy.
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- The Children's Defense Fund, in collaboration with over 60
national organizations, has launched a major campaign to foster
such a.policy. This collaboration, the Alliance for Better Child
Care (ABC), now includes members such as the Child Welfare League
of :America, the Office of Church and Society of the United Church
of  Christ, the American Academy of Pediatrics, The National
Parent Teacher Association, the American Federation of Teachers,
the Hational Education Association, the Service.Employees
International Union, the Association of Junior Leagues, and many
other religious, wcmen's and children's organizations as well as
unions and professional groups. The goal of ABC is to pass a
major national child care initiative which would make new funds
available to help.low and moderate income families meet the cost
of child care while, at the same time, providing states with
direct funds and financial incentives to improve the qguality and
.expand the supply of chilq_cdre for all fawmilies. .

v -
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We believe the time for such an initiative is ripe not only
for the-critical reasons already discussed but also because a
0 growing segmént of the American public supports increaged public
spending for child care. A recent Harris poll found that 73
ef - _percent of the respondents wculd be willing to increase their
.o taxes to pay for child care. ABC news pollsters for the
) Washington Post found that 57 percent of the respondents felt
B child care programs should be increased in 1987, as compared to
46 percent in 1986. Finally, 71 percent of the AFSCME
respondents said that government should be doing more to supply
affordable child care. .

o NG v

4 The responsibility for the provision of high quality child

. care services must be shared by many partners. Such a
partnership must include all levels of government, the private
sector, both nonprofit organizations and employers, and parents.
over the past several years, we have seen many of these players
expand their role in the provision of child care.

- Some state governments are increasing state dollars

committed to child care. Other states have taken similar steps.

: However, the uneven nature of the states' child care policies
makes it clear that they cannot £i1l1 in the large gaps in our

: child care system by themselves.

The private sector has .also taken a larger role in child
care. Churches are currently the largest source of child care in
' America. Funding of child care services has become 2 ; ~iority
for the United Way of America. For example, the Unitea Way of
Delaware funds more child care services in Delaware than the
, . state government does.

Employers, too, are increasing their investment in child
care. The percent of employers providing some type of child care
assistance to their employees has increased 400 percent in the
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last four years, but still only 3,000 out of six million
employers provide some type of child care agsistance to their
employees. Child care remains the least frequently offered of
all employee benefits. Employers' child care assistance can also
be quite limited. It ranges from sponsoring noontime seminars on
parenting, helping employees find child care, increasing the
cupply of family day care programs, to sponsoring on-site child
care centers. The majority of employers who offer on-site child
care are hospitals who use the service as a recruitment tool for
nurses. A recent Fortune magazine article highlighted the
limitations of on-site child care:

o The problems with on~site day care are not so obvious.
Since the centers have limited openings, some employees
get preferential treatment. Manufacturers tend to
build on~sit+ day care at headquarters where their
higher-paid empIoyees work; often no child care is
available at the factories, says, Robert FLurie,
President of Resources for Child Care Management, a
consulting firm:s "You fird situations where the people
using the centers are the well-paid professionals who
can afford the fees." .

Few employers actually help employees pay for child care.
Those that provide assistance in buying child care generally
offer help through a salary reduction, an approach that most
benefits higher paid employees. Few employers have followed the
example of American EX;_.ss, which uses its resources to help
their own employees as well as families living in the community.
American Express sponsors community-wide resource and referral
programs and family day care recruitment campaigns.

While the roles of state governments and the private sector
have increased, the role of the federal government has
diminished. The current administration not only refuses to
become an equal partner in the_ provision of child care, it has
abdicated its potential leadership role both in helping to make
child care affordable and in ensuring minimal health and safety
protections for children in care. Title XX, the largest source
of direct federal funds available to help states make child care
more affordable to low-~income families, has been slashed so
dramatically over the past six years that its buying power ir
1986 was less than 50 percent of what it was in 1975. We wi:l
not have a coherent child care policy in this country until the
federal government joins state governments, the private sector,
and parents in the emerging partnership.

While the final details of the ABC legislation are still
being hammered out through a consensus procedure by Alliance
members, as well as child care advocates and policymakers across
the country, there are broad principles which underscore this
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effort. These include the principle that the federal government
has a responsibility to help make child care available and to
ensure minimal levels of health and safety protections for
children in child care.

In order to meet its child care responsibilities, there is
no doubt that the federal government will have to commit
substantial new funds. While we understand that there is
tremendous resistance to major new federal spending, it is time
to face-this country's child care needs head on. There is no way
that we can help the millions of families who cannot afford child
care and improve the quality of that child care without a
significant infusion of new resources. We, as a nation, must
meec that reality. .We realize that we have a formidable task
ahead. It will take many voices speaking strongly together to
make a national child care policy a reality. We are optmistic
because we believe that to put off addressing child care for very
much longer threatens not only the future of our young children
but of our entire economy. .
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Mr. MarTINEZ. Thank you, Ms. Blank. I am with you. ‘
Ms. BLANK. Good. .
Mr. MarTINEZ. Because you do have to leave, I am going to ask

any of the panel members if they have any guestions. If they want

to defer-at this time, we-will allow the recor again to remain open
so they might write the questions to you and you might communi-
cate back with them through the mail.

Dges anyone have any compelling questions they have to ask
now'

Mr. MARTINEZ. Mr. Chairman, yes?

Mr. Hawxins. I have many questions, but I will follow the admo-
nition you have given to us.

I would simply like to take the opportunity to thank Ms. Blank
for the cooperation that she has displayed in helping the staff of
the committees of the Education and Labor Committee. She has
been a tremendous source of expertise and cooperation. And I
think we should publicly acknowledge that and express the appre- :
ciation of the committee, the full committee as well as the subcom- :
mittee, for what she has been doing. !

Ms. Brang. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. :

Mr. Hawkiws. Thank you.

Ms. Brank. We look forward to working with you further. We
would hope that the ABC bill would come to this committee and we
would really have an opportunity to deal with women’s and chil- i
dren’s issues. Thank you. :

Mr. MARTINEZ. I join with the Chairman in showing appreciation
for the work you have done not orly in helping us, but in helping
those children. Thank you. >

Ms. BLANk. Thank you. ‘

Il\ilel;i MArTINEZ. You are at liberty to go now if you feel so com- :
pelled.

Ms. BLaMK. Thank you very much.

Mr. MARTINEZ. Mr. Engelter.

STATEMENT OF GEORGE ENGELTER, MEMBER, NATIONAL LEGIS-
LATIVE COMMITTEE, AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF RETIRED
PERSONS

Mr. ENGELTER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

It is a pleasure for me to be here this morning to discuss with
, you the issues of elder care and family caregivers.
: The American Association of Retired Persons, the Nation’s larg-
. est membership organization of older Americans with more than 26
. million members above the age of 80, has a very great interest in
). this issue from a number.of perspectives. Not only are our mem-
bers receivers of family care, but overwhelmingly they are also the --
providers of care, especially for the older family members.

Americans are living longer than ever before. The 85 plus popu-
lation is the Nation’s fastest Frowing age group, and 78 percent of
them still live in their own homes or with relatives. Older people
turn most frequently to their spouse or adult children when they
require help. In 1985 Newsweek magazine estimated that up to 5
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million Americans provide care to a parent in some way on any
given day.

Contrary -to expectations family care for the frail, elderly has
become more and more common for a number of reasons. One, of
course, is that Medicare compels the release of people from hospi-
tals much earlier than was previously the case.

Another is the lack of consistent insurance mechanisms to pay
for long:term elder care. Medicaid is for many people unavailable
or an unacceptable choice.

Finally, many care-givers and care receivers simply feel that
family care is the best care of all. Care-giving is a burden of love.
Caregiving is a .family issue, but the care-%ivers for all family
members is usually a woman and she is usually a mid-life or older
woman. Of the 2 and two-tenths million Americans providing care
for the frail elderly in 1982 more than 70 percent were women.
Their aven:‘glgbage was 57. And more and more frequently these
care-givers alse work outside of the home.

It is undiszuted that care-giving has many, many rewards. It also
extracts maay costs, physical, emotional and financial. Indeed, one-
third of the ¢der care-givers rated their own health as only fair or
poor. Care-giving is a Eighly stressful occupation, particularly for
those women who also are employed outside of the home. Statistics
cannot describe the price paid by those providing care. Nonethe-
less, I would like to give you a brief view, particularly on the eco-
nomic issues.

As I noted mid-life and older women work outside the home in
very large numbers. More than half of AARP’s 7 million working
members are women. And 62 percent of women aged 45 to 54 work,
a percentage higher than that for working women of all ages, and
42 percent of the women aged 55 to 65 work. Now, these percent-
ages drop significantly for women who care for older parents,
whose lower labor force participation is reflected in lower incomes.
In 1982 a third of these caregivers were poor or near poor.

Nonetheless, many care-givers do hold jobs outside of the home;
44 percent were care-giving daughters in 1982. But care-giving can
be a second full-time job as the recent Traveler’s Corporation study
found. Often it is entirely too demanding. An astonishingly high 11
percent of mid-life and older working women had to leave their
jobs i1 1985 to care for an older family member.

Working care-givers struggle to accommodate their two jobs at
the least expense to the employer. Unpaid leave is taken only in
exceptional circumstances and is of minimum duration. In 1985
fewer than 20 percent of working care-givers for older persons took
any unpaid leave whatsoever. Such leave was almost always less
than five days’ duration.

Time out of the work force for any family member, something
women do throughout their work lives, is a major contributor to
the gloomy retirement income picture for many older women. Fre-
quent job loss, the lack of job protection for those taking temporary
leave and low wages have combined to severely limit the amount of
work-related retirement income earned by women.

Public and private pension is a function of time in a job as well
as wages. But only 20 percent of women over 65 receive private or
public pensior as compared to 42 percent for men. Of the very
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small number of women, 12 percent, receiving private pensions, the
average monthly check for an older woman is half, or $221, of that
of an older man of $441.

ial Security:income is similarly lower for those who encounter
job loss, Longer periods. of unemployment and age and sex discrimi-
nation when.looking for jobs, events that often affect care-givers.

As a general matter, single older women average less than two-
thirds the annual retirement income of single older men.

Now, AARP is one of the many groups that has been working
diligently .on this issue from a variety of perspectives. We have
published a host of resource books and pamphlets for care-givers,
work with community organizations and employers to develop
workshops.and related care-giver programs. And we are developing
training programs an information on home narsing skills and
short-term respite care.

We are encouraged by the business community’s incren>ing rec-
ognition that their employees must provide care for their owa par-
ents and spouses. We hope that this leads to consistent assistance
to the large number of working people who care for their older par-
ents and older family members. Information programs, community
care programs, respite care and similar benefits are critical to the
helping care-givers cope with their dual careers.

On their own initiative, however, employers have been rather
slow to meet one of the critical needs of care-givers, and that is job
protection for those who must leave the work force temporarily.

We strongly support the Family and Medical Leave Act now
moving through this committee. I urge you not only to support this
bill, but to expand it to allow leave for all family members, includ-
inz spouses, not just parents and children. Only in this way will it
reflect the reality of family life today and the multiple roles and
responsibilities that women, especially the older woman, in today’s
work force.

The Family and Medical Leave Act is but one of many reforms
needed to recognize the contribution of family care-givers not only
to their families but to society in general.

Other reforms, some of which are contained in the Economic
Equity Act, such as increased dependent care tax credits, would
give economic value to the work of care-givers.

I ask you pleasge to give your strong support on these and related
initiatives. And I thank you so very much for this opportunity to
speak to you on this critical issue and to give you an overview of
the position of my organization. Thank you very much.

[Prepared statement of George Engelter follows:)
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: PREPARED STATEMENT OF GEORGE ENGELTER, AARP BoARrDp OF DIRECTORS, AMERICAN i
' AssociATioN oF ReTIRED PERrsoNs
\ MR. CHAIRMAN AND MEMBERS OF THE SUBCOMMITTEE:
THANK YOU FOR THIS OPPORTUNITY TO DISCUSS WITH YOU THE ISSUE
OF ELDER CARE AND FAMILY CAREGIVERS. THE AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF
RETIRED PERSONS, THE NATION'S LARGEST MEMBERSHIP ORGANIZATION OF 2
OLDER AMERICANS WITH MORE THAN 26 MILLION MEMBERS ABOVE AGE 50 .
[ AND ABOVE, HAS A VERY GREAT INTEREST IN THIS ISSUE FROM A NUMBER £
OF PERSPECTIVES: NOT ONLY ARE OUR MEMBERS RECEIVERS OF FAMILY
CARE, BUT, OVERWHELMINGLY, THEY ARE ALSO THE PROVIDERS OF CARE,
ESPECIALLY. FOR OLDER FAMILY MEMBERS.

AMERICANS ARE NOW LIVING LONGER THAN EVER BEFORE. THE 85-
3LUS POPULATION IS THE NATION'S FASTEST GROWING AGE GROUP, AND
78% OF THEM STILL LIVE IN THEIR OWN HOME OR WITH RELATIVES.
OLDER PEOPLE TURN MOST FREQUENTLY TO THEIR SPOUSES OR ADULT
’ CHILDREN WHEN THEY NEED HELP. IN 1985, NEWSWEEK MAGAZINE
ESTIMATED THAT UP TO FIVE MILLION AMERICANS PROVIDE CARE TO A
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PARENT IN SOME WAY ON ANY GIVEN DAY.

CONTRARY 'TO EXPECTATIONS, FAMILY CARE FOR THE FRAIL ELDERLY
HAS BECOME MORE AND MORE COMMON, FOR A NUMBER OF REASONS. ONE, OF

f" COURSE, IS THAT MEDICARE COMPELS THE RELEASE OF PEOPLE FROM .
i HOSPITALS EARLIER THAN WAS PREVIOUSLY THE CASE. ANOTHER IS THE '
‘a LACK OF ANY CONSISTENT INSURANCE MECHANISM TO PAY FOR LONG-TERM

ELDER é)\nz.. MEDICAID IS, FOR MANY PEOPLE, UNAVAILAELE OR' AN

" UNACCEPTABLE CHOICE. FINALLY, MANY CAREGIVERS AND CARE~RECEIVERS
SIMPLY FEEL THAT FAMILY CARE IS THE BEST CARE OF ALL, CAREGIVING
IS A BURDEN OF LOVE.

CAREGIVING IS A FAMILY ISSUE, BUT THE CAREGIVER FOR ALL
FAMILY MEMBERS IS USUALLY A WOMAN - AND SHE IS USUALLY A MIDLIFE
. OR OLDER WOMAN. OF THE 2.2 MILLION AMSRICANS PROVIDING CARE FOR
THE FRAIL ELDERLY IN 1982, MORE THAN 70% WERE WOMEN. THEIR
AVERAGE AGE WAS 57. AND, MORE AND MORE FREQUENTLY, THESE
CAREGIVEF ALSO WORK OUTSIDE THE HOME.

IT IS UNDISPUTED THAT CAREGIVING HAS MANY, MANY REWARDS. IT
ALSO EXTRACTS MANY COSTS -~ PHYSICAL, EMOTIONAL AND FINANCIAL.
g INDEED, ONE-THIRD OF émgn CAREGIVERS RATED THEIR OWN HEALTH AS
ONLY FAIR OR POOR. CAREGIVING IS A HIGHLY STRESSFUL OCCUPATION,
PARTICULARLY FOR THOSE WOMEN WHO ALSO ARE EMPLOYED OUTSIDE THE
HOME. STATISTICS CAN'T REALLY DESCRIBE THE PRICE PAID BY THOSE
PROVIDING CARE, BUT NONETHELESS I'D LIKE TO GIVE YOU A FEW.

229

RIAY¢D 2
o oo ;

» ERIC




i

i3

PARTICULARLY ON THE ECONOMIC ISSUES.

AS I NOTED ABOVE, MIDLIFE AND OLDER WOMEN WORK OUTSIDE THE

HOME IN VERY LARGE NUMBERS.

- MORE THAN HALF OF AARP'S SEVEN MILLION WORKING MEMBERS
ARE WCMEN.

- 2% OF "IOMEN AGED 45-54 WORK - A PERCENTAGE HIGHER THAN
THAT FOR WORKING WOMEN OF ALL AGES. 42% OF WOMEN AGED 55
65 WORK.
THESE PERCENTAGES DROP SIGNIFICANTLY FOR WOMEN WHO CARE FOR OLDE:
PARENTS, WHOSE LOWER LABOR F.RCE PARTICIPATION IS REFLECTED IN

LOWER INCOMES. IN 1982, A THIRD OF THESE CAREGIVERS WERE POOR Ol

NEAR-POOR.

NONETHELESS, MANY CAREGIVERS DO HOLD JOBS OUTSIDE THE HOME -
44% OF CAREGIVING DAUGHTERS IN 1982, BUT CAREGIVING CAN BE A
SECOND FULL-TIME JOB, AS THE RECENT TRAVELER'S CORPORATION STUDY
FOUND. OFTEN, IT IS TOO DEMANDING ~ AN ASTONISHINGLY HIGH il% OF
MIDLIFE AND OLDER WORKING WOMEN HAD TO LEAVE THEIR JOBS IN 15985
TO CARE FOR AN OLDER FAMILY MEMBER.

WORKING CAREGIVERS STRUGGLE TO ACCOMMODATE THEIR TWO JOBS AT
THE LEAST EXPENSE TO THEIR EMPLOYER. UNPAID LEAVE IS TAKEN ONLY
IN EXCEPTIQNAI.. CIRCUMSTANCES AND IS OF MINIMUM DURATION -
' - IN 1985, FEWER THAN 20% OF WORKING CAREGIVERS FOR OLDER

PERSONS TOOK ANY UNPAID LEAVE WHATSOEVER. SUCH LEAVE WAS
ALMOST ALWAYS OF LESS THAN FIVE DAYS DURATION.

TIME OUT OF THE WORKFORCE TO CARE FOR ANY FAMILY MEMBER =~

O
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SOMETHING WOMEN DO THROUGHOUT THEIR WORK LIVES - IS A MAJOR
CONTRIBUTOR TO THE GLOOMY RETIREMENT INCOME PICTURE FOR MANY OF
OLDER WOMEN. FREQUENT JOB LOSS, THE LACK OF JOB PROTECTION FOR
THOSE TAKING TEMPORARY LEAVE, AND LOW WAGES HAVE COMBINED TO
SEVERELY LIMIT THE AMOUNT OF WORK-RELATED RETIREMENT INCOME
EARNED BY WOMEN.

PUBLIC AND PRIVATE PENSION INCOME IS A FUNCTION OF TIME IN A
JOB AS WELL S WAGES. BUT -

= ONLY 20% OF WOMEN OVER 65 RECEIVE PRIVATE. OR PUBLIC
PENSION BENEFITS, COMPARED TO 42% OF MEN.

-~ OF THE VERY SMALL NUMBER OF WOMEN (12%) RECEIVING PRIVATE
PENSIONS, THE AVERAGE MONTHLY CHECK FOR AN OLDER WOMAN IS
HALF ($221) OF THAT FOR AN OLDER MAN ($441).
SOCIAL SECURITY INCOME IS SIMILARLY LOWER FOR THOSE WHO
ENCOUNTER JOB LOSS, LONGER PERIODS OF UNEMPLOYMENT AND AGE AND
SEX DISCRIMINATION WHEN LOOKING FOR JOBS =~ EVENTS ..AT OFTEN

AFFECT CAREGIVERS.

AS A GENERAL MATTER, SINGLE OLDER WOMEN AVERAGE LESS THAN
TWO-THIRDS THE ANNUAL RETIREMENT INCOME OF SINGLE OLDER MEN -
$6300 COMPARED TO $11,000 IN 1985. I'D LIKE YOU TO NOTE THAT THE
POVERTY LINE IN 1985 FOR A SINGLE ADULT WAS ABOUT $5300. THESE
FIGURES EXPLAIN WHY 75% OF OLDER PEOPLE LIVING IN POVERTY TODAY
ARE WOMEN.

AARP IS ONE OF MANY GROUPS THAT HAS BEEN WORKING ON THIS
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* ISSUE FROM A VARIETY OF PERSPECTIVES. WE HAVE PUBLISHED A
VARIETY OF RESOURCE BOOKS AND PAMPELETS FOR CAREGIVERS; WORK WITH

COMMUNITY ORGANIZATIONS AND EMBLOYERS TO DEVELOP WORKSHOPS AND
RELATED CAREGIVER PROGRAMS; AND ARE DEVELOPING TRAINING PROGRAMS

PSS
P

AND INFORMATION ON HOME NURSING SKILLS AND SHORT-TERM RESPITE
CARE.
o
WE ARE ENCOURAGED BY THE BUSINESS COMMUNITY'S INCREARSING
RECOSNITION THAT THEIR EMPLOYEES MUST PROVIDE CARE FOR‘ THEIR OWN
PARENTS AND SPOUSES. WE EOPE THIS LEADS TO SUBSTANTIVE AND
CONSISTENT ASSISTANCE TO THE LARGE NUMBER OF WORKING PEOPLE WEO
CARE FOR THEIR OLDER PARENTS AND OTHER FAMILY MEMBEFS.
INFORMATION PROGRAMS, COMMUNITY CARE PROGRAMS, RESPITE CARE AND
SIMILAR BENEFITS ARE CRITICAL TO HELPING CARESIVERS COPE WITH
THEIR DUAL CAREERS. -z

ON THEIR OWN INITIATIVE, HOWEvER, EMPLOYERS HAVE BEEN SLOW
70 MEET 'ONE OF THE MOST CRITICAL NEEDS OF CAREGIVERS - JOB
PROTECTION FOR THOSE WHO MUST LEAVE THE WORKFORCE TEMPORARILY.
AARP STRONGLY SUPPORTS THE FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE ACT (H.R.
925) NOW MOVING THROUGH THIS COMMITTEE. I URGE ¥OU NOT ONLY TO
SUPPORT THIS BILL BUT TO EXPAND IT TO ALLOW LEAVE FOR ALL FAMILY :
MEMBERS, INCLUDING SPOUSES, NOT JUST PAHENTS AND CHILDREN. ONLY

IN THIS WAY WILL IT REFLECT THE REALITY OF FAMILY LIFE TODAY AND
THE MULTIPLE ROLE. AND RESPONSIBILITIES WOMEN, ESPECIALLY OLDER

WOMEN, IN TODAY'S WORKFORCE.
L,

. ERIC
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THE FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE ACT IS BUT ONE OF MANY REFORMS o
NEEDED TO RECOGNIZE THE CONTRIBUTIONS OF FAMILY CAREGIVERS NOT
ONLY T0 THEIR FAMILIES JUT TO SOCIETY IN GENERAL. OTHER REFORMS, L.
SOME OF WHICH ARE CONTAINED IN THE ECONOMIC EQUITY ACT, SUCH AS e
INCREASED nnpmm CARE TAX CREDITS, WOULD GIVE ECONG.. ™ VALUE B
70 THE WORK OF CAREGIVERS. I ENCOURAGE YOu TO WORK ON THESE AND
RELATED INITIATIVES AND THANK YOU FOR THIS OPPORTUNITY TO SPEAK
WITH YOU ON THIS CRITICAL ISSUE. ..
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Mr. MarTINEZ. Thank you very much, George. You see how I got
around that-name? , -

This is an appropriate time for the Chair to announce that there
will'be a.10 minute recess for the -members tc go to the floor and
vote. And we-will return. Please bear with us.

Mr. MARTINEZ We are going to-reconvene, and any of the mem-
bers.that join us can pick up where we are when they come in.

Next, we will go to Ms. Pearce. Would you like to begin?

'STATEMENT OF DIANA PEARCE, DIRECTOR, WOMEN AND
S POVERTY PROJECT

Ms. Pearce. I would like to thank the Chair and members of the
Economic Opportunities Subcommittee for this opportunity to ad-
dress you concerning problems faced by employed women, especial-
ly low income women.

One of the dilemmas faced by many employed women is making
the choice between working full-time and part-time. While there is
much rhetoric about.how the job market has restructured itself to
meet the needs for flexibility of working women, particularly
women who are mothers of small children, wery woman knows
that choosing the flexible, part-time option m .ns taking a job that
is not considered a real job by her employe_s or even by herself.
Only full-time workers are ccnsidered real workers in this econo-
my. And only full-time jobs are considered real jobs.

I would like today to talk to you about this problem of the many

women who are marginal workers, pari-time or temporary, first by
describing part-time work and some of its character, then discuss-
ing two key issues in this area.
_ First, the assertion that many women, especially mothers who
want part-time work and are voluntary part-time workers, there-
fore, it is not-a probiem. And secondly, the issue where their fringe
benefits are really important since many people have access to
other sources of fringe benefits. And then I will end with some
ideas about how to deal with some of the issues.

Part-time/temporary work is a fast growing, but invisible ghetto
experienced by more and more women workers. Many of these
workers, because they work out of site as night-time office cleaners,
urban transit drivers, cafeteria cooks, and hospital laundry work-
ers, are doubly invisible. But even those who are seen by the public
inhabit an invisible occugational ghetto. We are all familiar with
the pink collar ghetto and the secretarial pool which are visible ex-
amples of the confinement of women workers to jobs with relative-
ly little economic opportunity. But when we enter a retail store,
eat at a restaurant or do business over the telephone, there is no
way of knowing who is full-time and who is part-time. Yet, the in-
visible ghetto of part-time is equally as restricting on the economic
opportunity of its inhabitants as the traditional occupational ghet-
toes that we have become acquainted with through the struggle
over pay equity.

Part-time work is a working women'’s issue because tvso-thirds of
part-time workers are women. Twice the proportion of employed
women as compared to men, over a quarter compared to 12 percent
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of men, work at part-time schedules. Moreover, these proportions
are ’like{zs to increase. Other groups which have traditionally
worked di proportionately on part-time schedules, namely teen-
agers and older; near-reiirement men, are decreasing in numbers
in the labor force while women are projected to be two-thirds of all
new workers by-19¢5: .

When combined with temporary or seasonal work, we find that
only 48 percent of employed women work full-time, year-round;
that is, at least 5010:52 weeks per year. Thus, the problems associ-
ated with the marginal-status of the part-time/temporary worker
are of direct concern.to the-majority of women wvorkers.

I would-like to add, by the way, that almost all the figures that”

we use on pay differential, like the 59 cents or 64 cents on the
dollar, the occupational segregation of women workers, are all cal-
culated on full-time, year-round workers, which is two-thirds of
men but only 48 percent of women. And it is very misleading and

excludes from our purview -the situation of the majority of women -

workers.

Part-time jobs are often temporary and/or seasonal as well. Only
about a third of women part-time workers worked all year. And 40
percent work less than half the year. So, when I say part-time, in a

sense it is a shorthand for the marginal woman worker. It is also- .

temporary.

Part-time jobs are poorly paid. Part-time jobs tend to be lower
waged while 5 percent of all jobs pay the minimum wage or less,
over a quarter of part-time jobs are minimum wage jobs.

Part-{ime jobs rarely have fringe benefits. About 84 percent of
part-time jobs provide no health coverage because of their low pay,
shorter hours end their temporary nature, leave the worker un-
qualified for unemployment insurance. Few provide sick leave, paid
holidays, pension or retirement funds, et cetera.

Part-time jobs are rarely an avenue to full-time work. Employers
do not value work experience gained as a part-time worker. And
even when part-time employees seek to move into full-time status
in the same job, they are often treated as outside applicants and
time put in as a parttime employee is not counted toward
senionity.

Moreover, opportunities to move into full-time employment are
decreasing as employers simply eliminate all full-time positions or
forbid, as with temporary office workers, the worker or the employ-
er from converting a person from part-time/temporary to full-time/
permanent status.

Part-time jobs are concentrated at the lower end of the occupa-
tional hierarchy. And this is I think scmewhat different than our
impression from reading what I call the Sunday supplement soci-
ology. Women professionals, such as doctors and lawyers over-
whelmingly work full-time. In contrast, three-fourths of part-time
jobs held by women are found in the service, sales and clerical sec-
tors. Over half of service and sales jobs held by women are part-
time. Even among clerical jobs, one-fourth of those held by women
are part-time.

Part-time jobs are im?overishing. Of women heads of households
who do not work at all, 57 percent are poor. Working part-time
only reduces this poverty rate to 47 percent. But full-time work for
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women- reduces this poverty rate to 15 percent. So, there is a huge
difference between full and g:-time work. So, going to work is not
the}slclgtiongin this society use of all the wage.rates and other
problems. Lo P . .

Part-time jobs -are expanding. Since 1968 time jobs have

.grown faster than full-time, In part this is a chicken and-egg phe-

nomenon. The fastest growing sectors, services, transportation, in-
formation, et cetera, are precisely the sectors which are heavily
part-time.in their job:structure. Thus the third fastest growing in-
dustry is-that of temporary. help.

But it is more than just.a consequence of the expansion of the
service sector. Many primary sector employers are converting full-
time -jobs to. part-time. For example, Best Products order takers
were '60 peroenglparttime in 1988, but 75 part-time by last year.
Even the Federal Government has expanded its part-time/tempo-
rary work force. There are now over 800,000 Federal workers who
can work up to four years without benefits, sick leave or any accru-
ing of seniority.

The percentage of workers on part-time schedules has expanded
relatively slowly, from 15 percent in 1954 to about 20 to 22 percent
gday. But several indicators suggest this will accelerate in the

ture.

First of all, part-time employment generally expands during re-
cessions and contracts with recovery. The mid-1980s showed no
such pattern. In other words, it did not decrease again after the re-
cession. Thus, in 1985 of .3 million new jobs, one-third were part-
time, and most of those were taken by women.

Second, the expansion of the service sector which has accounted
for much of the expansion of sart-time employment in the past i3
projected to continue to expand in numbers and in terms of its pro-
portion of employment.

But is it a problem? I want to talk about two issues that people
usually bring up when they are talking about part-time employ-
ment.

First, one fiequently hears that the preponderance of women
among part-time workers and part-time schedules among employed
~omen is not a problem because raost part-time workers are volun-
ta%l—women workers are voluntary. .

ere are three major problems with this assertion. First, the
term voluntary no longer adequately describes the kind of choices
made. The way the data is collected, voluntary includes not only
those who actively choose between part-time and full-time, but also
those who ‘“‘choose” part-time jobs when there is no full-time
ogtion; that is, because they knowingly chose a part-time job, that
choice is considered voluntary. Put another way, the only time
part-time employment is considered involuntary is when the em-
pk])aye_e has his hours reduced involuntarily by the employer.
ecause of the expansion of part-time employment, for many
workers, especially new and reentering workers, the choice is not
between full and part-time, but between part-time and no time—
that is, no job. In this situation, it is misleading to label such a
choice as voluntary, but we continue to do so.

Further evidence of the problematic meaning of voluntary is

found in increasing numbers of women who are moonlighting, who
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are holding more than one job. It now includes almost 2 million
women. -

The second problem with the assertion that part-time work
among women is not an issue because it is largelg' voluntary, is
that this ignores the context in which such choices are made. The
assumption often-stated explicitly is that employed because volun-
tarily choose part-time because it meets their need for flexibility to
fulfill their domestic obligations, particulary care of dependents.
Such an understanding ignores the fact there is a critical shortage
of child care that severely constrains such free choice. Thus, 85 per-
cent of women working part-time would work more hours if ade-
quate child care were available. Is it a voluntary choice when a
woman chooses part-time work with adequate or no need for de-
penq)ent care over full-time work with inadequate or no dependent
care?

And I think the rensarks of Helen Blank are quite appropriate
here. There is a tremendous need for child care that constrains
women’s choices in the labor market.

As it now stands, the advantages of part-time employment’s flexi-
bility accrue to the employer in lower wage costs while the costs
accrue to the women worker in limited opportunities for better
wages, advancement, training, et cetera.

This does not mean that no women worker is really voluntarily
choosing part-time over full-time work, but rather that until there
is adequate child and dependent care available so that choices are
truly voluntary, we will not really know what the real level of vol-
untary, part-time employment is. Until the voluntary/involuntary
distinction among part-time workers must be rejected not only as
false, but misleading in our attempts to understand the problems of
working women.

Third and finally, even if one does accept the voluntary/involun-
tary distinction, it is clear that more and more part-iime workers
are defining themselves as involuntary.

And voluntary part-time employment grew only 6.5 percent,
while involuntary part-time employment grew 60 percent over the
last six years. Secondly, the fringes issues. Few would disagree that
part-time employees generally have few, if any, of the fringe bene-
iits. But is often asserted that it is not a serious problem for it is
maintained that many part-time workers have access to health in-
surance through spouses or other relatives.

First, there are substantial numbers of part-time workers who do
not have access to benefits through others. Thus, wkile 42 percent
do have health coverage through a spouse or other relative, 42 per-
cent of part-time workers have no access to health coverage.

Second, many so-called fringe benefits cannot be gotten second-
hand. Thus, the lack of sick leave and paid holidays, the non-quali-
fication for unemployment insurance, the non-vesting in a pension,
are all fringe benefits whose lack has direct and non-replaceable
economic costs for the nor-covered part-time worker.

It should be noted that these sconomic costs should be reckoned
not in dollars and cents, but rather in econcmic security. Part-time
workers and their families experience real economic insecurity as a
consequence of the lack of fringe benefits.
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) Ultimately, the lack of fringe benefits and the resulting economic
insecurity becomes a societal problem. When part-time workers
lay the:health roulette because they lack health insurance and

'lose, society must pick up the tab-in the form of charity health care

or.'Medicaid. Whenthe aeed for sick leave or child care or health
care forces-a part-time worker who is also-a parent to leave em-
ployment-and seek welfare and Medicaid, society must pay. When
a part-time worker who has accrued little semiority, no {raining
and: low-wages reaches middle age and becomes a displaced home-
maker, society must pay. When a -time worker i)ecom% dis-
abled or reaches retirement age with little or no pension or insur-
ance and inadequate Social Security; society must pay.

Towards some solutions. As suggested by the discussion of fringe
benefits above, the problem of part-time employment is more than
one of lower wages. Rather, the invisible ghetto of part-time/tem-
porary work, overwhelmingly women and disproportionately mi-
nority, is creating an underclass of workers and their families who
suffor from low income und severe economic insecurity.

The inequality in both resources and security, between the in-
habitants of this invisible ghetto and full-time workers, shows
every indication of incrgasing unless something is done.

Three areas where the problems of part-time employment could
be addressed by public policy are—the first area to be addressed is
the unequal wages .of full and part-time workers. Full and part-
time workers should be paid equal wages for equal work, including
prorated fringe berefits, seniority credits, access to training, et
cetera. Part-time work should simply refer to hours, not to a whole
set of wage rates, benefits and economic opportunities that contrib-
utec}{ to the widening inequality between full-time and part-time
workers.

The second area is more difficult but crucial. And that is we
must find the means for employers to share the costs of fringe ben-
efits, such ag health insurance, among all employed members of a
family. This should include as well non-custodial parents. We have
made important strides towards sharing cash resources after di-
vorce through child support enforcement. We must now begin to
think about the economic security resources which may not be
equgll‘}ir distributed between the mother and father, but which are
crucial to the children’s futuze health, education, et cetera.

The third area involves developinf societal measures to more

oved persons to economic se-
curity resources. This strategy would be aralogous to auto insur-
ance. States have decided it is not in society’s interest to have some
individuals drive around without insurance for the cost is borne
both unfairly by random victims and societally in terms of charity
healtn care. Some workers have employers who do not provide any
employees fringe benefits so that the first messure, the prorated
benefits, would not reach them. And some also have no access
through a spouse or ex-spouse to such resources. Measures in this
area to cover these people might include employer or employee
puy-in to Medicaid or subsidized HMO memberships, portable or
artial pensions, earnings sharing Social Security. broadened eligi-
ility for unemployment insurance, et cetera.
Thank you.
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[Prepsred statement of Diana M. Pearce follows:]
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PrePARED STATEMENT OF DIANA M. Pzarce, DIRECTOR, WOMEN AND POVERTY PROJECT
h - I would like to thank the Chair and Membars of the Eccnomic
Opportunities Subcommittee for this opportunity to addraess vou
R concarning problems faced by smbloved womsn. especially
lowjincom. women. Part-time/temporary work is a fast-growing,
but invisible ghetto experienced by more and more women workers.
Many of thesa workers. becsuse thay work ’out of sight’ as
| nighttime office cleaners. urban transit drivers. cafeteria \Q
cooks and hospital laundrvy workers. are doubly invisible. But ‘
svan those who are 'sgan' by the public inhabit an invisible
occunational ghettn. We are all familiar with the pink collar
qhatto. and the secratarial pool. which are visible examoles of
the confinement of women workers to jobs with relativelv 1ittle
economic opportunity. But when we enter a retail store. eat at
E a restaurant, or do business over tha telephoneo. there i1s no way
. of knowing who ig full-time and who 13 part-time. vet the
invisible ghettc of part-time is equally as restricting on the %
‘.conomxc onbortunity of its inhabitants as the <raditional
occupational ghattoes.
. Part-tim> work iz a working women’s issue because i
two-thirds of part—-time workers are women. Twice the Droportion
of emblovud women a# compared to men - ovu} a quarter compared
. to 12Z - work at part-time schedulas. Moreover. thase ’
proportions are likely to increase: other groups which have

traditionally worked disproportionatelv on part-time schedules,
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THE FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE ACT IS BUT ONE OF MANY REFORMS
NEEDED TO RECOGNIZE THE CONTRIBUTIONS OF FAMILY CAREGIVERS NOT
ONLY TO THEIR FAMILIES BUT TO SOCIETY IN GENERAL. OTHER REFORMS,
SOME OF WHICH ARE CONTAINED IN THE ECONOMIC EQUITY ACT, SUCH AS
LCREASED DEPENDANT CARE TAX CREDITS, WOULD GIVE ECONOMIC VALUE
TO THE WORK OF CAREGIVERS. I ENCOURAGE YOU TO WORK ON THESE AND
RELATED INITIATIVES AND THANK YOU FOR THIS OPPORTUNITY TO SPEAK
WITH YOU ON THIS CRITICAL ISSUE.

namely tuwenagers and older. near-retirement, men. are daecreasing
in numbers in the labor force. whila women arvz projected to ne
two~thirds of all naw workers by 199%5, When combined with
temporary/seasonal/ work. we find that only 48% of emploved
women work full-time. vear-round(i.e., at ieast 50-352 weaeks ner
year.) Thus the problems associatad with the marginal status of
the part~time/temporary worker ara of direct concern to tne

majority of women workertc.

1. Part-time jobs: what thev ara and are not

fart-Sige_iQba_arg often teweorary and/gr_seas .al_as_wsll.
Onlv about ona—~third of women part-time workers worked all vear,
and 40% worked lass than hai:f the vaar.

Part=fime_sobs_are pgorly_paid. Whether it is definmd as
20. 30. or 3% hours par week, part-time workers are freousntly
paid less than those doing the same work who have full-tine
schedules. with estimates ranging from 38% to 7%%Z of eouivalent
full-time workers’ wages. Moraover. part-time jobs taend to se
lower waged: while 5% of all jobs pay the minimum wage or la.s,
over one-fourth of part-time jobs are minimum wage or less.

Pact-time_igbs_raczly bave fringe heaefits. About 84% of
part-time jobs provide no health coverage. Manv - because of
their low pav, shorter hours and/or temporarv nature — leave the
worker ﬁnoualified for unemplovment insurance. Few Drovide sick

1 ave, paid holidays, pension or retirement funds. etc.

“
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Bart=tiom_iobs_sre_carsly_an_avenud_to_full-time work.

Emolovers do-not value work experience gained as a part-time
worker, and even when part-time emolovees seek to move into
full-time status in the same job. they are often treated as
‘outside’ applicants., and time put in as a part-time emplovee is
not counted towards seniority. Moreover, opoortunities to move
into full-time employment are dec masing, as emplovers simoly
eliminate all full-timw positiors, or forbid — as with temocrary
office workers - the worker (or the emplover) from converting a
person from part-time/temporary to full-time/permanent.

tart-tiow_seba_are_congentrated at_the lower_gnd_of the
gccunational _bierarchy, Women professionals. such as doctors
and lawvers, overwhelmingly u.crl: full-time. It contrast,
threa—fourths of tihe part-time jobs held by women are found in
the servize. sales and clerical saectors. Over half of the
service and salas jobs haeld by women are part-time: even among
clerical 'jﬂbl. one~fourth of those held by women are part-time.

Bacs=time_sobs_ace_impgverishing. Of women heads of
household who do not work at all. S7% are poor. Working
part-time only recuces t'.is pcverty rate to 37%. but full~time
worl for wonan maintaining houscholds alone reduces the povarty
rate for thie grouc to only 15%.

Bars=Sicg. sphi are .gueanding.. Since 1968, part-time jobs
havz qrovn fastw’ .nan foll~tims. In part, this {8 a chicken

and aQg ghenumeiong the fastost groving sostors — serv.ces,

G
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transportation, information. etc.. are precisely the sectors
which are heavily part-time in their job structure. Thus the
third fastest growing industry {s that of "tempprary help.*®

But it is more than just the conseguence of the expansion of

the service teicort many primary sector emplovers are converting
full-time jobs to part-time: for example, Best Products’ ordger
,; takers were 40% part-time in 1983, but 73% part-time by last
year. Even the federal governmont has sxpanded {ts
part-time/temporary workforca: there are now ovar 300,000 *
faderal workers who can work up to four vears without banefits,
sick lwave, or anv accruing of meniority.

The percentagae of workers on part-time schedules has
expanded relativaely slcwly, from 154 {in 1954 to about 20 to 22%
today. But saveral indicators suggest that this will accelerate
in the future. First. while part-time emplovment generally
axbands during recesgsions, and contracts with recoverv, the
mid-eightiaes show no such pattern., Thus, in 1985, of three
million new jobs, one-third were part-time. Second, tie
expansion of the service sector., which has accounte¢ for much of
the expansion of part—-time employment in the past, is projected
to continue to expand in numbers, and in terms of its proportion

of employment.
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Il. Bux is it a Problem? The “voluntary® issue and the
“fringes" issuw
i. - The ®"voluntary" i{ssue

One fraguently hears thet the prepondarance of women among
part-time workeru, and part-time schedules among emploved women,
is not 2 problem because most part—time women workers are
voluntary. Thers ars three @ajor problems with this assertion.

First, the term °voluntary’ no longer adequately dascribes
the kind of choice made. The way the data {3 collected,
voluntary includes not only those who actively choose betwean
part-time and full-time. but also those who "choosa’ part-time
jobs whan therwe is no full-time option: that is, because they
knowingly chose a part-time job, that choice is considered
*voluntary.’ Put another way, the only time part-time

employment is considered involuntary is when the <nplovee is

1)attactivebuekenhifgl futimtioorworor 22 8ashhadhbdsiibarhbounours

raducaed involuntarily by the emplover.

Because of tha expansion of part—time employment, for many
wérkern. eapecially raw and reantering workers, the choice is
not betwsan full and part-time, but betwaeen part-time and
no-time, i.e., No job. In this situation, {t is misleading to
label such choices voluntary-

Furthar evidence of the problematic meaning of voluntary is

found in the increasing numbers of women who are "moonlighting,"”
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i.e.. who are holding more than one jaob. In just one decade,
from 1970 to 1980. the probortfion of “moonlighters® doublaed from
16% to 334, and now encompasses 1.9 million women.

The second problem with the assartfon that part-time work
among women is not an i{sgue because it is largely voluntary, is
that this ignores the gontext in which such choices are made.
The assumption. often stated explicitly, is that emPloyed women
voluntarily choose part-time work bacauwe it meets their “nead”
for flexibility to fulfill their domestic obligations,
particularly the care of dependents. Such an undarstanding
ignores tha fact that there is a critical shortage of child care
that severely constraing free choice; thus 3IS5% of women working
part—time would work more hours, {f adequate child care were
avajlable. Is 1t a "voluntary’ choice when a woman chooses
part—-time work with adequate (or no need for) dependent care
ovaer full-time work with inadequate or no dependent care?

As it now stands, the advantages of part-time employment’s
*flexibility’ accrue to the emplover (i.e., in lower wage costs),
while the costs accrue to the woman worker (i.e.. in limitad
opportunities for better wages, advancement, etc.) This does not
maan that no women worker is reoally voluntarily choosinrg
part-time over full-tise work, but rather that until there is
adequate child and dependent care available. so that choices are
truly voluntary, we will not really know what the roal level of

voluntary part-tims employment is. Until then. the

Paarce/July 198~ hd "The InvisitSle Ghasttc*
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voluntary/involuntary dis?. ction among part-time workers oust
be rejecied as not only falge, but misleading in our attempis to
understand the problems of working women.
Third and finally, even if one is to accent the
' voluntary/involuntary distinction, it is clear that more and s
aore part—time workers are defining themselves as {nvoluntary.
Batwasn 1979 and 19835, voluntary part-time emplovment grew 4.3%,
while involuntary part-time emplovyment grew &0%.
T~ 2., The Fringes Issue
¢ Few would disagree that part-time emdloyees ganerally have
far, if any, of the fringe ben.ffts associated with full-time

emoloyment. But it iz often asserted that this is not a serious

problen, for it is maintained that many part-time workers have
access to health insurance, fcr examgle through their spouses,
parents, etc.

First, there are substantial numbers of part-time workers
who do not have access to benefits through others. Thus while

2 42%Z do have haalth coverage through a spouse or other relative,

42X of part-time workers have @ access to hmalth coverage.

.~ Second, many so-callad fringe benefits cannot be gotten
secondhand. Thus, the lxck of sick leave and paid holidavs. <ne
ron—-gualification for unsm.lovment insurance. the non-vesting in
a pension. are all fringe benafits whose lack nhas direct. and
non-replaceable sconomic costs for the non-~covered part-time

worker. It should be noted that these “economic costs* should
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be reckoned. not in dollars and cents. but rather in ecsnomic
security. Part-time workers. and their families. experience
real economic insecurity as a consequence of the lack of fringe
benefits.,

~Ultimately, the lack of fringe benefits. and the resulting
economic insecurity, becomes a societal praoblem. When part-time
workers play the health roulette because they lack health
ingurance, and lose, society must pick up the tab in the form of
charity health care or Madicaid. When the need for sick leave
ar child care ar health care farces a part-time worker who is
also a parent, tc leave amployment and seek welfare and
Medicaid, society must pay. When a part-time worker, who has
accrued little seniority, no training, and low wages, reaches
middle age and becomes a displaced homemaker, society must pay.
When a part-time worker becomes disabled. or reaches retirement
age, with little or no pension or insurance and i1nadeGuate

Social Secur:ity, society must pay.

Ill. Towards Some Solutions

As suggested by the discussion of fringe benefits above.
the oroblem of part-time emplovment 18 more than one of laower
wages. Rather, the invisible ghetto of part-time/temparary
wark, overwhelmingly women and disproportionately minority, is
creating an underclass of workers and their femilies who suffer

from low incaome and severe economic insecurity. The tnecual:ity,
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in botn resourczes and security, between the inhabitant. of the
invisible ghetto and full-time workers. shows every indicatzzn
of increasing, unless scmething is done. Threa areas whare the
problems of part-time employment co 1d be addressed by public
policy are as follows.

Clearly, the first area to be addressed is the unegual
wages of full and part-tima workers: full and part-time workers
should be paid eqial wages for esqual work, including pro-rated
fringa benefits, veniority credits, access to training, etc.
Part-time work should simply refer to hours, not to a whole sat
of wage rates, benefits, and economic opportunities that
contribute to widening inequality hetween full—-time and part-time
workers.

The second area is more difficult, but crucial, and that ig
that we aust find the means for employers to share the costs of
frinre benefits, such as health insurance, amc .g all emploved
mambers of a family., This should include, &s well,
non-custodial parents; we have made impor-tant strides towarr
sharing cash raesources after Jdivorce through child support
enforcement, we must begin to think about the economic security
resources which may not be equally distributed between the
mother and father, but which are crucial to the children’s
future health, education, etc.

The thard area involves doveloping societal msasures to

more adequately equalize access of all employed persons to
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economic security resources. The strategy would be analogous to
auto insurance: states have decided it ig not in society’s
interast to have some individuals drive witheut insurance, for

the cost iz barne both unfairly by random victims, and -

e,

societally in taerms of charity cara. Som2 workers have employers

h who do not provide any employees fringe benaefits, so that the <
first measure would not raeach them., and some also have 10 access
3 through a gspouse or ex-spouse to such rescurces. Measures in

this arec might incluce employer or employae buy-in to Madizaid,
or subsidized HMO memberships, portable or partial pensions,
earnings sharing in Sccial Security, broadened eligibility for

. unemployzent. insurance, estc.
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Mr. MarTiNEz. Thank you, Ms. Pearce.
Ms. Moss.

STATEMENT OF ANNE MOSS, DIRECTGR, WOMEN'S PENSION
PROJECT, PENSION RIGHTS CENTER

Ms. Moss. My name is Anne Moss. I am the Director of the
Women'’s Pension Project of the Pension Rights Center. The Center
is a nonprofit group that works for more equitable pension pro-
grams.

l I want to thank the Chairman and the members of the subcom-
| mittee for having this hearing on the Economic Fquity Act which .
| has s0 many important economic reforms for women. ¢
| _I'plan to talk briefly about just the private pension reform provi-
g sions.

‘:‘ We think that an employer sponsored pension is essential when
|

|

|

|

\

}

\

|

|

}

|

}

a working women retires because typically that is about all she
will have to live on besides her Social Security. For women retiring
today, the average Social Security benefit is around $5,000 a year.
And few retirees have much in the way of retirement savings. But
the problem is that only about 11 percent of women 65 and over
collect private pensions which average about $2600 a year.

The main reasons thet women have done so poorly under private
pensicn plans are that they have been often been excluded from
pension plans; that plans have had unreasonable vesting require-
ments, frequently 10 years that women workers cannot meet; pen-
sion formulas are designed to skew benefits in favor of highly paid
or long service workers who are typically not women.

Congress though has recognized how essential pensions are for
decent retirement, and they have decided that our tax subsidized
pension plans must be fair to low and moderate income workers.
Tax breaks that employers receive for maintaining employee pen-
sion plans will cost the Treasury about $37 billion in lost revenue
this year.

Congress has passed some very far-reaching pension reform legis-
lation in the past few years, including provisions of such laws as
the Tax Eg ity and Fiscal Responsibility Act of 1882, the Retire-
ment Equity Act, and last year's Tax Reform Act. Altogether these
- and other pension reforms represent a dramatic change in pension
law that should mean more pensions for millions of working
women in years to come. But there are still women who will lose
out. This year’s Economic Equity Act will clese more of those pen-
sion loopholes.

In the pension coverage area, many working women are not
members of plans even though their employers have plans. That is
because employers are still allowed to exclude employees by job
category, for example, such as excluding all secretaries or
hourly workers.

We have heard that some employers in the retail and service in-
dustries—and especially in the fast food industry—who are deliber-
ately scheduling employees to work less than 1,000 hours a year,
which means that it is much easier to exclude taem {:om the plan.

The Economic Equity Act comes close to requiring almost 100
percent pension coverage where an employer already maintains a
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plan. It would require plans to include virtually every employee
who is at least aged 21 and who is within what it calied a single
line of business. It will also require plens to include many more
part-time workers.

The Economic Equity Act would also improve vesting require-
ments. Last year’s Tax Reform Act will require plans to let work-
ers become vested after 5 years of service rather than 10, which is
much more reasonable. That starts going into effect in 1989, But
the new 5 year vesting requirement does not apply to union negoti-
ated plans to which more than one employer contributes, known as
n;u.lti-employer plans, for example, construction trades’ union
plans.

If women are able to get nontraditional Jobs, then we think they
ought to have a reasonable chance of collecting a pension. The Eco-
nomic Equity Act extends 5 year vesting to all private plans,

The Economic Equity Act also addresses the problem of pension
integration with Social Security. Integration means that a plan can
count a portion of a worker’s Social Security against her pension.
This is a very widespread practice that tends to diminish or wipe
out completely the pensions of lower paid workers and, therefore,
hits women workers the hardest.

We recently heard from a women who worked part-time for 10
years and was lucky enough to be covered under her plan, and she
did become vested. But now she has been told that when she gets to
be 65 in about five or six years, she can expect a pension of.47
cents a month. And this is because her plan is integrated. We
found it hard to believe that the pension would actually send her a
letter saying youw’ll get a pension of 47 cents a month, but it was
obviously a form lctter.

Even if she had worked—we think under the same plan if she
had been able to work a full career of 35 or 40 years, then she
would have gotten not much more than that amount.

Last year’s Tax Reform Act says that starting with the pension
that a worker accumulates in 1989 and after, a worker cannot lose
her entire pension to integration, but only half the pension. This
was a very important reform, but now I am starting to get letters
from workers that say half my pension? Why shouldn’t I be able to
collect sl of my pension? I earned it after all.

The Economic Equity Act would gradually eliminate the practice
of pension integration with Social Security.

The bill would also require—at least it would require govern-
ment studies of the feasibility of requiring pians to provide pension
portability which we think would help a lot of women.

it also would require plans to—a study of requiring plans to pro-
vide cost-of-living increases for retirees.

Both of these we think would help women.

We are looking forward to the day when we have a pension
system that gives women adequate benefits reflecting all their time
in the work force. And we hope Congress will act quickly to remove
the remaining inequities.

Thank you for giving us a chance to present our views.

[Prepared statement of Anne Moss follows:]
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PREPARE. SrrAmum or ANNE Moss, Director, WoMeN’s PENstow PROJECT, PENSION
RiGHTs CENTER

Mr. Chairman, Members of the Subcommitcee, I am Anne
Moss, Director of the Women's Pension Project of the Pension
Rights Center. The Center is a nonprofit organization that
has been working for the past decade to make the nation's
pension programs fairer and more responsive to the needs of
workers and retirees.

I want to thank the Subcommittee for holdin¢ a hearing
focusing on H.R. 2577, the Economic Equity Act, which would
provide many very significant economic reforms for women. I
will discuss only the private pension reform provisions
today. These provisions are also included in H.R.2613, The
Pension Reform Act of 1987, introduced by Rep. Barbara
Kennelly and H.R.2575, The Nonfull-time Employee Benefits
Protection Act of 1987, introduced by Rep. Patricia
Schroeder.

Why women need pensions. A woman retiring today will

need much more than her social security benefit, which now
averages less than $5000 a year. Few retirees have
significant savings to bolster that amount. According to a
recent study of social security recipients, half of all
married individuals have accumulated less than $8000 total
jn financial assets (other than a home); half of all married
couples have less than $16,700. A wquer must have something
more to supplement her income - thig is the role thét should
be played by an employer-sponsorzd pension.

why women don't receive adequate pensions. The problem
is that only 11% of women 65 and over collect private
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o pensions, compared to 29% of men. And when they do get
pensions, the benefits average only $2667 a year - men
receive $4902. There are many reasons why so few women
collect decent pensions, but three important ones are:

(1) Women are less likely to be members of pension plans,

s (2) plans frequently have unreasonable length-of-service
requirements for pension eligibility that women workers
cannot meet, and 3) pension formulas tend to skew benefits in
favor of highly-paid or long-service workers who are
typically not women.

Recent pension reforms. Fortuna~-:ly, Congress has
recognized that pensions are absolutely essential to a decent
retirement, and that tax-subsidized pension plans must be
fair to low and moderate-income workers. (Emplovers receive
annual tax deductions for making contributions to pension
plans, and are not taxed on the earnings of pension fund
investments. These tax breaks will cost the Treasury over
$37 billion in lost revenue tpis year.) Although pensions
were once regarded as a way to ).wsard certain favored
employees, the modern view is that they are deferred wages:

a worker accepts lower wages while working in exchange for .
getting a pension at retirement.

Private pension plans ar. governed by provisions of the
Employee Retiremernt Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA) and
the Internal Revenue Code. In the last five yvears, we have

seen much pension reform on behalf of women workers through

the enactment of laws that strengthen ERISA and the tax code.

TA
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o0 The Tax Equity & Fiscal Responsibility Act of 1982 -
Provisions of TEFRA require three-year vesting and a
minimum benafit for employees under plans thut pay
more than 60% of benefits to the company owners and
other key employees. TEFRA primarily helps women
| working in support-staff jobs in small professiocnal
. offices.
. o The Retirement Equity Act of 1984 - The REA requires
‘ plans to include workers starting at age 21 rather
than age 25, and give credit toward vesting starting
at a7 18 rather than 22. It also makes it easier
for a woman who takes time off from a job, for family

¥ responsibilities or other reasons, to preserve the
credits she has already earned.

o The Tax Reform Act of 1980 - Provisions of this law
require plans to include mose workers and let most
workers vest in 5 rather than 10 vears. It also
prohibits plans from entirely eliminating a worker's
pension benefit by "integrating" it with sorial
security. These provisions start going into effect in
1989.

o The Omnibur Budget Reconciliation Act of 1986 - OBRA
prohibits pians from excluding workers who start a
job after age 60 and requires plans to con’‘-~ue
giving pension credits to individuals working past
age 65. These provisions go into effect in 1988.

The pension reforms of the REA, the Tax Reform Act, and OBRA
all originated in provisions ¢f the Economic Equity Act of
past years. Collectively, thesa reforms represent dramatic
change in pension law that shoulZ result in more and better
pensions for millions of working women for years to came.

But even these protections leave gaps in the law, through

\
|
|
|
|
|
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|
|
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|
|
|
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|
|
|
] which many women will still lose out.
|
|
|
|
|
|
\
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THE ECONOMIC EQUITY ACT OF 1987

This year's Economic Equity Act would close more legal

v loopholes by addressing the following problems:

Coverage. Many women who work for employers who sponsor

) Jension plans are not included in thor2 plans. But even the

»

improvements of the Tax Reform Act will rot help everyone.

Employers will still be able to exclude employees by

3 category, such as "all secretaries" or "all casual workers,"

as long as they include enough other workers of different
salary levels. We have also heard that some employers in the
retail and service industries are deliberately scheduling
their employees to work just under 1000 hours a year, since
all woxkers with less than 1000 hours can be immediately
excluded.

The Economic Equity Act would require plans to include
virtually every employee who i. at least &ge 21 and within a
"single line of business." It will also require plans to
include part-time workers who customarily work at least 500
hours a year.

Eligibility for benefits. The Tax Reform Act made a
tremendous improvement when it required plans to start
letting workers vest after five years service, rather than
ten. However, five year-vesting does not apply to union-
negotiated plans to which more than one employer contributes,
known as multi-employer plans. Although women are gradually
obtaining non-traditional jobs, such as in the construction

trades, they will not be likely to collect pensions if they
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have to work 10 years. The EEA would extend five-year
vesting to all private plans.
Pension integration. For years, pension plans have been

permitted to take into account a worker's social security

. benefits when figuring her pension benefit. Th.s is known as

pension "integration" with social security. One type of
'pension integration allows employers to subtract part of an
employee's social Security from her pension. However,
because social security benefits replace a greater proportion
of earnings for a lower income worke., taking into uccount 2
low income worker's social security could reduce or
corpletely wipe out a worker's pension. Integration has
always hit women workers harder than men, because women tend
to dominate the lower-paid positions in the work force. Yet
these are workers who need pensions most.

The Tax Reform Act says that a worker must still be left
with half her pension after integration is applied. However,
many workers question why they shouldn't be able to receive
the entire pension. The EEA would eventually eliminate the

practice of integration.

* x *
The Economic Equity Act also addresses other pension
issues crucicl to working women:
Pension portability. The typical worker changes jobs
many times during a career. Assuming that she becomes
vested, she will still end up with 2 pension based on wages

fixed as of the date she leaves the plan. According to one
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study, a worker who has four jobs, for tn.n years each, would
get about half the penslon of the worker who works
continuously for forty years on one job.

Congress sghould consider the feasibility of providing
true pension portability by requiring that pl&ns allowing a
worker with a vested right to a pension at a later retirement
age, be allowed to request, when leaving the company, that
) the plan transfer the value of the pension benefits to a
"Portable Pension Plan” or at least index the worker's
deferred vested pension until retirement age. The British
pension system a.ready uses a type of indexing.

The EEA requires a government study of the feasibility
of pension portability.

Cost of living. 1Inflation has an espacially devastating
impact on retirees. A retiree entitled to a pension is
likely to receive the same amount for the rest of her life.
We hear from retirees who tell us they are still getting $65
or $75 a month, the same pension they were getting a decade
ago. The probler: of mandating cost-of~living increases is a
complex one. However, it is definitely practicable where a
plan is we®l-funded or overfunded. Congress should explore
the possibility of requiring cost of living incresses in
these situations. The EEA requires a government study of
ways of establishing a national system of pension
portability.

We are looking forward to making greater strides, with

the Subcommittee's help, toward an equitable system that
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accurately reflects the time women spend in the work force.
We hope that Congress will act swiftly to remove the
remaining inequities that prevent our retived workers from
recelva g the adequate retirement income they need to enjoy
their later years in dignity.

Thank you for the opportunity to present our views.
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Mr. MArTINEZ. Thank you very much, Ms. Moss.

Several things come to mind, and more importantly than any is
the fact that there needs to be as much emphasis placed on pension
reform asg any other aspect of problems concerning women.

One of the things that Ms. Pearce brought up that is of great
concern to many of us as we consider these problems and situations
is part-time element. You know, clearly the Department of Labor
and manK people who handle this problem do not consider part-
time work as much different from that defined in your testimony,
Somehow or another they have been lulled into some mistaken im-
pression that because of the benefits to the employer, more than to
the employee, part-time work does not create any detrimental ef-
fects on those part-time workers themselves, basically because of
the misconception that most part-time workers choose to work
part-time,

Let me tell vou something. I know an employer in my district
who wore his liberalism on his chest like a badge. And vet, how
liberal thinking was he when he did not have one single employee
in his business that was full-time? He required them to wcrE that
minimum time to keep them from being full-time employees, and
for what reason? No other reason than that he would not have to
provide the benefits that you normally have to provide by law to a
full-time worker.

Now, because of that experience, as I have been involved in both
the state level government and here in Washington, it never has
fooled me one bit why so many people hire part-time workers
when, in fact, they could use a lesser number of employees if they
could hire full-time workers.

The other thing that has always been a hypocrigsy to me is the
unemployment rate. Consider that women are 44 percent of the
work force and 52 percent of these are women that are working
part-time even considering that there are some women who want
part-time work because of family obligations.

We mistakenly say family obligations are more important to
them, a priority to them. But that family obligation sometimes is
because they have no choice because they have no way of providing
day care for them. We then skew our perception of this, and we are
not thinking of it in true perspective.

And it has been a big hypocrisy to me that of that part-time
work force, which is probably about one-quarter of the unemploy-
ment rate that we deem is current, which would then put that at
about 1.2 percent higher than it actually is which helps whoever is
trying to make that statistic a valued one to them that we have
reduced unemployment to this percentage rate.

I do not know how it got to be that we changed our interpreta-
tion of what was full employment. At one time in this country you
normally have about a 2 to 8 percent changeover from job to job,
always moving from place to place so that you really consider full
employment if it really is a valid thing at about 2 or 3 percent of
the unemployment rate. When we have an unemployment rate of 2
or 3 percent, tl..n we consider it full employment.
beI gc n:(; really buy that either because I think those figures can

skewed.
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But all of a sudden that 6.1 or 6.2, or whatever it is now, becomes
an acceptable rate from the same people who told us that it was
deplorable to have that rate when initially we are running for
oftice.

Now, it even gets worse if you then now include the military,
which has never been included there, and incl'1de these part-time
workers which should not be included in therr Secause they really
want full-time work. And if you really look .a true numbers the
stiat}stics themselves are not factual, I will give you the best exam-
ple I can.

When I visited the Virgin Islands, which has 110,000 popuiation,
that little group that is part of U.S. property says that they can
accurately, because of the small numbers—thei. Department of
Labor told me they can accuratelﬁr determine how many people are
eligible and willing to work and how many people are actually em-
ployed. And when they measure by their actual count the unem-
ployment rate, it gets to be about 8 or 4 percent higher than what
their Department of Labor figures. So, if you took that and extrap-
olated it out across the United States, you would probably find the
same thing. And there are areas that have done their own meas-
urement and come up with the same conclusion.

So, we get to the J)omt, how are we going to, from the infexma-
tion that you provided—and your testimony was very accurate—
make people understand that people that are working part-time in
many, many cases are not working part-time because they only
wlfu}t part-time work, but because they have no alternative, no
choice.

And the other, more graphic demonstration you have laid out
here is the fact that these people need to be considered for benefits
at least and “ension rights and everything else full-time employees
receive.

I do not know, and I am not too sure that the Economic Equity
Act really—-

Ms. Pearce. It does address a couple of the issues. One is the
gension right vestment—move it down from 1,000 hours a year to

00 hours a year. And that would make it very difficult for people
to hire part-time workers just under the 1,000 hours.

Mr. MARTINEzZ. Yes, a 500 hour reduction is a great help. But I
don't think even that goes far enough. I guess therehas got to be a
btreak somewhere, but I am not sure that 500 hours is necessarily
it.

But even at that there are still some other loopholes that we
don’t address.

Ms. Pearce. I think we should mandate in a variety of ways, like
the prorating of benefits, that part-time work is simply a reference
to hours, not in terms of status.

Especially, the issue about voluntary, I have been reading a
number of Bureau of Labor stetistics publications And every time
you turn around it becomes clear that tuey even distinguish be-
tween the voluntary and involuntary, and simply do not count vol-
untary part-time employment.

The economic consequences of being a part-time employee are
the same whether one ‘‘chooses” or is “forced” into that situation.
So, the women who, because she cannot get child care, works part-

-~
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time should not be punished for doing a good job of taking care of
her children and not know leaving them alone or whatever in
terms of economic terms. She probably needs even more because
she does not have the resources to compete in the very difficult
child care market. She needs even more to be paid a fair wage, to
get the prorated benefits, rather than punished for having made
that choice and told, well, since it was voluntary, you can get
along. Well, you cannot eat voluntary, you know. You need the
same wages. And I think to try to do that across the board to make
working part-time just a number of hours rather than in terms of
everything else, wages.

And also we are taking about over people’s work lives the ability
to build a career or senicrity in a job so that one builds towards a
pension. One builds work experience that is valued by employers.

I mean, if you think about now people talk about part-time em-
ployees and how they are valued, there is no question that employ-
ers do not value part-time experience. Workers themselves do not
value it. In our society we simply have ghettoized part-time work-
ers. But it is an invisible ghetto. And I think for that reason it is
very much more insidious than some of the more obvious ghettoes
and we should do something about it.

Mr. MARTINEZ. Prorating is a very excellent idea, and it is very
equitable. I do not how anybody could argue with prorating. If you
work a certain number of hours, you are entitled to a certain
number of benefits.

Ms. Pearce. You might find less of this distinction too because
one of the reasons that even the primary sector employers are con-
verting to part-time is that the fringe benefits now are about a
third of the wage cost that employers pay. If you can cut a third
out of your wage bill by converting from fuil-time to part-time, ob-
viously you have an economic incent:ve to do it. And we need to
take away that economic incentive. Just like we have created eco-
nomic in~~ntives like the targeted jobs tax credit and other such
things to gear the way in which employers go about hiring people
and structuring work, we could do the same thing here, toke away
the economic incentive to .ire part-time workers without benefits.

Mr. MARTINEZ. Since s0 many of the part-time workers are
women, I think you have provided ns with provocative testimony
here and those things that are in this testimony we should carry
forth in a more—what would I say—in a more visible way so that
we can make sure that we address that particular situation. I think
you have brought us some very valuable testimony.

I want to thank both of you for appearing before us today. And I
think we have done a pretty good job about providing for the
record enough testimony that we can provide enough debate to
argue these questions as we go. Thank you very much, both of you.
We are adjourned.
[Whereupon, at 12:30 p.m., the subcommittee was adjourned.]
[Material subinitted for inclusion in the record follows:]

.
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: THIS LEITER APPEARED IN CONGRESSIONAL RECORD JULY 20,1987 é§§%£51-2

TO: Congresswonan Barbara Boxor

PROM: Annette Klang Szail of Novsto, Calif.
RE: Letter on H.R. 1636 to be insertod in CUONGRESSI .'AL RECORD--Extension

of Remarks

CREATION OF / F3DERAL COUNCIL ON WOHEN

My romanrks here refer to H.R.1636,. your bill that would establish a
Fodoral Council on Womer (FCW) an an advisory body to the Cougrean. The FCW
would help to nddress tha severe social problen cnlled the feminization of
poverty and would, at the same tine, help advancy the general status of all
women and the children they care for., Clearly, solutions to problems facing
children in poverty are inseparable from women's issues.

The sajor fact that the FCW bill addresses is that our goverami :v has
failed to develop a comprehensive and coherent domestic policy dealing with
hosecakers, working women and older retired women. These three female groups,
in themsalves, constitute a disproportionate percentnge of the nntion's adult
poor. And whea the numbors of children in poverty are added, then wo 16e 2
cloarly-defined focus of one of the zajor causes of povesty in Azerica and how
it has been--and is being--spawned cyclicnlly to become a greater and gre.cer
burden. The burden falls not only on the deprivei of both geanders, but is
a burden that affects the gemeral public 8cod and the federal budget as well.

This social problem is surely pst un isolated one since it effoctively
penetrates the quality of life of all our <itizens. Yot what has been sorely
lacking nt the federal levol is a tool, like the proponed FCW, that could
help remady a situntion thot hae been sufforing from nationnl policy nogloat.
‘Such a policy of neglect by the highest levéla of government needs, at lony
last, to be substituted with a full-drawn effort. The seeds of that full-
drawn effort are contained in the idea of a FCW, which in itself could help
to aseist in defining and comstructing a policy secking solut ‘ons.

The adninistration's failure to come up with such a policy has left us, as
tine gous 13, with more and more complex and challenging social problens, only
a fractir of which have aver been fully acknowledged or addressed. Mozt often
proposed reforas have been dealt with only in bits and pieces of frngmented
legislation--legislation that has no foundation im a clearly defined national
policy or comnittment.

A good examplo of this lack of leginlative development devoid of a
national policy i3 reflected in the track rocord of the Economic Equity Act,
which was first introduced in 1981. Since that time that Act, which proposos
significant reforms for women in the workplace, in the home, in the family
and in their older years, has, not surprisingly, made little headway. The
Act's o-ogroos has been ninimal basicnlly becnuse 10 fedoral policy in those
areas ans ever boon lais out.

Another ronson why our progros
status has boen so slow is becauge of

¢ toward advsncing women's economic and nocinl
the under-representation of woaen in Congreas.
Sisca women constitute only 2 por cent of the Senate and a little over 5 per cent

in the Houss, such a representnticnal discropency h~3 served both to narrow the
legislative agenda and inhibit needed policy development far 51 per cent of

the population.
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7o help romedy this gendor iambalance in our representational systen,
the uresation of & vehicle to provide women with more say and input iato
the political agenda is needed. Such an opportunity for female participation
would be opened up by the very existence of the FCW. At the present tize,
because women's voices do not have such an outlet, or conduit, aany now
foel we are unable to effectively influence the political agenda. Act rally,
many feel alienated from the polit/oal systes itself.

It is no wonder so many of us fesl this way. For too many years thorc
has been this vacuum in fair represcatation--and never more so than now
under the current adainistration. Few people realizy that President
Reagan is the first president since 1961 never to have issued an
executive order to create a women's sdvisory body with the goal of enhancing
the quality of women's lives. Thersfore, it is now up to Congress to £ill
thig leadership gap by now establisaing an edvisory body on a perzanent
bi_.is until equelity of political representation has been achieved by
both genders.

Sinply put, the FCW is seen as a tool to help rectify women's unequal
otatug in the pilitical arenan. Wo viow it cs giviug oar concorns moro
legislntivo access and attention to what we fael are legitimnte rights-
baged issues. Further, compared to wmost con, women have & far gronter
econoaic and social investament in children. The fact that there are so
ooy fezale single parents has not received sufficient attention in the
legislative arena.

Qur lack cf a rofined public policy--beyond traditionnl welfare
prograns--dealicz with wonen's day-to-day recpoasibilities, obligations
and needs in the areas of child care, parental "leave, hezith care and
pensipna have gone largely unattended. At long last, thess fundamental
issues nust be confroated honeustly and head~on—-or our fture #2ll be
imperiled. -

As an advisory arm of the Congress and as ap iustrument to stizulate

needed reforms for today's world, an FCW would atteapt to bring the

fomale poverty issue to its rightful high-priority raik on the natiomal
agenda. It would do this by helping to define a public policy consistent

with the present reality of women's lives--not yesterday's. In this

way, the FCW would ale> function as a thigk 28K yhose informed and .
highly qualified narticipants would be peoplo who will be dealing with issues
they are Z)rcady so familiar with. ° It is expected that think tank

poopls will bo geuuine experts because they will have had life experieaces
. i dealing with the very issues for which they seek solutioas. -

Hoving led the drive to get the PCW bill introduced, I a=z very much
in touch with the grass roots support for this measure and I azave been
* ~artened by the enthusiastic bipartisar response received whereever tiis
proposal has been explained. It has been endorsed by nuzerous groups,
including the California legislature, in addition to many grass roots
constituen.., both men and women who have been signing petitions natdon-
wide. Our growing number of backers look forward to similar enthusiastic
support from the U.S. Congress because the time was neves soomer for
“ction to be taken to croate a FCY. Its very existence wonld help to
acknowledge women's presence to a far greater extent than it is now iz
< the political proceg.
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